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ACRONYMS
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MM — Municipal Manager

MPAC = Municipal Public Accounts Committee
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MTERF- Medium-term Revenue and Expenditure Framework
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SEDA —Small Enterprise Development Agency
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SPLUMA - Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act

UNISA — University of Scuth Africa

VAT ~ Value Added Tax

VIP - Yentilation Improved Pit Latrine

VPN —Virtual Private Network

WS5P — Work Skills Plan
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CHAPTER 1: MAYOR’S FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality’s annual report for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 is presented
in compliance with according to Section 121 of the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 read as well
as Section 46 (1) of the Municipal Systems Act of 2000. The Annual Report serves as a communication tool for
providing broad information on activities carried out and services provided and for comparing actual service
delivery with projected service delivery. The information in this annual report will inform the community and
assist the wider public to assess how the municipality has performed in relation to stewardship of community
needs, efficiency, effectiveness, and cost-effectiveness of operations. Chapter 1 of the report provides Mayor’s
foreword and an overview of the Municipal Manager with a brief summary of key service delivery essentials.

COMPONENT A: MAYOR'S FOREWORD

1.1 MAYOR’S FOREWORD

a. Vision
“To be a World Class Agricultural Hub of Choice”.

b. Key Policy Developments

This report follows the first remarkable year of the local government
elections which took place in November 2021. This election presented the
Municipality with a challenge to review and assess whether a positive impact
and a shift in the development of our communities has been made, in terms

of the Council’s existing vision and strategy. The review process required an
innovative way of looking at issues at large. A new focus is on optimizing organizational performance to ensure
a move towards organizational culture that adapts more easily to change.

Despite all challenges we will strive to continue rendering high quality services to our communities during
2023/2024 financial year. The Municipality committed itself to the principles of innovation and improved
service delivery to take us forward into the future.

c. Key Service Delivery Improvements
In the year under review the municipality successfully implemented the following capital projects as Multiyear

projects.

Table 1: Roads Projects

Project name Number of Project value Expenditure | Progressto | Challenges
kilometres in date
roads tarred

Rathoke Internal 2.0 R6,208,688,68 |R6,208,688,68 | 100% None
Street complete
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complete

Morarela Access 2.5 R13,542,129.69 |13,610,034.81 | 100% The project had time

Road complete overrun due to
dispute that arose
during the
implementation of
the project

Uitvlugt Bus Route| 4.85 R15,034,481.63 |R18,256,441.13 |49.8% None

Table 2: Electrical Projects

:'l'i'-‘F':!-.'.:: e me!

Energy Efficiency and Demand | R 5 R 5600 000.00 | Completed No challenges

Side Management 600 000.00

Industrial Substation second R 3 500 000 R 1807022 Completed Snag list outstanding
supply Phase 4

High mast lights — R 3 000 000 R 2670 000 Completed No challenges
Leeuwfontein RDP

High mast lights — Malebitsa R 3 000 000 R2550917 Completed No challenges

d. Public Participation

The municipality has developed an annual public participation program. The program targets all 16 wards and
specific villages. These meetings afford politicians the opportunity to report back on progress made and direct
contact with ordinary community members. The Municipality continued to develop and improve mechanisms
to ensure a culture of participative governance as a priority. Cluster- Based consultation has been adopted as
a form of participatory community action linked to the Integrated Development Planning (IDP) process. Ward

committees enhance a more effective communication between the council and the community.

Table 3: Public Participation Meetings

Public Participation on 2023/2024 Annual Report

Public Participation on 2024/2025 Draft IDP/Budget

Back to School Opening Campaign

MPAC Public Hearing Meetings

e P e e P g e By N TS
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e. Future Actions

The speaker’s office facilitated constant interaction with the communities by guarterly ward committee
meetings with their constituencies, to get the problems encountered in their wards. The mayor's office also
embarks on the mayoral outreach programs focusing on focal groups, i.e. women, children, disabilities, etc.

f. Agreements / Partnerships (announcements on special partnerships initlated)

During the period under review, the municipality did not have anmy partnership with any State-Dwned
Enterprises or the Private Sector, however we received grants of MIG and FMG from sector departments to
support the municipality.

g. Conclusion

The Municipality acknowledge the progress made and very conscious about the fact that some segments of
communities are still living in depressing poverty, we remain committed and determined to persevere in
realising the key focus areas that Council adoptedin the IDP 2023- 2024. In terms of eur Visien, the Municipality
wants to thank the community of the municipality as well as all other stakeholders for their will to participate
in the affairs of the Municipality. We appeal to all our stakeholders to continue to do 50, by joining hands with
the Municipality to make EPMLM “To be a World Class Agricultural Hub of Choice”,

-

(Signed by :) VAN

Mayor; Cllir, G.M.H. Moimana

e ——
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COMPONENT B: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

[1.2 MUNICIPAL MANAGER'S OVERVIEW

The preparation and publication of the Annual Report is a legislative
requirement as per Section 46 of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 and
Section 121 of the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003. Section
46 (1) and (2) outlines the frequency of the Annual Report and what should
be reflected therein; whilst Section 121 of the Municipal Finance
Management Act provides timeframes within which the report should be
prepared and made available for perusal by the council and its
committees. It further set out latest date by which the report should be
approved by council and then ultimately be adopted and publicized an
official service delivery report of the municipality. Again, in terms of
section 121 of the MFMA the purpose of an annual report is:

° To provide a record of the activities of the municipality or
municipal entity during the financial year to which the report relates,

° To provide a report on performance against the budget of the
municipality or municipal entity for that financial year; and

e To promote accountability to the local community for the decisions made throughout the
year by the municipality or municipal entity.

Accordingly, the main role of the accounting officer in the preparation of this report was to ensure that the

report is completed timeously and that it accurately recounts the key activities undertaken in the year under
review, giving a clear indication of achievements, non-achievement, challenges and opportunities realized
while undertaking such activities. Key among such achievements include the 100% MIG spending and
successful completion of capital projects thereof. The municipality also managed to fill all section 54 and 56
managers during the 2023/2024 financial year. The municipality has maintained its 2022/2023 Unqualified
Audit Opinion with findings by obtaining Unqualified Audit Opinion with findings again in the 2023/2024

financial year.

90

VI.E. MOROKA
MUNICIPAL MANAGER
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1.3 MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW

Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality 's population is youthful consisting of 42% youth, with Sepedi being the
main language. The following analogy provides an overview of the important demographic Indicators of
Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality. It covers the population size, age distribution, unemployment, income
generation, educational levels and services backlogs. The socio-economic profile of the Municipality provides
an indication of poverty levels, development prospectus and breaks it down from villages to wards. The
population size is 132 468. The population in the municipality constitutes 97, 8% blacks, 1, 6% whites, with
other population groups making up the remaining 0, 6%. The sex ratio in the municipality is 88.9, meaning that
for every 100 women there are 88 men.

The name of the Municipality was changed from Greater Marble-Hall to Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality by
an amendment of section 12 notice in Provincial Gazette No 1721 by General notice 10 of 2010 on the 28"
January 2010 with new Logo and slogan-RE HLABOLLA SECHABA which means “WE DEVELOP OUR PEOPLE".

The Ephraim Mogale Local municipality is composed of the former Marble Hall New City, Moutse West, and
Leeuwfontein/Moganyaka, portion of former Hlogotlou/Lepelle TRC, portion of former Greater Nebo North
TRC, the entire area of former Middle Lepelle TRC, portion of Naboomspruit/Roedtan, Thusang TLC area and
part of the former Springbokvlakte TLC.

The municipality was established soon after the elections in 2005 in terms of section 12 notice no .302 dated
1 October 2000. The municipality was a cross-boundary municipality which comprises 16 villages, Marble Hall
town and farming areas in Mpumalanga and 2 townships and 47 villages in Limpopo. The municipality has been
incorporated in Limpopo province in accordance with proclamation no.422 dated 27 December 2005, The
municipality is named after the struggle hero Ephraim Mogale. The municipality borders Makhuduthamaga
local municipality in the south, Elias Motswaledi local municipality in the east Lepelle Nkumpi local municipality
in Capricorn District, Mookgopong local municipality in Waterberg and Mpumalanga’s Dr. JS Moroka local
municipality. It is situated about 150km from Polokwane, 100km from Mokopane, 145km from Pretoria, and
250km from Mbombela, The municipality is the second smallest of the five local municipalities in the district,
constituting 14.4% of the area with 1911.07 square kilometers of the district’s 13 264 square kilometers. Land
ownership is mostly traditional, and the municipality is predominantly rural with about 56 settlements, most
of which are villages. The municipality has 16 wards.

Table 4: The powers and function of the municipality

tunction

1.Air Pollution No Yes

2.Building regulations Yes

3.Childcare facilities Yes

4.Electricity reticulation Yes License for Marble Hall town and Eskom
reticulates rest of municipality

5.Fire fighting No Yes
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6.Local tourism Yes

7.Municipal airport Yes

8.Municipal planning Yes

8.Municipal Health Service No Yes

10.Municipal Public Transport Yes Bus & Taxi rank in private ownership
11.Pontoons & Ferries Yes

12.Storm water Yes

13.Trading regulations Yes

14.Water (potable) Yes

15.Sanitation Yes

16.Beaches and amusement facilities Yes

17.Billboards and the display of | Yes

advertisements in public places

18.Cemetries, funeral parlours and | Yes

crematoria

19.Cleansing Yes

20.Control of public huisance Yes

21.Control of undertakings that sell liquor to | Yes

the public

22 Facilities for the accommodation, care | Yes

and burial of animals

23.Fencing and fences Yes

24 .licensing of dogs Yes

25.Licensing and control of undertakings | Yes

that sell food to the public

26.Local amenities Yes

27.Local sports facilities Yes

28.Markets Yes

29.Municipal Abattoirs Yes

30.Municipal parks and recreation Yes

31.Municipal roads Yes

32.Noise pollution Yes

33.Pounds Yes

34.Public places Yes

35.Refuse removal refuse dumps and solid | Yes The land fill site in Marble Hall town is
waste disposal licenced and authorised
36.Street trading Yes

37 .Street lighting Yes Whole Municipal area
38.Traffic and parking Yes

39.Registration authority Yes
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Table 5: The demographics of the municipality

Source: Stats SA Census 2022

Table 6: Natural Resources

Natlral' Resolrce

Vigjor:NatlraliResolrce

Land Agricultural and Human Settlement
Dam Tourism attraction, Agricultural use and Consumption
Minerals Economic Empowerment and job creation

T 22

Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality Is Established to Perform the Following Key Performance Areas:
®  Municipal transformation and organizational development
* Basic service delivery and infrastructure development
¢ Local economic development
e Financial viability
e Good governance and public participation
e  Spatial Rationale

1.4 BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY & INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW

The municipality’s core business is to provide safe and sound road infrastructure network and uninterrupted
electricity network to its community. Water and Sanitation are provided by Sekhukhune District Municipality
and electricity is provided by Eskom in the rural parts of the municipality. The electrification backlog was
maintained at less than 6%. Supply in the license area was maintained with interruptions within the NERSA
specification although vandalism is a challenge.

Table 7: Proportion of Households with minimum level of Basic services

Proportion of Households with minimum |evel of Basic

Electricity service connections 96.9% 94.6% 94.7% 94.6%

Water - available within 200 m from dwelling 55% 60% 65% 75%

Sanitation - Households with at least VIP service 48% 53% 58% 63%

Waste collection - kerbside collection once a week 18,2 % 18,2% 18,2 % 18,2%
SV Aok B S o L
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Graph 1: Proportion of Households with minimum level of Basic services

Proportion of households with access to basic

services
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100,0% P + =
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20,0% — —
0,0%
Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Year 0
—4&—Eleclricity service connections ~{8-—Water - available within 200 m from dwelling
Sanitation - Households with at leats VIP service Waste collection - kerbside collection once a week

The Backlog on Services
With regard to the provision of free basic water, Sekhukhune District Municipality is providing to approximately
90% of households.

Table 8: Water Backlog

33936 14 592 43%
Households with access to water services.

Sanitation

The provision of sanitation in EPMLM faces considerable challenges at present. The situation is more of a
concern than it was the case with water. The municipality has different households that use different types of
toilet facilities. In town the municipality uses flushing toilets while in the rural areas there are few households
that use flushing toilets. The rest of the population in the rural areas of the municipality use pit latrines.
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Table 9: Sanitation Backlog

33936 12 217 36%

Households with access to sanitation services.

Table 10: Electricity Backlog

CORAL RA WS Fa I
ERIVILIVT | dolsenolds

35 953 (STATS 2022) 5.45%

All residential areas connected to the electrical grid. Backlog at 5.45% after ESKOM campleted 7 projects with
542 connections and 194 infills. The ESKOM INEP program is not keeping up with the increase in growth.

Table 11: Public lighting backlog

ERIVILIL VilIages

This is just areas with some form of public lighting and not 100% coverage. The purpose of public lighting is to
improve road and general safety of the public. The Municipality experiences a huge challenge with ESKOM not
installing supply points, the very high cost of connections and the tariff being changed to business tariffs. Due
to these ESKOM challenges projects have been completed but not energized or not fully energized at
Manapyane, Matseding Moganyaka, Malebitsa and Leeuwfontein RDP.

Table 12: Refuse Collection services Backlog

FERMLIVISS SHouseholds

33936 81.2%
Households with access to refuse collections services at least once a week (6369).

1.5 FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW

The below financial overview tables illustrate that the municipality is grant depended. The 2023/2024 financial
year was 53% grant dependent and 47% own revenue. The MIG grant was spent 100% in the 2023/2024
financial year.
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Table 13: Financial Overview on own Revenue and Grant

Rands

Income
Grants

173 377 000.00
202 450 000.00

180 039 000.00
202 793 000.00

190 331 456.00
242 769 959.00

Sub- Total

375 827 000.00

382 832 000.00

433 101 415.00

Less Expenditure

375 666 000.00

397 731 000.00

389 665 576.00

Net Total

161 000.00

(14 899 000.00)

43 435 839.00

Table 14: Financial Overview on Employee Costs, Operational Expenditure and Finance charges and

Depreciation

l'}:.'l"!|'-1;lf'|1' ';-;-1 nding

Detall;

Employee Costs 34%
Operational Expenditure 47%
Finance charges and Depreciation 19%

Employee related cost in 2023/2024 financial year was 34%. Operating expenditure is seating at 47% with
Finance charges and Depreciation at 19%.

1.6 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW

Human resource services for the municipality are reasonably effective and efficient, and relatively meet the
expectations of the community at large. The department is responsible for attracting skilled workforce,
mativating workforce to perform the required tasks and continuous capacity building of personnel.

Table 15: Organizational Development Overview

Total posts on the organogram 327
Total number of employees 239
Total number of vacancies 88
Number of terminations 12
Number of retirements 04
Resignations 04
Death 01
Contract ended 01
Retention/Promotions 0
N g s T e T M S T

EPHRAIM MOGALE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 2023/2024 DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT

20




Committees Established to Strengthen Human Resource Management

BURSAR NAME

e OHS Committee
e EAP Committee

Sports Committee

e Employment Equity Committee
e Training Committee

e Local Labour Forum

* Editorial Committee

e Housing Committee

e  Essential Services Committee

INSTTUTIEN

Table 16: Community Bursaries awarded to continuing and new student in 2023/20

24 Academic Year

[=( ll_l:{l_"-'::_

Tsotetsi R. K Sefako Makgatho Health Science | MBCHB Submitted In Progress
University

Mathonsi F University of Witwatersrand MBCHB 08 5t Submitted In Progress

Moutlana | University of Witwatersrand Bachelor of science 08 4t Submitted in Progress

Modisha N University of Witwatersrand Bachelor of Science 05 3 Submitted In Progress

Matlala P University of Cape Town MBCHB 16 2% Submitted In Progress

Table 17: Employee Bursaries awarded to continuing and new student in 2023/2024 Academic Year

EMIPLONEE NAME

INSTITUTION

Blommie Masha UNISA Diploma Public Admin and | First In Progress
Management
Sipho Baloyi Rosebank College Bachelor of Administration First In Progress
Submitted
Constance Motha Regent Business College Advance Diploma in Financial | Second In Progress
Management Submitted
Nthabisheng Mokwena MANCOSA BCom Human Resource | First In Progress
Management Submitted
Baby Mashabela Regent Business School BCom  Human Resource | Second In Progress
Management
Charles Madisha 1Q Academy Higher certificate in Human | Third In Progress
Resource Management Submitted
Pride Matlala UNISA BCom  Human  Resource | Third In Progress
Management Submitted
Salome Phaahla MANCOSA Bachelor of Administration Second In Progress
Submitted
Kanegelo Mahlobogwane MANCOSA Bachelor of Administration Second In Progress
Submitted
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Lethabo Makofane MANCOSA Advanced Diploma in | First In Progress
Accountancy
Queen Mashilo MANCQSA Master's in public | First In Progress
administration Submitted
Boitumelo Molomo Regent Business School Advance Diploma Financial | Completed Completed
Management
Lesetsa Sereko Excell Training Academy Office Administration First In Progress
Submitted
Dominic Mahubane UNISA Postgraduate Diploma in | First In Progress
Taxation
Lungile Mbonani UNISA Postgraduate Diploma | First In Progress
Accounting Science
Ms Khumoitsile Makgopa MANCOSA Advanced Diploma in Business | First In Progress
Management
Ms Ruth Maloka Regenesys Bachelor of Public | First In Progress
Management
Ms ltumeleng Boshomane Regenesys Bachelor of Public | First In Progress
Management
Ms Bushy Modisha Sekhukhune TVET College Diploma in Public | First In Progress
Management
Ms Toffy Mabelane | Sekhukhune TVET College Diploma in Human Resource | First In Progress
(Matsekoleng) Management
Mr Enerst Rampedi Sekhukhune TVET College Diploma in Public | First In Progress
Management
Ms Surprise Shokwane Regenesys Higher Certificate in Public | First In Progress
Management
Ms Anna Motong Regenesys Bachelor of Public | First In Progress
Management
Ms Nomvula Masemula MANCOSA Bachelor of Public | First In Progress
Administration
Mr Kgothatso Matlawa Stadion Higher Education Diploma in  Management | First In Progress
(Project Management)
Mr Daniel Mamahlodi Enterprise  University of | Programme in Project | First In Progress
Pretoria Management
| Mr Daniel Sedutla Regent Business School Bachelor of Administration First In Progress

1.7 AUDITOR GENERAL OF SOUTH AFRICA REPORT

The Municipality committed itself to the principles of innovation and improved service delivery to take us
forward into the future. EPMLM have obtained an unqualified audit opinion with findings during the 2023/2024

financial year.

See Chapter 6: Auditor-General Report 2023/2024
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1.8 STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS

Table 18: statutory annual report process followed in 2023/2024 financial year.

Consideration of next financial year’s Budget and IDP process plan. Except for the

\WCLIVITY.

| imeframe

July
legislative content, the process plan should confirm in-year reporting formats to
ensure that reporting and monitoring feeds seamlessly into the Annual Report
process at the end of the Budget/IDP implementation period.
2 Implementation and monitoring of approved Budget and IDP commences (In-year
financial reporting).
3 Finalise 4™ quarter Report for previous financial year
4 Submit draft Annual Performance Report to Internal Audit
5 Municipal entities submit draft annual performance reports to MM
6 Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Performance Report of August
municipality and entities (where relevant)
7 Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Performance Report
8 Municipality submits draft Annual Performance Report including consolidated
annual financial statements and performance report to Auditor General.
9 Annual Performance Report as submitted to Auditor General to be provided as input
to the IDP Analysis Phase
10 | Auditor General assesses draft Annual Performance Report including consolidated
; ; September - October
Annual Financial Statements and Performance data
11 | Municipalities receive and start to address the Auditor General’'s comments November - December
12 | Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to Council complete —
with the Auditor- General's Report
13 | Annual Report is made public, and representation is invited February
14 | Oversight Committee assesses Annual Report March
15 | Council adopts Qversight report
16 | Oversight report is made public March -April
17 | Oversight report is submitted to relevant provincial councils
18 | Commencement of draft Budget/ IDP finalization for next financial year. Annual o
Report and Oversight Reports to be used as input.

The alignment of IDP, budget and the performance system are important, as the three documents are the
strategic documents of the municipality. They serve as a guiding tool to determine whether the municipality is
working towards achieving its set goals and objectives, while using the budget in the correct manner, to avoid

wasting public funds. This is done through the performance management, where there will be quarterly
reporting about the performance of the municipality and whether the budget is still aligned to the set
objectives, orifit is being spent on something that is not helping achieve set objectives and goals. Performance
management helps to give an early indication of non-performance and allows for the taking of corrective
measures as soon as possible.
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It is also a compliance issue to meet the deadlines, as non-compliance will result in a negative audit
opinion for the municipality. Meeting deadlines also assists with receiving feedback, comments and
inputs from relevant stakeholders, and helps with rectifying mistakes whilst learning good practice at
the same time.

CHAPTER 2 - GOVERNANCE

COMPONENT A: POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE

The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa NO. 108 OF 1996 Section 151 (3) states that the council of
municipality has the right to govern on its own initiative, the local government affairs of the local community.
The Municipality’s Council comprises of the political and administrative components responsible for decision-
making and implementation respectively. The mayor is the political Head of the Institution, and the Speaker is
the Head of Council. The Municipality has all the powers assigned to it in terms of the Constitution as well as
relevant National and Provincial legislations. The municipality has the authority to take any possible actions to
effectively exercise powers assigned to it.

Overview

The municipality is a category B municipality with an Executive Committee system with thirty-two Councillors,
sixteen ward Councillors and sixteen PR Councillors. The municipality has Five full time Councillors, namely the
mayor who heads the Executive committee, the Speaker who is head of Council, and three executive
committee members. The Executive Committee consist of six members including the mayor. The five members
of the executive committee are heads of each of the portfolio committees namely, Budget & Treasury Office,
Infrastructure Services, Corporate Services, Community Services and Planning & Economic Development. The
Chairpersons of each of this committees form the Chairperson of Chairpersons committee. All items emanating
from the five departments are submitted to the Executive committee and recommendations from executive
committee are submitted via the portfolio committees to council for consideration.

The municipality have an Audit and Performance Committee that provides guidance and recommendations on
financial processes and performance and provides comments on the annual report to MPAC committee
established to provide council with an oversight report on the annual report. The oversight report gets
published once it has been considered by Council for comments by members of the public.

[2.1. POLITICAL GOVERNANCE

The municipality is composed by the Mayor Cllr GMH Moimana, Speaker ClIr Lentsoane R.M, the Chief Whip
of Council: Clir L Magane and 05 other Executive committee members and other Councilors. There are also
Section 80 & 79 committees that process all the issues before they go to council.

The Municipality consists of. 32 Councillors of both elected (ward representatives) and proportional
(councilors). Each of the ward Councillors chairs a ward committee as part of the Ward Precatory System that
brings participation down to community level. Ward Councillors play a central role in the communication
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process between the communities they represent and the council, reporting back regularly through ward
meetings and assisting the community in identifying needs and priority areas of development which feed into
the municipalities planning process. The new demarcation increases the wards from 14 to 16 and from 27
Councillors to 32 respectively. A full list of new Councilors is attached as Appendix A, while appendix B sets out
committees and their purposes who were sworn in during the 2023/2024 financial year.

Executive Committee

The Mayor of the Municipality, Councilor GMH Moimana, assisted by the Executive Committee, heads the
executive arm of the Municipality. Although accountahle for the strategic direction and performance of the
Municipality, the Mayor operates in consultation with the Executive Committee.

Table 19: Executive Committee

ECOMMITTEE (SE

Cllr Moimana GMH | Mayor

ClIr Tshiguvho ME EXCO Member: Corporate Services

Cllr Jacobs PR EXCO Member: Planning & Economic Development Services
Cllr Manaswe TM EXCO Member: Community Services

Cllr Sedibane FS EXCO Member: Budget & Treasury Services

Cllr Ramphele M EXCO Member: Infrastructure Services

The table below categories the Councilors within their specific political parties and wards for the 2023/2024
financial year:

Table 20: Councilors within their specific political parties

Surname & initials |"Rosition

Clir Moimana GMH Mayor Male ANC 083 576 7248

Clir Tshiguvho ME Exco Corporate Services Female ANC 076 383 7656
Cllr Sedibane FS Exco Budget & Treasury Male ANC 076 051 3137
Clir Ramphela MR Exco Infrastructure Services Female ANC 083 245 3586
Clir Jacobs PR Exco Planning &  Economic | Male DA 064 949 5529

Development Services

Clir Manasoe TM Exco Community Services Female EFF 072 847 9441

Clir Lentsoane RM Speaker Female ANC 060 567 7177

Cllr Magane L Chief-Whip Female ANC 071413 6041
STt LA S B G
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Clir Mabaso T. PR Councillor Male ANC 076 052 0073
Clir Mogale T PR Councillor Male BPSA 076 544 9648
ClIr Letsela NS PR Councillor Female DA 076 052 8187
ClIr Prinsloo D PR Councillor Male VF PLUS 076 399 9089
Clir Makola ML PR Councillor Male EFF 076 052 7443
Cllr Lekgwathi E PR Councillor Male EFF 071 368 1553
Cllr Mashiane SM PR Councillor Female EFF 081 834 6920
Clir Modipa SR PR Councillor Female EFF 063 703 1476
Cllr Mmeshi SJ PR Councillor Male EFF 060 882 5833
Clir Manasoe TM PR Councillor Female EFF 076 285 3787
Clir Maelane KM PR Councillor Male EFF 066 196 2776
ClIr Rabalao SS Ward 1 Male ANC 066 110 6239
Clir Thobejane PJ Ward 2 Male ANC 078 601 3244
Cllr Kutu TC Ward 3 Male ANC 072 6151785
Cllr Sebothoma KW Ward 4 Male Independent | 082 833 5599
Cllr Lekoatsipa LR Ward 5 Female ANC 071 252 6221
Cllr Ramphela RM Ward 6 Female ANC 083 245 3586
Cllr Jacobs PR Ward 7 Male DA 064 949 5529
Clir Aphane KM Ward 8 Male ANC 079 025 6445
Cllr Magatla NL Ward 9 Female ANC 076 150 8428
Cllr Seloma RM Ward 10 Male ANC 072 402 0602
Cllr Mahubane SE Ward 11 Male Independent | 072 023 4828
Cllr Maphopha MM Ward 12 Female ANC 076981 9516
Cllr Nkoane TP Ward 13 Male ANC 072 194 9290
Cllr Phahlamohlaka Ward 14 Male ANC 076 800 5816
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Clir Mokwana BZ Ward 15 Male ANC 072 849 0100

Cllr Mmamabhlako K Ward 16 Male ANC 079 184 7502

2.2 ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE
Introduction

The administration is headed by the Municipal Manager who is the accounting officer and have five
departments, namely, Budget & Treasury, Infrastructure Services, Corporate Services, Community Services and
Planning & Economic Development headed by section 56 Managers who report directly to the Municipal
Manager. An Internal Audit division has been established and the Chief Audit Executive reports directly to the
Municipal Manager. Senior Management as well as Management meetings are held to co-ordinate service
delivery and evaluate and monitor the performance of the administration. Evaluation and Adjudication bid
committees are in place to ensure that tenders are dealt with in terms of supply chain management processes
to ensure that projects are implemented in accordance with Budget/IDP/SDBIP.

Table 21: Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality Top Management
The table below reflects the 2023/2024 Top Management of Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality.

July’2023 =Junei2024

FDesignation

Municipal Manager Moropa M.E. M
Director Corporate Services Rampedi M.R. F
Director Economic Development and Planning | Tjebane T. F
Director Community Services Maphutha-Mashaba M.Y. F
Chief Financial Officer Modisane T.T. M
Director Infrastructure Services Maphutha T.P. M

Portfolio Committee’s

Section 80 committees are ad hoc committees of the executive committee that specialize in a specific
functional area of the municipality and may in some instances make decisions on specific functional issues
depending on whether delegations have been granted to them. They are appointed to advise the mayor on
policy matters and any other matter to be considered by the mayor. Section 79 committees are permanent
committees appointed to advise the Municipal Council, to play oversight on behalf of the of council and report
accordingly. Section 79.A Committee is also a committee of the council that investigates the matters referred
to them by the committee and they are also guided by a toolkit.
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The name and portfolio of each Member of the Municipal Committees are listed in the table below for the
period 01 July 2023 - 30 June 2024:

Table 22: Municipal committees

1 Cllr Kutu TC

EANDTREASURY RORTEQLIO COMMITTES

Chairperson

i Clir Seloma RM Chairperson 072 402 0602
2 Clir Maphopha MM Whippery 076 981 9516
3 Clir Lekoatsipa RL Member 071 252 6221
4 Clir Mokwana BZ Member 072 849 0100
5 Cllr Modipa SR Member 063 703 1476
6 Cllr Tshiguvho EM EXCO 076 383 7656

072 615 1789

2 Cllr Mmamahlako K Whippery 079 184 7502
3 Cllr Magatla LM Member 076 150 8428
4 Cllr Seloma RM Member 072 402 0602
5 ClIr Prinsloo D Member 076 399 9089
6 ClIr Lekgoathi LR Member 071 368 1553
7 Clir Sedibane FS EXCO 076 051 3137

1 Clir Mamahloko K Chairperson 079 184 7502
2 Clir Nkoana TP Whippery 076 800 5816
3 Cllr Rabalago S5 Member 066 1106239
4 Clir Prinsloo D Member 076 399 9089
5 Cllir Magatla NL Member 076 150 8428
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Cllr Makola ML Member 076 052 7443

Clir Mogale T 076 544 9648
Member

Clir Jacobs PR EXCO 064 949 5529

Clir Maphopha MM

Chairperson

076 981 9516

Clir Kutu € Whippery 072 615 1789
Clir Nkoana TP Member 072 194 9290
Clir Magatla NL Member 076 150 8428
Clir Modipa R Member 063 703 1476
Clir Mogale T Member 076 544 9648
Clir Manasoe TM EXCO 072 847 9441

WWETURE RORTEOLIO!CC

Cllr Mokwana ZB

IMIMITTEE

Chairperson

072 845 0100

Clir Nkoana TP Whippery 072 194 9290
Clir Makola ML Member 076 052 7443
Clir Lekoatsipa RL Member 071 252 6221
Clir Seloma RM Member 072 402 0602
Clir Maphopha MM Member 076 981 9516
Cllr Ramphele M EXCO 083 245 3586

Clir Nkoana TP

Chairperson

072194 9290

Clir Phahlamohlaka T Whippery 076 800 5816
Cllr Maphopha MM Member 076 981 9516
Cllr Kutu C Member 072 6151789
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5 Clir Lekoatsipa RL Member 0712526221
6 Clir Magatla NL Member 076 150 8428
7 Clir Mabaso T Member 076 052 0073
8 Clir Mmamahloko K Member 079 184 7502
9 Clir Mokwana ZB Member 072 849 0100
10 Cllr Seloma RM Member 072 402 0602

1 Clir Phahlamohlaka T Chairperson
2 Clir Magatla L Whispery

3 Cllr Maphopha MM Member

4 Clir Rabalago SS Member

5 Cllr Mokwana BZ Member

6 Cllr Mashiane S Member

7 Clir Maelane K Member

NICIPAL RUBHEACCOUNTS COMMITIEE

B Clir Mabaso T Chairperson

2 Clir Letsela N Member
3 Cllr Thobejane P Member
4 Clir Mahubane SE Member
5 Cllr Aphane C Member
6 Cllr Sebothoma KW Member
7 Clir Maelane KM Member
e |
1 Clir Lekoatsipa L Chairperson
R NS L e St
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2 Clir Rabalago SS Whippery
3 Clir Seloma RM Member
4 Cllr Mahubane SE Member
5 Clir Magatla N L Member
6 Clir Modipa R Member

GRARHICINAV BECHANGE

1 Clir Lentsoane RM Chairperson
2 Clir Maphaopa MM Whippery

3 Clir Kutu TC Member

4 Clir Modipa R Member

5 Mr Jan Phasha Official

6 Mr D Molefe Official

AMINGECMMITTEE

1 Cllr Lentsoane RM Speaker

2 Cllr Nkoane TP Chair of chairs
3 Cllr Magane L Chief-Whip

4 Cllr Mmamahlako K Member

5 Cllr Maelane KM Member

6 Clir Prinsloo D Member

7 Cllr Sebothoma KW Member

8 Cllr Sedibane F EXCO

1 Cllr Lekoatsipa LR Chairperson

2 Cllr Magatla N L Whippery
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3 Clir Maelane K M Member
4 Clir Letsela N Member
1 Clir Magana NL Chairperson

2 ALL whips

1 Cllr Magatla NL  Chairperson

Member

2 All Woman'’s councilors

COMPONENT B: INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

2.3 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

Introduction

There are platforms established to maintain relationship between all three spheres of government. The
purpose of the platforms is consultation with various interest groups and all other key stakeholders to ensure
that sectorial issues and projects are well captured within the IDP of the municipality for implementation.

Table 23: District and Provincial Intergovernmental Structures

District Monitoring and Evaluation forum
Mayor’s forum

Municipal manager’s forum

Debt forum

CFQ’s forum

IDP forum

Communicators Forum

Home Affairs Stakeholders Forum

Batho Pele Forum

1
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9

10. Speakers Forum
11. MPAC Forum

12. District PMS Forum

Provincial Intergovernmental Stiuctures

Provincial Monitoring and Evaluation forum
Premier mayor’s forum
Municipal Manager's forum
Debt forum
CFQ’s forum
IDP forum, etc
Communicators Forum
Home Affairs Stakeholders Forum
Batho Pele Forum
. Speakers Forum
. MPAC Forum
. MIG Provincial Forum
. Risk & Internal Audit Forum
. Whip of Council Forum

b R ST
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13. District Back to Basic Engagement
Reporting Session

14. Technical directors Forum
15. MIG District forum

16. Risk & Internal Audit Forum
17. Whip of Council Forum

COMPONENT C: PUBLIC ACCONTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION

The Council performs the legislative functions. They focus on legislative, oversight and participatory roles, and
have delegated their executive function to the Mayor and the Executive Committee. Their primary role is to
debate issues publicly and to facilitate political debate and discussion. Apart from their functions as decision
makers, Councilors are also actively involved in community work and the various social development
programmes in the Municipal Area.

2.4 PUBLIC MEETINGS

The municipality has developed an annual public participation program. The program targets all 16 wards and
specific villages. These meetings afford politicians the opportunity to report back on progress made and direct
contact with ordinary community members. The Municipality continued to develop and improve mechanisms
to ensure a culture of participative governance as a priority. Cluster- Based consultation has been adopted as
a form of participatory community action linked to the Integrated Development Planning (IDP) process. Ward
committees enhance more effective communication between the council and the community.

Table 24: Public Meetings

PlbliciVigetings

e . S} ¥ S Yol bl Lo Tel 1
| INature‘and purpose ofimeeting:held'in 2023/2024

Public Participation on 2022/2023 Annual Report

Public Participation on 2024/2025 Draft IDP/Budget
Back to School Opening Campaign
MPAC Public Hearing Meetings

2.5 COMMUNICATION, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND FORUMS

Local Government has a responsibility to ensure regular and effective communication with the community.
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act 1996 and other statutory enactments, all impose an
obligation on Local Government communicators and require high levels of transparency, accountability,
openness, participatory democracy and direct communication with the communities to improve the lives of
all.
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The communities, on the other hand, have a right and a responsibility to participate in local government affairs
and decision-making and ample provision is made in the above-mentioned legislation for them to exercise their
right in this respect. Our democratic government is committed to the principle of Batho Pele and this, means
that those we elect to represent us (Councilors at the municipal level) and those who are employed to serve
us (municipal officials at municipal level) must always put people first in what they do.

South Africa has adopted a system of developmental local government, which addresses the inequalities, and
backlogs of the past while ensuring that everyone has access to basic services, to opportunities and an
improved quality of life. To be successful, communications must focus on the issues that are shown to impact
on the residents" perceptions, quality of service, and value for money and efficiencies. They should ideally look
to close the communication-consultation loop.

Good customer care is of fundamental importance to any organization, and analysis here shows that residents
view the municipality’s people relations in a negative light. A successful Communication Strategy therefore

links the people to the municipality’s programme for the year.

Table 25: Below is a communication checklist of the compliance to the communication requirements.

CommunicationActivity FUREtionality)

Yes
Communication Unit

Yes
Communication Strategy

Yes
Communication Policy

Yes
Customer Satisfaction Surveys

Yes
Functional Complaint Management Systems

4 Quarters
Newsletters distributed at least quarterly

Section 16 of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA) refers specifically to the development of a culture of community
participation within municipalities. It states that a municipality must develop a culture of municipal governance
that complements formal representative government with a system of participatory governance. For this
purpose, it must encourage and create conditions for the local community to participate in the affairs of the
municipality. Such participation is required in terms of:

e The preparation, implementation and review of the IDP.

®  Establishment, implementation and review of the performance management system.

e Monitoring and review of the performance, including the outcomes and impact of such performance;
and
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e  Preparation of the municipal budget.

During the 2023/2024 financial year, the Office of the Speaker facilitated the capacitating of ward committees
in all the 16 wards in Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality. To ensure functionality, training to the ward
committee members was provided by SALGA/LGSETA facilitators, guidelines on operational matters were
issued by the Speaker and oversight at ward committee meetings provided by personal attendances by the
Speaker and/or his authorized personnel. By constant supervision fram the Office of the Speaker it was ensured
that ward committee meetings and report back at public meetings were held in each ward in addition to the
IDP related meetings and budgetary consultative meetings held in clustered wards.

2.6 IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT

The purpose of IDP participation and alignment is to ensure faster and more appropriate delivery of services
and providing a framework for economic and social development in a municipality. A range of links exist
between integrated development planning and its developmental outcomes which have great relevance in
particular context of financial crisis of municipalities, urgency of service delivery and employment generation.
Integrated development planning can contribute towards eradicating the development legacy of the past
making the notion of developmental local government work and fostering co-operative governance.

Table 26: IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria

| [DR'Barticipation’and Alignment Criteria®

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators? Yes
Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPls, development strategies? Yes
Does the IDP have multi-year targets? Yes
Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score? Yes
Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan? Yes
Do the IDP KPIs align to the Section 57 Managers Yes
Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPlIs as per the SDBIP? Yes
Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 Qutcomes Yes
Were the indicators communicated to the public? Yes
Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames? Yes
LEALS LN S iy s
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COMPONENT D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The EPMLM has an organizational structure that was approved by the Council during the adoption of the IDP
and budget. The structure has approved posts as follows:

e Created/ approved post =327
e  Filled posts = 239
e Vacant =88

Council has delegated its administration duties to the Municipal Manager who has five departmental heads in
charge of the following departments:

e Corporate Services.

e Economic Development and Planning
e Community Services

o Infrastructure development, and

e Budget and Treasury

There are supportive functions that are attached to the office of the Municipal Manager, whose main aim is to
ensure compliance and efficiency of systems and processes. They are as follows:

e |nternal Audit

e  Risk Management

¢ Integrated Development Planning & Performance Management Systems
e  Council Support

e  Office of the Mayor

e  Office of the Speaker

2.7 AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE

Section 166 of the MFMA obligates every municipality and municipal entity to establish an Audit Committee as
an independent advisory body, Therefore EPMLM has established an independent in terms of Section 166 of
the MFMA Act No. 56 of 2003.

Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality appointed the current Audit and Performance Committee as envisaged in
section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and section 45 of the Municipal Systems Act.
The Audit and Performance Committee is an independent advisory body, appointed by Council to assist Council
in discharging its responsibilities. It is established in terms of Section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management
Act 56 of 2003 and article 14 (2) (a) of the Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations 2001.
The specific duties and or respaonsibilities and the way it will operate are set out in the Audit Committee
Charter, Circular 65 of the MFMA and Section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003. The
audit and Performance committee charter is reviewed by the committee and approved annually by the Council.
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The Committee has adopted its charter as their written terms of reference approved by the council which
outlines the mandate of the audit committee, formal terms of reference are regularly updated and approved
by the Council to ensure relevance and consistency with the MFMA, Municipal Systems Act (No 32 of 2000)
and other related regulations, guides, and best practice.

The following audit committee members were appointed by the Council on the 1st of November 2020 for a
period of three years, subsequently the contract was extended by the end of October 2023 and only for
members serving their first 3 years as per MFMA circular 65 of the National Treasury.

Composition of the Audit Committee

Section 166 provides for a minimum requirement for the composition of an audit committee. The audit
committee must comprise of at least three (3) people who are not in the employment of the municipality or
municipal entity. In terms of best practice, the number and/or size of audit committees can be increased to
address the requirements, peculiarities, and needs of the municipality or its entity which will also be guided by
the approved charter. Therefore, EPMLM Audit Committee consists of four (4) members re-appointed by way
of extending the term of office during November 2023 as per Council resolution SC 02/03/2023 with different
skills and field of expertise and who are not in the employ of the municipality or municipal entity.

Table 27: The table below depicts the list of Audit Committee members and their attendance.

MEempers

Nameof members ‘ Designation ‘ Name: ofi ‘ Designation Name afimembers:

Mr. ML Malapela Chairperson Mr. ML | Chairperson Mr. ML Malapela
Malapela
Adv. GT Moeng Member Adv. GT Moeng | Member Adv. GT Moeng
Mr. LM Mokwena Member Mr. LM | Member Mr. LM Mokwena
Mokwena
Mr. VK Chuene (contract | Member and [ Mr. VK Chuene | Member and | Mr. VK Chuene
ended: 31 /10/2023) Chairperson (contract Chairperson (contract ended: 31
of the Risk | ended: 31 | of the Risk | /10/2023)
Management | /10/2023) Management
Sub- Sub-
Committee Committee
Mr. DM Mmapheto Member and | Mr. DM | Member and | Mr. DM Mmapheto
Chairperson Mmapheto Chairperson
of the Risk of the Risk
Management Management
Sub- Sub-
Committee Committee

The following skills and experience were discharged by the committee of members to enhance the committee’s
representation and its performance to offer objective and quality advice.

e Financial management

e legal
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e Admin and Governance (i.e., Internal Audit, Risk Management, IT, Human Resources).
¢ Performance Management

The Committee performed its functions as contained in the Audit Committee Charter approved by the Council
on the 30" of June 2023.Then reported and accounted to the Council as follows:

Table 28: Reports Audit Committee Accounted for during 2023/2024

A A Y Y W o "':'-'n'- 1t = 3! VR r 35 oy ' T 5 H %
Accountingforthe Period Ending [ Reportedto'Councilor

30 September 2023 31 October 2023 . Report adopted (0C1/1/2023).

31 December 2023 28 February 2024 Report adopted (5C4/01/2024).
31 March 2024 30 April 2024 Report adopted (0C3/13/2024).
30 June 2024- 31 July 2024 Report adopted (0C1/04/2024).

During the year reported hereon, the committee did a sterling job in carrying out its advisory duties in matters
relating to internal control, risk management, effective governance, oversight and advisory on performance
management matters as per section 45 of the Municipal Systems Act.

The following are some of the key resolutions and/or recommendations made by the committee in the
aforesaid meetings:

e  Review of AoPO by management

e  Filling of all funded vacant positions as per the approved organizational structure

e Make budget provisions to capacitate internal audit unit and minimize use of consultants.

e Implementation of revenue enhancement strategy.

e UIFW reduction strategy.

e The municipality develops and implements a strategy to improve its indigent management.

e  Conduct ICT Investigation regarding CYBER attack.

e Review of Audit improvement Action Plan.

e Quarterly monitoring progress on AGSA action plan by conducting audit steering committee meeting
bi-weekly.

e Establish an ICT steering committee chaired by an independent external person.

2.8 INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT

Internal Audit is an independent, objective, assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and
improve the municipality’s operations. The unit assists the municipality in accomplishing its objectives through
a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, system of
the internal control and governance processes. By its nature, Internal Audit Unit is a governance structure
which facilitates improvement on service delivery vehicles by reviewing the design and effectiveness of the
system of internal controls around the core mandate and support functions of the municipality. Its role is
critical in promoting and enhancing control of the environment through auditing and recommending solutions
to management.
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Section 165 of the MFMA requires that each municipality and each municipal entity must have an internal audit
unit, subject to Section (3). The internal audit unit of a municipality or municipal entity must:

Prepare a risk-based audit plan and an internal audit program for each financial year.

Advise the accounting officer and report to the audit committee on the implementation of the internal

audit plan and matters relating to:

Internal audit.

Internal controls,

Accounting procedures and practices,

Risk and risk management,

Performance management.

Loss control.

Compliance with this Act, the annual Division of Revenue Act, and any other applicable
legislation.

And perform any other duties as may be assigned to it by the accounting officer,
During the year reported hereon, internal audit in performing the above indicated duties the following report
was tabled to the audit and performance committee as per the above regulation.

1% ,27d 31 and 4™ Quarter AoPl Review.
Mid-Term Budget and Performance Review
Interim Financial Statements

Interim Performance Report

SBDIP Review

Supply Chain Management Review

Project Management Unit Review

External and Internal Audit Follow-up

Risk Management Review

Internal Audit Governance Documents

In strengthening the unit, the internal audit has developed the following governing documents and tabled

them to the audit and performance committee which has recommended them to council for approval.

Internal Audit Charter.

Internal Audit Methodology. .
Internal Audit Three Year Rolling Plan and,

Internal Audit Annual Plan.

Combine Assurance framework

2.9 RISK MANAGEMENT

The municipality in the financial year reported hereon, has established the risk management function as per
MFMA Section 62 (i) (c) which requires a municipality to have and maintain an effective, efficient and
transparent system of risk management. The risk management unit has been successfully established,
necessary enablers such as policy documents and oversight committee have been developed and/or set.

Y e P S T e e
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Building on; the municipality now seeks to appreach risk management as more than just a compliance matter,
but rather a value-add function which should be fully embedded in the municipality’s operations across. The
philosophy is that risk management is as mueh about identifying opportunities as avoiding or mitigating losses.
In our recently reviewed strategy, Risk Management is articutated as a logical and systematic process of
establishing the context, identifying, analyzing, evaluating, treating, monitoring and communicating risks
associated with any activity, function or process, in a way that enables an organization to minimize losses and
maximize opportunities.

The drive for local government transformation with limited resources has tended to force municipalities into
taking a less conservative approach to service delivery with a proportional increase in their risk exposure,
Ongoing local government reforms have provided a broad administrative framework for further improvements
to occur. These include more stringent corporate governance requirements, greater flexibility and a focus on
results and accountability. Risk management trends and campanents already overtap with those of internal
auditing, performance management, programme and project management, financial management, change
management, customer care, communication, etc. and require incremental inclusion in current and plans of
the entire organization. The management of risk by implication is a managerial function, even so individual
sections, departments and directorates differ in their exposure and reaction to risks and thus departments,
sections and individuals form a vital part of the overall risk management process within the Municipality.

The Municipality strives, so far, successfully to be amongst the best in local government. In our continuously
changing governance environment (the latest of such changes now been mSCQA); it is imperative that the
Council remains updated on key changes and challenges and how these affect the operation of business in
today's environment, This will not be achieved without an effective, efficient, soundly funded and managed
risk strategy that seeks to maximize its impact on the organization with minimum resources at its disposal.
National Treasury Public Sector Risk Management Framework affirms that no organization has the luxury of
functioning in a risk-free envircnment and public institutions are especially vulnerable to risk associated with
fulfilling their mandates,

Risk Management Practices requires the Accounting Officer to manage the strategic and operational risks of
the municipality. The municipality’s risk management system provides for mitigating strategies and control
activities against the risks within the municipality from unacceptable likelihood and impact. The system also
identifies strategic and operational risks and assigns responsibility to appropriate officials within the
municipality.

The municipality has a Risk Management Committee in place that meets on quarterly basis and is made of the
Cirectors and divisional managers and is chaired by an Audit Committee member who is nat in the employ of
the municipality. The Risk Management Committee has its terms of reference.

The Risk Register is updated on an annual basis. The Risk Management Unit monitors progress on
implementation of mitigating factors as stated in Risk Register on a guarterly basis. Status to date on the
implementation of mitigating factors is therefore reported to both Risk Management Committee and Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis. As the municipality embarks on new initiatives and programmes the
Municipality keeps a separate emerging risk register for any emerging risks that occurred during the current
year that could have a negative impact on the municipality’s ability to achieve its strategic objectives.
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The Council is ultimately responsible for risk management supremacy with EXCO and Audit Committee playing
a very crucial oversight role as a function that is delegated to them and legislated. The status of strategic and
operational risks s reported and monitored on regular basis by Risk Management Unit and Risk Management
Committee who give feed back to the Accounting Officer and Audit Committee

The below indicates the top 10 risks within the Municipality. The municipality is fully aware of the root causes
of the 10 and other risks identified in the risk registers; and has been able to put in place mitigating strategies
within the SDBIP for 2023/2024 which goes to outer year of the MTERF.

The following were identified and rated as top ten (10) Strategic risks of the Municipality: -
Noncompliance with MFMA, SCM and other applicable legislations and prescripts.
Community unrest (strikes).

Possible fraud and corruption.

Reputational risks.

Low revenue collection.

Inability to attract and retain skilled personnel.

Inadequate Skills and Competency.

Theft and Vandalism of projects.

PN YA wN R

Aging infrastructure.
10. Land invasion (Urban sprawl settlements).

2.10 ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD

Section 83(c) of the MSA refers to the implementation of effective bidding structures to minimize the possibility
of fraud and corruption and the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), section 112(1) (m) (i) identifies
supply chain measures to be enforced to combat fraud and corruption, favoritism, unfair and irregular
practices. Section 115(1) of the MFMA states that the accou nting officer must take steps to ensure mechanisms
and separation of duties in a supply chain management system to minimize the likelihood of corruption and
fraud.

The municipality has adopted and refers to the following policy documents as strategic guidelines in combating
corruption and fraud:

* Anti-corruption and fraud prevention policy and strategy

e Whistle blowing policy.

The Municipality also conducted fraud risk assessment at the beginning of the financial year where the
management identified fraud risks faced by the Municipality. These fraud risks were identified as those that
have the potential to prevent the Municipality from achieving its objectives. Out of fraud risks identified by the
management, a fraud risks register was compiled. Progress on mitigating factors / action plans is monitored by
the Risk Management Unit on a quarterly basis and the outcomes are reported to the Accounting Officer, Risk
Management Committee and Audit Committee.
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In addition, the municipality also conducts anti-fraud and corruption awareness on a quarterly basis to all
municipal stakeholders’ i.e. internal and external stakeholders.

2.11 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The SCM Policy was reviewed during the 2023/2024 financial year. Certain amendments to the SCM Policy
were tabled before Council to improve operational efficiency.

The Municipality is required to forward its SCM Palicy to the Limpopo Provincial Treasury on an annual basis
for scrutiny and compliance verifications against the Model SCM Palicy that was issued by the National
Treasury.

The purpose of this exercise is to determine whether the Municipal SCM Policy deviates from the stipulations
of the SCM regulations. Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality SCM Policy complies with the regulatory
framework.

The SCM function cuts across all departments. Although governance is at its core, supply chain management
plays a vital role in contributing towards service delivery in a manner that is fair, equitable, transparent,
competitive, and cost-effective.

The Municipality applies the bid committee system for procurement above R 200,000 and for the procurement
of long-term contracts.

The bid committees, namely the Bid Specification Committee, the Bid Evaluation Committee and the Bid
Adjudication Committee are all functioning effectively.

The bid committee members are appointed by the Municipal Manager in line with the relevant legislation.

The Municipality approved the planned capital projects through a procurement plan document which was also
send to provincial treasury. The Procurement plan had 44 planned capital projects which amounted to R
78 408 990.00. the total project amount composed R 37 424 290.00 from Grants and R 41 984 700.00 from
Own funding. The implementation of the plan was as follows

Item | Number of Projects | Project implementation status quo

1 08 8 of the 44 projects were re-advertised by the end of the financial year

2 10 10 out of the 44 projects were not initiated for procurement however
reprioritized during budget adjustment to other projects

3 16 16 out of the 44 projects were appointed as planned

4 10 Ten out of the 44 projects where part of the contracted services (e.g.
Multiyear Projects)
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2.12 BY-LAWS

The municipality did not gazette any By-laws in the year under review,

2.13 WEBSITES

place key documents and information cn their Wwebsite, including the IDP, the annual budget, adjustments
budgets and budget related documents and policies. The Municipality has a service level agreement with SITA
for website maintenance. The Municipal Website js updated on a regular basis when required,

Table 29: Documents published on the Municipality's / Entity's Website

H Content and 'I.Illlli.'-'!l.lf.‘l.-' Ot Viaterial

RUBEhinE
"Documents published on theVIURicipalit [ s

| Jate

Current annual and adjustments budgets and al

| budget-related documents Yes m
All current budget-related policies Yes m

The previous annual report (Year -1) Yes 2023-02-28
The annual report (Year 0) published/to be published yes 2023-06-18
All current performance agreements required in terms of section 57(1)(b) of the

Municipal Systems Act (Year 0) and resulting scorecards Yes 2023-07-24
All service delivery agreements (Year 0) Yes 2023-07-24
All long-term borrowing contracts (Year 0) Yes 2023-06-18

All supply chain Management contracts above a prescribed value (give value) for Year

0 Yes 2023-06-18
An information statement containing a list of assets over a prescribed value that have
been disposed of in terms of section 14 (2) or (4) during Year 1 Yes 2023-01-19
Contracts agreed in Year 0 to which subsection (1) of section 33 apply, subject to

subsection (3) of that section Yes 2023-06-18

Public-private partnership agreements referred to in section 120 made in Year 0 Yes 2023-06-18
All quarterly reports tabled in the council in terms of section 52 (d) during Year 0 Yes 2023-11-17
Note: MFMA 575 sets out the in j j ] in i i

2.14 PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES

_ﬁ—

EPHRAIM MOGALE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 2023/2024 DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT

43



The community satisfaction survey conducted has highlighted important challenges facing the municipality.
Among the challenges facing the municipality is to confront the issues in certain villages which made it
impossible for a survey to take place. Many of the residents have indicated their displeasure with service
delivery. These residents complain about traffic control and motor vehicle licensing, streets and storm water,
housing and libraries. These issues could result in a negative image and untenable consequences for the
municipality. They however credit the municipality, and they are happy with the overall performance of the
municipality as a reflection of the current government,

The results of the survey should be read in conjunction with Sekhukhune District Municipality Customer Survey.
The intention should be to link the two and identify similar issues that must be pursued by the municipality via
the District Intergovernmental Structures, Moreover, the survey results link with planning instruments like IDP,
Ward Based Plans and Service Standards. In certain cases, the results may imply revision of certain important
planning documents, Addressing the issues raised will improve the rating of the municipality a place as one of
the top performers in local government.

CHAPTER 3: SERVICE DELIVERY

COMPONENT A: BASIC SERVICES

Introduction to Basic Services

The municipality performs the following functions in relation to the provision of Basic Services:

Electricity

Free Basic Service and Indigent Support

Roads and storm water

Repair and maintenance of existing infrastructure
Provision of Free Basic electricity

Waste Management

o ap oo

3.1 WATER PROVISION

Sekhukhune District Municipality is both water service authority and provider, them responsibly for bulk water
supply and Household connections. In the 2023/2024 financial year, no projects were constructed in the
Ephraim Mogale local Municipality.

3.2 WASTEWATER (SANITATION) PROVISION

Sekhukhune District Municipality is responsible for wastewater bulk provision and the maintenance of the
wastewater network since they're both the water authority and water service provider.

T T S e T T T T
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3.3 ELECTRICITY

3.3.1 INTRODUCTION

The Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality is the service authority for the provision of electricity but only has a
license for the distribution of electricity in the town of Marble Hall. ESKOM provides electricity to the areas
outside the Municipal license area. All villages have been connected to the ESKOM grid. ESKOM completed 542
connections and 194 infilis. The electrification backlog in the license area is zero and 1960 households in the
Municipal (ESKOM license] area of the total number of 35 953 households {census survey 06/2022) which is
5.45%. These are new extensions and in-fills. The current approved plan is to complete 213 connections at
Mamphokgo Phase 2 and 225 connections at Regae new extension. There is also provision for 105 infills. The
average planned ESKOM connection cost per household is still higher than the DMRE allocation mostly due to
the required stremgthening of existing infrastructure. The Municipality is planning to assist with electrification
in the ESKOPM areas through INEP funding and will do pre-engineering for three areas.

3.3.2 TOP 3 PRIORITIFS
1. Public lighting maintenance and expansion

The Municipality is successfully maintaining all the installed public lighting. The Municipality approved the
Public Lighting Master plan on 28 May 2019. One of the capital projects that was started in the 2019/2020 to
instal] high mast lights at Manapyane has still not been completed because ESKOM installed and energized only
6 of the 8 supply points. The Municipality installed 3 new mast lights in Matseding of which only two was
energized because ESKOM did not install the third supply peint. The last project was 4 new mast {ights installed
at Moganyaka but could not be energized because after receiving payment ESKOM did not install the new
supply points but increased the cost by 800%. For the 2023/24 year the Municipality installed 6 mast lights at
Malebitsa and 6 at Leeuwfontein RDP section. Lack of funding is a huge challenge for new installations and
maintenance as the serviced areas don’t generate any income.,

2. Distribution network maintenance

The projects of the Municipality focus on maintenance, refurbishment and replacement. The Municipality
wants to grow and applied for a capacity increase from 7.5MVA to 10MVA. The Municipality paid for the
upgrade and provided the required security. ESKOM is busy with the project and aims to complete the vpgrade
within 2 years. The Municipality completed transformer and Ring Main Unit maintenance, and The Municipality
serviced 20 Ring Main Unit maintenance as planned. 52 transformers were serviced but the test results were
still cutstanding. Seven hundred meters of new 150mm? 11kV cable was installed to increase the capacity to
the Industria! Substation. This completed the projects that were done in 4 phases,

3. Accurate metering

The Municipality succeeded in maintaining energy losses at 5.53% which is well below the NERSA requirement
of 12% by doing monthly meter reading internally and using handheld electronic devices to capture readings
and pictures of meters. The Municipality is doing deviation investigations to identify problems. More than 70%
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of residential customers have now changed to prepaid metering and the number is still growing slowly but
SSEG installations have reduced the number again. The Municipality completed the STS roll over of prepaid
meters and replaced faulty meters well in time of the due date. A hundred meters were purchased to convert
or replace problematic meters. The Municipality installed 4 quality of supply recorder to ensure two recorders
in every substation,

3.3.3 MEASURES TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE
1. Public lighting

The Municipality completed the retrofitting of all public lighting to LED by replacing 803 fittings with an EEDSM
grant, The Municipality approved the Public Lighting Master Plan and is trying to expand public lighting to all
areas according to the guidelines in the plan. Twe new projects are being planned with 6 new mast lights at
Ward 2 and Ward 13 respectively. The Municipality will continue with maintenance but will have to start
keeping completely new LED fittings in stock for breakdown replacement. The new LED technology is effective
and energy efficient but difficult to repair as the components are manufacturer specific and the technology
keeps on changing with new development. Apart from funding the biggest issue is the high cost of ESKCM
supply points, very long construction time by ESKOM of these points and the very high energy tariff charged
by ESKCM for public lighting. ESKOM also didn’t repair faulty supply points for years but still continue with
billing “consumpticn” The Municipality needs assistance from NERSA and Government to engage ESKOM and
such a request was submitted to NERSA, DMRE, CoGHSTA and ESKOM. Unfortunately, there was no
improvement. The Municipality completed the 8 new mast lights in August 2021 and paid the ESKOM
quotations. Unfortunately, two and a half years later only 6 have been energized. Two of the recently
completed mast projects have also not been energized completely and need a high level of intervention.

it was alsc decided that once the current MIG projects have been completed most light projects would be
placed in the MIG program again. Mast projects were removed from the MIG program after ESKOM continued
to fail to supply connections points to energize the projects for 2 years. This problem still exists. Any new
installation will require more funding for energy and maintenance but at this stage no additional source of
income has been secured. There are no immediate solutions for the inadeguate funding. The Municipality
converted all fittings to more energy efficient LED fittings but on all the new projects ESKCM now moved the
Municipality to the most expensive business tariff which then consumes any and all the saving that was
achieved by using LED fittings.

2. Distribution network maintenance

The Municipality already applied and paid for more capacity In line with the Electricity Master plan. The
Municipality will review the Electricity Master Plan in 2024/25. According to the Maintenance plan the
transformers will be serviced and tested and 20 RMu's will be serviced. A 300kVA minisubstation will also be
replaced and upgraded to 500kvA

3. Accurate metering

The Municipality will cantinue to read its own meters based on the excellent results. Deviation reports will still
be dene to ensure losses are managed. More customers will be converted to prepaid metering to reduce
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reading and billing errors and to secure income. The Municipality will continue to replace problematic
conventional meters and prepaid meters in the new financial year to reduce operating costs and possible
losses. The correct meters will be instafled for grid -tied Small Scale Embedded Generators

3.3.4 SUCCESS AND CHALLENGES

1, SUCCESS

Electricity losses at 5.53 %. (NERSA limit 12%)

The repair of faulty public lighting fittings was achieved at 100% per quarter for the whole year.
Prepaid meter 5T5S (TID} roll over was completed ahead of schedule

Transformers serviced and tested.

Twenty Ring Main Units serviced.

The installation of a second supply to the Industrial Substation was completed.

Replacement of 370meter of small and problematic Medium Voltage cable in Ext 2 and 3 completed.
Stand-by generator installed at Traffic Centre to ensure continuation of operations.at all times,

The Municipality approved its first Small-Scale Embedded customer bigger than 100kVA at 300kVA and
continue registering customers.,

Six new mast lights were installed at Leeuwfontein RDP and six at Malebitsa, Waiting for ESKOM supply
points.

Revenue Plan by DBSA project started

2. CHALLENGES

L]

Population and electrification backlog are growing fast with limited funding and netwerk capacity
constraints.
Service provided by ESKOM:
o Very high cost of new supply points
o Very long time far construction and energization T new supply points.
o Yery high tariff on new public lighting supplies
o Very long time on restoration of reported faults
¢ Incorrect accounts.
Increase in construction and maintenance cost but no increase in revenue.

In license area

(a)
(b}
{c}
{d)
(e)

Informal densification is putting the network under pressure

Development in unauthorized areas which cannot be electrified.

Encroachment — road reserves and servitudes

Loadshedding causing several cable faults and vandalism

Infrastructure vandalized and stripped especially in Extension 4{Industrial area), 5 and 6 {Phase three
completely stripped-transformer, cables, meter kiosks and streetlights})

3.3.5 ADDRESSING SERVICE BACKLOGS
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Due to the continuous growth the backlog is now also growing, and the INEP allocation is not keeping up and
in certain areas the network is out of capacity:

Total for 2023/2024 was: 736 connections

542 connections completed for R23 169 694.76 (R42 748/connection) and 194 Post connections. The
Mamphokgo project was drastically increased to catch up with the backlog in the new financial year and a
second phase was added for 2024/2025.

Total for 2024/2025 planned:

A total of 543 connections is planned with 438 project connections and 105 infills for R11 945 151.00.

Table 29: Connections

No | Year Connections | Backlog | Connections as
% of backlog
1 2018/19 | 708 1191 59%
2 2019/20 | 779 867 90%
3 2020/21 | 512 1106 46%
4 2021/22 | 549 1942 28%
5 2022/23 | 372 1915 19%
6 2023/24 | 736 1960 38%

The Municipality will cooperate with ESKOM to eradicate the backlog. Councilors submit the backlog data to
the Municipality who submit it to ESKOM. After investigating the projects ESKOM submitted a project proposal
to the Municipality for approval. ESKOM then implemented the projects with funding from the INEP allocation
for the Municipality. This will not even maintain the backlog not to mention eradicate the backlog. The number
of new households is growing fast although there is no visible economic growth or development. The very high
average cost per connection and the fact that the Municipality cannot always claim for the cost of upgrading
existing networks in villages already electrified means that the Municipality cannot afford to do its own
projects. The Municipality considered three projects namely Mohlalaotwane, Driefontein and Malebitsa where
thereis fast growth, but the ESKOM network doesn’t have capacity. The other fast-growing areas of Moganyaka
and Mamphokgo were already covered in the ESKOM plan.

The Municipality developed a public lighting master plan but needs to scurce funding for new installations as
well as funding for maintenance and energy consumption. With the very high ESKOM supply point cost and the
new ESKOM business 4 charges of R5.46/kWh for new installations, which is more than double the old tariff, it
requires a lot of funding. The Municipality and DMRE considered solar mast lights, but it is not yet the best
option due to cost, limited cover and security risk to equipment. Unfortunately, the Municipality has not been
successful in collecting revenue fram communities receiving services outside the NERSA license area. Currently
there is no funding from MIG for new public lighting installations as the MIG program is full.

Table 30: Electricity Service Delivery Levels
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Energy: (above minimum level)
Electricity (at least min. service level) (esk 1% +munic conv) 692 340 340 655
Electricity - prepaid (min. serv level. data availability
challenges est, 999 + PP munic) 32502 33671 33698 33337
Minimum Service Leve! and Above sub-total 32 830 34011 34038 33993
Minimum Service Level and Above Percentage 96.7% 94.6% 94.7% 94.5%
Energy: (below minimum level)
Electricity (< min. service level- Only backlog) 1106 1942 1915 1960
Electricity - prepaid (< min. service leve| - Only backlog) 0 0 0
Other energy sources — no official project or data 0 0 0
Below Minimum Service Level sub-total 1106 1942 1915 1960
Below Minimum Service Level Percentage 3.3% 5.4% 5.3% 5.5%
Total number of households 33936 35953 35953 35953

Table 31: Households - Electricity Service Delivery Levels below the minimum

| |I-H|"-::'|I-.|I-!". '-'.l-‘.'.l.ll-.l'.'l.' ervice Delivery Levels Below

Data is an estimate based on STATS 2016, STATS 2022

Data is an estimate based on STATS 2016 and STATS 2022, Dat

Table 32: Electricity Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP

__“—

Formal Settlements

Total households 984 984 995 1036

Households below minimum service level 0 0 0 0

Proportion of households below minimum

service level 0% 0% 0% 0%

Informal Settlements

Total households 34 969 34 969 33043 32 949

Households below minimum service level 1942 1942 1915 1968

Proportion of households below minimum

service level 5.6% 5.6% 57% 5.9%
35953 35953 35953 35953

a from ESKOM not accurate.

1040 1045

0 0

0% 0%
e

32 669 32948

2244 1860
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Y
il
1),

1

Service Objective xxx
Provision of | Additional 624* 298* 590* 438* 438%* 543* 543* 600
minimum supply of | households Addition | Addition Addition | Addition | Addition additiona | additiona additiona
electricity - ESKOM (HHs) provided | al HHs al HHs al HHs al HHs al HHs I HHs | HHs | HHs
with  minimum | (1942HH (1915HH | (1915 (1960 (1960HH | (1960 (1985HH | (2100HH
supply  during [ s below | s below HHs HHs s below | HHs s below | s below
the year | minimu minimu below below minimu below minimu minimu
(Number of HHs | m) m) minimu minimu m) minimu m) m)
below m) m) m)
minimum
supply level)
Do quarterly
maintenance on
Maintain Public | all streetlights —
Lighting 3980 100% 85% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Ensure reliable | Transformer
supply maintenance 51 51 51 52 10 52 52 55
Ensure reliable | Ring Main Unit
supply Maintenance 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 “
Table 33: Capital Expenditure Year 0: Electricity Services
Total All 18 175 19199 15176 21%
Energy Efficiency and Demand Side B
Management 5600 5600 5600 0 5600
Purchase kWh meters 300 300 295 -1.5% 295
Install quality of supply recorders 700 1800 908 -50% 908
—“—
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Industrial substation second supply Phase ¢ | 3500 3 500 1807 -48% 1807
Chain Saw and Brush cutter 25 24 24 0% 24
Security upgrade 250 250 0 100% 0
Generator for Traffic Centre 600 780 894 15% 894
High Mast Lights connections - Moganyaka 400 8945 428 -55% 428
High Mast Lights — Leeuwfontein RDP 3400 3000 3070 -11% 3070
High Mast Lights — Malebitsa 3400 3000 2533 -15% 2933
-21% 15959

Total project value represents the estimated cost of the project on approval by council fincluding past and future
expenditure as appropriate,

COMMENT ON ELECTRICITY SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL:

»

Electrical Master Plan, Operation and Maintenance Plan and Public Lighting Master Plan available and being implemented.
Electrification Backlog at 5.45%

Losses at 5.53%

Completed the STS {TID) roll over in time with no problems.

The Municipality is promoting alternative energy with an approved and Smali-Scale Embedded Paolicy and Tariff,

The Municipality does not owe ESKOM on any of its accounts.

Maintenance and refurbishment are still a priority. Transformers serviced but test results were still outstanding. Twenty Ring Main
Units were serviced and tested.

The Municipality replaced 903 light fittings with LED and completed the retrofitting of all the fittings

The Municipality obtained the Energy Performance Certificates for the two main bufldings as required,

The repair of faulty public lighting fittings was done although streetlight material was an issue

The Municipality is continuing the installation of stand-by capacity to continue services during load shedding. A new 100kVA
generator was installed at the License and Traffic and now all operations in Marble Hall can continue.

The Municipality continues to extend the public lighting services afthough funding and ESKOM supply points is a huge challenge.
Twelve new mast lights were installed but still awaits the installation of the ESKOM supply points.

The DBSA approved the application for a Revenue Plan which started at the end of the financial year and will include the required
Cost of Supply Study, tariff revision and sourcing new revenue streams to expand and maintain service delivery,

Three largest capital projects
The 3 largest projects were related to energy efficiency, increasing capacity and the expansion of services.

1. Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management — The Municipality replaced 903 light fittings with energy saving LED fittings with
an EEDSM grant. This project completed the retrofitting of all the fittings in the Municipality. The project also funded the Energy
Performance Certification of the two buildings that required certification,

2. Industrial Second Supply Phase 4 - Install 700m PILC MV Cable — According to the Electrical master Plan the Municipality needed a
second supply from OTK/Obarc Substation to the Industrial Substation. The project was the 4 and last phase of this new supply and
was completed and energized.

3. High Mast Lights Leeuwfontein RDP — The Municipality expanded the public lighting service by installing 6 new mast lights at the
Leeuwfontein RDP section. ESKOM must still provide supply points
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4. High Mast Lights Malebitsa — The Municipality expanded the public lighting service by installing 6 new additional mast lights at
Malebitsa. ESKOM must still provide supply points.

The five-year projects as planned in the IDP might not be achieved within the available budget due to the following factors:

e Unavailability of components locally

e  Fluctuation of copper prices

e Exchange rate on specialized imported equipment

e Changes in priority due to development/densification

® Increasing cost of maintenance —(material and service providers)

e  Reprioritization due to theft and vandalism

¢ Non-compliant bidders and very high profit margins
Electrical network supply reliability has been maintained but all the old medium voltage cables will have to be replaced, which the
Municipality has been doing in phases every year. Metering/billing accuracy has been maintained because the Municipality continued
with its own meter reading with electronic meter reading devices with images for verification. Billing data must still be cleaned up and
will be done during the Revenue Plan. There will have to be a continuous replacement of meters and therefore there is another project
in the new year again for the acquisition of 100 meters. Correct metering must be installed at all SSEG installations. Losses have managed
well below NERSA levels (12%) at 5.53%, which is good news for the Municipality and its customers. The Electrical business is still
financially viable but needs to be rung fenced and the Revenue Plan will provide a detailed Cost of Supply study to revise the tariff
structures. The Municipality does not owe ESKOM on any of its accounts.

ESKOM

All villages have been grid connected to the electrical supply. ESKOM succeeded in the completion of 7 planned projects with 542
connections and 194 infills. One project was split into 2 phases due to the fast-growing number of connections required. The current
INEP allocation and the connections completed is not keeping up with the fast growth and will not eradicate the backlog. The ESKOM
network is also limited in available capacity for more connections in the Moutse West area and there is a huge backlog. There is still no
proper planning for new extensions in tribal controlled areas and at the beginning of every project resident quickly starts building many
new houses in the hope that the project will be extended, which is impossible.

ESKOM is implementing Free Basic Electricity on behalf of the Municipality and currently we don’t experience a problem with their
implementation, but the indigent register must be revised regularly. The Municipality needs access to the relevant systems to confirm
when beneficiaries pass away.

3.4 WASTE MANAGEMENT

The municipality provides waste management services that includes waste collection, street cleaning (in
Marble Hall town only), and waste disposal at Marble Hall Landfill site. Clearing and cleaning illegal dumping
of waste it is done as and when is required throughout the Municipal jurisdiction. Regular solid waste collection
service is provided to business, institutions and households within the jurisdiction of the Municipality. Waste
collection from residential premises is carried out on a weekly or bi- weekly basis either by kerbside and /or
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communal bin colfection. Rent a bin services/number of skip bins requested by clients are also rendered to
residentials in Marble Hall according to the approved tariffs and they are collected as and when the bin is full
for safer disposal. The total percentage of households is as stated per the Stats SA census 2022 and the figures
is used for afl the planning and reporting in the Municipality.

The Municipality managed to consistently deliver a weekly kerb side refuse collection service in the following
villages namely Marble Hall {ward 7}, Leeuwfaontein {ward 8), Leeuwfontein RDP {ward 8), Elandskraal {ward
15} as per schedule.

Number of bulk containers (skip bins) are strategically placed at the villages to give communities further access
to weekly refuse collection and te reduce illegal dumping of waste to the following villages, Moganayaka,
Manapyane, Regae, Mamphokgo, Makgatle, Letebejana and Matlerekeng (one container per village} to be
collected once a week or as required.

Provision of refuse removal servises is rendered also to the businesses and industries to be collected once,or
mote times a week or daily depending on the nature of the business.

Accarding to the 2016 Consumer census survey , the Muncipality has a total number of 33936 househalds
and the currently 6368 households have access to weekly refuse collection service.lt means that only 18.8% of
the households have access with a backlog of 81.2%. The status of the number of households in the rural areas
is challenging.

There is only one landfill site in the Municipality which is situated in Marble Ball town. The site is permitted,
and it is classified as a GMB- landfill site. There is a proper access road, the site is adequately fenced with
lockable gates and 24hours security guards, offices and cloakrooms are available. The current permit was
issued during site establishment in 1997 by the then Department of Water Affairs and Forestry.

The Municipal current landfill airspace is at 0 years, an expert assessment of the remaining useful life {RUL) of
the landfill was commissioned and conducted by Jones and Wagener Engineering and Environmental
Consultants (JAWS) in July 2024, Based on the topographical survey and the legal limitation on the height of
the landfill (3 meters above ground level — condition 3.10 in the permit), they conciuded that the available
airspace has been fully utilized. An adjacent property at the existing landfill side has been identified for the
development of & new landfill site. Mamadi and Company SA Pty Ltd have been appointed by the Department
of Ecancmic Development, Environment and Tourism (LEDET) in Limpopo Province as a prefessional service
provider for assisting the Municipality with the Licensing and Development of Landfill Engineering Design.
However, this is in the early stages and will take longer to be completed so that a new landfill can be taken into
operation. The municipality needs to source funds for the finalization of the new landfill and also for the
rehabilitation plan and closure of the existing landfill. In the meantime, the municipality is continuing to use
the current landfill, despite the exceedance of the height limitation. The request for adjusting cell height will
also be in the new permit application, This will allow more available airspace for disposal if the application is
approved.

The site is receiving an estimate of 17000 tons of waste annually which is manthly electronically reported on
the South African Waste Information System website. Waste for disposal is currently estimated.
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A weighbridge is installed at the Landfill site however we are still establishing the correct manner to cperate
the weighbridge to its full capacity. The control of the entrance is not effective due to many operational
challenges and waste being disposed are still estimated. A strategic approach to the weighbridge operations
and training and license update will be done in the next financial year.

Sorting at source as part of the recycling process is also done by recyclers and collected by different recycling
companies and individuals. Recycling is priaritised, and we also encourage individual community members to
do recycling of bottles,papers, plastic etc. as this will resultin a clean surroundings and job creation. The service
need to be extended to other areas in order to encourage clean and healthy enviroment, however the impact
was not as expected as the progress is slow. A recycling strategy needs to be developed in line with the
Intergrated Waste Management Plan (IWMP),

In collaboration with the voluntary group of concern community members of the Letebjane , Mamphogo and
Moganyaka villages are doing the cleaning of rivers, and picking litter along the main road from Leeuwfontein
intersetion up to Letebjane village . The Municipality assist with refuse bags and the collection of refuse. They
are also doing recycling on a small scale and are recognised by the Sekhukhune District Municpality, Provincial
department (LEDET) and DFFE.

The is local Municipal recyclers forum established and also the Municipality is part of the Sekhukhune District
Recycling Farum . Refuse recycling at schools are also done under the guidance of the District forum. Funding
is a major cocern but the Department of Economic Development ,Environment and Tourism {LEDET} is asssiting
were ever they can.

The Integrated Waste Management Plan is in a final draft form and the process to complete received support
of the Provincial department [LEDET), with the appointment service provider Mamadi &Company to finalise a
credible Integrated Waste Management Plan.

Designaticn in writing of a waste management officer {WMO) to coordinate waste management in the
municipality. Following the retirement of the previous WMO, the departmental director was officiaily
designated as the WMQ on 3 November 2023.

As part of the commitment to the allocated EPWP grant and job creation, 06 employees were contracted for
06 months as EPWP employees to support waste management in Marble Hall town, to assisst with illegal
dumping and waste management.

Proper effective awareness campaigns to educate communities with Environmental issues such as waste
management and cleanliness, clearing of illegal dumping of waste throughout the Municipality is an ongoing
process and is already done at hotspot villages such as Leeuwfontein, Letebejana, Manapyane and Marble Hall
Town.

Challenges that are faced with waste management
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Due to the extensive ruralness of the areas of the Municipality and due to fact that the only registered landfill
is situated in Marble Hall town and the capacity{human and capital resourses) of the Waste division , there is
a huge challenges of extending services to all the households in the Municipal area.

The non payment of refuse collection services in Leeuwfontein and Elandskraal is also not yet finalised and
the delay to extend services to other areas is still a huge challenge . Currently the necessary public consultations
in these communities are still beiing finalised by Finance section of the Municipality so that the revenue
enhancement in these areas can be inplemented.. The implementation can assist with additional revenue that
can help with a sustainable and affordable services to other villages.

There are no other private entities contracted to do refuse collection in the municipality.

Table 34: Refuse disposal for Households within EPMLM (RELY ON STATS SA FIGURES 2011 AND SURVEY
2016)

Solid Waste Removal: (Minimum level)

Removed at least once a week 6369 6369 6369 6369
Minimum Service Level and Above sub- | 6369 6369 6369 6369
total

Minimum Service Level and Above 18.8% 18.8% 18.8%
percentage

solid Waste Removal: (Below
minimum level)

Removed less frequently than once a 0 0 0

week

Using communal refuse dump Unknown Unknown Unknown

Using own refuse dump Unknown Unknown Unknown

Other rubbish disposal - =

No rubbish disposal 26,567 26,567 26,567

Below Minimum Service Level sub-total 28,317 28,317 28,317

Below Minimum Service Level 81.2% 81.2% 81.2%

percentage

Total number of households 33,936 33,936 33,936
3.5 HOUSING
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This is not a function of municipality. The Limpopo department of CoGHSTA coordinates all housing issues. The
Limpopo Department of COGHSTA has allocated construction of 152 RDP houses to the municipality during the
2023/2024. Service providers were appointed, and the project are still in progress.

3.6 FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT
Introduction

The Ephraim Mogale Municipality only provided Free Basic Electricity to the indigent. The policy is reviewed in
line with the Municipal Indigent Policy. The municipality has set a target of 911 beneficiaries to receive Free
Basic Electricity in the 2023/2024 financial year and manages to provide for 911 beneficiaries who are on the
indigent register by 30 June 2024.

COMPONENT B: ROAD TRANSPORT

INTRODUCTION TO ROADS, BRIDGES AND STORM WATER

The Municipality is responsible for the provision, development and maintenance of the internal streets within
the villages. The road and stormwater master plan were developed in the year 2017 to assist the Municipality
with specifying the conditions of the roads throughout the municipal area and further proposes a priority list
for intervention. The Master plan has also included maintenance plan (routine and periodic) that indicate the
different treatment on surfaced roads and the period of application. The Master plan need to be reviewed.

The municipality has the following related strategic objectives for the reporting period:

e Toimprove access to viable roads and facilitate tarring.
e To facilitate provision of storm water drainage for all Municipal roads

These objectives are funded by MIG and Equitable Share; however, the municipality needs more resources,
both financial and human, to be able to address the backlog as planned.

3.7 ROADS

The Municipality is responsible for the provision, development and maintenance of the internal streets within
the villages. The Municipality also maintains all the roads within the Municipal area and there are teams
dedicated to that. The teams are as follows.

e  Gravel/Dirt roads Maintenance team

e Surfaced roads maintenance team including drainages.

® Road marking team

The total length of the road network under ownership of Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality is 1162.9km from
the Road Master plan exercise done in 2017, of which 970.9 km are gravel and 192.0 km are surfaced. This
excludes roads owned by SANRAL, Province, District Municipality, and Private Roads. This translates to only
15.8% of the network being surfaced and the rest of network, i.e. 84.16%, being gravel.
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The Municipality has managed to reduce the gravel backlog and increase the surfaced roads by 4.5 km since

the financial year 2023/2024. The gravel roads back log is now sitting at 970.9km, and the surfaced roads length

has increased to 192km.

Most of the existing surfaced road infrastructure has reached its design life span and routine maintenance is
no longer the solution. The municipality needs to invest and focus in preserving the life of the existing roads

infrastructure by putting funds aside for heavy maintenance including repair, reseal, fog spray and

rehabilitation. The types of treatments for different types are best described in the Road and Stormwater

Master plan.

Table 35: Asphalted & Gravel Road Infrastructure & Cost of Construction/Maintenance

021/2022 12.25 1.35 179.92
022/2023 179.92 4.28 0 184.20
023/2024 187.5 4.50 0 0 192.00

ravel'Road Infrasts

021/2022 0 13.60 982.08
022/2023 982.08 | 0 4.28 977.8
023/2024 974.50 | 0 4.50 970.00

021/2022 | 0.00

R54 830 000.00

RO.00

R0.00

R4 000 000.00

R4 000 000.00
022/2023 | 0.00 R30 189 000.00 R3 547 000.00 RO.00 R0.00 R3 947 000.00
023/2024 | 0.00 R36 755 000.00 R8 000 000.00 RO.00 RO.00 R8 000 000.00

Table 36: Road Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP
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Table 37: Financial Performance Year 0: Road Services

rtal Operational Revenue RO.00

tpenditure:

nployees 8862 015.00

apairs and Maintenance 2 150 730.83 | 5000 000.00 3 000 000.00 8000 000.00 | 3000 000.00
ither 0.00

EPHRAIM MOGALE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 2023/2024 DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT

58




»tal Operational Expenditure

et Operational Expenditure

et expenditure variances are calculated by dividing the difference between the Actual and Original Budget by the Actual.

stal Al R 36 755000,00 | R0.00 R 36 755 000,00 ———
sthoke Internal Street (Multi Year) R4878532,00 | R6 208688,68 | R 6208 688,68 | R0.00 R 30 364 209,97
orarela Access Road (Multi Year) R16 544 484,00 | R13542129,69 | R13610034,81 | R67905.012 | R 21774 833,78
itvlugt Bus Route (Multi Year) R16001 286,00 | R15034 481,63 | R 14944 178,56 | R90303.07 | R 39 770 000,01

rtal project value represents the estimated cost of the project on approval by council (including past and future expenditure
i appropriate.

In the financial year 2023/2024, the allocation was R 36 755 000,00.

MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT EXPENDITURE

The percentage of MIG Expenditure for 2023/2024 was 100.0% including PMU establishment fees.
Table 38: Municipal Infrastructure Grant Funded Projects

GrantiFunded Projects

Viunicipalilnfrastructure

220/000.00!

R 6208 688,68

Rathoke Internal Street (Multi Year)

Morarela Access Road (Multi Year) R13610 034,81

Uitvlugt Bus Route (Multi Year) R 14 944 178,56

PMU Establishment R 1992 097,95

3.8 TRANSPORT
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Transport is an important component for economic improvement and development, both for commuters,
SMME’S and big businesses, investors and for transport services.

There are different modes of transport in EPMLM, taxi, bus, private cars etc. The most well-established
transport made is the Taxi operations with its associations established and regulating the industry. Great North
Transport (GNT) is the only bus service operating in EPMLM and not in all the communities. There is a major
demand of GNT Services in some villages to make their journey safer and economical to Marble Hall as a town.

The Annual Arrive alive campaigns in collaboration with District and Provincial departments were successfully
held in December 2022 and April 2023 where road users were made aware of the road traffic act conditions,
whereby vehicles and driver licenses were inspected. Traffic section conducted several Roadblocks which the
aim was to make effective of the Traffic Contravention system for revenue collection. Traffic Services which
include normal law enforcement was done in Marble Hall and there is still a challenge in extending the service
to other villages.

Challenges

Re allocation of hawkers to the hawker stall away from the N11 is still a huge challenge, the process is stuck
due to resistance from the hawkers to move to the hawker stall and the deliberately stay away from the
meetings. A new strategy needs to be formulated for implementation and Participation.

3.8.1 LICENSING

Department of Transport and Community Safety together with Ephraim Mogale Municipality share the services
of Driving Licence Testing Canters in a ratio of 80:20 (DOTCS gets 80 percent and EMPLM gets 20%). The
Licensing and Registration Centre {DLTC) is a Grade B. The municipality uses electronic Learners License, The
electronic learners’ license is the corrective measure implemented to curb corruption in the DLTC. The system
is user-friendly and 100% fair and has been found to eliminate fraud and corruption in the Learners Licence
tests. The position for Senior Licensing Officer has been vacant for a long time and needs to be filled as soon
as possible.

3.9 STORMWATER

The Municipality is managing approximately 118km of storm water control structures including pipes, channel
and catch pits. The Municipality is also constructing new storm water structure with each new road. The
Municipality is maintaining and cleaning the storm water structures every month and there is a team dedicated
for the maintenance of storm water.

Challenges for Roads and storm water provision and maintenance and Unavailability of planning data
e Aging infrastructure

s Huge backlog

e Uncontrolled storm water in villages

e Rolling and Mountainous terrain (groundwater; rocks and Siltation)

e Limited and Inadequate budget for the maintenance and development of new infrastructure
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e  Poor performance and workmanship by service providers

e Mushrooming of business forums in various villages and their expensive demands in various projects
e Mining of gravel material from borrow pits in tribal lands.

e Outdated roads and stormwater Master plan

COMPONENT C: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

3.10 PLANNING

Ephraim Mogale local municipality through the Planning and Economic Department is responsible for the
overall planning of the municipality. Through the Town Planning Services Unit, the Municipality facilitates the
implementation of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act 2013, (Act 16 of 2013), EPMLM Spatial
Planning and Land Use By-law, 2017, EPMLM Spatial Development Framework, 2018, EPMLM Land Use

Management Scheme 2019 and other planning laws and prescripts.

The Town Planning and Building division is responsible for the provision of strategic direction regarding the
spatial planning of towns, townships and rural settlement areas in EPMLM. The Municipality receives all Land
Development Applications within the Jurisdiction through the office of Town Planning as guided by the Ephraim
Mogale Spatial Planning and Land Use Management By-Law, 2017. The Land Use and Land Development
Applications are separated into 2 categories, whereby Category 1 is decided upon by the Tribunal and Category

2, unopposed applications are decided by the Authorized Official of the Municipality.

The council of Ephraim Mogale in the council resolution 5C1/04/2019 has agreed to establish a joint District
Municipal Planning Tribunal to exercise the powers and perform functions of decision making on Land Use
Applications and appoint the Authorized Official to receive and decide of land development applications and
land use applications within the municipality. The municipality entered into an agreement with the
Sekhukhune District Joint Municipality and the other 3 Municipalities for the establishment of Sekhukhune

Joint District Municipal Planning Tribunal.

Table 39: Below are all applications received and for the financial year 2023/2024
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13/07/2022 Category 2: Application for exemption in terms of section I Approved
71: Farm uyskraal no.10-js
21/07/2022 | Category 2: Application for exemption in terms of section
71: Farm next to road R573 Approved
25/07/2022 Category 1: Application for Rezoning from Business 1 to Not Approved
public garage on the farm Loskop Noord
3/10/2022 Category 2: Application for Relaxation of erf 259 Marble | Approved
Hall
10/10/2022 Category 2 Application for Special consent on Erf 2301 Not Approved
Not Approved
3/10/2022 Category 2 Application for Special consent on Erf 272
Approved
3/10/2022 Category 2 Application for Special Consent on Erf 178
03/02/2023 Category 2 Application for Rezoning of Remainder of the | Not Approved
farm Krondraai 712-KS
Not Approved
15/02/2023 | Category 1 Application for Subdivision on farm
Hindostan 680 KS
01/03/2023 | Category 1 Application for Special Consent on Portion 1 | Approved
of Erf 835
29/03/2023 Category 2 Application for rezoning on farm Hindostan Not Approved
680 KS
Not Approved
01 June 2023 | Category 2 Application for relaxation of building line

2044 Brown Matlala Street, Marble Hall
Extension 6
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Approved.
08 June 2023 Category 2 Application for relaxation of building line
1940 Frans Mohlala Street, marble hall
Extension 6.
Not Approved
09 June 2023 Category 2 1835 Joe Slovo Street, Marble Hall Extension
6

The configuration of the municipal area and the existing spatial pattern (topography, population distribution
and sprawl) together with causal factors (land ownership, established land uses) are impediments to the
successful implementation of a Development Strategy to achieve the four developmental outcomes proposed
in the White Paper on Local Government.

Restricted access to land by the Municipality due to inhibitive land cost (privately owned land) and statutory
deterrents (state — owned land under tribal custodianship) would exacerbate attempts by the Council to
orchestrate and encourage the development of a beneficial spatial pattern within the municipal area.

|—.';.11 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The Local Economic Development responsibility is amongst the core components of the Integrated
Development Plans in terms of section 26 (c) Municipal Systems Act which states “that the councils
development priorities and objectives for its elected term, including its local economic development aims and
its internal transformation needs.”

The municipal area is a major producer of citrus and table grapes. Cotton and vegetable production is also
substantial. Cattle ownership among subsistence farmers is largely based in the rural villages. Production areas
are scenically attractive and, together with the Flag Boshielo Dam, provide supply side opportunities for
tourism development. The Schuinsdraai Nature Reserve, which is adjacent to Flag Boshielo Dam, adds to this
opportunity. There is positive development regarding the emergence of black people venturing in the tourism
sector within the municipality though grading of the tourism facilities remains the biggest challenge.

Mining activity includes dolomite and dimension stone. Marble Hall town has a very large, but underutilized
industrial park. The manufacturing companies in the industrial area of marble hall are Granor Passi, McCains
and Tiger Brand Foods vegetable processing. Other tenants in the industrial park are mostly distributors and
businesses that repair motor vehicles and other equipment. The local construction industry is very small but is
growing rapidly. Wholesale and retail trade development has always been overshadowed by facilities that are
available in the adjacent Groblersdal. A large network of informal traders operates throughout the municipal
area.

e e T e ey
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focus of the municipality in improving the local €conomy. The LED strategy Proposed short-, medium- and long-
term potential projects which the municipality should mohiljze resources and wvarious stakeholders to
implement such pbrojects with potential to turn around the Jocal economy,

The function of business registration was previously the responsibility of the Limpopo Economic Development
Envirenment and Tourism {LEDET). The provincial government Introduced Limpopo Business Registration Act

The LED unit issued more than 120 notices to the business in Marbie Hall town and started with awareness in
various wards. The engagements with Department of Home Affairs and South African Police Services (SAPS)
will assist in the enforcement of the LIBRA,

The Tourism Forum as a structure that assist in exploring and explaiting tourism sector for BCONOMmIc growth
and ensure that this sector hecome at the centre of the overall planning continue to hold regular meetings to
guide tourism activities, It is the platform that tourism product owners such as accommadations, craft and

to thrive. The forum need support from the Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and Tourism
(LEDET).

The capacity building for SMMEs and co-operatives is crucial for the improevement of the participation in the
mainstream of the €conomy. The municipality collaborated with Limpopo Economic Development Agency
(LEDET) and Small Enterprise Development Agency (SEDA} to conduct trainings which focused on various
components of business management such as Strategy, Marketing, Finance, Human Resources, Techriology
and Equipment as well as Business Operations,

under review.

The municipality organised a successful LED summit with focus on agriculture as a dominant sectar with
potential to create more job opportunities, The summit remains a priority programme.

__“—
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Table 40: LED Thrust & Strategies

Economic base development Creating enabling environment, agro-processing industrial
development, tourism development and promotion, SMMEs and
informal business development and mining development and
promotion.

Institutional Transformation and Municipal capacity building, Capacity to deal with disasters.

development

Infrastructure development Integrated infrastructure development.

Human Resource Development Adult Basic Education and Training, Human Resource development
strategy,

Spatial and Land Development Growth paints development

The National Development Plan {NDP) recognises the role of the informal traders in the overall economic
growth of the country with potential to create job opportunities. The municipality continue to ensure that the
sector become more organised and regular engagements are held to also reorganise the trading stalls as well
as attending to their day-to-day frustrations. The LED unit assisted in electing the new committee that will
assist the municipality to better control the informal trading activities.

Table 41: Challenges & Strategies & Proposed Solutions
Challenge I Proposed Salution

To engage with the Limpopo Department of
Agriculture and Rural Development to make a
provision for the de-bushing equipment.

Limited funding for projects Initiate partnerships with external donors and funding
agencies to provide additional funding for projects.
The municipality has ongoing engagements with
Afrimat and Lime Chem mine to consider empowering
local SMMEs with potential to create job
opportunities.

Inconsistency of membership particularly in | Pre-registration workshop for potential co-operators
cooperatives to understand principles of cooperatives.

Lack of equipment for de-bushing for start-up
projects

Table 42: LED Jab Creation

Year No Jobs created through CWP
2023/2024 1090
Year No Jobs created through EPWP
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2023/2024 118

Year No Jobs created through MIG

2023/2024 69

Year No Jobs created through DFFE

2023/2024 480 ]

The Community Works Programme remains the biggest government initiative that provides employment safety
net for the unemployed active citizens, and which created 1090 job opportunities across the municipality. The
municipality convenes quarterly meetings in the form of Local Reference Committee (LRC) to monitor the
implementation of the programme in conjunction with COGHSTA in the province in order to ensure that PPE,
other working tools are provided to the participants and useful work in communities is not compromised.

3.12 LIBRARIES AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES

Library services are regulated by the National Library of South Africa Act, 1998 (Act 92 Of 1998), with the
intention to collect, preserve and make available a country’s history to all of its citizens. The municipality has
one library which is situated in Marble Hall town which has just been renovated this financial year under review,
The library is administered by the Department and the municipality through a Service Level Agreement entered
between the two parties. The library was issued and provided with Blind Reading System donated for the
community by the Department of SAC. The provision of material is the responsibility of the Department. The
rotation and the provision of new books in all languages is still a challenge.

The library is utilised by community members who lives in Marble Hall town, Students and members from other
villages who can travel to Town. The challenge is to extend the services to other areas as it cannot be easily
accessible by community members due to the vastness of the municipal area but fortunately one (1) library in
Moutse West is under construction. The municipality will continue to engage the DSAC for the allocation of
other additional libraries in the other parts of the municipality. The municipality is operating with only one
librarian seconded by the Provincial Department.

3.13 CEMETRIES

The municipality planned to fence two (2) cemeteries in Leeuwfontein and Mamphokgo during the year under
review, but the target was not achieved due to limited budget. The directorate will continue to fence village-
based cemeteries according to the priority list in the next financial year. There are 55 cemeteries at sixteen
(16) wards in the Municipal area. The municipality is currently operating only at Marble Hall town, Regae,
Leeuwfontein, Elandskraal and Matlelerekeng cemeteries. There is no crematorium in the municipal area.sz

A huge demand for digging of graves in the whole area of the Municipality occurred during the pandemic and
thereafter. The capacity of the municipality for digging with one TLB is simply not enough. It also became
evidence that in some rural areas the role of community members to dig graves became a very big challenge.
The Municipality budgeted for the procurement of a new TLB in the new financial year.
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There is no Cemetery Management Plan and there is a need to develop one. There is a need for extension of
cemeteries in most villages as their cemeteries have reached their full capacity which then working together
with Councilors and Traditional leaders will assist in that regard.

3.14 SOCIAL PROGRAMMES - CHILD CARE, AGED CARE

Table 43: Department of Social Services is responsible for this function in the Municipal area.

YRR
pledpnl

COMPONENT D: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

3.15 POLLUTION CONTROL

Air Pollution control is the current function and responsibility of Sekhukhune District Municipality. The Local
Municipality is referring all relevant complaints in this regard to the District Environmental Pollution Control
section.

Key to Environmental Pollution Control aspects will be to manage the following using some of the Municipal
Health Services By-laws to be promulgate the first two have be discussed in other function above:

Land/Soil Pollution:
s Landfill/dumping and burning of waste, farming, mining, factories, etc.
Water Pollution:

e  Mining and mining activities, industrial wastewater, municipal wastewater, agricultural wastewater,
unprotected landfill sites, illegal dumping, etc.
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Air Pollution: Air quality Management Functions
Compliance monitoring

The district has developed an Integrated Environmental Management Plan (DIEMP) and there is an Air Quality
Management Plan in place that is being reviewed to update things that have changed. The compliance
monitoring on reported pollution of mines like dust control and water pollution are done by the Air Quality
section at the district. However, compliance monitoring is challenging due to the capacity at the District
Municipality

3.16 BIO-DIVERSTY - LANDSCAPE

A Landscaping Master plan was drawn by Habitat Landscaping Architects for the Marble Hall town as part of
the upgrading of the town. The Plan is implemented in a phased approach in the 2023/2024 financial year, park
equipment such as swings, round abouts and concrete hollards were procured and erected in the parks in
Extension 3 and Extension 6.

The municipality does not have enough staff to render this service, hence the municipality appointed 05 EPWP
personnel as part of Public Works Programme to assist in keeping the town clean and beautiful and as part of
job creation. This EPWP programme has yielded good results for the municipality and the community in relation
to the unemployed youth and women.

The Municipality, in its endeavor of increasing its aesthetic sense of Marble Hall town, have 12 parks in and
around town of Marble Hall. All parks are also maintained by cutting grass, de bushing and removing debris.
Although proper park development will be part of the landscaping phase in program. The main challenge is the
proper maintenance of parks with limited personnel and the destruction of the infrastructure by the public,

COMPONENT E: HEALTH

[3.17 CLINICS

HIV/Aids Coordination

The Municipality does have a HIV/Aids coordinator which is responsible for all activities in trying to reduce
HIV/Aids prevalence in the municipal area. Average prevalence of around 10 % is still occurring. Two Local Aids
council meetings and three awareness campaigns were held. The success rate of the Lac meetings is not up to
standard, and challenges are stakeholder attendance at meetings and the constant changing of meeting dates.
A proper fixed program for LAC meeting in conjunction with the Mayoral office needs to be established for the
coming year. Stakeholder involvement in the Local Aids Council is a serious challenge, because off not
attendance and non-reporting by departments and NGO's. There is a serious endeavour together with the
Districts Aids Council to implement measures for proper functional LAC and Structures.

S sl S S PSR AEESE 2
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3.18 AMBULANCE SERVICES

The Ephraim Mogale Local municipal area is serviced by Private - and Provincial ambulance services. Life 24
and Pro Med private ambulance service is stationed in Marble Hall and the Provincial ambulance services are
based in Matlala Hospital.

3.19 HEALTH INSPECTION: FOOD INSPECTION ETC
Environmental Health/ Municipal Health Services

The Environmental Health function is the responsibility of the Sekhukhune District Municipality. The
Municipality is working together with the assigned Environmental Health practitioners promote clean and safe
communities in relation to the underneath functions. Capacity at District level is also putting a burden on the
service there are only two assigned practitioners for the Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality.

The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No: 108 of 1996) allocates Municipal Health Services
(MHS) as a Local Government function under Part B of Schedule 4, section 156(1)(a). On the other hand, the
National Health Act, 2003, defines Municipal Health Services (MHS) as follows:

» Waste management

* Water quality monitoring

e Health surveillance of premises

e Surveillance and prevention of communicable diseases excluding immunisations
* Vector control

* Environmental pollution control

s Disposal of the dead

* Food control

e Chemical safety

COMPONENT F: SECURITY AND SAFETY

3.20 POLICE

Police function is a national function coordinated at the Provincial Department. The Municipality provides
public safety services through effective and informed Law Enforcement of the National Road Traffic Act,
National Land Transport Act, National Land Transport Transition act and the Municipal By-Laws. Other services
provided also include but are not limited to escorts and point duties that promote the free flow of traffic at
accidents and events or marches. The Traffic Division also aims at having a well-informed and educated public
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by working together with the Limpopo Department of Transport {Road Safety Division} in their Educational and
Road Safety Programs. The purpose of the safety and security unit is to ensure that vehicle and pedestrian
traffic are controlled effectively (24) twenty-four hours a day (365) three hundred and sixty-five days a year.
Municipality works jointly with Limpopo Provincial Department of Transport and the SAPS to reduce accidents
during the festive seasons that include the Easter and Christmas holidays. The municipality is responsible for
Community Safety Forum (CSF) established the CSF which assisted the community in ensuring safety and
security related matters, e.g., bail application, crime prevention initiatives. The municipality had budget
limitation and there were no dedicated staff to focus on this matter, however the municipality sustained the
functionality of CSF and are supporting the structure wherever they can assist in transport and venue
accommodation.

3.21 FIRE

Currently the district has four (4) fire stations located within the three Local Municipalities: Elias
Motswaledi, Makhuduthamaga and Fetakgomo Tubatse respectively.

Fire prevention, safety and protection

The role of the fire service in the district has expanded far beyond fire suppression. With this expansion,
fire prevention, fire safety and public education have appropriately begun receiving an increased
emphasis as the proactive elements of a fire service delivery system. The district communities are
dependent on the fire service to ensure their protection against dangers of fire, entrapment, explosion,
dangerous goods incidents and any emergency event that may occur in the community.

The fire service has a variety of fire vehicles capable of engaging and/or of providing backup services at
any reasonable fire engagement. However apart from the specialized vehicles all stations essentially
require having other fire and rescue tools, to effectively and efficiently operate, of which they do not
have in this financial year.

3.22 DISASTER MANAGEMENT

The municipality has appointed a full time Disaster Management Officer who is rendering services of
conducting eight Disaster Awareness Campaigns annually, two campaigns in different wards per quarter as
allocated and doing assessments in families affected by disaster. Disaster relive material is bought each year
to assist whenever Disaster strikes, which is blankets and sponge mattresses that are kept in stock and issued
when necessary. Continuous discussions between the Local and District Municipality are also done to enhance
the understanding of the function. A Disaster Management Plan was also developed for the local Municipality.

EPHRAIM MOGALE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 2023/2024 DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT

70



COMPONENT G: SPORT AND RECREATTION

3.23 SPORT AND RECREATION

There are two sport, arts and culture officers which coordinate sport activities in the Municipality and align
programs to District and provincial activities.

A successful Heritage Day and Mayor’s cup tournament was held during the financial year. The Local Football

Association is active in arranging league games for soccer in villages in the Municipality where after the winners
tompete against other winners in the district —and in the province. A Softball league has also been established

COMPONENT H: CORPORATE SERVICES

13.24 EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL
Executive committee is the principal committee of the council which receives reports from the other
committees of the council, and which must forward these reports together with its recommendations to the

‘3.25 FINANCIAL SERVICES

Strategically, the finances must be managed to accommodate fluctuations in the economy and the resulting
changes in costs and revenues. Operationally, the Municipality must put in place clear financial goals, Polices
and tools to implement its Strategic Plan. The overall Strategic Plan is to ensure that there is transparency,
accountability and sound Financial Management.

® Forming part of this plan are key performance areas such as: ensuring that all statutory reporting is
compiled and submitted to the different spheres of government timeously,

® Annual Financial Statements are Prepared in accordance with GRAP and submitted on time,

* effective and efficient utilization of financial resources,

—“—
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* Compliance to the Supply Chain Management Policy and the maintenance of assets effectively with
respect to additions; disposals; impairments on the assets register.

3.26 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES

Human resource comprises of occupational health services, labour relations and Employee Assistance
Programmes. It is responsible for the recruitment processes, leave administration, disciplinary
procedures, skills development, and labour relation issues.

3.27 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
Introduction

The municipality has also managed to install and maintain backup system, VPN established, LAN restructured,
and Server room upgraded. ICT unit is responsible for running daily, weekly, monthly data and backups. It
ensures that municipal website is always functional and to provide user support. ICT unit ensures that network
is always available to all municipal applications such as Munsoft, emails, Collaborator, internet, payroll system
and leave system for efficient and effective service delivery. The unit also managed the VPN connections for
Managers and Directors as their duties are flexible so that they can be able to always access municipal server
when they are out of the office. Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality has ICT unit in place with the total number
of 02 officials. ICT unit is responsible for running daily, weekly, monthly data and backups. It ensures that
municipal website is always functional and to provide user support.

Information Communication Technology ICT) services is best positioned to promote effective administration in
order to achieve service delivery targets and ultimately have an impact on sacio economic development, It is
therefore integral to the functionality and efficiency of the Municipality. The target for the reporting period
was to achieve improved ICT systems, processes and compliant infrastructure. Service delivery priorities for
ICT are to ensure that the municipality has efficient and effective backup systems, officials are trained on ICT
and all municipal sites are connected through internet. The municipality have the printing services which is
extended to satellite Offices on operation lease for 36-month period to provide printing and photocopier
service.

3.28 PROPERTY, LEGAL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND PROCUREMENT SERVICES

For the year under review, the municipality was engaged in numerous litigation matters, varying from disputes
about the implementation of the municipal rebates, irregular appointment, water treatment and sewer issues,
judicial review of an appointment, civil recovery and claim for damages.

The municipality had a total of eight (8) High Court matters in the financial year under review. Seven (5) were
against the municipality and one (3) was instituted by the municipality against third parties.
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One matter involving the sale of the remaining erven at Extension 6 was concluded on the 11" of June 2024 at
the High Court sitting in Polokwane.

All these matters are in the High Court except one (Recovery of monies paid over to a Contractor) that is in the
Regional Court. All these matters are sub judice.

COMPONENT I: ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

Performance on National Performance Indicators

The following table indicate the municipality’s performance in terms of the National Key Performance
Indicators required in terms of the Local Government: Municipal Planning and the Performance Management
Regulations of 2001 and section 43 of the MSA. These key performance indicators were linked to the National
Key Performance Areas.

This component includes the Annual Performance Scorecard Report for the current year as reflected below.
The section contains a comprehensive breakdown of the individual Departmental performance. The scores
highlight the progress with respect to performance not only at a departmental level, but also represents the
progress made within each Key Performance Area (KPA).

Comparison Institutional Performance Levels 2021/2022 — 2023/2024
Table 45: Institutional Performance Comparison
The following section contains a comprehensive breakdown of the individual Departmental performance. The

scores highlight the progress with respect to performance not only at a departmental level, but also represents
the progress made within each Key Performance Area (KPA).

Annual Performance Targets | Annual Performance Targets | Annual Performance Targets for 2023/2024
Kp ~for 2021/2022 FY for 2022/2023 FY _ FY
s KPA Total | Target % Total | Targets | % Total Targets | Targets %
NG KPI's s Target KPl’s Achieve | Target KPI's Achieve Not _T_a'rget
Assesse | Achiev | Achieve | Assesse d Achleve Rvescend d Achieve | Achieve
! d ed d d d d d
i | Spawel 08 05 63% 11 10 91% 12 07 05 58%
Rationale
Basic Service
Delivery and
2 Infrastructur 58 44 76% 48 35 73% 41 35 06 85%
e
Development
Local
3 Economic 13 11 85% 15 14 93% 15 14 01 93%
Development
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Municipal
Transformati
4 | onand 25 34 97% 28 22 79% 32 30 02 94%
Institutional
Development
Municipal
g [ Fhticial 18 18 | 100% 16 16 100% 17 17 0 100%
Viability and
Management
Good
g | Soernance 56 46 82% 47 42 89% 48 43 05 90%
and Public
Participation
TOTAL 188 158 84% 165 139 84% 165 146 19 88%
Table 46: Individual Departmental performance
. Annual Performance Targets for 2023/2024 FY
No | Department Total KPI's Targets Targets Not | % Target
Assessed Achieved Achieved Achieved
1 Budget & Treasury Services 17 17 0 100%
2 Office of the Municipal Manager 43 40 03 93%
3 Corporate Services 29 26 03 90%
4 Community Services 23 20 03 87%
5 Infrastructure Services 26 22 04 85%
b Planning & Economic Development 27 21 06 78%
TOTAL 165 146 19 88%
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CHAPTER 4 - HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

COMPONENT A: INTRODUCTION TO THE MUNICIPAL PERSONNEL

Human resource services for the municipality are effective and efficient, and meet the expectations of the
community at large. Human resources have the following service delivery priorities:

e Attracting skilled workforce

e Ensuring that the workforce is motivated to perform the required tasks
e  Continuous capacity building of personnel

e Retaining the existing staff

e Employees Assistance programme

e Employees Occupational Health and Safety

e  Sound labour relations

4.1 EMPLOYEE TOTALS, TURNOVER AND VACANCIES

The tables below depict the number of vacant positions within the whole municipality divided by the total
number of positions within the whole municipality multiplied by 100 equals your vacancy rate.

Table 47: Employee totals, turnover and vacancies
" Des ription :

Municipal Manager’s Office 35 26 9 74%
Infrastructure Services 74 58 16 78%
Budget and Treasury Services 33 26 7 79%
Planning & Economic Development Services 11 9 2 82%
Community Services 123 82 41 67%
Corporate Services 51 38 13 75%
Totals 327 239 88 73%
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COMPONENT B: MANAGING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE

The municipality has established policies and procedures for the management of workforce. It has the following
divisions that ensure that employee rights and needs are being met through appropriate and legitimate
processes and systems. Compliance is achieved in terms of approved municipal policies and procedures which

are in line with the SALGA Collective agreement and relevant national legislation.

The Municipality has also developed systems in terms of MSA 2000 S67 by developing an Employment Equity
Plan (EEP) which has been reviewed for the next five years (2023-2027). The old EEP targets were not achieved
as planned because of lack of proper monitoring and supervision of the plan, however, a reviewed EEP has

been developed for five years which is adopted by the Council.

4.2 POLICIES

The municipality has developed numerous policies as a guideline to all officials. The following policies are in

place:

Table 48: Approved and reviewed policies

......

FNUMBber

Roalicy Name

1 Credit Control & Debt Yes 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Collection palicy

2 Tariffs and Rates policy 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Yes

4 Property Rates policy 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Yes

5 Asset Management policy 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Yes

6 Supply chain policy 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Yes

7 Virement policy 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Yes

8 Indigent policy 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Yes

BRI S ) Ea e
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27/05/2022

| 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5

9 ' Funding and Reserves policy
Yes
10 Budget policy 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Yes
13 Fleet Management policy 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Yes
14 Appointment of Consultant 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Policy Yes
15 Unknown Direct Deposit 27/05/2022 17/17/5/1 & 17/17/5
Policy Yes
17 Acting Allowance Policy 22/05/2024 ESC/03/2024
Yes
18 Travel and Subsistence policy 22/05/2024
Yes ESC/03/2024
19 Transport Allowance Policy 22/05/2024
Yes ESC/03/2024
20 Overtime, standby and 22/05/2024
emergency work policy Yes ESC/03/2024
21 Recruitment, Selection and 22/05/2024
Appointment Policy Yes ESC/03/2024
22 Cellphone and Mobile Data 22/05/2024
allowance Policy Yes ESC/03/2024
23 Training and Development 22/05/2024
Policy Yes ESC/03/2024
24 Dress Code in the Workplace 22/05/2024
Policy Yes ESC/03/2024
25 Attendance and Punctuality 22/05/2024
Policy Yes ESC/03/2024
26 Cellphone and Mobile Data 22/05/2024
Policy for Senior Managers Yes ESC/03/2024
and Councillors
27 Leave administration Palicy 22/05/2024
Yes ESC/03/2024
TR N e o R et A N
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28 Incapacity due to ill health 22/05/2024

Yes ESC/03/2024
29 Sexual Harassment Policy 22/05/2024

Yes ESC/03/2024
30 Bursary Policy for Employees 22/05/2024

Yes ESC/03/2024

|4.3 INJURIES, SICKNESS AND SUSPENSIONS

e  One (01) official was suspended from duty for misconduct during the year under review.
. None of our employees were dismissed from duty for misconduct during the year under review.
e  Nine (09) injuries were reported on duty and the incidents were reported to the Department of Labour.

Table 49: Injuries, sickness and suspensions

" Numbenand Cost of Injuries onl DUty
|
|

FUSIinginjury

vpe ofiinjury [ Injury: EmploVess \ R jury
|I.
1
|

Required basic medical 16 (1) 2days
attention only 2 3.64% (2) 2days
(3) 4days
(4) 2days
(5) 1day R0.00
(6) 1day
{(7) 1day
(8) 2 days
(9) 1day
Temporary total 0
disablement 0 0% 0 2
Permanent disablement 0 0
0 0% 0
Fatal 0 0
0 0% 0
e e e
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Total 15
8 0% 15 R0.00

4.4 PERFORMANCE REWARDS

The municipality conducted the 2022/2023 annual performance assessment and 2023/2024 Mid-year
performance assessments for Municipal Manager and all Directors who signed the performance agreement
with the municipality, and no one qualified for bonuses.

The mid-year assessment is the measure taken by municipality in improving performance because through the
session Directors are offered an opportunity to state their challenges and they are assisted by panel members
as to how they can overcome those challenges and be able to achieve their target by the end of the financial
year.

In the 2022/2023 financial years, anly three senior managers qualified for performance reviews based on the

fact that they have been engaged with the municipality for more than six (6) months during the period under
review. The senior managers are indicated below:

e Director Corporate services: Rampedi M.R.
e Director Community services: Maphutha-Mashaba M.Y.

e Director Planning & Economic Development services: Tjebane T.

In the 2023/2024 financial years, only five senior managers qualified for performance reviews based on the
fact that they have been engaged with the municipality for less than six (6) months during the period under
review. The senior managers are indicated below:

e Municipal Manager: Moropa M.E.

e  Chief Financial Officer: Medisane T.T.

e Director Corporate services: Rampedi M.R.

¢ Director Community services: Maphutha-Mashaba M.Y,

e Director Planning & Economic Development services: Tjebane T.
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COMPONENT C: CAPACITATING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE

4.5 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Workplace Skills Plan (WSP)

The municipality has a Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) that is utilised for capacity building of staff.

Each department is requested to forward their training plans to corporate services in May each year, in order
to be included in the WSP - which serves as a guide as to how many officials should undergo training in the
next financial year. The plan is also used to determine the expenditure for training. For the year under review
56 employees received different training. The WSP and annual training report were submitted to LGSETA at

the end of the financial year. Municipality spent R1 600 000.00 on employees training.

Table 50: Training for officials

TR i | 3 . clrIAl G T AT '
" PBROGRAMME | NOL OF OFFICIALS STATUS®

Training Committee Induction | 06 Completed
SCM BID Committees Workshop 10 Completed
Performance Management & Development System (PMDS) | 01 Completed
Workshop

Supply Chain Management Workshop 01 Completed
SMDP NQF 4 03 Completed
BID Committees 02 Completed
Municipal Leaders Media & Stakeholder Engagement (MSEP) 01 Completed
Municipal Staff Regulations (MSR) Workshop 15 Completed
Women Empowerment Leadership Programme 03 Completed
Cascading of performance management to officials 50 Completed
Total 89
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Table 51: Training for Councillors

Municipal Leaders Media & Stakeholder Engagement (MSEP) 06 Completed
Basic Computing 03 Completed
Policy Conference 29 Completed
Total 38

COMPONENT D: MANAGING THE WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE

4.6 EMPLOYEE EXPENDITURE

The municipality manages its workforce expenditure very well, as we have palicies in place such as Standby
and overtime policies, travelling allowance policies, cellphone allowance policy that are complied with before
any expenditure can be incurred. The municipality has the organisational structure that is aligned to the IDP
and budget, to ensure that all workforce expenditure has been budgeted for. The three documents - IDP,
budget and organisational structure - are approved by council every year.
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CHAPTER 5: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Introduction

The Municipality handed over the annual financial statements to the Auditor General Limpopo, as per the
Municipal Finance Management Act, on 30 August 2023 for the financial year 2023/2024.The aforesald
components of the financial statements discussed in detail below.

|5.1 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange

transactions

Sale of goods 684 000 (365 000) 319 000 96 500 (222 500) 1
Service charges 92 148000 (6367 000) 85781000 77046 160 (7 B34 840) 2
Rental of facilities and equipment 188 000 {97 000) 91 000 67 643 (23 367) 3
Agency fees 5828 000 7000 6835000 5 594 756 (240 248) 4
Other income 460 000 (6 000) 454 000 851 B45 397 845 5
Interest received 15 000 000 8000000 23000000 27 144 082 4 144 082 6
Total revenue from exchange 114 308 000 1172000 115480000 111 700986 (3779 015)
transactions

Revenue from non-exchange

transactions

Taxation revenue

Property rates 50 000 000 (586 000) 49416000 55328009 5913 009 7
Baslc Electricity Levy - - - 11692930 11692930 2
Interest on outstanding 8862000 6162000 15024000 11156236 (3867 764) 8
receivable balances

Transfer revenue

Govemnment grants & subsidies 202 460 000 343000 202793000 242769959 39976959 9
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 207 000 (87 000) 120 000 453 296 333 296 10
Total revenue from non- 261 519 000 5833000 267352000 321400430 54 048 430
exchange transactions

Total revenue 376 827 000 7006000 382832000 433101416 50 269 415
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Expenditure

Employee related costs (113248000) 2672000 (110676000) (108962225) 1713775 1
Remuneration of councillors {16 874 000) 1894 000 (14980000) (15050671) (70 571) 12
Repairs and Maintenance (23560 000) (3137 000) (26706000) (19173047) 7832953 13
Depreciation and amortisation (50128 000) (13412000) (63 540000) (652410051) 1129948 14
Finance costs (2 094 000) (706 000) (2800000) (8pES52108) (5852 108) 16
Operating Lease Expense (1819 568) - (1819668) (1626783) 192 786 16
Debt Impairment (12339000) (3682000) (16021000) (10153 760) 5867 240 17
Impairment of Assets - - . (1620606) (1620 608) 14
Bulk purchases (50 000 000) - (60000000) (56886156) (6886 166) 18
Contracted Services (43961000) 1819000 (42142000) (35234690) 6907 410 19
Grants and Subsidies (2 989 490) - (2989 490) (12870282) (9880 792) 20
General Expenses (58 643 942) (7413000) (66056942) (57025397) 9031646 21
Total expenditure (376 666 000) (22 065 000) (397 731 000) (389 665576) 8 065424
Operating surplus 161000 (15060000) (14899000) 43436839 58 334 830

Profit / (Loss) on disposal of - - - (1126039) (1126 039) 22
fixed assets

Fair value adjustments - - . 2 105 730 2105 730 23
Actuarial gainsflosses . v - (3949076) (3949076) 231

: - - (2969386) (2 969 386)

Property rates

The aoriginal budget of property rates for 2023/2024 financial year was R49 million. The actual revenue
generated was R55 million mainly as a results of continuous data cleansing.

Service charges

The service charges for electricity and refuse removal original budget was R92 million, which was adjusted to
R85 Million. The actual revenue collected was R77 Million. Most This could be attributed to most of household
now utilizing alternative energy such as Solar Pannels and Gus due to Load shedding.

Interest received.

The original budget for interest received was R15 million which was adjusted to R23 million. The actual interest
received was R27 million.

Transfer recognized — operational.

This is revenue realized from both conditional and unconditional operating grants and subsidies including
equitable share. All the operating grants were fully spent.

Transfer recognized — Capital.

This is revenue realized from MIG grant. The original budget amounted to R39 Million which was adjusted to
R36 million. There was 100% spent of MIG Grant.

EPHRAIM MOGALE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 2023/2024 DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT

83



Comments on Financial Performance: Expenditure
Employee related cost

The original budget for employee costs was R113 million, and it was adjusted downwards to R110 million. The
actual expenditure incurred is R 108 million and this resulted in a saving of R1.7 million mainly because of
vacant positions which were not filled in 2023/2024 Financial year.

Depreciation and asset impairment

Provision was made in the budget for capital asset depreciation and impairment and the budget thereof was
R50 Million, it was adjusted to R63 Million.

Bulk purchases

The major portion of this line item was mainly for the purchase of electricity. The original budget thereof was
RS0 Million. The actual expenditure incurred was R56 Million and this resulted in a variance of R6 Million.

General expenditure

The original budget was R58 Million, and it was adjusted upward to R 66 million and the actual expenditure
incurred was R57 Million and this resulted in a favorable variance of R9 million.

[ 5.2 GRANTS
Description | Final Budget | YTD Actual
Equitable share R191533000]  R191533000
MIG R3 100 000 R3 100 000
EEDMS R2 560 000 R2 560 000
FMG R5 600 000 R5 600 000
R202793000)  R202793 000

Comment on Operating Transfers and Grants

All grants gazetted for 2023/2024 financial year were received. The total amount received on operational
grants amounted to R202 million during the 2023/2024 financial year.

The municipality managed to spend 100% of MIG and all other Operational Grant.
Comment on Conditional Grants and Grants Received from Other Sources

No grants were received from other sources.
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5.3 ASSET MANAGEMENT

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved  Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 38 962 000 (171000) 38791000 35694 142 (2 096 868) 24
Recelvables from exchange 23732000  (1368000) 22364000 4 (22 363 996) 25
transactions
Recelvables from non-exchange 61 241 000 379000 61620000 4080586 (67 630 414) 26
transactions
VAT receivable 89 359 000 - 89359000 380943 (88978 057) 27
Consumer debtors 20 504 000 - 20604000 8461207 67957 207 28
Cash and cash equivalents 240 147 000 3007000 243164000 350462684 116308 684 29

473 945 000 1847000 475792000 489088566 13 296 566

Non-Current Assets

Investment property 139 618 000 - 139618000 74377561 (65240 439) 30
Property, plant and equipment 963 563000 (19 457 000) 944 106 000 876 397 101 (67 708 899) 31
Intangible assets 23 000 . 23 000 5 (23 000) a2
Heritage assets 157 000 . 167 000 191 160 34 180 a3
Eskom Deposits - . - 1861591 1 861 591 34

1103361000 (19457 000)1 083 904 000 962 827 416 (131 076 685)
Total Assets 15677 306 000 (17 610 000)1 669 696 000 14419156981 (117 780 019)

Comment on Asset Management:

The asset register value for 2023/2024 was budgeted for R1.5 billion. The value of the municipal assets is R1.4
billion.

r5.4 FINANCIAL RATIO’S
Graph 1: Liquidity ratio

Liquidity Ratio — Measures the municipality’s ability to pay its bills and is calculated by dividing the monetary
assets by the municipality’s current liabilities. A higher ratio is better.
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Graph 2: Outstanding Debtors to revenue

Outstanding Service Debtors to Revenue - Measures how much money is still owed by the community for
electricity, waste removal and other services, compared to how much money has been paid for these services.
It is calculated by dividing the total outstanding debtors by the total annual revenue. A lower score is better.

Qutstanding Debtors Revenue
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Graph 3: Employee cost

Employee related cost ratio measures what portion of revenue was spent on paying employee costs. It is
calculated by dividing the total employee cost by the difference between total revenue and capital revenue.

Employee Related Cost
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Graph 4: Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and Maintenance - This represents the proportion of operating expenditure spent and is calculated by
dividing the total repairs and maintenance by total revenue excluding capital revenue.
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Comment on Financial Ratios:

The municipality is in a process of improving its ability to spend the 8% threshold of operating expenditure for
repairs and maintenance. Liquidity will also improve as the municipality has placed stringent internal controls
over unnecessary expenditure, to improve the cash flow situation.

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET

5.5 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Introduction

Capital expenditure relates mainly to construction of projects that will have value lasting over many years.
Capital expenditure is funded from grants and own revenue. Component B deals with capital spending,
indicating where the funding comes from and whether the Municipality is able to spend the available funding
as planned. In this component, it is important to indicate the different sources of funding as well as how these
funds are spent.

Graph 5: Capital Expenditure 2022/2023
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5.6 SOURCE OF FINANCE

Comment on Sources of Funding:

The capital budget for 2023/2024 financial year was funded from Municipal Infrastructure Grant and Internal
Funding.

5.7 CAPITAL SPENDING ON LARGEST PROJECTS

Annual Budget Adjustment Budget
Description 2023/2024 2023/2024 YTD Actual
Rathoke Internal Street R6 208689 R6 208 689 R6 208 689
Uitvlught Internal Bus Route W R15034 481 R15034 481 R15034 481
Morarela Internal Road R13542 131 R13542 131 R13542 131
R34 785 301 R34 785 301 R34 785301

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS

Introduction

The cash flow cutcome presents the actual revenue and actual payments made during the year under review.
Actual revenue realized should be differentiated from revenue billed because revenue billed does not partray
the holistic financial position and performance of the municipality.

As a result, the cash flow outcome is presented on a cash basis as opposed accrual basis of accounting.

5.8 CASH FLOW
Comment on Cash-Flow Outcomes:

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the financial year was R318 million. The actual cash and cash
equivalent as at end of the financial year 2024 is R359 million.

Cognizance should be taken that the municipality is still dependent on grants since a major portion of revenue
realized is made up of Transfer recognized (both operating and capital).

5.10 BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS

Municipality
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WVitnicipalilotal

Long-term loans (annuity/reducing balance) N/A N/A N/A
Long-term loans (non-annuity) N/A N/A N/A
Local registered stock N/A N/A N/A
Instalment credit N/A N/A N/A
Financial leases N/A 592 7619
PPP liabilities N/A N/A N/A
Finance granted by cap equipment supplier N/A N/A N/A
Marketable bonds N/A N/A N/A
Non-marketable bonds N/A N/A N/A
Bankers' acceptances N/A N/A N/A
Financial derivatives N/A N/A N/A
Other securities N/A N/A N/A

Municipal Entities N/A N/A N/A
Long-term Loans (annuity/reducing balance) N/A N/A N/A
Long-term Loans {non-annuity) N/A N/A N/A
Local registered stock N/A N/A N/A
Instalment credit N/A N/A N/A
Financial leases N/A N/A N/A
PPP liabilities N/A N/A N/A
Finance granted by cap equipment supplier N/A N/A N/A
Marketable bonds N/A N/A N/A
Non-Marketable bonds N/A N/A N/A
SSES BEE S S EE
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Bankers” acceptances N/A N/A N/A
Financial derivatives N/A N/A N/A
Other Securities N/A N/A N/A

Municipality

Securities - national government - - -

Listed corporate bonds - = =

Deposits —bank - - -

Deposits -public investment commissioners - = =

Deposits -corporation for public deposits = = =

Bankers ‘acceptance certificates - - _

Negotiable certificates of deposit — Banks = = =

Guaranteed endowment policies (sinking) - - -

Repurchase agreements — Banks - - -

Municipal bonds - - _

Other - - -

Municipal Entities

Securities - National government - = &
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Listed corporate bonds - - =

Deposits — Bank = = =

Deposits - Public Investment Commissioners = - =

Deposits - Corporation for Public Deposits - - -

Bankers’ acceptance certificates = - -

Negotiable certificates of deposit- Banks - = -

Guaranteed endowment policies (sinking) - - -

Repurchase agreements — Banks - - -

Municipal bonds - = _

Other - -

Entities Sub-Total - L .y

Consolidated Total: 0 0 0

Comment on Borrowing and Investments:

5.11 PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS

Not applicable

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS

5.12 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The SCM Policy was reviewed during the 2023/2024 financial year. Certain amendments to the SCM Policy
were tabled before Council to improve operational efficiency.

The Municipality is required to forward its SCM Palicy to the Limpopo Provincial Treasury on an annual basis
for scrutiny and compliance verifications against the Model SCM Policy that was issued by the National
Treasury.
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The purpose of this exercise is to determine whether the Municipal SCM Policy deviates from the stipulations
of the SCM regulations. Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality SCM Policy complies with the regulatory
framewaork.

The SCM function cuts across all departments. Although governance is at its core, supply chain management
plays a vital role in contributing towards service delivery in a manner that is fair, equitable, transparent,
competitive, and cost-effective.

The Municipality applies the bid committee system for procurement above R 200,000 and for the procurement
of long-term contracts.

The bid committees, namely the Bid Specification Committee, the Bid Evaluation Committee and the Bid
Adjudication Committee are all functioning effectively.

The bid committee members are appointed by the Municipal Manager in line with the relevant legislation.

The Municipality approved the planned capital projects through a procurement plan document which was also
send to provincial treasury. The Procurement plan had 44 planned capital projects which amounted to R
78 408 990.00. the total project amount composed R 37 424 290.00 from Grants and R 41 984 700.00 from
Own funding. The implementation of the plan was as follows

Item Number of Projects | Project implementation status quo

1 08 8 of the 44 projects were re-advertised by the end of the financial year

2 10 10 out of the 44 projects were not initiated for procurement however
reprioritized during budget adjustment to other projects

3 16 16 out of the 44 projects were appointed as planned

4 10 Ten out of the 44 projects where part of the contracted services (e.g.
Multiyear Projects)

5.13 GRAP COMPLIANCE

The Municipality has fully implemented the Standards of GRAP (Generally Recognized Accounting Practice) in
accordance with the MFMA and Directive 5 issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and did not deviate
from the standards. The adoption of the standards and interpretation thereof did not have a significant impact
on the financial position, financial performance or cash flows of the municipality.
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CHAPTER 6: AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT

Introduction

The municipality received an Unqualified Audit Opinion with findings from the Office of the Auditor General
with respect to 2023/2024.

COMPONENT A: AUDITOR GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA’S OPINION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.1 AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT 2023/2024

Refer attached report from the office of the Auditor General for the 2023/2024 financial year ended 30 June
2024.
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GLOSSARY.

AdegUacyindicator

AnnualiRepoary

Avproved Bludset

Explore whether the intended beneficiaries are able to access services or outputs.

Documents used by executive authorities to give “full and regular” reports on the
matters under their control to Parliament and provincial legislatures as
prescribed by the Constitution. This includes plans, budgets, in-year and Annual
Reports.

The processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the desired
outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe "what we do".

The quantity of input or output relative to the need or demand.

A report to be prepared and submitted annually based on the regulations set out
in Section 121 of the Municipal Finance Management Act. Such a report must
include annual financial statements as submitted to and approved by the Auditor-
General.

The annual financial statements of a municipality as audited by the Auditor
General and approved by council or a provincial or national executive.

Current level of performance that a municipality aims to improve when setting
performance targets. The baseline relates to the level of performance recorded
in a year prior to the planning period.

A municipal service that is necessary to ensure an acceptable and reasonable
guality of life for citizens within that particular area. If not provided it may
endanger the public health and safety or the environment.

The financial year for which an annual budget is to be approved — means a year
ending on 30 June.

The overall cost or expenditure of producing a specified quantity of outputs.

The distribution of capacity to deliver services.

Includes at least a statement of financial position, statement of financial
performance, cash-flow statement, notes to these statements and any other
statements that may be prescribed.
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After consultation with MECs for local government, the Minister may prescribe
general key performance indicators that are appropriate and applicable to local
government generally.

The results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing poverty and creating
jobs.

All the resources that contribute to the production and delivery of outputs. Inputs
are "what we use to do the work". They include finances, personnel, equipment
and buildings.

Set out municipal goals and development plans.

e  Service delivery & infrastructure

e Economic development

e  Municipal transformation and institutional development
e  Financial viability and management

e Good governance and community participation

The medium-term results for specific beneficiaries are the consequence of
achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly to an institution's
strategic goals and objectives set out in its plans. Outcomes are "what we wish to
achieve",

The final products, or goods and services produced for delivery. Outputs may be
defined as "what we produce or deliver". An output is a concrete achievement
(i.e. a product such as a passport, an action such as a presentation or
immunization, or a service such as processing an application) that contributes to
the achievement of a Key Result Area.

Indicators should be specified to measure performance in relation to input,
activities, outputs, outcomes and impacts. An indicator is a type of information
used to gauge the extent to which an output has been achieved (policy
developed, presentation delivered, service rendered)

Generic term for non-financial information about municipal services and
activities. Can also be used interchangeably with performance measure.

The minimum acceptable level of performance or the level of performance that
is generally accepted. Standards are informed by legislative requirements and
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service-level agreements. Performance standards are mutually agreed criteria to
describe how well work must be done in terms of quantity and/or quality and
timeliness, to clarify the outputs and related activities of a job by describing what
the required result should be. In this EPMDS performance standards are divided
into indicators and the time factor.

The level of performance that municipalities and their employees strive to
achieve. Performance Targets relate to current baselines and express a specific
level of performance that a municipality aims to achieve within a given time
period.

Detailed plan approved by the mayor for implementing the municipality’s
delivery of services; including projections of the revenue collected and
operational and capital expenditure by vote for each month. Service delivery
targets and performance indicators must also be included.

One of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is divided for
appropriation of money for the different departments or functional areas of the
municipality. The Vote specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the
purpose of a specific department or functional area.

Section 1 of the MFMA defines a “vote” as:

a) one of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is divided for
the appropriation of money for the different departments or functional areas of
the municipality; and

b) which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the purposes of the
department or functional area concerned
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1. Foreword

The purpose of this report is to give feedback regarding the perfarmance of the Ephraim
Mogale Lacal Municipality as required through The Municipal Systems Act No 32 of 2000,
section 41(e) and the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003, section 52(d). The
information Included in this report is based on the 1DP! and SDBIP? as developed for the
financial year 2023/2024. The scorecards were developed to reflect cumuiative
performance; therefore, the status of indicators is a reflection of the overall performance
level achieved year to date.

2. Executive Summary

This report serves as the Annual Performance Report for the 2023/2024 financial year
ending 30% of June 2024. It provides feedback on the performance level achieved
{accumulative reporting) against the targets as laid out in the IDP/SDBIP Scorecard. In the
case of under-performance, the respective concerns or mitigating reasons are highlighted
and detail pertaining to the relevant measures taken to address these challenges are
included thereto,

The overall performance for the Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality is based on a
composite Performance Scorecard of each Department comprising of all indicators
assessed In the period under review. The overall Fourth Quarter Institutional performance
achieved for the 2023/2024 financial year reflected an 88% with only 146 out of 165 KPI's
assessed attaining set targets.

Improvement performance levels were experienced in four key performance areas as
depicted in the Table Ref Nol except key performance areas & which has dropped by 1 %
and 2 which shows a stagnant performance. The departments need to take responsibility
and accountability for service delivery and related activities measured in the performance
reports, as this is a public document and reflects negatively on the municipality’s
commitment to service delivery. We need to instil a culture of accountability in the
organisation and significantly improve the levels of monitoring and evaluation which are a
prerequisite to ensure responsible management decisions can be taken.

! [nteqraled Development Plan
2 Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
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3. Key Performance Areas and Organizational Strategic Objectives

The following Key Performance Areas and Strategic Objectives have been adopted by the
municipality for the purposes of reporting on the attainment of the Institutional
performance indicators and targets

#PA 1: Spatial Development Analysis and Rationale

Strategic Objective: Plan for the future and promote integrated human settlement and
agrarian reform

KPA 2: Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development

Strategic Ohjective A: Improve community well-being through provision of accelerated
basic service delivery

Strategic Objective B; Improved sacial well-heing

KPA 3: Local Economic Development

Strategic Objective A: Grow the economy and provide livelihood support
KPA 4: Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development
Strategic Objective A: Develop and retain skilled and capacitated workforce
KPA 5: Municipal Financlal viability and Management

Strategic Objective: Become Financially Viable

KPA 6: Good Governance and Public Participation

Strategic Objective: Sound Governance through effective oversight
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Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
Published 31 August 2024



Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality

(Registration number LIM 471)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

General Information

Legal form of entity

Nature of business and principal activities

Council

Mayor

Speaker

Chief Whip
Traditional Leaders

Councillors

Grading of local authority
Capacity of loca! autherity

South African Category C Municipality (Local Municipality) as defined
by the Municipal Structures Act. (Act no 117 of 1898)

Provision of basic services in lerms of Local Municipality function as
defined by the Municipal Structures Act. (Act no 117 of 1998) "

Clir Moimana GMH

Clir Lentsoane R

Clir Magane L
Kgoshi-Lehwelele-Matlala M
Kgoshi Matiala RD

Kgoshi Rahlagane MP

Kgoshi Kekana MF

Clir Moimana GMH{Mayor)
Clir Lentsoane R{Speaker)
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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The Accounting Officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act 56 of 2003), to mainiain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the Annual Financial Statements and related financial
information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the Accounting Officer to ensure that the Annual Financial
Statements fairly present the slate of affairs of the Municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent epinion on
the Annual Financial Statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The Annual Financial Statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.

The Accounting Officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the Municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Accounting
Officer to meet these responsibilities, the Accounting Officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of
error or deficit in @ cosl-effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the Municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the Municipality's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the Municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitering all known
forms of risk across the Municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Municipality endeavours 1o minimise it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, contrals, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints,

The Accounting Officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the Annual
Financial Statements. However, any system of intemnal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The Accounting Cfficer has reviewed the Municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2025 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the Municipality has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for auditing and reporting on the Municipality's Annual Financial Statements, The Annual
Financial Statements have been examined by the Municipality's extemal auditors and their report is presented as part of these
financial statements.

It is certified in the accounting officer's report that the salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors, loans made to
Coundillors, if any, and payments made to Councillors for loss of office, if any, as disclosed in notes to these annual financial
statements are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the
Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and Local Government's determination in accordance
with thig Act.

The Annual Financial Staiements set out on pages 9 to 102 which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the Accounting Officer on 31 August 2024 and were signed by:

Moropa M E
Accounting Officer

Saturday, 31 August 2024
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Audit Committee Report

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND PERFORTMANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

The report herein provides the year-end report for the Audit and Performance Committee (herein referred as “the Audit
Committee") as of 30 June 2024.

BACKGROUND AND STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

The purpose of this report is to communicate to the council the audit committee's progress in carmying out its ovarsight
rasponsibilities in terms of section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act Ne. 56 of 2003, as amended)
{(MFMA), read with circular 65 published by the National Treasury for the year ended 30 June 2024.

The audit committee was established in terms of section 166 of ihe MFMA which requires every municipality to establish an
independent audit committea, which musi advise the municipal council, political office bearers, accounting officer and
management staff of the municipality as well as the accounting officer and the management staff of the municipal entity, on
matters relating to internal financial controls and internal audits, risk management, accounting policies, the adequacy,
reliability and accuracy of financial reporting and information, performance management, effective govemance, compliance
with the MFMA, the annual Division of Revenue Act (DoRA) and any other applicable legislation, and any otherissues
referred to it by the municipality.

The audit committee has adopted its terms of reference (Audit and Performance Commitiee Charter) which is regularly

reviewed and approved by the council. The audit committee is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 30
June 2024

AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

The audit commiltee comprises of five members, including the chairperson, Mr. LM Malapela. in tarms of section 166{4}(b) of
the MFMA, the audit commitlee must meet at least four times a year. During the financial year ended 30 June 2024, the audit
commitiea met eleven {11) times. The table below shows the attendance of these meetings.

NAME OF THE(|POSITON DATE OF |QUALIFICATIONS ORDINARY SPECIAL
MEMBER APPOINTMENT MEETINGS MEETINGS
Mr. LM |Chairperson Q1 November 2020 CFE-Certified Fraud |4 7

Malapela Examiner

ClA-Certified Internal
Auditor

CCSA-Cerlification in
Control Self Asgessment
Master of Philosophy
(MPhil: Internal Auditing)

Post Graduate Diploma:
Internal Auditing

BTech-Internal Auditing

National Biploma
Internal Auditing
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Audit Committee Report

NAME OF THE
MEMBER

POSITON

DATE
APPOINTMENT

OF

QUALIFICATIONS

ORDINARY
MEETINGS

SPECIAL
MEETINGS

Adv. GT Moeng

Member

01 November 2020

Master of Business

Leadership

Post Graduate
Programme in Executive
Development

Advance Management
Development
Programme

L.L.B Degree

B. Juris Degree

4

7

Mr. ML
Molowena

Membher

01 November 2020

Certificate in Municipal
Finance

Certificate in Real Estate
Articles of Training

BCom Accounting

Mr. VK Chuene

Member

{01 November 2020

Municipal Financial

Development

Managing Integrated
Development for Service
Delivery

B-tech in
Auditing

Internal

National Diploma in
Internal Audiling

2

Mr. MA.
Mmapheto

Member

01 November 2020

National Diploma in
Internal Auditing

B Tech: Internal Audit,
Post Graduate Diploma:
internal Audit

Members of the audit committee held meetings with the municipal manager as the accounting officer, senior management of
the municipality, the internal audit function, and the external auditors, collectively, on matters related lo governance, internal
conlral, and risk in the municipality, throughout the reporling period. The committee also held a meeting with the henourable
mayor and reperted to council on governance, internal control, risk, performance and financial information and other relevant
malters concerning the municipality. The Chief Audit Executive has unrestricted access to the chairperson of the audit

commiltee

DISCHARGE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPCNSIBILITIES

REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

One of the primary responsibilities of the Audit Committes is the review and evaluation of the Annual Financial Statements. The
committee reviewed the 2023/24 Annual Financial Siatements prior to submission to the Auditor General South Africa on 31

August 2024,
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Audit Committee Report

These Annual Finaricial Statements are prepared by management in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally
Recognized Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and in the manner required by the Local Government: Municipal
Finance Managament Act of South Africa, 2003 {Act No 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa,
2009 (Act No 12 of 2009) (DORA). :

The committee reviewed the guarterly financial reports issued to council during the financial year and continues to provide
oversight over the financial controls in preparation of the annual financial statements. Management is responsible for the
preparation of the annual financial statement and should continue 1o sirengthen the controls to ensure that they are prepared in
accordance with the applicable accounting frameworks and are frea from misstalements and errors

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Accounting Officer is obliged, in terms of section 165 of the MFMA, to ensure that the municipality has a system of internal
audit under the control and direction of the audit committee. The internal Audit function of Ephraim Local Municipality is
established in the Office of the Municipal Manager, and it discharges its mandate in terms of the approved Internal Audit
Charter.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed and approved the internal audit charter, risk based internal audit plan, internal
audit methodology, project audit reports and the quarterly internal audit reports to the audit committee.

internal Audit implemented all the planned assurance engagements for the 2023124 financial year, The internal audit function
found that the control environment was effective; however, some specific control weaknesses we identified on audit of

performance information,supply chain management and project management, for which recommendations were made for
improvement.

The Audit Commitiee i$ satisfied that the internal audit function has properly discharged its functions and responsibilities during
the year under review. The audit committee is however concerned with the external quality assurance review that was not
performed, the external assessment is required to be performed at least every five years by an independent reviewer or review
team to maintain conformance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

In line with section 62 (c) (i) of the MFMA, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee and Management with reasonable
assurance that the intemnal controls are adequate and effective. This is achieved by an approved risk-based internal audit plan,
internal Audit assessing the adequacy of controls mitigating the risks and the Audit Committee monitoring implementation of
corrective actions.

The Audit Committee has considerad the work performed by (nternal Audit on a quarterly basis and has reviewed the findings
by the Auditor-General South Africa on internal controls for the year ended 30 June 2024.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The audit committee is responsible for the oversight of the risk management function. The risk management committee i8
established and reports to the audit committee on its aciivities in assisting the municipality with risk management. A member of
the audil committee currenily serves in the risk management committee as the independent chairperson and is appointed in
writing by the accounting officer.

The Municipality has an effective Risk Management Function that is headed by Risk Officer who reporis to the Municipal
Manager and the Risk Management Commitiee. The Audit Committee has reviewed ihe risk register and the guarlerly reports
from the Risk Management Committee

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

The audit committee has reviewed and considered the in-year performance reports and performance results reported by
management in the quarterly and mid-term performance repors. Considerable improvements were noted in the effectiveness
of the processes and the guality of information reported; however, challenges are still experienced with the reliabilty of
information reported and the lack of portfolio of evidence to substantiate the reported performance.

The Audit GCommitteg is pleased that the internal audit function reviewed the guality of the performance targets and indicators
and reviewed the alignment of the 1DP, Budget and the SDBIP before final submission to council and continues to assist in
verifying the reported performance against the supporting evidence. The Audit Committee continues to monitor the
implementation of the municipal planned activities through the review of the quarterly performance reports and budget
implementation reports.
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Audit Committee Report

CONCLUSION

The audit committee acknowledged the co-operation and assistance by the Ephraim Magale Local Municipality for coordinating
the activities of the Commiltee. We also acknowledge the commitment of the Municipal Manager and Management of Ephraim
Mogale Local Municipality in strengthening corporale governance and in maintaining the unqualified audit opinion.

The Audit Committee further acknowledged the commitment of good governance led by the Honaourable Mayor and the Council
and further express gratitude to the Chief Audit Executive and for the support and commitment to the wark of the audit

committee,

Mr. LM Malapela
Chairperson of Audit and Performance Committee

Saturday, 31 August 2024
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Accounting Officer's Report

The Accounting Cfficer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2024,
1. Review of activities
Main business and operations

The operating results and state of affairs of the municipality are fully set out in the aitached Annual Financial Statements and
do not in our opinion require any further comment.

Net surplus of the municipality was R 40 466 454 (2023 surplus R 71 686 122) as restated. The municipality is engaged in
local governance activities, which includes planning and promotion of integrated development planning, fand, economic and
environmental development and delivery of municipal services to the community.

The operating results and state of affairs of the municipality are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and
fully elaborated in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts. The operating resuits and state of affairs of the
municipality are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and do not in our opinion require any further comment.
2. Gaing concern

The Annual Financial Statements have been preparad on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern is certain for the foreseeable medium-term revenue and
expenditure framework and medium-term budget periods as submitted to Nationat Treasury. The ability of the municipality to
continue as a going concern is certain for the foresseeable medium-lerm revenue and expenditure framework and medium-
term budget periods as submilted to the National Treasury.

3, Subsequent events

The accounting officer has not identified events after reporting date as in GRAP 14 guidelines.

4. Accounting policies

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accoeunting Practice (GRAP)
including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

5. Accounting Officer

The Accounting Officer of the Municipality during the year and to the date of this report is as follows:

Name Nationality Changes
Moropa ME South African Appointed Tuesday, 02 May 2023, to
date

8. Council, Mayor and Internal Audit

Councillors

The councillors retain full control over the municipality, its plans and strategy;

Acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance with internal policies, external laws and regulations, effective risk
manageient and performance measurement, transparency and effective communication bath internally and externally by the
municipality;

- is of a unitary structure comprising;

- Mayor

- Speaker
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Accounting Officer's Report

- Executive committee councillors, and

- Councillers.

Mayor

The roles of the Mayoer and Accounting Officer are separate, with responsibilities divided between them, so that no individual
has unfettered powers of discretion. The Council and Mayor performs their oversight role and duties in terms of the prescribed
legislation and delegated authorities

Internal Audit

The municipality had a Chief Audit Executive and a full time Internal Auditor for the year under review. The internal audit
operates under section 165 of the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act 56 of 2003) (MFMA).

10
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2024 2023
Restated®
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 10 36 694 142 36 704 040
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 485 4 089 586 1 457 457
VAT receivable 849 380943 1938 255
Consumer debtors from exchange transactions 6 31916802 27817979
Consumer debtors from non exchange transactions 6 56 544 405 45 722 509
Cash and cash equivalents 3 350 462 684 318 620 548
489 088 562 432 270 088
Non-Currant Assets
Investment property 11 74 377 561 72 292 561
Property, plant and equipment 12 B76 397 101 870 311 883
Heritage assefs 13 191 160 170 430
Eskom Deposits 7 1 861 591 12 950 925
952 827 413 955725799
Total Assets 1 441 915 975 1 387 995 887
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lzase obligation 54 B 649 743 7619435
Payables from exchange transactions 15 618818385 026064 955
Consumer deposits 16 1293 811 1342 905
Employee benefit obligation 19 999 950 573 893
Provisions 18 2 977 664 -
75803053 72201188
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease cbligation 54 8 652 691 17 602 435
Employee benefit obligation 19 25198 946 18 864 640
Provisions 18 41 346 666 20177 473
75496 303 65644 548
Total Liabilities 161 299 356 137 845 736

Net Assets

1290 616 619

1250 150 151

Reserves
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated surplus

149 510
1290 467 106

149 510
1 250 000 652

Total Net Assets

1290616 616

1 250 150 162

* See Note 55 & 47

1
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2024 2023
Restated”
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods 96 500 113 901
Service charges 20 77946160 71016163
Rental of facilities and equipment 67 641 218 431
Agency fees 55 5 594 755 5 687 860
Other income 21 851 845 2922 443
Interest received 22 27144082 15850 165
Total revenue from exchange transactions 111700 985 95 908 963
Revenua from non-exchange transactions
Taxation revenue
Propenty rates 23 55 328 009 40 126 248
Basic Electricity levy 11692 930 10 309 528
Interest on oulstanding receivable balances 22 11 156 236 8 640 757
Transfer revenue and other receipts
Government grants & subsidies 24 242 769 959 240 057 025
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 453 2958 531277
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 321400430 298673835
Total revenue 433101 415 395582 798
Expenditure
Employee related costs 25 (108 982 225) (103 711 615)
Remuneration of councillors 26 (15 050 571) (13 928 800)
Repairs and Mainienance (18 173 047} (14 966 807)
Depreciation and amortisation 27 {62 410 051) (57 352 099)
Finance costs 28 (8 652108) (6 369 225)
Operating Lease Expense 49 (1626 783) (1387 365)
Debt Impairment 28 (10 153 760) (8 788 372)
Impairment of assets 12 (1620606) (4 925871)
Bulk purchases 30 (56 886 156) (46 859 516)
Contracted services 31 {35234 590) (28 634 619)
Grants and Subsidies 50 (12 870282) (1659 823)
General Expenses 32 (57 025 397) (50 392 541)
Total expenditure (389 665 576) (338 976 6563)
Operating surplus 43435839 56 606145
Profit / (Loss) on disposal of fixed assets 12 (1 126 039) 277 803
Fair value adjustments 33 2105730 5 546 420
Actuarial Gain / {Loss) 19 (3949076) 9478103
Inventories lossesfwrite-downs 10 - (242 439)
(2969 385) 15 059 977
Surplus for the year 40 466 454 71 666 122

“See Note 558 47

12
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand

Revaluation Accumulated Total net
reserve  surplus f deficit assets

Balance at 01 July 2022
Changes in net assels
Surplus for the year

149 510 1178 334 530 1 178 484 040

- 71666122 71666122

Total changes

- 71666122 710666122

Restated* Balance at 01 July 2023
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

149 510 1 250 000 652 1 250 150 162

- 40486484 40466 454

Total changes

- 40468454 40466 454

Balance at 30 June 2024

149 510 1 290 467 106 1 290 616 616

Note(s)

* See Note 55 & 47

13




Cash flow statement

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2024 2023
Restated"
Cash flows from operating actlvities
Racaipts
Sale of goods and services 136 040639 121671 255
Government grants and subsidies 242 769 959 240 054 000
Interest income 27 144 082 15 950 165
Other receipts 948 345 3036 344
406 903 025 380611 764
Payments
Employee costs (121 537 647) (132 247 050)
Suppliers (185 753 885) (121 818 352)
Finance costs (2 780 721) (274 277)
(310072 253} (254 339 679)
Net cash flows from operating activities 35 96830772 126272085
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (59 467 855) (70 704 360)
Deposit (Security held in advance) movement 11 089 334 (677 072)
Net cash flows from investing activities (48 378 521} (71 381 432)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance lease payments (7 619 438) -
Net increaso/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 40832815 54 890 653
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 318620848 263739154
3 359 462 663 318 629 807

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Finat Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budgei and
Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Sale of goods 684 000 {365 000) 319000 96 500 (222 500} 1
Service charges 92148000 (6367000) 85781000 77946160 (7 834 840} 2
Rental of facilities and equipment 188 Q00 (97 000) 81 000 67 643 (23 387} 3
Agency fees 5828 000 7 000 § 835 000 5 504 755 {240 245) 4
Other income 460 000 {6 000) 454 Q00 851 845 397 B4S 5
Interest received 15 000 000 8000000 23000000 27 144 082 4 144 082 8
Total revenue from exchange 114 308 000 1172000 115480000 111700985 (3779 015)
transaciions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxation ravenue
Property rates 50 000 000 (585000) 49415000 55328 009 5913009 7
Basic Electricity Levy - - - 11692930 11692930 2
Interest on outstanding 8 862 000 6162000 15024000 11156236 (3 867 764) 8
receivable balances
Transfer revenue
Government granis & subsidies 202 450 000 343000 202793000 242769959 39976 959 9
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 207 000 {87 000) 120 000 453 296 333 206 10
Total revenus from non- 261 519000 5833000 267 352000 321400430 54 048 430
exchange transactions
Total revenue 375 827 000 7005000 382832000 433101415 50 269 415
Expenditure
Employee related costs (113248000) 2572000 {(110676000) (108 962 225) 1713775 1
Remuneration of councillors (16874 000) 1894000 {14980000) (15050 571) (70 571) 12
Repairs and Maintenance (23569000) (3137000) (26706000) (19173047) 7532953 13
Depreciation and amortisation (50 128 000) (13412000) (63 540000} (62410051) 1128048 14
Finance costs (2 094 000) (o6 000) (2800000) (g652108) (5852 108) 15
Operating Lease Expense (1819 568) - {(1819568) (1626783) 192785 16
Debt Impairment (12339000) (3682000) (16021000) (10153760) 5867 240 17
Impairment of Assets - - - (1620606) (1620 606} 14
Bulk purchases {50 000 000) - (50000 000) (56886156) (6886 156) 18
Conlracted Services (43961 000) 1819000 (42142000) (35234500) 6907410 19
Grants and Subsidies (2 989 480) - {2989490) (j2870282) (98B0782) 20
General Expenses (58643 042) (7413000) (68056942} (57025397) 9031545 21
Total expenditure (375 686 000) (22 065 000} (397 731 000) (389 665 576) 8 085 424
Operating surplus 161000 (15080 000) (14839000) 43435839 58 3343839
Profit / (Loss) on disposal of - - (1126 039) {1126 039} 22
fixed assets
Fair value adjustments - - - 2105730 2105730 23
Actuarial gains/losses - - - (3949076) (3948076) 23.1
- - - (2 969 385) {2 969 385)

15
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Surplus / {Deficit) 161000 (15050 000) (14 899000) 40466454 55365454
Actual Amount on Comparable 161000 (15060000) (14899000) 40466454 55365454

Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budgel on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable betwesn final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 38 962 000 (171000) 38791000 38 694 142 (2 096 858) 24
Receivables from exchange 23732000  (1388000) 22364000 4 (22363 996) 25
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange 61 241 000 379000 61620000 4089586 (57 530 414) 26
transactions
VAT receivable 89 359 000 - 89359000 380043 (88973 057) 27
Consumer debtors 20 504 000 - 20 504 000 88 461 207 67 957 207 28
Cash and cash equivalents 240 147 000 3007000 243154000 359462684 116308684 29
473 945 000 1847 000 475752000 4389088 566 13 296 566
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 139 618 000 - 138618000 74377561 (65240439) 30
Property, plant and equipment 963563000 (19457 000) 944 106 000 876397 101 (67 708 899) 31
Intangible assets 23000 - 23 000 - (23 000) 32
Heritage assets 157 000 - 157 000 191 160 34 160 33
Eskom Deposits - - - 1861 591 1861 591 34
1103361000 (19457 000)1 083904000 952827415 {131 076 585)
Total Assets 1577 306 000 (17 610 000) 1 559 696 000 1 441915981 (117 780 019)
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation - - - 8 649 743 8648 743 35
Payables from exchange 55 057 000 85000 55142000 1881885 6739 885 35
transactions
Trade and other Payables from 6 000 - 6 000 (6 000}
non-exchange Transaclions
VAT payable 86 998 000 - 86993 000 - (86998 000) 27
Consumer deposits 1739 000 . 1739 000 1293 811 {445 189) 37
Employee benefit obligation 3538000 - 3538000 899950 (2538 050) 38
Provisions 17 865 000 - 17865000 2977664 (14 887 336} 39
165 203 000 85000 165288000 75803053 (89 484 947)
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation - . 8 952 691 8 952 891 40
Employee benefit obligation 16 873 000 - 16873000 25196946 8 323 946 41
Provisions 18 067 000 - 18067000 41346666 23 279666 42
34 940 000 - 34940000 75495303 40 556 303
Total Liabilities 200 143 000 85000 200228000 151299358 (48 928 644}

Net Assets

1377163 000

(17 695 000} 1 359 468 000 1 290 616 625

(68 851 375)
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Nat Assets
Reserves
Revaluation reserve 157 000 - 157 000 149 510 (7 490) 43
Accumulated surplus 1377006000 (17 695 000) 1369 311000 1290 467 115 (68 B43 885) 44
Total Net Assets 1377163000 (17 695 000)1 353 468 000 1 290 616 625 (68 851 375)
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities

Recelpts

Sale of goods and services 164 838000  (2059000) 162779000 136040639 (26 738 361) 45
Government grants and 241830000  (2291000) 238548000 242769 958 3221959 45
subsidies

Interest income 15 000 000 000000 23000000 27144 082 4144052 45
Other receipts 7 299 000 {456 000) 6843 000 948 345 {5894 655) 45

428 976 000 3194000 432170000 406 903025 (25 266 975)

Payments

Employee Cost and Suppliers (311304 000) (4 716 000) {316 020 000) (307 199517) B B20 483 46
Finance costs (2 099 000) - {2098000) (2780D721) (681 721) 48

(312403 000) (4716 000) (318119 000) (309 980 238) B 138762

Net cash flows from operating 115 573 000 (1 522 00D) 114 051 00D 96 922787 (17 128 213)
activities
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plantand  (79350000) 6045000 (73314000) (59467 855) 13846145 47
equipment
Purchase cf eskom deposits - - 110802334 11089334 47
Net cash Aows from investing {79 359 000} 6045000 (73314000) (48378521) 24935479
activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash 36 214 000 4523000 40737000 48544 266 7 807 266
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 241 645 000 - 241645000 318620848 76 984 848 48
the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at 277 859 000 4523000 282382000 367174114 84 792 114

the end of the year
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Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice {GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless gpecified olherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.
All figures are rounded to the nearest Rand.

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions
were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

Assels, liabilities, revenuas and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard
of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting poficies are disclosed balow.
These accaunting pclicies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Going concern assumption

These Annual Financial Statements have heen prepared based on the expectation that the Municipality will continue to
operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimatlon uncertainty

In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions thal affect the
amounts represented in the Annual Financial Statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgments is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the Annual Financial Statements. Significant judgments include:

Receivables

The Municipality assesses its receivables for impairmert at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the municipality makes judgments as to whether there is observable
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for receivables is calculated onh a portfolio basis. For amounts due to the municipality, significant financial
difficulties of the receivable, probability that the receivable will enter bankruptey and default of payments are all considered
indicators of impairment.

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventory

An assessment is made of net realisable value at the end of each reporting period. A write down of inventary to the lower of
cost or net realisable value is subsequently provided. Management has made estimates of the selling price and direci cost to
sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in the surplus or deficit.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Municipality is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
municipality uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instrurnents are used for long-term debt. Other techniques,
such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair
value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts is determined using gquoted forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
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1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment testing
Value in use of non-cash generating assets

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of non-cash generating assets when events or changes in circumstances
suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, the
remaining service potential of the asset is determined. The most appropriate approach selected to determine the remaining
service potential is dependent on the availability of data and the nature of the impairment.

Goodwill is tested on an annual basis for impairment.
Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additiona! disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in note 18 - Provisions.

Residual values ,useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other assets

The municipality's management determines the astimated useful lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for the
property, plant and equipment and other assets. This estimate is based on industry norms and on the pattern in which an
asset's future economic benefit or service potential is expected to be consumed by the municipality. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives and decrease depreciation charge
where useful lives are mora than previously estimated useful lives.

Post retirement benefits and other long-term benefits

The present value of the post retirement and long-term benefit obligations depend on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost {income) include the
discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement and long-term benefit
obligations.

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rale at the end of each ysar. This is the interest rate that should be used
to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required 1o settle the post retirement and long-
term benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the municipality considers the market yields at the
reporting date on government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension or other long-term liability. Where there is no market in
government bonds with a sufficiently long maturity to match the estimated maturity of all the benefit payments, the municipality
uses current market rates of the appropriate term to discount shorter term payments, and estimates the discount rate for longer
maturities by extrapolating current market rates along the yield curve.

Other key assumptions for post retirement and other long-term ohligations are based on current market conditions. Additional
information is disclosed in Note 19.

Effective interest rate

The municipality uses the government bond rate to discount future cash flows.
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1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowance for impairment of financial assets

On receivables an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is cbjective evidence that itis impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the receivables carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Budget Information

A difference of 10% or more between budget and actual amounts is regarded as material. All material differences are explained
in the notes to the annual financial statements

Material Losses

Material losses are losses that ocour due to factors other than normal production and utilisation and are regarded as material if
their omission or misstatament will affect the decisions made by users of the information. The losses disclosed include that of
technical losses and nontechnical losses related to water. Losses that occur due to normal production and ufilisalion are
classified as production costs and factored into the municipality 's tariffs. They, therefore, do not constitute material losses. If
actual production and utilisation losses exceed the normal budgeted production and utilisation losses factored into the tanff,
this difference is considered material losses

Service Charges

Waste removal is based on ihe size of the bin and the number of times it is collected. Meters are read and billed on a monthly
basis and revenue is recognised when invoiced. Estimates of consumplion are made monthly when meter readings have not
been performed. The estimates of consumption are recognised as revenue when invoiced. Adjustments to estimates of
consumption are made in the inveicing period when meters have been read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in
the invoicing period. Waste removal services are billed on a monthly basis..

Going Concern

Management considers key financial metrics and approved medium-term budgets, tegether with the municipality's dependency
on the grants from naticnal and provincia! government, to conclude that the going concern assumptions used in the compilation
of its annual financial statements, is appropriate

Residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management has determined that none of its infrastructure assets have an active market value, and the value of the amount at
the end of their useful lives would therefore be insignificant

Useful lives of praperty, plant and equipment and investment property held at cost

The useful lives of assets are based on management’s estimates. Management considers the impact of technology, service
requirements and required return an assets to determine the optimum useful-life expectation, where appropriate. The estimated
residual values of assets are also based on management judgements on whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of
their useful lives, and what their condition will be at that time

Operating lease commitment.

Leases where risks and rewards of ownership are not fransferred to the lessse are classified as operating leases. Payments
received or paid under operating leases are recognised in statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease

1.3 Investment property

Investment property is property (Jand or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, rather than for:
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1.3 Investment property {continued)
. usa in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
- administrative purposes, or
. sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that
are associated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment property
can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. Ifa
replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment properiy, the carrying amount of the replaced pant is
derecognised.

Fair value
Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value.
A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises.

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment properly is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal.

The gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property are the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal.

Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the compeansation becomes receivable.

When classification is difficult, the criteria used to distinguish investment property from owner-occupied property and from
property held for sale in the ordinary course of aperations, including the nature or type of properties classified as held for
strategic purposes, are as fallows:

* ‘Managements’ infended usage of the property; and

. the extent to which it is owner occupied.

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to cthers, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
= it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow fo the
municipality; and
. the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably.

Property, ptant and equipment are initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of propery, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the assel to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is ils fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment iz acquired in exchange for a non-monelary asset or monetary assets, or a

combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
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1.4 Property, plant and equipment {continued}

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the sile on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the municipality is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where
the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recogniticn of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

ltems such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property,
plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Maijor inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and squipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the expected useful lives to the estimated residual value. The depreciation
charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit. Small assets with cost or deemed cost of less than R1000 will not be
subject to perpetual restatement of useful life. Management indicated that due to the nature of these items like chairs and
dustbins, once the initial depreciation period has passed it will be deemed to be fully used and any further use to be incidental
by nature and that asset values should not be attached to these high risk incidental benefits.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
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1.4 Property, plant and equipment {(contlnued})
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have heen assessed as follows:

item - Average useful life Depreciation method Average Useful Life
Buildings Straight line 10-30 years
Communily assets Straight line B-25 yaars
Infrastructure assels Straight line 2-100 years

IT equipment Straight line 5 -15 years

Land Straight line Indefinite

Motor vehicle Straight line ' 7-15 years

Office equipment Straight line 8-15 years

Plant and machinery Straight line 2-15 years

Leased assets Straight line 3-10 years

The municipality assesses at each repotting date whether there is any indication that the municipality expectations about the
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
municipality revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate in terms of the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Estimates and Emrors.

Assets of the property, plart and equipment are dereccgnised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
economic benefits or service potential expected frem the use of the asset.

The gain or loss ariging from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit whan
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss ariging from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item,

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statements refer note 13.

Compensation from third parties for an item of property, plant and equipment that was impaired, lost or given up is recogrised
in surplus or deficit when the compensation becomes receivable.

1.5 Site restoration and dismantling cost

The municipality has an obligation to dismantle, remove and restore certain items of property, plant and equipmeni. Such
obligations are referred to as ‘decommissioning, rehabilitation and similar liabilities. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment includes the inilial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located, the obligation which the municipality incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of
having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

The related asset is measured using the cost model:

(a) subject to (b), changes in the liability are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current
period;

(b} if a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit; and

(c} if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the municipality considers whether this is an
indication that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If it is such an indication, the
asset is tested for impairment by estimaling its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount, and any
impairment loss is recegnised in accordance with the accounting policy on impairment of non-cash-generating
assels.

1.6 Heritage assels

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.

The municipality recognises heritage assets as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value can be measured reliably.

When the municipality holds a heritage assel, but on initial recognition it does not mest the recognition criteria because it
cannot be reliably measured, information of such heritage asset is disclosed in note 13 - Heritage assets.
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1.6 Heritage assets {continued)
Heritage assets are initially measured at cost.

When a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Subsequent to initial measurement after recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets, whese fair value can be measured
reliably, is carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at a date of the revaluation less any subsequent impairment losses.

If a heritage asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to a revaluation
surplus. However, lhe increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the
same heritage asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a heritage asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in surplus or deficit.
However, the decrease is debited directly to a revalualion surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation
surplus in respect of that heritage asset.

The municipality assesses at each reporling dale whether there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable service amount of the heritage asset.

Transfers from heritage assets are only made when the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a heritage asset.
Transfers 1o heritage assets are only made when the asset meets the definition of a heritage asset.

The municipality derecognised heritage assets on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are
expected from its used or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount and is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised.

1.7 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Receivables fram exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from non exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Consumer debiors Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Eskom deposits Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities {classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Finance Lease Liahility Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Consumer deposits Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)

The entity recagnises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
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1.7 Finangial instruments (continued)
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
sttributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the fellowing categories:
. Financial instruments at fair value.
. Financial instruments at amortised cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technigue. The objective of using a valuation technigue is fo establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm's length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions betwesan Knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
gnalysis and coption pricing medels. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the municipality uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and
relies ag little as possible on entity-specific inputs. it incorporates all factors that market paricipants will consider in setting a
price and is consistent with accepted economic methodolagies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, the municipality
calibrates the valuation technigue and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the
same instrument {i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

Short-term receivables and payables are not discounted when the initial credit period granted or received is consistent with
tarms used in the public sector, either through established practices or legislation.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the financial asset or financia! liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectabllity of financial assets

The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective gvidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired.

The provision for bad debt amount will be an accumulalive sxprassion of a percentage of the amount of the debt occurrence at
a certain ageing category and an amount that represents an accumulation of individual debt amounts.

The municipality assesses ils trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, The impairment for the receivables is calculated hased on histerical
collection rate ratios.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can he related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an
allowance account. The reversal does not resull in the camying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.7 Financial instruments {continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognised financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognised a financial asset only when:

. the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived,

. the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

+« the enlity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity;
- derecognised the asset; and
- recognises separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated hetween tha rights or ohligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability {or a part of a financial liability} from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantizally different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability
and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability {or part of a financial liability} extinguished or transferred to
anolher party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transaclions (Taxes and
Transfers).

1.8 Statutory receivables
Identification

Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means, and require
settlemeant by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Recoghition

The municipality recognises statutory receivables as follows:

«  ifthe transaction is an exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from exchange transactions,

* if the transaction is a non-exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions
(Taxes and transfers); or

+ if the transaction is not within the scope of the policies listed in the above or ancther Standard of GRAFP, the
receivable is recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable thal the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the aszet will flow to the municipality and the transaction amount can be
measured reliably.
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1.8 Statutory receivables (continued)

Initial measurernent

The municipality initially measures slatutory receivables at their transaction amount,
Subsequent measurement

The municipality measures statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the
initial measurement of the receivable is changed subsequent to initial recognilion to reflect any:

. interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable (where applicable),

. impairment losses; and

. amounts derecognised.

Accrued Interest

Where the municipality levies interest on the outstanding balance of statutory receivables, it adjusts the transaction amount
after initial recognition to reflect any accrued interest. Accrued interest is calculated using the neminal interest rate.

Interest on statutory receivables is recognised as revenue in accordance with the policy on Revenue from exchange
transactions or the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions (Taxes and transfers), whichever is applicable.

Other charges

Where the municipalily is required or entitled in terms of legislation, supporting regulations, by-laws or similar means to levy
additional charges on overdue or unpaid amounts, and such charges are levied, the these charges are accounted for in terms
of the municipality's accounting policy on Revenue from exchange transactions or Revenue from non-exchange transaclions
(Taxes and {ransfers), whichever is applicable. '

Impairment losses

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a slatutory receivable, or a group of
statutory receivables, may he impaired.

In assessing whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or group of siatutary receivables, may be impaired, the
municipality considers, as a minimum, the following indicators:
. significant financial difficulty of the receivable, which may be evidenced by an application for debt counselling,
business rescue or an equivalent;
« itis probable that the receivable will enter sequestration, liquidation or other financial re-crganisation;
«  a breach of the terms of the transaction, such as default or delinquency in principal or interest payments (where
levied); and
= adverse changes in international, national or local economic conditions, such as a decline in growth, an increase in
debt levels and unemployment, or changes in migration rates and patterns.

If there is an indication that a stalutory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the municipality
measures the impairment loss as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the
carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, or group of
statutory receivables, is reduced, through the use of an allowance account. The amount of lhe losses are recognised in surplus
or deficit.

An impairment loss recognised in prior pericds for a statutory receivable is revised if there has been a change in the estimates
uzed since the last impairment loss was recognised, or to reflect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows.

Any previously recognised impairment loss is adjusted by adjusting the allowance account. The adjustment does not result in
the carrying amount of the statutory receivable or group of statutory receivables exceeding what the carrying amount of the
receivable(s) would have been had the impairment loss not been recognised at the date the impairment is revised. The amount
of any adjusiment is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Derecognition

The municipality deracognised a statutory receivable, or a part thereof, when:
» the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived,
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1.8 Statutory receivables (continued)

»  the municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of cownership of the receivable; or

e the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable, has
transferred contral of the receivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the receivable
in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the municipality:
- derecognised the receivable, and
- recognises separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of any statutory receivables transferred are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and
those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. The municipality considers whether any newly
created rights and obligations are within the scape of the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments or ancther Standard of
GRAP. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts derecognised and, those amounts recognised, are
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

1.9 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cosl and net realisable value.

Inventories are measuread af the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
» distribution at no charge or for a neminal charge; or
»  consumption in the preduction process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identificalion of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the municipality.

When inventoties are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
related services are rendered.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Inventery - unsold property held for sale

Unsold properties that was approved for sale by the Council is held as inventory. The properties previcusly held as investment
property at market value is transferred in terms of GRAP 16 and GRAP 12 at market value as the deemed cost of the individual
properties. The market value is then considered to be the deemed cost are then considered as the carrying value of the item
from the date transferred to unsold properties held for sale. When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related
revenue, the expenses are recognised when ihe goods are distributed, or related services are rendered.
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1.9 (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories
are recogrised as an expense in the period the write-down or foss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reducticn in the
amount of inventeries recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occur

1.10 Value-added Tax (VAT)

The municipality is registered with the South African Revenue Services (SARS}) for VAT on the paymen basis, in accordance
with Section 15(2) of the VAT Act No.89 of 1991,

1.11 Employee benefits
Short-term amployee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits {other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employeas render the related service.

Shart-term employee benefits include:

. wages, salaries and social security contributions:

*  short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave} where the compensation for the
absences is due to be selfled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporiing
period in which the employees render the related service; and

*  non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphanes) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered services to the municipality during a reporting period, the municipality recognises the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

. as a liability {accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset {prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will iead to, for example, a reduction in future paymenls or a cash refund; and

. as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an assel.

The expecled cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitiement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additienal amount that the municipality expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The municipality recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the municipality has no realistic altemative but to make the
payments.
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1.11 Employse benefits (continued)
Post-employment benefits
Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity {a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does net hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the contribution payable
to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:
* as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for service befere the reporting date, the entity recognises thal excess as an asset
{prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund; and
- as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value
of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the
currency and estimated term of the obligation.

Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans cther than defined contribution plans.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined
benefit liability the entity recognises acluariai gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they occur.

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current period.

interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the
benefits are one period closer to seitlement.

The municipality accounts not only for its legal cbligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any
constructive obligation that arises from the entity's informal practices. Informal praclices give rise to a constructive obligation
where the entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a constructive obligation is where a
change in the entity's informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to its relationship with employees.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the fallowing amounts:
«  the present valua of the definad benefit obligation at the reporting date,
*»  minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly;
«  plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement

The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:

. current service cost;

- interest cost;

+  actuarial gains and losses;

. past service cost.

The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of iis defined benefit obligations and the
related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cosl. The Projected Unit Credit Msthod (sometimes known as
the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) sees each period of service as
giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entittement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The resuits of the
valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material changes in circumstances (including changes in market
prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.
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1.11 Employee benefits (continued)

The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or
settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or settlement comprises:

. any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit abligation; and

*  any resulting change in the fair value of the pian assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the entity re-measures the obligation (and the related plan assets,
if any) using current actuarial assumptiens (including current market interest rates and other current market prices).

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, the right o reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit
plan is presentad as tha net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The entity offsets an asset relating lo one plan against a liability relating to another plan when the entity has a legally
enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to seltle obligations under the other plan and intends either to settle the
obligations on a net basis, cr to realise the surplus in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simultaneously,

Actuarial assumptions
Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reparting date, for the period over which the obligations are to
be settled.

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations {both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money.
The currency and term of the financiai instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured an a basis that reflects:

. estimated future salary increases;

. the benefits set oul in the terms of the plan {or resuliing from any constructive cbligation that goes beyond these
terms) at the reporling date; and

- estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a definad benefit
plan, if, and only if, either:
those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or
past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable manner,
for example, in line with future changes in genera! price levels or general salary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from both
inflation and specific changes in medical costs,

Other long-term employee benefits
The municipality has an obligation to provide other long-term service allowance benefits to all of its employees.

The municipality's liability is based on an actuarial valuation. The Projected Unit Credit Method to delerming is the present
value of the obligations.

The amount recognised as a liahility for other long-term employee benefits is the net total of the following amounts:
. the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting dalte;
. minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be setiled directly.

The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts as expense or ravenue, except to the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:

. current service cost;

. interest cost;

. actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately.
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1.11 Employee benefits (continued)
Termination benefits

The entity recognises termination benefits as a liability and an experse when the municipality is demonsirably commilted to
either:

. terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or

. provide lermination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.

The entity is demonstrably committed to a termination when the municipality hag a detailed formal plan for the termination and
i$ without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed pfan incfudes [as a minimum]:

+  the location, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;

*  the termination benefits for each job classification or function; and

s+ the time at which the plan will be implemented.

Implementation begins as soon as pessible and the period of time to complete implemantation is such that material changes to
the plan are not likely.

Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using an appropriate
discount rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects the time value of money. The currency and-term of the financial
instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of Ihe benefit.

In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits shall be based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer.

1.12 Provisions and conlingencies

Provisions are racognised when:
. the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
* it is probable that an outflow of resources embaodying econemic benefite or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the besl estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to seitle the present abligation at the
reporting dale.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to setlle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, il is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality
seltles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separale asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If the municipality has a contract that is onerous, the prasent obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised, Contingencies are disclosed in note 38.
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1.12 Provisions and contingencies (continued)
Decommissioning, restoration and similar liability

Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning, restoration and similar liability that result from changes in the
estimated timing or amount of the outflow of resources embadying economic benefits or service polential required to settle the
obligation, or a change in the discount rate, is accounted for as follows:

Where the related asset is measured using the cost mode!:

. changes in the liability is added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current period.

. the amount deducted from the cost of the asset does not exceed its carrying amount, If a decrease in the liability
excaeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately in surplus cr deficit.

. if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the entity consider whether this is an indicaticn that
the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If there is such an indication, the entity test the
asset for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount, and account for any
impairment loss, in accordance with the accounting pelicy on impairment of assets as described in accounting policy
and . :

The adjusted depreciable amount of the asset is depreciated over its useful life. Therefore, once the related asset has reached
the end of its useful Iife, all subsequent changes in the liability is recognised in surplus or deficit as they ocour.

The periadic unwinding of the discount is recognised in surplus or deficit as a finance cost as it occurs.

1.13 Accumulated surplus

The accumulated surplus represents the net difference between the total assets and the total liabilities of the municipality. Any
surpluses and deficits realised during a specific financial year are credited / debited against accumulated surplus / deficit. Prior
year adjustments, relating to income and expenditure, are credited / debited against accumulated surplus when retrospective
adjustments are made.

1.14 Acccunting by principals and agents

Identification

A principal-agent arrangement rasults from a binding arrangement in which one entity {an agent}, undertakes transactions with
third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, ancther entity (the principal).

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

The assessment of whether the municipality is a principal cr an agent requires the municipality to assess whether the
transactions it undertakes with thirg parties are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit.

Binding arrangement

The municipality assesses whether itis an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties
established in the binding arrangement,

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modified, the municipality re-assesses whelher it act as a principal or an
agent.

Assessing which entity benefits from the transactions with third parties

The municipality is an agent when, in relation to transactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present:
. 1t does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the transaction,
* It does not have the ability fo use all, or substantially zall, of the resources that result from the transaction for its
awn banefit.
* ltis not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction.

Where the municipality has been granled specific powers in terms of legislation to direct the terms and conditions of
particular transactions, it is nol required to consider the criteria of whether it does not have the power to determine the
significant terms and conditions of the transaction, to conclude that is an agent. The municipality applies judgements in
determining whether such powers exist and whether they are relevant in assessing whether the municipality is an agent.
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1.14 Accounting by principals and agents {continued)
Recognition

The municipality, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties in a
principal-agsnt arrangement in accordance with the requiremants of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The municipality, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing
the transactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP,

The municipalily recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant Slandards of GRAP.

1.156 Revenue from exchange transactions

An exchange transaclion is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Unclaimad Deposits
The following procedure will be followed prior to write off of unclaimed deposits

Should unclaimed monigs not be claimed within a period of Three (3) years the monies will be wriiten off from the register fo
accumulated surplus.

The following process must be followed before any monies are receipted in accurnulated surplus:

The register will be advertised in the media in terms of section 21A of the Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000 thal it will lie open for
public inspection.

Such register must lie open for a period of a months
The register will be made available for inspection at the main municipal buildings.
The prescribed form must be completed with documentary praof should any monies be claimed by a customer or credilor.

After a 54 month period a report will be submitted to Council on the unclaimed monies to be written off from the register and be
transfered to accumulated surplus

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

» the municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

*+ it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
municipality; and ’

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued}
Rendering of services

When the outcoms of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The cuicome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential asscciated with the transaction will flow to the

municipality,
»  the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
»  the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
complation is determined by surveys of work performed.

Interest and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of municipal assets yielding interest and dividends or similar distributions is recognised
when:
e it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
municipality, and
»  the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
1.18 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transaclions. In a non-exchange transaction, the
municipality either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or
gives value to another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Recognition

An inflow of resaurces from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a lability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an assel, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue 1o the extent that the municipality
has complied with the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or
obligaticns have not been met, a liability is recognised.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
muricipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises reverue equivalent
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the dale of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a
liability is subsequentiy reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the
liability is recognised as revenue.
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1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Propeity rates

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of taxes whan the taxable avent occurs and the agsat recognition criteria are
met.

Resources arising from taxes satisfy the definition of an asset when the municipality controls the resources as a result of a past
event (the taxable event) and expects to receive future economic benefits or service potential from those resources. Resources
arising from taxes salisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset when it is probable that the inflow of resources will ogceur and
their fair value can be reliably measured. The degree of probability attached to the inflow of resources is determined on the
basis of evidence available al the time of inilial recognition, which includes, but is not limited to, disclosure of the taxable event
by the taxpayer.

The municipality analyses the taxation laws to determine what the taxable events are for the various taxes levied,

Basic Electricif.y Levy

Basic slectricity charges are levied on all conventional meters based on the customer account category and the type of
elactrical foad {either single-phase or three-phase). These levies are included in the annual tariffs approved by the council.
Additionally, a basic vacant levy is charged on all unoccupied residential properties

Basic electricity levies are billed monthly and are not dependent on consumpfion..

The taxable event for property tax is the passing of the date on which the tax is levied, or the period for which the tax is levied, if
the tax is levied on a periodic basis.

Taxation revenue is determined at a gross amount. It is not reduced for expenses paid through the tax system.
Transfers

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits ar service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes

Transferred assets are measured af their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
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1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Debt forgiveness and assumplion of liabilities

The municipality recognises revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets the definition of a
liability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liabilily, provided that the debt forgiveness does not satisfy the definition of a
contribution from owners.

Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of debt forgiven.
Fines

Fines are recagnised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for recognition
as an asset.

Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of tha inflow of resources to the municipality. The municipality
makes use of estimates to determine the amount of revenue that it is entitled to collect. Where seltiement discounts or
reductions in the amcunt payable are offered, the municipality considers past history in assessing the likelihood of these
discounts or reductions being taken up by receivables.

Where the municipality collects fines in the capacity of an agent, ihe fine will nat be revenue of the collecting municipality.
Government grants
Government grants are recognised as revenug when:

-it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the municipality,
-the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and
-ta the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant.

The municipality assesses the degree of cerlainly attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service potential on the
basis of the available evidence. certain grants payable by one level of government to another are subject to the availability of
funds. Revenue from these grants is only recognised on receipt when it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential asscciated with the transaction will flow to the entity. An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants
may be available for qualifying entities in accordance with an agreed programme may not be sufficient evidence of the
probability of the flow. Revenue is then only recognised ance evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available.

Restrictions on government grants may resuit in such revenue being recognised on a time proporlion basis. Where there is
no resiriction on the period., such revenue is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, which-ever is earlier.
When government remit grants on a re-imbursement basis, revenue is recognised when the qualifying expense has been
incurred and to the period, such revenue is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, which-ever is earlier.

Gifts and donations, in¢luding goods in-kind

Gifts and donalicns, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will fiow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Services in-kind

Except for financial guarantze contracts, the municipality recognises services in-kind that are significant to its operations and/or
service delivery objectives as assets and recognise the related revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Where services in-kind are not significant to the municipality's operations and/or sarvice delivery objectives andfer do not
satisfy the criteria for recognition, the municipality disclose the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting
period.

Concessionary loans received

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by the property, plant and equipment on terms that are not market
related.
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1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

The portion of the loan that is repayable, along with any interest paymentis, are exchange transactions and are accounted for in
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments. The off-market portion of the loan is a non-exchange
transaction. The off-market portion of the loan that is recognised as non-exchange revenue is calculated as the difference
batween the proceeds received from the loan, and the present value of the contractual cash flows of the loan, discountad using
a market related rate of interest.

The recognition of revenue is determined by the nature of any conditions that exist in the loan agreement that may give rise to
a liability. Where a liability exists the cash flow statement recognises revenue as and when it satisfies the conditions of the loan
agreement.

1.17 Investment income

Investment income is racognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by the municipality in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidenlal to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it dogs not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

wWhen a lease includes both land and buildings slements, the municipality assesses the classification of sach element
separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the municipality's incremental
borrowing rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term s0 as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recegnised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the
amounts recognised as revenua and the contractual receipts are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging cperating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue,

The aggregaie cost of incentives is recaognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.19 Leases (continued)
Operating leases - lessea

Operating lease payments are racognised as an expanse on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the confractual payiments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on & straight-line basis.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
1.20 Grant in aid
The municipality transfers money to individuals, organisations and other sectors of government from time to time. When
making these transfers, the municipality does not:

*  receive any goods or services directly in return, as would be expected in a purchase of sale transaction;

. expect to be repaid in future; or

. expect a financial return, as would be expected from an investment.

These transfers are recognised in the statement of financial performance as expensas in the period that the events giving raise
to the transfer occurred.

1.21 Comparatlve figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the currenl year. Refer
fo note 49.

1.22 Commitments

ltems are classified as commitments when the municipality has committed itseif to future transactions that will normally result in
the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractugl commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met;
. Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and
- Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the municipality — therefore
salary commitments relating to employmant conlracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.
1.23 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure in relation to & municipality, means any expenditure incurred by a municipality otherwise than in
accordance with section 15 or 11(3),of the MFMA and include -

a)IOverspending of the total amouni appropriated in the municipality’s approved budget;

b) Overspending of the total amount appropriated for a vote in the approved budget;

©) Expenditure form a vote unrelated to the department or functional area covered by the vote;

d) Expenditure of money appropriated for a specific purpose, otherwise than for that specific purpose;

e) Spending of an allocation referred to in paragraph (b}, (c} or (d) of the definition of allocation” otherwise than in accordance
with any conditions of the allocation; or

f} A grant by the municipality otherwise than in accordance with this Act.
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1.23 Unauthorised expenditure {continued)

All expenditure relating to operational unauthorised expenditure is initially recognised as an expense in the statement of
financial performance in the 10 months that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure relating to capital expenditure is
initially recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position in the year the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure
is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense or assel, and where council resolves on recovery, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance and debtors in the statement of financial position. When
the payment is subsequently received, the payment is receipted against the debtor.

For operational expenditure and capital assets the amounts are recognised excluding VAT,
The unauthorised expenditure note to the financial statements is disclosed excluding VAT,
1.24 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitiess and wasteful expendilure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable
care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and waslefu! expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.25 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act No.56 of 2003}, the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the
municipality's supply chain management policy.

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the
value of the irregular expenditure incurred, unless it is impractical to determine, in which case reasons therefore must be
provided in the notes,

1.26 Segment information

A segment is an activity of an entity:
«  that generates economic benefits or service potential (including economic benefits or service potential relating to
transactions between activilies of the same entity);
. whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to that
activity and in assassing its performance; and
»  for which separate financial information is available.

Repartable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segment report. They are the segments identified
above or alternatively an aggregation of two or more cf those segments where the aggregation criteria are met.

Measurement

The amount of each segment item reported is the measure reported to management for the purposes of making decisions
about allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance. Adjustments and eliminations made in preparing the
entity's financial statements and allocations of revenues and expenses are included in determining reported segment surplus or
deficit only if they are included in the measure of the segment’s surplus or deficit that is used by managemant. Similarly, only
{hose assets and liabilities that are included in the measures of the segment’s assets and segment’'s liakilities that are used by
management are reported for that segment. If amounts are allocaled to reported segment surplus or deficit, assets or liabilities,
those amounts are allocated on a reasonable basis.

If management uses only one measure of a segment's surplus or deficit, the segment’s assets or the segment's liabilities in
assessing segment performance and deciding how to allacate resources, segment surplus or deficit, assets and ligbilities are
reported in terms of that measure. If management uses more than one measure of a segment's surplus or deficit, the
segment's assets or the segment's liabilities, the reported measures are those that management believes are determined in
accordance with the measurement principles most consistent with those used in measuring the corresponding amounts in the
entity's financial statements.
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1.27 Budget information

The approved budget is preparsd on an accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal periad from 2023/07/01 to 2024/06/30.
The budget for the economic enlity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The Annual Financial Statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amounts for the reporting pericd have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.28 Related partles

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to contrel or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entily that is subject to comman control, or joinl control.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the aclivities of the municipality, including
those charged with the govarnance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where thay are required to
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are censidered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by management in their dealings with the municipality.

1.28 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are autharised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and
. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date {non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).

The municipality adjusts the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event cccurred.

The municipality discloses the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or & statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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Figures in Rand 2024 2022 Restated

2. New standards and interpretations
21 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the municipality has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or
after
. GRAP 25 (as revised). Employee Benefits 01 April 2023 The impact of the is not
material.
. GRAP 2020: Improvements to the Standards of GRAP 2020 01 April 2023 The impact of the is nol
material.

2.2 Standards and Interpretations early adopted

The municipality did not garly adopt any standards and interpretations:

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the foliowing standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandalory
for the municipality’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2024 or fater periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or
after
*  GRAP 2023 Improvements to the Standards of GRAP 2023 01 April 2099 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
. GRAP 1 {amended): Fresentation of Financial Statements 01 April 2099 Unlikely there will be a
{Guoing Concern) material impact
. GRAP 103 (as revised): Heritage Assets 01 April 2089 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
. GRAP 104 (as revised): Financial Instruments 01 April 2025 Unlikely there will be a

material impacl
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3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis consist of:

Bank balances 335619388 3186293848
Short-term deposits 22 843 206 -

350462684 31E 629848

The short term deposit of R22 843 296 is inclusive of R13 582 000 which is a guarantee for the Marble Hall town bulk upgrade
at the Eskom substation '

Credit gquality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can
be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or historical information about counterpart default rates.

During the 2018 financial year VBS Mutual bank experienced financial difficulties which led to breach of contracts when some
of the matured investments and deposits could not be honoured. The reserve bank then placed VBS Mutual bank under
curatorship in 2018. The Municipality had a short-term deposit of R 83 658 548. The Municipality accounts for short term
daposits as financial assets carried at amortised cost. The curator and National Treasury only guaranteed retail depositors up
to R100 000 per depositor, corporate and Municipalities deposits were not guaranteed. The Munigipality then impaired the total
investment of R 83 658 548 since there was no future cash flow expected from the VBS Mutual bank. The letter issued by the
curator on the 114 March 2018 stated that the bank will cease to accrue further interest as at the date it has been placed under
curatorship. As such the R83 658 548 has been determined using a straight line method to accrue interesi since end of
February and 11 March 2018.The municipality did not receive any confirmation from lhe curator, and it was confirmed that the
investment should be fully Impaired or written off for the financial year ending 30 June 2020.Mo additional information was
received from the Provincial Government and the curater of the YBS Mutual Bank until during 2022 financial year when part of
the investment was recovered, Management assessed the impairment and concluded that the full balance of the impairment is
still valid and applicable for the 2022/2023 and 2023/2024 financial years

The VBS curator transferred an amount of RG 112 400.00, into the municipality’s account on the 4th of February 2022 |

Credit rating
AAS 3356190388 318629 848

The municipality had the following bank accounts

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances '
30 June 2024 30 June 2023 30 .June 2022 30 June 2024 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
FNB Cheque A/C 332165217 318615084 263734 318 336610388 318629648 263 739 091
FNB Call Account 22 843 206 - - 22 843 296 - -
Total 355008513 318615064 263734318 359462684 318629848 263739091
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4. Receivables

Gross balances
Receivables- other 860 368 660 368
Fines 7 734 568 7 377 566

8 394 934 8037 934

Less: Aliowance for impairment
Receivables- other {660 368) (660 368)
Fines (7266 744) (6835 300)

(7957 112) (7 495 668)

Net balance

Fines ' 437 822 542 266

Traffic Fines

31 - 60 days 58 000 50 700

61 - 90 days 40 750 72750

91 - 120 days 24 250 86 750

121 - 365 days 7611 566 7 187 365

Impairment {7206 744) (6 835 299)
437 822 542 266

Operational Debtors

> 365 days 660 370 660 368

Reconciliatlon of allowance for impairment

Balance at beginning of the year (7 495 666) (6 B9G 128)

Contributions to allowance {461 446) {599 538)

(7 957 112) (7 495 666)

§. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Unauthorised debit orders 29828 410 065
Staff Debters 399 979 389979
Department of transport{Licensing) - 105 147
Government grant and subsidies 3221959 -
Fines 437 822 542 266

4 089 586 1457 457

Receivables from non-exchange transactions pledged as security
None of the receivables were pledged as security.

Statutory receivables included in recelvables from non-exchange transactions above are as follows:

Traffic fines 437 822 542 266
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6. Consumer debtors

Gross balances

Rates 119716 479 103 763 521
Electricity 5513974 8 843 759
Refuse 11 067 892 9 370 782
Basic electricity - Non Exchange 10 831 534 9 540 872
Cther 55932230 48923432

203 059 109 180 442 366

Less: Allowance for impairment

Rates (68 194 078) (62 281 176)
Electricity (353 280) (3472 217)
Refuse (7387851} (6 353 628)
Basic electricity - Non Exchange (5809 530) (5 300 708)
Other (32 853 163) (29 494 149)

{114 597 902) (106 901 878)

Net balance

Rates . 51 522 401 41 482 345
Electricity 5 160 694 5371 542
Refuse 3670041 3017 154
Basic electricity - Non Exchange 5022 004 4 240 164
Other 23 086 067 19429 283

88481 207 73 540 488

Included in above is receivables from exchange transactions

Electricity 5 160 694 5 371 542
Refuse 3670041 3017 154
Other 23086 067 19428 283

31916802 27 817 979

Included in above is receivables from non-exchange transactions (taxes and

transfers)
Rates 51 522 401 41 482 345
Basic electricity - non exchange 5 022 004 4 240 164
56 544 408 45722509
Net balance 88 461 207 73 540 488
Rates
Current (0 -30 days) 7 708 640 3002183
31 - 60 days 2 484 517 1699 077
61 - 80 days 22658772 1648 781
91 - 365 days 107 284 548 97 413 479
Impairment (68 104 077) (62 281 175)

51522401 41482345
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6. Consumer dabtors (continued)
Elactricity
Current (0 -30 days) 4 623683 3 1680 952
31 -60 days 134 920 177 985
61 - 90 days 59 518 134 343
91 - 385 days 695 853 5370478
Impairment (353 280) (3472216)
5160 694 5371 542
Refuse
Current {0 -30 days) 484 174 372238
31-80days 183 116 172 602
61 - 80 days 159 535 153 303
91 - 365days 10231058 8 672 360
Impairment (7387 843) (6353 349)
3670 041 3017 154
Basic Electricity -non exchange
Current (0 -30 days) 1089 006 701 905
31-60days 257 619 231 593
61-90days 222 421 220772
91 - 365 days 9 262 489 8 386 601
Impairment (5809531 (5300707
5022 004 4 240 164
Other
Current (0 -30 days) 3081471 1808484
31-60days 1276627 1136 700
61 - 90 days 1204 446 1103 335
91 - 385 days 50 376 6858 44 873872 |
impairment (32853 162) (20494 108)
23 086 067 19 429 283
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6. Consumer debtors (continued)
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Consumers
Current (0 -30 days) 3236079 2290216
31-60days 1267 104 1091 644
61 - 90 days 1125189 983 327
91 - 365 days 63883306 53988 333
89511 678 58 353 820
Less: Allowance for impairment (41 340 489) (35 246 693)
28171189 23107127
Industriall commercial
Current (0 -30 days) 13672 229 6 702 216
31 - 60 days 3007 217 2 304 931
61 - 90 days 2754614 2 256 614
91 - 365 days 113058 759 109 934 580
132 492 819 121 198 350
Less: Allowance for impairment (72 683 344) (71157 877)
' §9 809475 50040473
National and provincial government
Current (0 -30 days)} 76 718 54 523
31 - 60 days 42 479 21081
61 - 90 days 24 890 20 593
91 - 365 days 008 399 793 868
1052 486 890 065
Less: Allowance for impairment {574 059) (497 295)
478 427 92 770
Total
Current (0 -30 days) 16 986 974 9 046 764
31 - 680 days 4 316 800 3417 957
61 - 90 days 3904 893 3260534
81 - 365 days 177 850 464 164 717 098
203058 931 180 442 353
Less: Allowance for impairment (114 597 724) (106 901 865)
88461 207 73 540 488
Less: Allowance for impairmen
Less: Allowance for impairmeant (114 597 902) (106 901 878)

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year
Contributicns to allowance

(106 901 878)
(7 596 024)

(102 990 857)
(3911 021)

(114 597 902) (106 901 878)
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6. Consumer debtors (continued)

Statutory Receviables - Rates

Properly rates is tax levied in terms of Local Government Properly Rates Act, Act No. 6 of 2004. The Acl empowers the
municipality to adopt by-laws to give effect to the implementation of its rates policy i.e., levying of property rates on all rateable
property in its area (except as provided otherwise within law).

The municipality recognise statutory receivables using GRAP 108 at their transaction amount per approved tariffs through
Gilling.

The municipality measure statutory receivables after initial recagnition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the initial
measurement of the receivable is changed subsequent 1o initial recognition to reflect any:

(a) interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable;
(b) impairment losses; and
(c) any amounts derecognised

The municipality derecognise a statutory receivable, or a part thereof, when the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are
settled, expire or are waived.

Statutory receivables - Property rates balances

Property rates receivables 55328008 41482345

Consumer debtors additional information

Consumer debtors accounts are required to be settled after 30 days, interest is charged after this date at a rate of prime plus
2%. The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying amounts.

7. Eskom Deposits

Eskom Deposit 1 861 591 12 950 925

A security deposit is held by Eskom who is the bulk electricity supplier to the municipality. Eskom pays interest annually on the
security deposit held,

An amount of R11 483 554 previously held by Eskom as security deposit has been expensed for the purpose of electricity
upgrades.
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8. VAT .Basis
The Municipality is registered on the Cash basis for Value Added Tax.

9. VAT recelvable

VAT receivables 380943 1938 255
_ - 12024 June 2023 June
VAT Accrual T © 281320961 | 7 -3 656 114,27
VAT Cash basis 3 184 243,45 5 504 369,27
- 380 943,94 1938 255,00

The municipality accounts for Value-Added Tax {VAT) on both an accrual and cash basis, as follows:

1. VAT on Accrual Basis:This represents VAT amountis that have nol yet been claimed from or submitted to the South
African Revenue Service (SARS). These amounts are recognized and will be submitted to SARS once the municipality
receives the corresponding payments from customers.

2. VAT on Cash Basis:This includes VAT received or paid, net of cash receipts and payments, which has already been
submitted to SARS. These balances represent amounts that the municipality expects SARS to refund.

3, Net VAT Accounting:VAT is accounted for on a net basis, reflecting the nature of VAT transactions as either receivables
or payables with SARS. The municipality claims VAT refunds net of VAT payable and receivable amounts, ensuring alignment
with SARS's submission requirements.

Presenting VAT as separate payable (liabilily) and receivable (asset} amounts may imply that these balances are mutually
exclusive. However, they are interrelated and should be considered together. Therefore, the municipality discloses VAT on a
net basis in the financial statements te provide a more accurate representation of its VAT position.This approach aligns with the
guidance provided in the VAT 418 Guide for Municipalities, which emphasizes the importance of accurate VAT accounting and
reporling.

VAT receivable is a statutary receivable per GRAP 108,

in terms of the VAT Act, 1991 (Act No. 82 of 1981) and its amendments, municipalities must be VAT registered and must
declare Gutput tax on the taxable supply of goods and services and claim Input tax credits on expenses incurred in the course
or furtherance of the enterprise ({the taxable supplies).

The above VAT balance accumulates every time the municipality transacts in taxable supplies.

The transaction amount is determined by multiplying the standard-rated supplies by 15% and Zero-rated supplies by 0%.

statutory receivable are impaired only when SARS reduces an assessment, and the municipalily objection is denied by SARS.
There are no VAT balances that are past due as at year end.

The municipality is registered on the cash basis and the timing of payments to/from SARS is at the end of each month.

Due to the accrual basis of accounting applied the amount disclosed for VAT include the total movement of VAT accounts, The
basis includes a set of accounts that indicate the amount accrued for VAT in debtors and creditors separate from the amount
receivable or owed to SARS. The basis of accounting does not lend itself to the separate disclosure of vat movement items. In
terms of the prescribed guidelines only the nett VAT receivable or payable are disclosed.

Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means; and are settled in
cash or another financial asset. Some examples of statutory receivables include those receivables relaled to property taxes,
fines for breaches of legislation, levies. Statutory receivables are also known as compulscry transactions
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10. Inventories

Consumables 764 142 774 040
Unseld Properties Held for Resale 35930000 35930000

36694142 36704 040

Inventory classification - Consumables, are hefd in stock for use in the municipality's day to day operations. This is then drawn
from the account cn a needs basis. Unsold Properties - Held for Resale are unsold stands which are held in inventory as the
Council resolved to sefl the stands in Exiension 6. These slands are available for sale and due precesses are being put in
place for the sale thereof. These stands were transferred from investment properties during the 201872019 financial year. No
inventory was written down during the year under review

Valuation of Inventory

Inventory are valued on the principle of the Weighted Average Costing as stated in the inventory register, such cost to be
determined with every receipt and issue of stock.

Municipality inventory is not pledged as security for any Liakilities.

Inventory movement for the year - consumables

Opening balance 774 040 1214 321
Issues ' (3320807) (1180920)
Returns 14 700 17 629
Write off 30 - {234 442)
Purchases 3206 209 957 452
Closing balance 764 142 774 040

11. Investment property

2024 2023
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation -~ depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Investment property land 74 377 561 - 743775561 72 292 561 - 72292 561
Reconciliation of investment property - 2024
Opening Fair value Total
balance adjustments
Investment property land 72 292 561 2 085000 74 377 561
Reconciliation of investment property - 2023
Opening Fair value Total
balance adjustments
Investment property land 66 100 061 4182 500 72 292 561
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11. Investment property {continued)
Pledged as security
MNone of the investment property has been pledged as security.

There are no restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the remittance of the revenue and proceeds of disposal.
The municipality does not have any contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repair,
maintenance or enhancement as at the end of the period under review. A register containing the information required by
section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for inspection at the registered office of the municipality.

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the registered office of the municipality.

Details of valuation

The effeciive date of the revaluations was 30 June 2024. Valuations were performed by an independent valuer, Montani
Property Valuers, as registeraed professional valuer's, that are not connected to the municipality and have recent experience in
location and category of the investment property being valued. Montani Property Valuers is registered as - Authorised Properly
valuer's as per Saction 22 of the Propery valuer's Profession Act 2000 (No 47 of 2000) Registered with the SA Council for the
Property Valuation Profession (SACPVP).

Renta! revenue from investment property 67 643 218 431
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Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality

(Registration number LIM 471)

Annual Financial Statements for the year endsd 30 June 2024

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023

12. Property, plant and squipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment in the process of being constructed or developed taking [onger to complete

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment that is taking a significantly longer period of time to complete..

Project name Commence date Reason for taking lon¢ 2024 2023

Stormwater EXT:6 2018/06/30 Completed in the - 21819636
current year and
transferred to fixed
asset register.

Morarela internal Road 2021/06/30 Completed in the - 7 434 939
current year and
transferred ta fixed
asset register.

Tshikanoshi Sports Complex  12021/06/30 The project is on hold 5013938 5013938
due to budget
constraints.

Driefontein Internal Road 2022108/30 The project is on hold 1 895 570 1885570
due to budget
canstraints.

Mathukuthela Internal Road 2022/05/30 The project is on hold 2119113 2119113
due to budget
constraints.

Matlala Ramoshebo Internal Re|2022/06/30 The project is on hold 2073108 2073108
due to budget
consiraints.
Construction is planned
to commence in
2024425 financial year.

Matlerekeng Internal Bus Route|2022/06/30 The project is on hold 2110652 2110652
due to budget
gonstraints.

Moeding Unternal Street 2022/06/30 The project is on hold 1918 568 1918 568
due to budget
constraints.

Mokwaneng Internal Road 2022/06/30 The project is on hold 1579523 1579823
due to budget
consiraints.

Parks Development Landscapir|2022/06/30 The project is ongoing, 1776 818 547 062
it is within set
timeframes.

Total - - 18 487 290 46 512 128

No portion of Properly Plant and Equipment has been pledged as security for Liabilities, other than obligation under finance
leases.

Amounts received from insurance proceeds as follows: 2024 R37 500 (2023 R0}
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12. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2024

Included within Included within Total
Infrastructure  Community
Opening balance 36 886 387 5561000 42447 387
Additions/capital expenditure 45 304 014 8027 387 51331401
Transferred to completed items (50 701 065} (50 701 065)

31489336 115688387 43077723

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2023

Included within Included within Total
. Infrastructure  Community
Opening balance 65 830 022 212055653 85925575
Additions/capital expenditure 62 D27 492 1463110 64 380602

Transferred to completed ilems 91671127y (17 197 663) (108 868 790)

36 686 387 5561000 42 447 387

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment
included in Statement of Financial Performance

Infrastructure 13322651 9 446 341
Vehicles 3 990 549 3412 280
Buildings 1384 535 1126 010
IT Equipment 41 058 §3 200
Community Asset 82 389 302 247
Plant and Equipment 370 866 476 531
Office EqLuipment - 2008

19182048 14 948 707

During the year no instances of delayed maintenance was identified that would have an effect on the lifespan or capacity of any
asset.

Mamphokge Sports Complex was constructed and completed during the 2021/22 financia! year. The complex was transferred
1o fixed asset register at a total cost of R24 327 424. However, damages were encountered on the complex which have delayed
the opening of the facilily to public use and Council has approved R9 million on the 2024/25 budget tc undertake major
maintenance. Designs for maintenance have been completed and approved by management..

During the year under review, management embarked en annual review of assels usefill life in line with the requirements of
GRAP 17. Per license condition the landfill site bas reached its end of useful life. However, Landfill site was re-assessed by
environmenta! experts and confirmed that it has physical capacity to operate for the next 6 years till 30 June 2030. The
estimated useful life is based on the approved Reviewed Municipal Integrated Development Plan and Municipal Integrated

Waste Management Plan. The municipality, with the support of LEDET, is currently in the process of developing the designs for
new landfill site.

A register containing the information required by section 83 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the registered office of the municipality.
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13. Heritage assets

2024 2023
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation impairment Valuation impairment
losses losses
Sculptures 100 240 - 100 240 83 080 - 83 080
Antefacts 500 - 500 500 - 500
Mayoral chains 90 420 - 90 420 86 850 - 86 850
Total 191 160 - 191 160 170 430 - 170 430
Reconciliation of heritage agsets 2024
Opening Revaluation Total
balance increasef(decre
ase)
Sculptures 83 080 17 160 100 240
Artefacts 500 - 500
Mayaoral chains 86 850 3570 90 420
170 430 20730 191 160
Reconciliation of heritage assets - 2023
Opening Revaluation Total
balance  increase/{decre
ase)
Sculptures 77920 5090 83080
Artefacts 500 - 500
Mayaral chains 71020 15 830 86 850
149 510 20 920 170 430

Pledged as security

None of the Heritage assets of the municipality was pledged as security.

Revaluations
Mayoral chains & sculptures

Heritage assets held by the municipality have an unlimited lifespan. The materials wilised in the manufacturing process are the
true value of these items and the municipality valued these materials on the following basis.

The mayoral chains were valued by independent valuers, Messer's Benjamin Jewellers of Groblersdal, the effective date being
30 June 2024, The valuations were performed utilising standards set by the Jewellery Council of South Africa of which the
company is a member of.

The sculptures (memorial stones) were valued by the independent valuers, Messer's van Wyk Tombstones of Marbiehall on a
replacement cost value. The effective date of valuation being 30 June 2024. These items were valued utilising cost effective
methods as they are relatively low value items and management deemed these valuations fair and reasonable for the items
disclosed.
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14. Other financial assels

Residual interest at cost

VBS Investment

During the 2018 financia! year VBS Mutual bank experienced financial difficulties which led
to breach of contracts when some of the matured investments and deposits could not be
honoured. The reserve bank then placed VBS Mutual bank under curatorship in 2018. The
Municipality had a short-term deposit of R 83 658 548, The Municipality accounts for short
term deposits as financial assets carried at amortised cost. The curator and National
Treasury only guaranteed retail depositors up to R100 000 per depositor, corporate and
Municipalities deposits were not guaranteed. The Municipality then impaired the total
investment of R 83 658 548 since ihere was no future cash flow expected from the VBES
Mutual bank. The lefter issued by the curater on the 11th March 2018 stated that the bank
will cease to accrue further interest as al the date it has been placed under curatorship. As
such the R83 658 548 has been determined using a straight line method to accrue interest
since end of February and 11 March 2018.The municipality did not receive any confirmation
from the curator, and it was confirmed that the investment should be fully Impaired or written
off for the financial year ending 30 June 2020.No additional information was received from
the Provincial Government and the curator of the V8BS Mutual Bank until during 2022
financial year when part of the investment was recovered amounting to R6 112 400.The
recovered amount has led to impairement reversal in the financial year 202172022
Management assessed the impairment and concluded that the full balance of the
impairment is R77 546 148 slill for the 2021/2022 and 2022/2023 financial years.

77 546 148

77 548 148

Impairment

77 546 148
(77 548 148)

77 546 148
(77 546 148)

15. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 17154206 16 542 345
Accrued leave 14762822 12722605
Accrued 13th chegue 2 234 056 2 069 558
Retentions 21013625 21 965 487
Credit balances on receivables 4 257 832 4066 022
Accrued salaries 367 834 338 064
Other creditors - Library and Town Hall deposits 238 655 237 655
Unallocated deposit account 1814816 4 8656 017
License and Motor vehicle agency function 38 039 67 202
61881885 62664955
16. Consumer deposits
Electricity 1203 811 1342 905

On application for the provision of municipal services the prescribed consumer deposit shall be paid. The minirmum deposit

payable is determined annually by the council and is contained in the tariff book produced annually.
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17.  Unspant conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

See note 24 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government.
18. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2024

Opening Interest Charg  Change in Total

Balance e annual  discount factor
Environmental rehabilitation 20177 473 3332534 11 814323 44 324 330
Reconciliation of provisions - 2023

Opening Interest Charg  Change in Total

Balance e annual  discount factor
Envirenmental rehabilitation 28 051 241 3 081 81 (2955669) 29177 473
Non-current liabilities 41 346 666 29177 473
Current liabilities 2977 664 -

44 324 330 29177473

Environmental rehabilitation provision

The environment rehabilitation provision relates to the decommissioning and rehabilitation of the landfill site situated on part of
portion 476 of the Farm Loskop-Noord,

The 2024 valuations were performed by Environmental and Sustainability Solutions cc.

Consumer Price Index {CPL):

The CPI is used for determining the future value of current costs in the year when the cost is projected to be incurred. The CPI
figure used in the GLCCM is based on the three-month average CPI for the quarter thal includes the financial year-end date.
The average of the CPi for the last three months amaounted to 5.1704%.

Discount rate:

GRAP 19 states that where the effect of the time valus of money is material, the amount of the provision shali be the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the abligation. In view of the long operational life of landfills, the time
value of money is considered material. GRAP 19 prescribes that the discount rate shall be the pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money, and the risks specific 1o the liakility. Mormally corperate bond rates are used
1o determine the discount rate. In line with GRAP 25 Defined benefit plans, government bond rates may also be used to
determine the discount rate.

The liability for this purpese is in most cases determined for a government entity (municipality). Therefore, government bond
rates are considered a more appropriate indicator of the risk associated with the entity than corporate bend rates to determine
the discount rate. The government bond rate most consistent with the estimated term of the liability should be used. As
inflation-linked RSA retail bond rates have longer terms than fixed RSA retail bond rates, inflation-linked rates are used.

The rate most consistent with the remaining life of the landfill published at the end of the quarter that includes the financial
year-end date was used. For this landfill the rate associated with the maximum pericd of 3 years was used, i.e.5% above CPIL.

Key financial assumptions used Assumption 2023-2024
CPI 5.1704%,Discount rate 10.1704% Net effective discount rate 5.%
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19. Employee benefit obligations

Defined benefit plan

The plan is a post employment medical benefit plan.

Post retirement medical ald plan

The employer's post-employment benefit health care liability consists of a commitment to pay a portion of the pensioners’ post-
employment medical scheme contributions. The liability is also generated in respect of dependants who are offered continued
membarship of the medical scheme on the death of the primary member.

The effective date of the Actuarial valuations was Friday, 30 June 2024. Valuations were performed by an independent Actuary,
One Pangaca Expertise and Solutions, as registered valuers, affiliated to Actuarial Society of South Africa and are not
connected to the Municipality

Long service awards

According to the rules of the long service awards scheme, which the municipality instituted and cperates, an employee (wha is
on the current conditions of service), is entitled to cash allowances calculated in terms of the rules of the scheme, after 10, 15,
20, 25 and 30 years of continued service.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Carrying value

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded({Post retirement
medical aid plan }

(21 102 055)

{14 891 573)

Present value:defined bensfit obligation-partly or wholly funded(Long service awards } (5094 839) (4 546 958)
(26 196 894) (19 438 531)
Non-current liabilities (25 196 946) (18 864 640)
Current liabilities (999 950) (573 893)
{26 196 898) (19438 533)

Net expense of the defined benefit obligation (medical aid) recognised in the statement of financial perfermance

Current service cost 742 838 1 060 549
Interast cost 2 076 553 2534630
Actuarial {gains) lossas 3703 894 (8 973 423)
Meducal Aud Subsidies paid to pensioners {312 802) {396 453)
6 210 483 (5 774 688)
Changes in the present value of the long service award obligation are as follows:
Opening balance 4 546 958 5 051 788
Contributions by Employer-(Benefits paid) (557 030) {912 275)
Net Expense -Contributions and Value adjusiments 1104 911 407 435
5094 839 4 546 958
Net expense of the long service award recoghised |n the statement of financial performance
Currenl year service costs 397 429 445 516
Expected return-Interest Charge 462 300 478 408
Actuarial gains {losses) 245182 (516 489)
Contributions by employer (557 030) {812 275)
547 881 {504 840)
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19. Employee bansfit obligations (continued)

Key assumptions used

Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Discount rate used-Post employment continued medical aid benefits 13,25 % 14,04 %
Discount rates used-Long service leave provision henefits 10,40% 10,6%
Normal Salary rate increase 585 % 6,32 %
Medical cost trend rates 8,68% 9,52%
General earning inflation rate (long-term) 4 85 % 532 %

Other assumptions

Assumed healthcare cost rends and general earnings rales have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in surplus ar

deficit. A ona percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trends rates would

Effect cn the aggregale of the service cost and interest cost-madical aid benefit

Effect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost-long service leave benefit
Effect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost-medical aid-discount rate
Effect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost-long service leave
benefit discount rate

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

2024 2023
Defined benefit obligation{Medical Aid Benefit) 21102 055 14 891 573
Long Service Award {obligation 5094 838 4 546 958

Defined contribution plan

It is the policy of the municipality to provide retirement benefits to all its employees. A
funds, all of which are subject to the Pensions Fund Act exist for this purpose.

The municipality is under no cbligation te cover any unfunded benefits,

20, Service charges

have the fellowing effects:

One One
percentage  percentage
polnt increase point
decrease
3241 312 2 445 982
920 698 804 365
2621792 3052795
847 982 872 4
2022 2021 2020
20 666 261 18 130 832 14 873 000
5051 798 4 617 046 4118 000

number of defined contribution provideni

Sale of electricity 71725589 65099 1566
Solid waste - Refuse removal 6220571 59016 997
77 946 160 71 016 163

21. Other income
Sundry income 764 520 2 551 366
Recoveries - 257 528
Fees 87 3256 113 549
851 845 2922 443
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22. Interest received
Interest on Eskom Deposits 44 221 507 782
Interest from exchange on outstanding receivable balances 2931 991 1996 623
Interest from non-exchange on outstanding receivable balances 11 156 236 8 649 757
Interest on current account 22190 574 13 445 760
Interest on call account 1617 296 -
38300318 24 599 922
23. Property rates
Ratas billed
Agricultural 28 019508 17 B39 547
Business and commercial 13 532 005 11 455 127
Residential 9 205 265 6 409 201
Stale owned 4 571231 4 332 283
55 328 009 40 126 248
Valuations
Agricultural 3045 042 000 1 801 053 647
Business and commercial 500 203 000 456 437 000
Educational 6 020 000 16 302 000
Municipal 168 695000 169 695 000
Public service infrastructure 4 796 900 16 974 100
Religious 23 490 000 25 500 000D
Residential 801 113000 771 577 000
State owned 908 401 000 840 502 000
Vacant 32 496 000 117 105 450

5 491 256 800 4 224 146 197

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every 5 years. The last general valuation came into effect on 1 July 2023.
Interim valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual property values due to
alterations and subdivisions. Montani Property Yaluers an independent ragistered valuer performed the valuation in terms of all

the legal requirements.
Rates are levied on a month to month basis.

24, Government grants and subsidies

Operating grants

Equitable share 191533000 178826 000

Financial Management Grant 3 100 000 3100 000

Expanded Public Works Programme Grant 2 560 000 1310000

Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management Grant 5 600 000 25
202793000 183 236 025

Capital grants

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 39976959 56 8521 000
242 769 959 240 057 025
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24, Government grants and subsidies {continued)
Conditional and Unconditional
Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received:

Conditional grants received 51 236 959 61231 000
Unconditional grants received 191 533000 178 826 000

242 768 959 240 057 00D

Municipal Infrastructure Grant

Current-year receipls 36 755000 56821 000
Internal Funding-(Debtor Treasury) 3221960 -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (39 976 960) (56 821 0Q0)

This grant is for the provision of Municipal Infrastructure.
The Municipality has spent R3 221 960 from own funding and has raised a debtor (National Treasury)

Financial Management Grant

Current-year receipts 3100 000 3100 000
Conditions met - fransferred to revenue (3100000) (3 100 000)

The grant is intended to promote and support reforms in financial management by building capacity in municipalities to
implement the Municipal Finance Management Act.

Expanded Public Works Programme Grant

Current-year receipts 2 560 000 1 310 00O
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2560000) (1310000)

The grant is intended to expand work crealion efforts through the use of labour intensive delivery methods in identified
focus areas, in compliance with the Expanded Public Werks Programme Guidelines.

Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management Grant

Ba'ance unspent al beginning of year - 3022
Current-year receipts 5600 000 -
Condifions met - transferred to revenue {5 600 000) (3 022)

The Programme supports Municipalities in their efforts to reduce electricity consumption optimising use of energy..
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25. Employee related costs
13th Cheque 5013947 5140 685
Acting allowances 328 062 472 538
Basic 61425195 61309 057
COVID 19 Allowance - 2 066
Current service cost - Post employment medical aid incentive scheme 742 838" 1 060 549
Current service cost - long service awards bonus 408 230 433 707
Defined contribution plans 12325512 11785981
EPWP Salaries 2583938 1358 111
Group life insurance 238 952 219949
Housing benefits and allowances 268 425 209 445
Leave pay provisicn charge 4 331479 2 166 948
Medicat aid - company contributions 3589910 3439138
Other payroll levies Bargaining Coungil 34 216 33199
Overlime payments 2 907 985 2 736283
SDL 831 267 800120
Short term benefit - Cellphone allowances 1126 241 1044 580
Standby allowance 487 352 463 653
internships Stipend 611 381 857 503
Travel, motor car, accommaodation, subsistence and other allowances 10 646 803 9513176
UiF 493 508 494 742
WCA 476 984 170 187
108 962225 103711615
Remuneration Municipal Manager: Moropa M
Annual Remuneration 846 708 126 493
Contributions to UIF, Medica! and Pension Funds 119072 19 186
Other Allowances 28426 4 495
Travel and Subsistence Allowance 157 034 23122
SALGA 138 22
SbL 9 250 1394
1160 628 174 712
Remuneration Municipal Manager: Matladi 5
Annual Remuneration - 337 660
Annual Bonus - 43 960
Coniributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 64 317
Leave Pay - 65412
Other Allowances - 9718
Travel and Subsistence Allowance - 47 419
SALGA - 43
SDL - 4792
- 573 319
Remuneration of acting Position - Municipal Manager -Rampedi M
Acting Allowance - 18 444
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25. Employee related costs (continued)

Remuneration Director Community Services-Maphutha Mashaba MY

Annual Remuneration 710 274 843 975

Travel and Subsistence Allowance 137 881 135 149

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 100 464 94 898

Cther Allowances 21751 20637

SALGA 144 130

SDL 7 806 7242
978 419 902 031

Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer - Modisane T

Annual Remuneration 674 175 107 329

Contributions ta UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 98 145 15 816

QOther Allowances 21751 3439

Travel and Subsistence Allowance 136 647 23515

SALGA 138 22

SDL 7 541 12086
938 397 151 327

Remuneration of acting Position - Chief Financial Officer - Mabija K

Annual Remuneration - 76 644

Person acled from 1 august 2022 to 28 February 2023

Remuneration of acting Position - Chief FInancial Officer - Madisha MSJ

Annual Remuneration - 20648
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25. Employee related costs {continuad)

Person acted from 6 March 2023 to 30 April 2023 and 1 July 2020 te 30 May 2022

Remunsration of Director Corporate Services:Rampedi M

Annual Remuneration 836 476 759 636

Travel and Subsistence Allowance 197 072 216 984

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 1230092 116 166

Other Allowances 21751 22 581

SALGA 137 130

SDL 9573 9075
1188 018 1124 552
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25. Employes related costs (continued)
Remuneration of Director Planning : Tjebane P
Annual Remuneration 706 987 550939
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 100 232 86 990
Travel and Subsistence Allowance 150 953 135 907
Other Allowances 21751 18 917
SALGA 144 119
SDL 7 885 6 261
987 952 799133
Remuneration Director of Infrastructure-Mashile P
Annual Remuneration - 498 255
Leave Pay - 107 866
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 108 833
SALGA - 88
Other Allowances - 13 758
SDL - 6 316
- 735114
Remuneration Director of Infrastructure-Maphutha T
Annual Remuneration 308 147 -
Travel and Subsislence Allowance 141 181 -
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 104 348 -
SALGA 102
SOL 5027 .
648 805 -
Remuneration of Acting Posltion Director of Infrastructure- Durie J
Annual Remuneration 10738
The Person acted from 1 June 2023
Remuneration of Acting Position Director of Infrastructure - Ramatselela T
Annual Remuneration - 99 088

The Person acted from 1 August 2022 to 31 May 2023
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26. Remuneration of councillors

Mayor 1005224 939 580
Speaker 826 650 761 223
Chief Whip 452 932 427 960
Executive Counciflors 2799 324 2878 502
Councillors 9 966 441 8921 525

15 050 571 13 928 800

Remuneration of Councillors

The remuneration of the politica! office bearers and councillors are within the upper limits as determined by the framework
envisaged section 219 of the Constitution. Refer to note 39 for the detailed breakdown of councillors’ remuneration.

27. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 62410051 57 352 099

28. Finance costs

Finance leases 2780721 274 277
Landfill site 3332 534 3081 901
Post-retirement medical aid benefit 2 076 553 2 534 639
Long service awards 462 300 478 408

8 652 108 6 369 225

29. Debt impairment

Debt incentive write-off/discount 1 996 289 4277815
Contributions to debt impairment allowance 8157 471 4 510 557

10 153 760 B 788 372

Included in the above balance for 2024 year is R461 443.99 being traffic fines impaired, R7 8956 027.21 for debt impairment
on Consumer debtors and R 1 996 289 for debt wile-off ag a result of Council debt incentive scheme.

Included in the above balance for 2023 year is R592 538 being traffic fines impairment, R3 811 088.18 for debt impairment on
Consumer debtors and R 4 277 815 for debt wite-off as a result of Council debt incentive scheme.

30. Bulk purchases

Electricity - Eskem 56 886 156 46 859 516

31. Contracted services

Presented previously

Information Technology Services 11325337 5 481 B85
Fleet Services and Securily services 10 886 531 8 143 203
Valuation services 1 558 239 1 469 935
Specialist Services 825 274 2479 201
Other Contractors 10639 208 11 060 295

35234590 28634619
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32. General expenses
Assets expensed 57 800 52 850
Audit Fees 5991 085 4712372
Bank charges 212118 227 958
CONLOG services 511 205 748 484
Catering and Hire Charges 3 366 760 27148671
Cleaning and Municipal operating cost 1176 581 986 610
Conferences and seminars 5959 052 5254 509
Consulting - collection cost and [egal fees 5090 302 7 324 000
Consumables 1192 534 1079746
Entertainment 21578 20 688
Fines and penalties 40 220 -
Fuel and oil 6426 141 5 388 488
Insurance 3629014 2 592 539
Audit committee 1585736 1590 828
Marketing 2084193 1642 636
Paostage and courier 220408 334234
Printing and stationery 107 295 19 885
Promaotions and sponsorships 312 957 393 845
Protective clothing 2710163 427 342
Ward committez stipend 2 659 500 2676 000
Services: adverts and corporate image 1 894 352 1487 937
Sewerage consumer account 35209 231830
Staff welfare 696 450 242 456
Subscriptions and membership fees 1533160 1 587 220
Telephone and fax 1199 788 1 563 847
Training 115 061 176 323
Transport and freight 1186 874 915 698
Travel - local 444 937 343 212
Utilities - Other including electricity connection increase in capacily project 6 554 906 4 656 095
57 025 397 50 392 541
CONLOG services was renamed to Administration expenses
33. Fair value adjustments
Investment property and heritage assets(Fair value model) 2105730 5 546 420
34. Auditors' remuneration
Fees 5991 095 4712 372
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35. Cash generated from operations
Surplus 40 466 454 71666 122
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 62 410 051 57 352 059
Gain or (Loss)-on sale of assets 1128 039 (277 893)
Actuarial gain / losses 3 949 076 (2478 103)
Fair value adjustments (2 105 730) (5 546 420)
Assets Impairement 1520606 4925 871
Debt impairment 10153 760 B 788 372
Finance charges -Landfill interest 3332534 3 081 901
Movements in employee benefit liability (880 634) (2 802 984)
Finance charges -Employee cost provision 2538 853 3013 047
inventory losses or write-downs - 242 439
Current service cost 1151 068 2988 512
Accrued leave 2040217 {12 722 505)
Accrued 13th cheque 164 498 (2 069 558)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 9 898 197 842
Consumer debtors (25 074 479) (16 402 100}
Receivables from non exchange transactions (2632 129) (198 412)
* Payables from exchange transactions {2 047 528) 21884477
VAT 1557 312 1672 296
Unspent conditional grants and receipts - (3 025)
Consumer deposits (40 094) (39 793)
96 830772 126 272 085

36. Financial instruments disclosure

36.1 Fair value of financial Instruments

The management of the municipality is of the opinicn that the carrying value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the annual financial statements approximate their fair values. In accordance with GRAP 104
the Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, together with the carrying amounis shown in the Statement of

financial position, are as follow

Financial assets

Carrying Carrying Fair value
Amount 2024 Amount 2023 2023
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 089 586 1457 457 1 457 457
Consumer debtors 36 949 873 32068143 32058 143
Cash and cash equivalents 350 462 684 359462684 318629848 318620848
Eskom Deposits 1 861 591 12 950 925 12 950 925
402 363734 402363734 365096373 365096 373
A total amount of R 83 658 548 short term deposit owed to the municipality by VBS was fully impaired.
Financia! liabilities
Carrying Carrying Fair value
Amount 2024 Amount 2023 2024
Payables from Exchange transactions 61 881 885 62 664 955 62 664 955
Consumer deposits 1293 811 1 342 905 1 342 905
Finance Lease 864G 743 7619435 7619 435
71 825 439 71627295 71627295
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36. Financial instruments disclosure (continued)

Fair Values.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities al the end of reporting period are determined as follows:
Fair values for financial assets are based on quoled market prices in active markets for an identica!l instrument. For

financial liabilities the contractual undiscounted cash flow is used. Balances due within 12 manths equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

30 June 2024
Maturity Analysis

Within 1 year 2 to 3 years Tatal
Payables from Exchange transactions 61 881 885 - 61881385
Consumer deposits 1293 811 - 1293311
Finance Lease 8 649 743 8 952 691 17 602 434

718254398 8952691 80778130

30 June 2023
Maturity Analysis

Within 1 year 2tc 3 years Total
Payables from Exchange transactions 62 664 955 - 62664955
Consumer deposils 1342 905 - 1342905
Finance Lease 7619435 17602435 25221870

71627 295 17 602435 89229730

a7, Commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for
. Property, plant and equipment 22 899663 24 008 866

Total capital commitments
Already coniracted for but not provided for 22 899663 24 008 866

Total commitments

Total commitments )
Auihorised capital expenditure 22 899 663 24 008 866
. Operating lease 886 276 2014 455

23785939 26023 321
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37. Commitments (continued)

Operating leases - as lassea (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 462 405 665 773

- in second to fifth year inclusive 423 871 4 348 682
886 276 2014 455

Renlal payments represent rentals payable by the municipality for certain of its office equipmeni. Rentals are negotiated for an

average term of 3 years. No contingent rent is payable.

Leases where risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments
received or paid under operating leases are recognised in statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis cver the

period of the lease
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38. Contingencies
38. Conlingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent Asset

Mathara Monica Mathebela and Khabo Anna Ramosibi Civil Recovery
Civil Recaovery

The municipality instituted civil proceedings against the former municipal manager and Chief Financial Officer for the recovery
of R 87 320 000,00 in terms of Section 32 (1) (b} of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 56 of 2003. VBS Curator has paid
R €. 1million into the municipal account. The matter will be kept in abeyance until the liquidation process is finalised. The
potential Asset or Recovery R81 207 600.00(2023/2024) and 81 207 600.00 {2022/2023)

Loge Construction

The municipal sent a letter of demand to Loge Conslruction which was appointed to construct Mooihoek-Mashemong internal
Street for the duration of 15 months effective from the 17th September 2017 to 17th Dacember 2021, which they failed to
complete The appointed consulting engineers, namely, MVE Consulting Engineers cenducted an assessment on the progress
and payments made at the time of the termination of the contract and it concluded that Loge Construction are still liable to
payback to the municipality an amount R2 208 182 87 which money has to date not been paid to the municipafity. The potential
Asset or Recovery (2023/2024)R2 206 182.87 and R2022/2023 (R2 206 182.87)

AL Mphago CIVIL JV Kgants Developers

The municipality realised retention to the Al Mphage Civil jv Kgants Developers company before the completion of the project.
The Potential assets recovery is RO99 284.00(2024/2023) and R999 284.00(2023/2022)

Dimo Survey & Civil Constraction {0c2/06/2022

Appointment of service providers without proper S8CM processes. The Potential assets recovery is R576 980.00(2024/2023)
and R576 880.00(2023/2022).

SK Seseqo Security

Appointment of service providers without proper SCM processes. The Potential assets recovery is R343 000.00(2024/2023)
and R343 000.00{2023/2022)

SCM and User Department (OC5/05/2023)

The municipality has incurred an expenditure to Basadzi Personnel Meadia for re-advertisement of a service provider for the
development of the shopping Mall. The Potential assats recovery is R4 650.67(2024/2023) and R4 650.67(2023/2022)

SCM and User Department (OC5/05/2023}

The municipality has incurred an expenditure to Basadzi Personnel Media for re-advertisement of a service provider for the
provision of traffic camera service . The Potential assets recovery is R3 349.35(2024/2023) and R3 349.35(2023/2022)

SCM and User Department {OC5/05/2023)

The municipality has incurred an expenditure to Basadzi Personnel Media for re-aﬁverlisement of a service provider for the
provision of traffic management system .The Polential assets recovery is R3 349.35(2024/2023) and R3 349.35(2023/2022)

MVE Consulting (QC5/05/2023)

The municipality paid MVE Consulting an amount for items that should not form part of professional services The Patential
assets recovery is R490 000.00(2024/2023) and R480 000.00{2023/2022}

Loge Construction (QC5/05/2023

77




Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality

(Registration number LIM 471)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

38. Contingencies {continued)

The municipality has maid an over-payment to Loge Construction Company Potential asseis recovery is R118
901.00{2024/2023) and R118 201.00(2023/2022)

Loge Construction (OC5/05/2023}

The municipality has maid an payment to Loge Construction Company work done not adhering to specification. The Potential
assets recovery is R796 950.00(2024/2023) and R796 960.00{2023/2022)

Loge Construction {(OC5/05/2023)

The municipality has maid an payment to Loge Construction Company work incurring a financial loss as a result of quality
Deficiencies done not adhering to specification. The Potential assets recovery is R60 670.00(2024/2023) and RGO
670.00(2023/2022)

ISIBAN] Charted Accountants {OC5/05/2023)

The municipality has maid an payment to ISIBANI Charted Accountants Company work already performed by Internal Audit.
The Potential assets recovery is R180 000.00 (2024/2023) and R180 000.00(2023/2022)

AL Mphago CIVIL {0C2-06-2022]

The municipality has maid & payment to Al Mphago Civil jv Kgants Developers company |, the payment was made in excess of
work done and items not verified on side. The Potential assets recovery is R2 7890 030.304.00(2024/2023) and R2 790
030.30(2023/2022)

Expenditure Department (OC2/06/2022)

The municipality made payment to SARS for interest charged due to overdue accounts. The Potential assets recovery is R190
760.08(2024/2023) and R190 760.08(2023/2022)

Expenditura AND Electrical Department {OC2/06/2022)

The municipality made payment lo ESKOM for inlerest charged due to overdue accounts. The Potential assets recovery is R47
209.20(2024/2023) and R47 209.20(2023/2022)

Expenditure Department and Administration Unit {OC2/06/2022)

The municipality made payment to TELKOM for interest charged due to overdue accounts. The Potential assets recovery is R2
48.00{2024/2023) and R2 408.00(2023/2022)

User Departments {0C2/06/2022)
The municipality made payment for Re-advert/ Erratum. The Potential assets recovery is R85 372.91(2024/2023} and

R95 372.91(2023/2022)

Councll suppoit Manhager (OC2/06/2022)

The municipality made payment for booking of accommodation however officials did not altend. The Potential assets recovery
is R4 445.00(2024/2023) and R4 445.00(2023/2022)

Expenditure AND Electrical Department (OC3/06/2024)
The municipality made payment to ESKOM for interest charged due to overdue accounts. The Potential assets recovery is
R1 760.18(2024/2023) and R1 760.18(2023/2022)

User Departments (OC3/06/2024)
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38. Contingencies (continued)
The municipality made payment for Re-advert/ Erratum. The Potential assets recovery is R6 043.50(2024/2023) and
R6& 043.50(2023/2022)

Contingent Liability
Ntshokue John Raphela

Claim for Damages and Specific Performance {High Court, Polokwane). The Plaintiff applied for the position of Chief Internal
Auditor, shortlisted, interviewed but not appointed. He was number one recommended by the panel. The Estimated Potential
Liability R2 500 000.00(2023/2024) and R2 500 000.00{2022/2023)

AfriForum NPC

Applicant approached the High Court, Polokwane for an order permitting its representatives to inspect the Marble Hall wasfe
water treatment plant for the purposes of collecting samples of water/sewage, examine the plant and sending the samples to
their water technicians for testing. The purpose Is to ensure that the Marble Hall Water Waste Treatment is properly managed
and cperated in accordance with terms & conditions of the Water Use License and National Water Act 368 of 1998.The
posibbility of outflow can not be determined.

Inkokeli Projects {PVT) LTD

Interdict (High Court, Polokwane) Both the municipality and Inkokeli Projects entered into various agreemeris around 1990 for
the development of Extension 6. The AG raised a query about the transaction bacause it did not follow the correct procedures.
Inkokeli Projects launched an application at the High Court requesting the court 1o grant it the right to market, sell and recsive
all the proceeds. The matter was settled out of courl on 5th June 2024, The poltential Liability R0.00(2023/2024) and R 35 930
000.00 - {2022/2023)

M.L. Masombuka

Judicial Review On the 30 June 2021 the Public Protector issued out a remedial action that the municipality must file a judicial
review to set aside the appointment of Ms. Masembuka as the Chief Internal Auditor. The posibbility of outflow can not be
determined. '

Hendrick Schosman Boerdery (PTY) LTD

Declaratory Order The Applicart want the Court to make an order that the current tasiff of R 0, 070 that the municipality is
charging on the farms is incorrect and that the court must calculate the correef {ariff. Notice of motion was served in May 2022.
The potential Liability R3 070 042.70 {(2023/2024) and R3 070 042.70(2022/2023),

Monica Mathebela

Cn the 8th November 2023 the former municipal manager instituted an action against the municipality Claiming damages. The
potential contingent liabilities is R1 292 492,00 {2023/2024) and RQ.00 (2022/2023)

Matladi Thabang Projects

The Plaintiff instituted civil proceadings at the High Court, Polokwane for services rendered, namely, the repairs done on the
municipality’s fleet. The potential Liability R1 004 145.69 (2023/2024) and R0.00{2022/2023).
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39. Ralated parties

Refationships

Accounting Officer Refer to accounting officers’ report note

Post employment benefit plan for employees of entity andfer other All qualifying Employees

related parties

Members of key management Refer to detail disclosure for Councillors Note 392 and

Management Remuneration Note 25

Remuneration of individual Councillors

2024
Councillor Code and Name  |Basic Salary|Pension cellphone  |Medical Car SDL Grand
and Data |contribution | Allowanc Total
Allowance e and
Travel
- Claim
C000010 Jacobs P (Exco) 372 293 28 706 48 570 - 2 960 3938 454 467
C000013 Sedibane F (Exco) 466 576 77183 46 570 - | 182247 5 850 778 428
CO00017 Mabaso T 387 136 41103 46 570 - | 160061 5 066 539 935
C000020 Moimana G {Mayor)] 791 834 133303 46 570 -1 26077 74398 | 1005223
C000021 Lentsoane R {(Speal|l 709 053 54 886 46 570 8 979 - 7163 826 650
C000023 Makola M 198 628 32 568 45 570 -] 75038 2758 365 561
000034 Tshiguvho E {Exco) 466 576 77 183 486 570 - | 188073 5 850 784 252
CO00035 Letsela N 224 425 21712 48 570 -| 67366 2 883 383 076
CO00037 Mpe J - - - - - 2 2
000032 Phahlamohlaka T 254 044 41795 48 570 - | 96994 32397 442 801
C000040 Aphane K 210 838 34739 45 570 - | 60664 2744 355 554
000041 Magatla N 269714 44 581 48 570 -] 86180 3380 450 425
CO00042 Maelane K 210 838 34739 45 570 -| 62747 2744 357 637
C000043 Thobejane P 223 865 21712 48 570 -] 70328 2078 365 452
C000044 Modipa S 210 838 34739 48 570 -| 61216 2744 356 106
(000045 Lekoatsipa L 211 780 34 889 45 570 - | B2464 2810 378613
C000048 Mello M 34 338 7 098 6 262 - 12 695 448 60 839
C000047 Mahubane S 210 838 34739 45 570 -1 65043 2 744 359 933
C000048 Kutu T 254 044 41795 458 570 - | 114832 3397 460 538
000049 Magane L (Chief W 261637 43 059 48 570 -] 98181 3485 452 932
C000050 Maphopha M 254 044 41795 48 570 - | 103 340 3397 449 147
C000051 Mmamahlako K 254 044 41795 45 570 - | 114175 3 397 450 982
€000052 Ramphele R (Exco) 466 576 77 183 46 570 - | 186 000 5 850 782 179
000053 Nkoana T 254 044 41795 46 570 -1 1115688 3397 457 395
000054 Mameshi S 210 838 34 739 46 570 -| 57898 2744 362 788
C000055 Mokwana B 254 044 41795 48 570 - | 107 035 3397 452 841
£000056 Sebothoma K 224 425 21712 46 570 -| 68205 2883 363 895
C000057 Seloma R 252 894 41795 46 570 - | 100 751 3 386 445 395
C000080 Mogale J 226 231 21712 46 570 -] 63798 3002 361 313
C000081 Manasoe M 267 782 44 711 46 570 -1 93081 3456 455 600
000062 Prisloo D 204 844 34739 46 570 -1 61011 2683 349 847
C000083 Mashianeg 8 201 847 34 739 46 570 -1 57898 2 653 343 707
C000064 Moela J 81 356 14 436 18 695 -] 23341 1066 138 893
C000065 Rabalago 8 131 748 23 593 29 769 -| 36893 1707 223 709
C000086 Lagoathi L 93 743 18 932 22 296 -1 29127 1258 165 356
Grand Total 0347754 | 1375997 1474 122 8979 2727 324 | 116 394 (15 050 570
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39, Related parties (continued)

2023
Councillor Code and Name | Basic Salary | Pension And | Cellphone Car SDL Grand
Medical Aid | and Data | Allowance Total
Allowance | and Travel
Claim

C000010 P Jacobs(Exco ) 323 8589 47 983 44 400 3394 3282 422 898
C000013 F Sedibane(Exco )| 422 918 76 893 44 400 173 043 5 407 722 661
C000017 T Mabaso 233512 37174 44 400 117 004 3215 435 305
C000020 G Moimana(Mayor| 751 853 136 527 44 400 -] 6811 939 591
C000021 R Lentsoane{Spes| 619 217 91 741 44 400 - | 5866 781 224
C000023 M Makola 178 450 32 588 44 400 76 163 2 543 334 142
CO00034 E Tshiguvho(Exco| 422918 76 893 44 400 192 559 5 408 742 178
CQOQ035 N Letsela 194 5§56 30117 44 400 63 872 2 596 335 541
C000037 J Mpe . 190 347 34 326 44 400 59120 2 521 330 714
C000038 H Schalekamp 110 843 20286 24 100 33827 1458 190 524
C000038 T Phahlamohlaka | 229 011 41 282 44 400 99 540 3126 417 359
C000040 K Aphane 190 347 34 328 44 400 59 023 2 521 330 617
000041 N Magatla 221 884 39 891 44 400 70671 2 862 379 708
CQ00042 K Maelane 190 347 34 326 44 400 59774 2 521 331 368
C000043 P Thobejane 192 451 32 222 44 400 65 607 2 558 337 238
C000044 S Modipa 190 347 34 325 44 400 61042 2 521 332 636
C000045 L Lekoatsipa 202 802 36 857 44 400 80 574 2 829 377 262
C€000046 M Mello 229 011 41282 44 400 97 034 3126 414 853
C000047 S Mahubane 190 347 34 326 44 400 65 491 2521 337 085
C000048 T Kufu 232 387 37 906 44 400 105 618 3186 423 497
C000049 L Magane(Chief | 235 938 42 498 44 400 101 M7 3207 427 960
CD00050 M Maphopha 220011 41282 44 400 100 853 3126 418 672
C000051 K Mmamahlako 229 M1 41282 44 400 1156 978 3127 434 708
C000052 R Ramphele(Exco| 422 91§ 76 167 44 400 179 607 5 393 728 485
CO00053 T Nkoana 229 011 41282 44 400 109 433 3127 427 253
C000054 § Mameshi 190 347 34 328 44 400 57 210 2 521 328 804
000055 B Mokwana 229 011 41282 44 400 96 006 3126 413 825
C000056 K Sebothoma 184 556 30 686 44 400 59724 2 590 331 866
C000057 R Seloma 208 337 37 564 44 400 91 363 2 883 384 547
000058 M Tlaka(Exco ) 141 671 25 108 26 385 67 182 1935 262 281
000060 J Mogale 194 556 29 790 44 400 57 917 2591 329 254
£000061 M Manasoe 237 934 42 806 44 400 4834 2 451 332 435
C000062 D Prisloo 81 534 14 030 18 500 24 646 1065 139775
CO000E3 S Mashiane 41 341 B 689 9 620 12 159 530 72 349
Grand Total 8 382 681 1457874 1 1410604 | 2573184 | 104 560 |13 928 80¢f
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40. Risk management
Financial risk management

Exposure to interest rates, liquidity and credit risk arises in the normal course of the Municipality's operations. This note
presents information about the Municipality's exposure o each of the above rigks, the policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk. Further quaniitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

{Refer to Note 36 Additional information on Financial instrumeant)
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Municipality not being able to meet its obligations as they fall due. The Municipality's approach to
managing liguidity risk is tc ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet its expected operating expenses and liabililies when
due, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Municipality's reputation. This is achieved by the
Muricipalily effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows forecasts.

(Refer to Note 36 Additional information on Financial instrument} .
Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash depasits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The municipality only deposits cash with
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating {o customers en an ongoing
basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. Credit guarantee insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate.

Other debtors are items that arose from overpayments and transactions resulting in debit balances on creditors payable by the
municipality. These items will be investigated for recoverability and they are currently not impaired. These items will be reporied
to Council during the 2021/22 financial period. These items are currently deemed recoverable but have an inherint credit risk
due to the nature of the item.

During the 2018 financial year VBS Mutual bank experienced financial difficulties which led tc breach of contracts when some
of the matured investments and deposits could not be honoured. The reserve bank has placed VBS Mutual bank under
curatorship in 2018. The Municipality had a short term deposit of R 83 658 548.00. The Municipality aceounts for short term
deposits as financial assels carried at amortised cost. The curator and Mational Treasury have only guaranteed retail
depositors up to R100 000 per depositor, corporate and Municipalities deposits are not guaranteed. The Municipality has
impaired the total investment of RB3 658 548.00 since there are no immediate and current cash flow is expected from the VBS
Mutual bank Investment.

There are no consumer debtors that are past due as at the end of the reporting period but not impaired. All consumer debtors
above 90 days are considered for impairment.

There are no financial assets that are individually delermined to be impaired as at the end of the reporting period

Financial assets exposed to credit risk al year end were as follows:

Financial instrument : 2024 2023
VBS Bank -Fully impaired on the Statement of Financial Posiiion and Statement of Financial 77 046148 77 546 148
Perfomance

Receivable from exchange transactions -Receivables not impaired 437 822 542 266
Eskom deposits 1861 581 12 950 925
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40, Risk management (continued})
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates, that may affect the

Municipality's income or the value of its financial instrument holdings. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on the risk.

Interest rate risk

As the municipality has significant interest-bearing assets on Call accounts, the municipality's income and operating cash
flows are not substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Municipality's exposure fo the risk of changes in market rates relates primarily to the municipality’s investments with
floating interest rates, '

Fair value interest rate risk

Financial assets Current interest 1 yearorlese  1-3 years >3 years Total
rate

Bank Balance-Main Account 6,00 % 336619388 - - - 336619 388

Short term deposits-Call 8109% 2284329 - - - 22843296

account

Financial liabilities Current interest 1 yearorless  1-3 years =3 years Total
rate

Finance lease 12,75 % 7619435 17602435 - - 25221870

Sensitivity analysis
Financial assets

As at 30 June 2024, if the weighted average interest rate at that date had been 100 basis points higher, with all other variables
held constant, the fair-value impact on the statement of financial performance would have been R383 million (2023: R321,8
million) with the opposite effect if the interest rate had been 10C basis points lowar. The sensitivity analysis is performed by
dividing the fotal investment interest earned for the year by the average interest rate earned to give the effect of a one-percent
maovement in interest rates.

Financial liabilities

Changes in the interest rate as at 30 June 2024 would have had no impact on the statement of financial performance, as all
Finance lease are at a fixed interest rate.

41, Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2024, the municipality had an accurnulated surplus of 1 290 467 106 and that the
municipality's tclal assets exceed its liabilities by 1 290 616 616.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
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41. Going concern {(continued)

During the 2018 financial year VBS Mutual bank experienced financial difficulties which led to breach of contracts when some
of the matured investments and deposits could not be honoured. The reserve bank has placed VBS Mutual bank under
curatorship in 2018, The Municipality had a short term deposit of R 84 073 833.00. The Municipality accounts for short term
deposits as financial assets camded at amortised cost. The curator and National Treasury have only guaranteed retail
depositors up to R100 000 per depositor, corporate and Municipalities deposits are not guaranieed. The Municipality has
impaired the total investment of R84 076 833.00 since there are no immediate and current cash flow is expected from the VBS
Mutual bank Investment.

The municipality will continue to receive grants from national revenue fund to fund its operations and capital projects.
42. Unauthorised expenditure

During the 2023/24 and 2022/23 financial periods no unautherised expenditure were identified.

43. Frultless and wasteful expenditure

Fruilless and wasteful expenditure-Opening Balance 35324 7 237 984
Add-Fruitiess and Wasteful Expenditure for the financia! period 2002 20 383
Less-krecoverable QC5/05/2023 - (20 152)
Less- Recoverable as per council resolution QC5/05/2023 - (1 857 880)
Less lrrecoverable OC2/08/2022 - (11 188}
Less Recoverable OC2/06/2022 - {5 533 825)
Payment Received (15 032) -
Irrecoverable OC3/06/2024 (13 8683) -
Recoverable QC3/06/2024 {7 804) -
807 35 324 ¢

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure for current year was brought to council and subsequently refered to council resolution
QGC3/06/2024 was tabled o council and resolved as follows :Fruit Add:Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure for the financial
period R2 002 Less-Irrecoverable OC3/06/2024 R(13 683),Less- Recoverable as per council resolution QCB8/06/2024 R{7 804)

The Municipality has recovered an amount of R15 032.00 related to services rendered for previous work performed on assets
impairmeant

The Fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R 7 222 952 was tabled to council and resclved as follows :Fruit
Add:Fruitless and Wasleful Expenditure for the financial pericd R 20 383 Less-Irrecoverable OC5/05/2023 R({20 152),Less-
Recoverable as per council resclution OC5/05/2023 R{1 657 880)Less Irrecoverable OC2/06/2022 R(11 186),Less
Recoverable OC2/06/2022 R (5 533 825)

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure consists of

Opening Balance 35324 7 237 984
Interest on Eskom Accounts 2002 656
Tender re-adverts - 19 727
Payment Received (15 032) -
irrecoverable OC3/06/2024 (13683) -
Recoverable OC3/06/2024 (7 804) .
Irrecoverable OC5/05/2023 - (20 152)
Recoverable as per council resolution OC5/05/2023 - (1 657 880}
Less Irrecoverable GC2/06/2022 - (11 186}
Less Recoverable OC2/06/2022 - (5 533 826)

807 35324
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44. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance 23822155 56724 350
Additional (Subsequent payments) in Fin Year 2023 - 47516144
Add: Irregular 1st Quarter OC2/11/2024 846 456 -
Add: Irregular 2nd Quarter OC3/06/2024 7 885 379 -
Add: Irregular 3rd Quarter OC/08/2023 4932178 -
Add: Irregular 4th Quarter OC/07/2024 7 566 056 -
Less: Investigated by MPAC (OC2/11/2024 (547 925) -
Less: Investigated by MPAC OC03/06/2024) (6 729 528) -
Less: Investigated by MPAC SC7/05/2024 (4 932 178) -
Less: Investigated by MPAC SC1/02/2023) (11 488 869) -
Less: Investigated by MPAC SC/02/2024) {17 713 342) -
Less: Irrecoverable Investigated by MPAC (OC2/06/2022) - (18773728)
Less: Recoverable Investigated by MPAC (QC2/06/2022) - (919 980)
Less: lrmecoverable investigated by MPAC (OC9/06/2023) - (33 261976)
Less: Irrecoverable investigated by MPAC (SC1/01/2023) - (36382 770)
Additonal Irregular Identified during Audit 2024 1 899 563 -
Add additicnal Irregular Exp {2023) - 8900115
55289845 23822155
Analysis of expenditure written off per age classification
Current year 21230069 47 516 144
Additional lrregular during Audit (2023) - 56724350
Add:Irreguar Expenditure 2023 23 822 155 -
Less: Irrecoverable Investigated by MPAC (0C2/06/2022) - (18773 728)
Less: Recoverable Investigated by MPAC (OC2/06/2022) (919 980}

Less:Total investigated by MPAC
Less: Irrecoverable investigated by MPAC (QC9/06/2023)

(41 421 842}

(33 261 976)

Less: Irrecoverable investigated by MPAC (SC1/01/2023) - {36362 770)

Add additional Irregutar Exp (2023) - 8900115

Additonal Irregular |dentified during Audit 2024 1 899 663 -
5529945 23822155

Details of irregular expenditure - Current Year -

There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 50 000

than 3 years during the year under review.

The differences identified batweean the tender amount and appointment letter 731 D64

Bid requirements not being fair and competitlive to make provision far other 1214 058

service providers to bid for quotations or bid of the municipality which is

contrary to SCM Regulation 27 and MFMA.

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 118 744

functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 911 971

Bid requirements not being fair and compestitive to make provisicn for other 993 321

service providers to bid for quotations or bid of the municipality which is

contrary to SCM Regulation 27 and MFMA.

There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 50 000

than 3 years during the year under review.

There was no municipal council resolution for approval of coniract for more 480 000

than 3 years during the year under review.

The differences identified between fhe tender amount and apoointment letter 315812

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 806 134

There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 50 000

than 3 years during the year under review.

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letler 297 471

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letler 601 781
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44. Irregular expenditure (continued)
Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 651162
functionality to be furher evaluated for procurement points.
Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 154 506
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.
There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for mere 50 000
than 3 years during the year under review.
There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for mare 50 DOO
than 3 years during the year under review.
There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 50 000
than 3 vears during the year under review.
The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 357 006
The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 402 768
The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 371 300
The differences identified between the tender amount and appeintment lettar 537 976
Bid requirements not being fair and competitive to make provision for other 86 569
service providers to bid for quotations or bid of the municipality which is
contrary to SCM Regulation 27 and MFMA.
Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 163 981
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.
Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 119 209
functicnality to be further evaluated for procurement points.
Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 218 142
functionality to be further evaluated for pragurement points.
Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 288 301
functionality to be further evalualed for procurement points.
Reasons for deviations not in line with the MFMA & SCM regulations 38 500
Reasons for deviations not in line with the MFMA & SCM regulations 45 Q00
The bid specification was not drafted in an unbiased manner which allow all 1 456 031
|patential providers to offer their goods and services.
Irregular appointment of employee - senior manager 744 366
Irregular appointment of employee - accountant 411 484
Irregular appointment of employee - senior manager 39 626
Irregular appointment of employee - accountant 72 441
There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 50 C00
than 3 years during the year under review.
There was no municipal council resoluticn for approval of contract for more 50 000
than 3 years during the year under review.
Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 447 925
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.
Iiregular appointment of employee - senior manager 77 859
Irregular appointment of employee - accountant 39626
Irregular appointment of employee - senior manager 45733
Irregular appgintment of employee - accountant 23 247
Irregular appointment of employee - senior manager 66 140
Irregular appointment of employee - accountant 31798
There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 50 000
than 3 years during the year under review.
Irregular appoiniment of employee - senior manager 72441
Irregular appointment of employee - accountant 39826
There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 707 250
than 3 years during the year under review.
The bid specification was not drafied in an unbiased manner which allow all 3728 508
potential providers to offer their goods and services.
The bid specification was not drafted in an unbiased manner which allow all 38 500
potential providers to offer their goods and services.
Reasons for deviations not in line with the MFMA & SCM regulations 45 000
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44. Irregular expenditure {(continued)

There was no munigipal council resolution for approval of contract for more
than 3 years during the year under review.

50000

There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more
than 3 years during the year under review.

50000

There was no municipal council resclution for appreval of contract for more
than 3 years during the year under review.

50 00D

The bid specification was not drafted in an unbiased manner which allow all
potential providers to offer their goods and services.

2188 503

Irregular appointment of employee - senior manager

41 8§72

Irregular appointment of employee - accountant

76 999

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

331 510

Procurement and Coniract Management: Contract extension for Mabotwane
Security Services ig not inline to the SCM Palicy, SCM Regulations & MFMA

1899 583

Total

23129724

Details of irregular expenditure - 2022/2023

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurament points.

765 605

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

426 074

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurament points.

519 195

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

707 257

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurament points.

396 721

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

1016 180

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

1073911

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

621 212

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points,

730 241

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points..

585 411

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on
functionality to be further avaluated for procurement points,

205 640

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter

1071082

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter

1476 889

Irregular appointment of service provider without following proper SCM
processes

1196 661

10 801 079

Additional 2023 Irregular Expenditure

Completeness of Irregular Expenditure: Irregular expenditure incurred for the
appointments of employees were not disclosed in the current year annual
financial statements in Note 45 (Position of Director Planning and Accountant
Bank reconciliation)

1179 257

Procurement and contract management: The bid specification was not drafted
in an unbiased manner which atlow ali potential providers to offer their goods
and services.

4 443 302

Procuremant and Contract Management: Reasons far deviations not in line
with the MFMA & SCM regulations {Rateilei& Manja VIP Security Services and
Yetsegala on ICT Service)

1 039 250
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44, Irregular expenditure (continued)

lirregular expenditure — VAT erroneously omitted 2238 308
- 8 900 115

Additional 2021/22 Irregular Expenditure -

There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 1871639

than 3 years during the year under review.

Winning bidder not disqualified for failure to initialise bid documents as 6 951 660

required by Bid Requirements contrary o the Supply Management Policy and

SCM Regulations.

Criteria under functionality not adequately developed as the specific goal did 19 266 020

not indicate the points which may be awarded in terms of the points system

set out in the supply chain management policy of the municipality.

Bid requirements not being fair and competitive 1o make provision for other 6 014 855

service providers to bid for quotations or bid of the municipality which is

conirary toc SCM Regulation 27 and MFMA.

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 761 154

The differences identified between the lender amount and appointment letter 1521025

Deviation did not include the reason for the deviation in the deviation form and 328 912

the auditer could not conclude if whether the deviation was reasonable and

valid

Total 36 715 085

Grand Total 56 416 259

Details of irregular expenditure for 2022 -

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 866 361

functionality 1o be further evaluated for procurement points.

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 2 458 552

functicnality 1o be further evaluated for procurement peints.

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 1157 440

functionality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

Tender Documents stated 1hat the bidder must score 70% or more on 1376374

functianality to be further evaluated for procurement points.

Tender Decuments stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 1374 342

functionality to be further evaluated for procurement paints.

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 800 343

functionalily to be further avaluated for procurement paints.

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must scere 70% or more on 880 632

functionality to be further evaluated for procurement paints.

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 1378577

functionality to be further svaluated for pracurement peints.

Tender Decuments stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 538 706

functionality to be further evaluated for pracurement peints.

Tender Documents stated that the bidder must score 70% or more on 1379872

functionality to be further evaluated for pracurament points.

The differences identified between the tender amount and appaintment letter 581 625

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 646 250

Irregular appaintment of service provider without following proper SCM 343 000

rocesses
Irregular appointment of service provider without following proper SCM 576 980
rocesses

FPayment made after contract has expired - July and August 2021 162 284

- 14 521 338

Additional Imegular Expenditure
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44. Irregular expenditure {continued)

There was no municipal council resolution for approval of contract for more 810 525
than 3 years during the year under of contract for more than 3 years during
the year under

Winning bidder not disqualified for failure fo initialise bid documents as 5191 237
required by Bid Requiremants contrary to the Supply Management Policy and
SCM Regulations.

MBD 4 not fully completed by as required bid requirements however the 2333099
municipality awarded the bid to the service provider resulting in irregular

expenditure.

Winning bidder not disqualified for failure to initialise bid documents as 10 074 870

required by Bid Requirements contrary to the Supply Management Policy and
SCM Regulations.

Criterta under functionality not adequately developed as the specific goal did g 237 378
net indicate the points which may be awarded in terms of the points system
set out in the municipalily. supply chain management policy of the
|Municipality.

Bid requirements not being fair and competitive toc make provision for other 4 025 575
service providers te bid for quotations or bid of the municipality which is
contrary to SCM Reguiation 27 and MFMA

The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 373 730
The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 352 190
The differences idenlified between the tender amount and appoiniment letter 383079
The differences idenlified between the tender amount and appointment letter 1233 352
The differences identified between the tender amount and appointment letter 1086 818
Criteria under functionalily not adequately developed 808 433
Deviation did not include the reason for the deviation in the deviation form and 1140 356
the auditor could not conclude if whether the deviation was reasonable and
Valid
- 37 030 640
- 37 030 641

During the financial year 2023, Irregular expenditure had an opening Balance of R 56 724 350,00 with an additional R
47 516 144.00 as subsequent payments during the year. All these expenditures were reported to council and Investigated by
Municipal Public Accounts Committee. A fotal amount of R 80 418 340.70 was written off after investigation and closing
balance amounted to R 23 822 153.30 as Audited,

During the financial year 2023/2024 of repoiting, the Irregular Expenditure had an Opening Balance of R 23 822 153.30.
subsequent payments were incurred during the financial year which amounted ta R 21 230 158,30 combined from four quarters
of the financial year and were all tabled to council as and when reported. Council referred the expenditures to MPAC for further
investigation and some of the expenditures were written off, (R 11 498 869,44} with council resolution number SC1/02/2023. A
further (R 4 932 177) was written off with resolution SC7/05/2024,

Irregular Expenditure Amounted to R 3 640 383.96 as at 30 June 2024 as a closing balance for further investigation. All these
Expenditures were tabled to council for consideration of MPAC. MPAC investigated furlher and has tabled to council a further
write off during the first quarter of the financial year 2025 subsequent to the closure of the financial year 2023/2024 under
review with an amount of { R 6 729 528.38) with council resolution number QC3/06/2024 and (R 547 925.00) with council
resolution number OC2/11/2024 and {R 17 713 342.05) with council resolution number SC/02/2024.

45. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
Contributions to organised local government

Current year subscription / fee 1404 694 1 307 257
Amount paid - current year . {1404 694) (1 307 267)
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45. Additicnal disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued)

Electricity Distribution Loss

Units 1 350 063 573 392
Distribution Loss % - 412% 1,85%
Amount kss - current year (at average cost) 2 259 465 629 158

Distribution losses were below the norm of 7-10% as set by National Treasury in terms of Circular 71. The distribution loss was
recorded at 4.12% for the financial year.

Audit fees
Current year subscription / fee 5991 095 4 713 972
Amount paid - current year (5991005 (4713972)

Audit fees paid to the Office of the Auditor General amounted to R5 991 095 for 2023/2024 and R 4 713 972 for the 2022/2023
financial year. There were no outstanding audit fees in the respective year ends.

PAYE and UIF
Current year subscription / fee 17087612 16 013009
Amount paid - current year (17097612} (16013 009)

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions

Current year subscription / fee 26178872 25238411
Amount paid - current year (26 178 872) (25238 411)

Councillors' arrear consumer accounts

No councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2024:
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45. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Managsment Act (continued)

Supply chain management regulations

Paragraph 362} of SCM reguiation states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in
certain circumstances, provided that the accounting officer records the reasons for any deviations and then reports them to the
next meeting of the accounting officer and includes a note to the annual financial statements.

In terms of section 36(1)(a) of the Supply Chain Management Regulations, the accounting officer may dispense with the official
procurement processes in the following instances:

. Sole suppliers
. Emergency
. Impracticality

In terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations, any deviation from the supply chain
management policy needs to be approvad by the accounting officer and noted by Councit. Deviations from

the official procurement process during the financial year were approved by the accounting officer and noted by
council in terms of the delegations as stipulated in the Supply Chain Management Policy and amount 1o approximately
the following:

Incident

Sole Provider supplier 160 290 407 168

Impassible or impracticable to foliow procedure 167 000 996 200

Emergency supplias 167 283 303 589

494 573 1706 957

DATE NAME OF SUPPLIER DEVIATION AMOUNT REASON FOR DEVIATION

20-07-2023 SALGA Deviation Reason No 2; 25000 SALGA is the host of the event
"If such goods or services and registration fees should be
are produced or available paid directly to them which will
from a single provider make it impractically impossible to
only® follow the normal supply chain

process of requesting at least
thres written price guotations.

28-07-2023 SAIMSA Deviation Reason No 2; 11 Q00 Inter Municipal Sports of SA is
"If such goods or services the host of the event and
are produced or available registration fees should be paid
from a single provider direclly to them which will make it
only" impractically impossible to follow

the normal supply chain process
of requesting at least three wrilten
price quotations.

15-08-2023 Manja Trading Deviation Reason No 5; 38 500,00 |VIP Protection for the Municipal
"In any other excepticnal Speaker
case where it is
impractical or impossible
to follow the official
procurament processes”.

15-08-2023 Rateitei Security Servict| Deviation Reason No 5; 45 000,00 | VIP Protection for the
“In any other exceptional MunicipMayor
case where it is
impractical orimpossible
to follow the official
procurement processes”.

15-08-2023 Workshop Electronic  |Deviation Reason No 2; 23 065,55 |Calibration and service of a grade
“If such goods or services lane machine used to test vehicle
are produced or available and workshop electronic is the
from a single provider only service provider
only”
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45. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued)

15-D8-2023 EAPA-SA Deviation Reascn Mo 2; 2399800 |EAPA-SA is the host of the event
"If such goods or services and registration fees should be
are produced or available paid directly to them
from a single provider
only"

15-08-2023 CIGFARQ Devialion Reason No 2; 45630,00 |CIGFARQ is the host of the event
"If such goods or services and registration fees should be
are produced or available paid directly to them which will
from a single provider make it impractically impossible to
only" follow the normal supply chain

process of advertising on the
notice board for atleast 7 days.

23-10-2023 Mamogobo Alf (Pty) LT[|Deviation Reason No 1; 187 283,00 |The municipal dozer is currently
"In an emergency” damaged and requires significant

fixing which will take a while as
per the diagnostic report from the
manufacturer, The municipality
urgently requires the services of a
dozer at the 1andfill site for the
services of covering of waste and
compaction. The landfili is
becoming a health hazard to the
cfficials werking at the landfill.

29-06-2024 CIGFARO Deviation Reason No 2; 31 596,00 |CIGFARO is the host of the event
"If such goods or services and registraticn fees shoukl be
are produced or available paid directly to thern which will
from a single provider make it impractically impossible to
only” follow the normal supply chain

process of advertising on the
municipal website for 7 days.

30-06-2024 Manja Trading Daviation Reason No 5; 38 500,00 |VIP Protection for the Municipal

: "In any other exceptional Speaker
case where it is
impractical or impossible
to follow the official
procuremeant processes”.
30-068-2024 Rateitei Security Deviation Reason No 5; 45 000,00  {VIP Proteclion for the
Services "In any other exceptional MunicipMayor
case where itis
impractical or impossible
to follow the official
procurement processes”.
Grand Total - - | 494 572,55 -
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46,

Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts
Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts
1. Variance is as a result of tender document not being purchased in the municipality but being printed directly from E-tender
website.

2. Variance between budget and actual of service charges could be atlributed to having a number of users utilising alternative
source of energy like gas,solar as a consequense of load shedding,

3. Rentals variance is mainly as a result of one of rental property of the municipality being burned down by fire.

4, Variance is attributed to lass Licensing and registration being conducted that anticipated.

5. Unallocated deposit were recognised as revenue since they were unclaimed for 36 months.

6. Variance between actual and budget is mainly due to interest received on a short- term investment and current account
interest. '

7. The difference is as a result of continued data cleansing, supplementary valuation roll and implementation of new valuation

roll,

8. Interest an outstanding debtor’s variance can be attributed to incentives given to cuslomers who wants to settle their long
outstanding debt.

9. Variance is as caused capital grant (MIG) being disclosed separate from financial performance from the budget side. MIG
was spent 100% in the current year.

10.
11.
12,
13
14,
15.
16.

17

18.
19.
20.
21,

Under budgeting can be attributed to budgeting fines on cash basis instead of accrual basis.
Variance is as a result of vacant positions not yet fillad.

Remuneration of councillors is based on government gazette on upper limits for councillors
Due to late appointment of service providers that resulted in subdued expenditure,
Attributed to some assets being derecognized such as access road on golf club.

No provision was made on this non-cash items such as inlerest on landfill sites.

Savings on photocopy machine was realized.

. Variance is as a result of new valuaticn roll which derecognised and transferred some properties to sister municipalities.

More electricity was purchased due fo relaxation of load shedding.
Attributed o less spending on contracted services than budgeted for resulting in savings.
Attributed to ESKOM upgrade to increase electricity supply/capacity to the municipality.

Attributed to non-spending of some budgel items in general expenditure.

22 Altributed to profit and loss on disposal of assels.

23. Aftributed to investment fair value adjudgment in the current year.

23.1 Attributed to current year assessment on employee obligations.
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46. Budget differences (continued)

24, Less stock on hand than projected.

25. Budget allocated to receivables instead of Consumer debtors

26. Some Budget allocated to receivables instead of Cansumer debtors

27. Variance is caused by budget splitting VAT between Current assets and Liabilities.
28. More consumer owing the Municipality at year end.

29. The variance is as a result of less estimate on cash and cash equivalents than realised, mainly as & result of not spending
100% on internal funded projects.

30. Derecognition of investment property where municipality has lost control in terms IGRAP 18 and more budget was provided
than the realised investment propenrty fair value.

31. Attributed to less spending on internal capital projects.

32 No procurement of intangible assets was made at year end.
33. Attributed to fair value adjustments.

34, Attributed to deposit held by ESKOM.

35, Variance attributed to the reduction of unallocated deposits which have been allocated to respective consumer accounts as
weil as retention claims that were paid out.

36. Attributed to more accruals being recagnised in the current financial year.

37. Slight difference is because of more estimate on consumer debtors thal realized.
38 Variance is as a rasult of yearly actuariai calculation of employee obligation.

39 No current provision in the year under review.

40. Recognition of long-term finance lease.

41, Variance is as a result of yearly actuarial calculation of employee cbligation.

42. Variance is as a rasult of splitting provision between short term and long term.
43. immaterial.

44. variance is emanating from all assets less all liabilities.

45, Variance between budget and actual of service charges could be attributed to having a number of users utilising alternative
source of energy like gas,solar as a consequence of load shedding.

46. The variance on the operating activities is as a result of savings on supplies and employee cost payment.
4.7 The variance on the investing aclivities iz as a result of spending on capital expenditure.

48. The variance is result of less estimate on cash and cash equivalenis than realised.

Changes from the approved budget to the final budget
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48, Budget differences [continued)

The changes between the approved and final budget are a consequence of reallocations within the approved budget
parameters. For delails on these changes please refer to the annual report.

47. Prior period errors
The following prior year errors were idenlified and adjusted retrospectively.

1(a). Skills development Levy(SDL) amounting te R800 120 was remapped from General expenses in prior year to Employee
related cost.

2.Note 25 government grants and subsidies had casting error on conditional grants received of 18 000 000 and unconditional

grants received of R50 075 000
Property Plant and Equipment
1) Roads

During the financial year ended 30 June 2024, it was identified that the municipality erroneously recorded roads in
a golf club as part of its assets. These roads, with a cost of R10,0567,775.51, do not belong to the municipality. The
error resulted in an overstatement of both the cost and accumulated deprecialion of the municipality's assets.

The error arose due to the incorrect inclusion of roads in a golf club in the municipality’s asset register. This led to
the overstatement of property, plant, and equipment (PPE) and depreciation expenses in the financial statements.

2} Work in Progress

During the financial year ended 30 June 2024, it was identified that certain work in progress (WIP) was not fully
transferred to the appropriate accounts. The affecled projects include Manapyane HML (R212,291 41), Dicheoung
Internal Road (R8,000.00}, and Leuwfontein Sports Complex (R498,400.00).

The error arose due to the failure to transfer the costs associated with these projects from the work in progress
account to the relevant asset accounts. This resulted in an overstatement of the WIP and an understatement of
the completed assets in the financial statements,

3} Investment Property (Land)

During the financial year ended 30 June 2024, it was identified that the municipality lost control over five
investment properties classified as land with a tolal value of R 5 918 000. These properties were initially
recognized as investment properties intended for capital appreciation. However constructions were carried out on
these properties, resulting in the development of RDP houses and a school.The properties will be transfered to
Substance Over Form (S8OF) register since they are registered in the Municipality’s nama but does nol have
control over.

4) Duplicate entries

During the financial year ended 30 June 2024, it was identified that there was a duplication error in the recording
of an electricity poles. The cost of the duplicated assets was R1,080,000, with depreciation of R43,151.04 and
accumulated depreciation of R604,987.80,

The error arose due to the duplication of entries in the asset register, resulling in the overstatement of both the
cost and accumulated depreciation of the electricity poles.
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47. Prior period errors {(continued)
5)
Storm Water (WIP)

During the year ended 30 June 2024 it was noted that the Stormwater in extension 8 (amounting to R17 368
£649,29) was completed in 2021 but was not transferred from Wark In Progress to Infrastructure Assets. This
error resulted in WIP being overstated and PPE stormwater understated by the same amount.

8) During the financial year ended 30 June 2024, Municipality identified an error in the calculation of depreciation for certain
fixed assets. The error resulted from the use of incorrect depreciation rates applied 1o property, plant, and equipment over the
past financial year

7)Commitments

In the current period, we identified a prior peried efror related to the classification and disclosure of a finance lease liability.
Specifically, a finance lease liability amounting to R24,947,582 was incorrectly disclosed as both commitments and lease
liabilities in the financial statements for the prior period.

The error involved the dual misclassification of the finance lease liability, which should have been accurately reporied solely
under finance lease liabilittes. Instead, this amount was ermonecusly reported as both commitments and lease liabilities, leading
to double reporting and misrepresentation of our financial ebligations. It was also noted that commitments on operating lease
was overstated by R 555 (34.The effect of the error is disclosed below

Previously reported.; -

Capital Commitments 24 008 866
Qperating lease 2 569 489
Finance lease 24 947 592

- 51 526 947

Restated commitments: -
Capital Commitments 24 008 866

Cperating lease 2 014 455
_ 26 023 321

8.During the implementation of the new valuation roll, it was identified that there are properties that are in our municipal system
which have no owner registered and others belonging to another local authorily (either being Elias Motswaledi Local
Municipality or Mookgopong Local Municipality). These properties were previously billed as they were included in the previous
valuation rell and therefore credit notes were passed on those respective account numbers in 2024 financia! year, however
journals needed to be passed to allocate them to the current financial year and he previous financial year for comparative
purposes.

9.Financial instrument disclosure note has derecognised statutory components on receivable from non-gxchange transactions,
consumer debtors and VAT receivables

10. During the year it was discovered that losses on disposal of fixed assets were errounsly mapped to fair value adjustments
line which resulted in overstatement on profit on disposal and understatement of fair value adjustment by R425 971.

11.Note 22 (Interest receved):Interest on cash and cash equivalents was seperated to interest on current account and interest
on call account while interest on investments was renamed interest on Eskom depaosits

12.During the year under review, management discovered that infrastructure asets under construction were errounously
classified in work in progress reconciliation under note 12 as community assets. The total of R25 127 947 was reclassified from
communily assets to infrastructure assets. :

13.Note 36 (Financial Instruments ) and Note 40 (Risk Management Ydisclosures were revised to fully comply with GRAP 104
requirements ,

14.Bursaries and Learnship expenses were reclassified {also renamed) from Government grants and subsidies note 50, to
Employee related costs -( Intemship Stipend), note 25.
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47. Prior period errors (continued)

15.Note 45 , (Additional disclosures in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act) item VAT disclosure was removed from
the disclosures to comply with section 125 of the MFMA.

16.0uring the year, management discovered that there was R98 700 that was emcneously adjusted against infrastructure
instead of community assets. The error resulted in understatement of infrastructure and overstatement of community assets,

17 Note 54 was revised to fully comply with GRAP 25 by excluding officials that were not permanently employed.

18.An amecunt of R18100 was reclassified through mapping from Audit Commiitee (general expenses) to Repairs and
maintenace-(Expenditure)

19.Reclassification of expenses was done between contracted services (expenditure}, note 31 and general expenses note 32.

20.8Segment Reporting note 52 has been restarted in line with GRAP 18 requirements and some dascriptions on the face of the
note (table) have been shortened to allow full presentation.

{The carrection number is indicated in brackets next to the item adjusted. Brackets on amounts is for Credit
adjustment and no brackets for Debit adjustment).
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47. Prior period errors (continued)

Statement of financizl position

PPE: Infrastructure roads cost (1)

Accumulated depreciation - Roads (1)

Accumlated surplus{1)

PPE; Infrastructure HML Cost (2)

PPE: Infrastructure Roads Cost (2)

PPE: Infrastructure Community Assets Cost (2)
Work In Progress {2)

Investment Property (3)

Accumlated surplus (3}

PPE; Electrical Infrastructure Cost (4)

Accumulated depreciation - Electrical (4)
Accumlated surplus {4)

PPE: Roads & Stormwater Infrastruciure(5)

Work In Progress (5)

Accumulated depreciation (5)

Accumlated surplus(5)

Accumulated depreciation (2)

Infrastructure asset

Community asset

Community Assets: Accumulated depreciation (6)
Computer Equipment:Accumulated depreciation (6)
Furniture and Office Equipment: Accumulated depreciation (6)
Machinery and Equipment:Accumulated depreciation (6)
Infrastructure:Accumulated depreciation (8)
Transport Assets:Accumulated depreciation (6)
Debtors Rates (7)

Debtor Other (7)

Debtors -Properly Rates (7)

Debtors-Interest(7)

Accumulated Surplus {7)

Increase in infrastructure work in progress (12)
Decrease in community assets work in progress (12)
Opening Accumulated Depreciation:Infrastructure Assets(6)

Opening Accumulated Depreciation: Community Assets Assels (8)

Opening Accumulated Depreciation:Buildings (B)
Accumlated surplus {6)
Accummulated Depreciation Electrical (2)

Defined Benefit Obligations:Medical:Actual employer benefit payments (17}

Provision:Long-service Awards (17)

(10 057 776)
5634 100
4 825 528

212 291

8 000

458 400
(718 691)
(5 918 000)
5 918 000
(1 080 000)
604 987
518 163
17 366 649

{17 366 649)

(1 200 229)
505 563
(15 912)

98 700
{98 700)
28 472
(3 055)

10 802
(84 088)
(153 214)
{12 721)

3 543 932
1796 109
(6 046 400)
(3164 335)
7 705 989
25 127 945
(25 127 945)
459 046
15 695
5979
(468 762)
(8 179)

3 941

11 809
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47. Prior period errors (continued)

Statement of Financial Performance

Employee related costs-SDL1(a) - 800 120
General Expenses(SDL) 1(a) - (800 120)
Depreciation (1) - (401 852)
Depreciation (4} - (43 151}
Infrastructure: Storm water extension (5) - 694 666
Communily assets: Depreciation (2) - (15 912)
Electrical :Depreciation (2} - 8179
Computer Equipment; Depreciation (&) - 3055
Deprec community assets (6) . - (28 472)
Furniture and Office Equipment;Depreciation (6) - (10 602)
Machinery and Equipment: Depreciation (6) - . 84 086
Infrastructure: Deprecialion (6} - 153 214
Transport Assets: Depreciation (6) - 12721
Properly Rates (7) - 826 210
Interest from Exchange Transactions (7) - 678 547
Impairment-Rates (7) - (3 543 932)
Impairment -Other (7) - {1 796 109)
Profit or {loss) on disposal of fixed assets (10) - 425 971
Fair value adjustments {10) - (425 971)
Employee related costs- Intemships Stipend (14) - 857 603
Goverment grants and subsidies-Bursaries and Learnership (expenses) (14) - (857 503)
Employee Related Cost:Municipal Staff:Salaries Wages and Allowances (17) - {11 809)
Repairs and Maintenance (18) - 18 100
Audit Committee -(General expenses) (18) - (18 100)
General expences (subscription) (19) - 9850
General expenses(staff welfare) (18) : - 53 253
General expenses(Promoticn and sponsor} (19) - 81810
General Expenses Advert and corp image (19) - 7 804
General expenses Audit Committee (19) - 102 062
General expences (utilities) (19) - 25 450
Conlracted Services (Special contractors) (18) - (78 703)
Contracted Services (other contractors) ({19) - {171 526)

48. Events after the reporting date
There ara no events after the reporting date.

49. Lease rentals on operating lease

Photocopiers
Contractual amounts 1626783 1 387 365

Operating leases - as lesses (expense)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the municipality for certain office equipment and service delivery
property. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 years. No contingent rent is payable.
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50. Government grants ,transfers and subsidies

Other subsidies

Indigent Relief 803 069 1058615

Eskom upgrade 11 493 554 -

Bursaries and Learnership 573 650 600 208
12 870 282 1658 823

51. Change in estimate

Property, plant and squipment

'Change in estimate useful lives

During the year ended 30 June 2024 the total useful life of assets were reassessed per assel category

The change has the following effect cn the property, plant and equipment note:

Current year - -

Increasef (Decrease} in depreciation expense due to re-assess -

Computar Equipment -39 736,64

Furniture and Office Equipment -41 909,04

Machinery and Equipment -49 446 76

Community assets: -8 759,86

Infrastructure: -583 906,00

Grand Total -723 758,30

52. Segment information
General information

Identification of segments

The municipality is organised and reports to management on the basis of major functional areas. The segments were
organised around the type of service delivered and the target market. Management uses these sama segments for

determining strategic objectives. Some segments were aggregated for reporting purposes.

Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segments' performances
and for making decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of information about these segments is also

considered appropriate for external reporting purposes.
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52. Segment information (continued)

Aggregated segments

The municipality operates throughout the LIM 471 demarcation. Segments were aggregated on the basis of services
delivered as management considered that the econemic characteristics of the segments throughoul LIM 472 were
sufficiently similar to warrant aggregation.

The fallowing segments were aggregated:

Finange:BTO

Solid Waste Removal:Solid Waste

Finance:Finance

Mayor and Council:Council

Roads:Roads& Stormwater (650)

Health Services:HIV/AIDS

Fleet Management.Fleet Mangement

Cemeteries Funeral Parlours and Crematoriums:Paks & Cemetries

Town Planning Building Regulations and Enforcement and City Engineer:Urban Sevelopment
10 _[Municipal Manager Town Secretary and Chief Executive:Municipal Manager

11 |Information Technalogy:Information Communication Technology (ICT)

12 |Housing:Housing and Building

13 iFinance:Defaull

14 [Licensing and Regulation:Licencing and Traffic

15 | Electricity:Electricity

16 [Finance:REVENUE

17 | Administrative and Corporate Support:Administration

18 |Sports Grounds and Stadiums:Sports Arts and Culture

19 |Human Resources:Human Resources

20 |Licensing and Regulation:Registration Authority

21 [Libraries and Archives:Library

22 [Health Services:Health General Services

23 |Roads:Roads & Stormwater 2

24 |Roads:Roads & Stormwater 1

25 _|Town Planning Building Regutations and Enforcerent and City Engineer:Technical Services
28 [Consumer Protection.Community Services Management

27 |Administrative and Corporate Support:Corporate Services Management

28 [Marketing Customer Relations Publicity and Media Co-ordination:Communication
29 |Legal Services:Legal Services

30 | Supply Chain Management:Stores

||~ Dn| W]

Measurement of segment surplus or deficit, assets and labllities
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52. Segment information {(continued)

Basis of acccunling for transactions between reportable segments

The accounting policies of the segmeants are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

There are no non reportable segments.

Types of goods andfor services by segment

These reportable segments as well as the goods and/or services for each segment are set out below:

Reportable segment

Natura of Goods andior sarvices

Finance

Finance, human resource and IT services to facilitate service

Community services

Police, parks and libraries

Basic services

Basic services, roads, sewage, refuse, electricily

Mayor and Council

Community outreach

Performance information

The following information will enable users of financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the
activities in which it engages and the economic environments in which it operates.

Segment reporting was expanded to enhance fair presentation
Below are the reconciliations of the amounts in the statement of financial position and performance for reportable segments

2024
Statement of Financial |Basic services| Community | Executive & Finance Total
Performance services Council

Total Revenue 135 666 048,53 | -1047 091,37 | -2618 692,04 -293 769 581,82 | 433101 413,76
Revenue (exchange ) -78 380 213,80 -146 445 37 -58 692,04 -33 105 632,88 =111 700 984,10
Interest received -404 220,59 - - -26 739 860,36 -27 144 080,95
Other income -26 135,36 -78 801,85 - -746 908,05 -851 845,38
Rental of facilities and equipi - -87 643,42 - - -87 643,42
Sale of goods -13 697,85 - -58 692,04 -24 109,92 -96 499,581
Service charges -77 946 160,00 - - - -77 946 160,00
Agency fees - - - -5 584 754 56 -5 594 754,56
Revenue { non-exchange } |-57 275 834,73 -900 646,00 | -2 560 000,00 -260 663 948,93 | -321 400 429,66
Basic Electricity Levy -11 692 930,00 - - - -11 692 930,00
Interest received - - - -11 156 236,18 -11 156 236,18
Property rates - - - -55 328 008,48 -65 328 008,48
Transfer revenue and other 1|-45 582 904,73 -447 350,00 | -2 560 000,00 -194 179 704,27 | -242 769 959,00
Fines, Penalties and Forfeils - -453 296,00 - - -453 296,00
Expenditure {121 380 440,66 |32 815 515,17 |45 926 465,68 18% 543 147,69 389 665 569,20
Bulk Purchases 56 886 156,41 - - - 56 836 156,41
Coniracted services 120078 40 | 9112404 51 [ 2 466 983,02 23535 124,71 35 234 590.64
Debt Impairment - - - 10 153 760,27 10 163 760,27
Depreciation and amordisatic - - - 62 410 050,53 62 410 050,53
Employea related costs 26 095 233,30 | 19 003 748,21 [18 764 825,31 45 058 416,90 108 962 223,72
Finance costs - - - 8652 108,18 8 652 108,16
CGeneral Expenses 1261543286 | 3017638,92 | 9 644 087,48 31 748 231,87 57 025 391,13
Qperating Lease Expense - - - 1626 782,97 1626 782,97
Remuneration of councillors - - 115 050 569 87 - 15 050 569,87
Grants and Subsidies 12 296 623,64 - - 573 658,96 12 870 282,60
Repairs and Maintenance | 13366 916,05 | 1681 723,563 - 4 124 407,07 19 173 046,65
Impairment of assels - - - 1620 806,25 1 620 606,25
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QOperating surplus =14 285 607,87 | 31 768 423,80 |43 307 773,64 -104 226 434,13 -43 435 844,56
Inventories losses/write-dowi - - - - -
Fair Value adjustments - f -2 105 730,00 - - -2 105 730,00
Profit/{Loss) on disposal of fi 115 268,31 - - 1010 770,86 1126 039,17
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) - - - 3 948 076,00 3 948 076,00
Surplus for the year -14 170 339,56 | 29 662 693,80 |43 307 773,64 -99 266 587,27 -40 466 459,39
Statement of Financial Pos|Basic services| Community | Executive & |Finance Total
services Council
Assets [105 552 442,66 |50 121 336,44 |05 163 648,38 | 1 491 648 516,67 | 1 441 915 973,51
Current Assets 337 376 562,07 |47 496 414,77 (05 270 447,38 875231 984,99 | 489088 560,77
Cash and Cash equivalents |45 235 880,32 |-48 945 634,17 |14 677 723,35 768 32191948 | 359462 681,64
Consumer debtors (exchang|] 1 406 043,59 -5 820,18 - 30 518 578,59 31 816 802,00
Gonsumer debtors (non exct] -6 432 909,00 -| 3187 059,82 589 790 254,18 56 544 405,00
Inventories -4 347 267,83 [ 191238462 [ -110 664,29 43 064 458,78 36 694 142,04
Receivables (non-exchange - | 1357 132,00 - 2 732 455,09 4 089 587,09
VAT receivable 17 23345149 | 2010292,20 | & 33088044 -25 193 681,13 380 943,00
Non-Current Assets 342 929 004,73 | -2 624 921,67 106 798,00 612 416 531,68 | 952 827 412,74
Heritage assets - 20 730,00 106 798,00 63 832,00 191 160,00
Investment property - | 1590 500,00 - 72 787 060,97 74 377 560,87
Property, plant and equipme |342 929 004,73 | -4 236 151,67 - 537 704 247 64 876 397 100,70
Eskom Deposits - - - 1 861 691,07 1861 591,07
Liabilities 6 042 039,46 | -1 864 350,04 | 1586 903,79 -157 063 948,14 | -151 299 354,93
Current Liabilities 6 042 039,46 | -1 864 350,04 | 1586 903,79 -81 567 645,29 -75 803 053,08
Consumer deposits 146 821,85 - - -1 440 832 58 -1283 810,74
Payables { exchange ) 580521761 | 111331386 | 158690379 -70 477 320,40 -61 881 885,04
Employee berefit abligation - - - -999 950,00 -999 950,00
Finance lease obligation - - - -8 649 743,30 -8 649 743,30
Provisions -1 -2 977 664,00 - - -2 977 664,00
Non-Current Liabilitles - - - -75 496 301,85 -75 486 301,85
Provisions - - - -41 346 666,00 -41 346 666,00
Employee henefit obligation - - - -25 196 844,53 -25 1896 844,53
Finance lease obligation - - - -8 9562 691,32 -8 9562 601,32
Net Assets 111 584 482 -51 985 686 | -103.576 746 1334 584 569 1290 616 619
Revaluation Reserve - - - 149 510 149 510
Accumulated Surplus 111 444 970 -51 985 686 | -103 576 746 1 334 584 569 1 290 467 107
2023
Statement of Financial Basic services |Community |Executive & Finance Total
Performance services Council
Total Revenue -138 220 596 880 773 -1 654 963 -254 826 465 -385 582 797
Revenus (exchange} -71 08% 816 -349 723 -344 963 -24 124 460 -95 908 962
Interest received -15 950 165 -1% 950 165
QOther income -73 653 -131 202 -257 528 -2 459 969 -2 922 442
Rental of facilities and equip -218 431 -218 431
Sale of goods -87 435 -26 466 -113 800
Service charges -71016 163 -71016 163
Agency feas -5 687 860 -5 687 880
Revenue [ hon-exchange ) -67 130 780 531 050 -1 310 000 -230 702 005 -209 673 835
Basic Electricity levy -10 309 528 -10 309 528
Property rates -40 126 248 -40 126 248
Government grants & subsic -56 821 025 -1310 000 -181 826 000 -240 057 025
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52. Segment information (continued)
Staternent of Financial Basic services |Community |Executive & Finance Total
Performance services Council
[Fines, Penalties and Forfeits -227 -531 050 -531 277
linterest on o/s raceivable bs -8 649 757 -8 645 757
|[Expenditure 95 310 341 25610777 48 339 119 169 716 415 338 976 652
Bulk Purchases 46 859 515 ' 46 859 516
Contracted services 2 530 602 10 408 814 15 695 203 28 634 619
Debt Impairment 8788372 8788372
Depraciation and ameortisatic 57 352 099 57 352 098
Employee related costs 27 288 952 21528 774 15 645 131 30 248 758 103711 615
Finance Costs 6 369 225 6 369 225
General Expenses 7 912 051 2 335 069 B8 356 375 31 789 047 50 392 541
Operating Lease Expense 1 387 366 1 387 366
Remuneration of councillors 13 928 769 13 828 799
Grants and Subsidies 1 059 B15 600 208 1659 823
IRepairs and Maintenance 9 852 605 1746 ©35 3 560 268 14 866 807
impairment of assets 4 925 871 4§25 871
[Operating surplus -42 910 255 24 730 004 46 684 156 -85 110 050 -56 606 145
linventories lossesiwrite-dow 242 430 242 439
|Profit 7 (Loss) disposal of fix -277 893 -277 893
lactuarial Gain / (Loss) -9 478 103 -9 478 103
|Fair Value adjustments -285 225 -5 016 371 -244 825 -5 646 421 |
- -285 225 -5 016 371 -9 758 382 -15 058 978
Surplus for the year ~43 195 480 19 713 633 46 684 156 94 868 432 -71 666 123
Statement of Financial Po:| Basic services | Community Executive & Finance Total
services Council
Assets 76 227934 | -34 759 611 -89 531 231 1436 058 799 1 387 995 892
Current Assets -207 059 597 | -30 249 146 -89 638 029 759 216 865 432 270 093
Cash and Cash equivalents 218545294 | -31 598 907 -08 336 406 668 110 548 318 629 85D
Consumer debtors ( exchan 1251911 -6 453 26 572 521 27 817 979
Consumer debtors ( non exc -5 300 708 28519777 48 503 440 45 722 509
Inventories -1 700 062 -1 415 385 -81 649 39901138 36 704 042
Receivables { non-exchange 1000 132 457 326 1457 458
VAT receivable 18 234 557 1771 466 6 260 339 -24 328 107 1 938 255
Non-Current Assets 283 287 531 -4 510 464 106 798 676 841 935 855 725 799
heritage assets - - 106 798 63632 170 430
Investment property - 3 243 500 - 69 049 061 72 282 581
Property, plant and equipme 283 287 531 -7 753 964 - 594 778 317 870 311 883
Eskom Deposits - - - 12 950 925 12 950 925
Liabilities 10 671 609 1113 514 1739 962 -151 370 820 137845736
Current Liabilities 10 671 609 1113514 1739 962 85726 273 -72 201 188
Consumer depasits 128 657 -1471 5562 -1 342 905
Payables (exchange) 10 542 951 1113 514 1738 962 -76 061 382 -2 664 955
Unspent conditional grants ¢ -15
Employee benefit obligation -573 893 -573 893
Finance lease obligation -7 619 435 -7 619 435
Non-Current Liabilities -65 644 548 -65 644 548
Provisions -20 177 473 -29 177 473
Employee benefit obligation -18 864 840 -18 864 640
Finance lease obligation -17 602 435 -17 602 435
Net Assets 86 899 543 | -33 646 097 -87 791 269 1 284 687 979 1 250 150 157
|Revaluation Reserve -148 510 -149 510
|Accumulated Surplus -36 899 543 33 646 097 87 791 269 -1 284 538 475 -1 250 000 652
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62. Segmentinformation {continued)

53. Regulation 45 disclosure

As per Section 45 of the MFMA SCM regulations the notes to the Annua! financial statements of a municipality must disclose
particulars of any award of mere than R2 000 to a person who is a spouse, child or parent of a person in the service of the state
or has been in the service of the state in the previous 12 months indicating:

s  The name of that person

s  The capacity in which that person is in the service of the state/municipality; and

. The amount of the award

The information regarding awards made for the financial year is indicated below.

Bidders Appointed in Service of State

Service Provide/goods Namefrelation/Organ of 2024 2023
description stafe

KIPP Censulting Metene, PZ - Spouse to the 119 208 -
EngineersAppeointment of 2 director Dept. of Economic

panel of Civil Engineering Affairs and Social

Consultants for Infrastructure | Development
Development Projects for
|period of 36 Manths (8/3/453)

Matshetso Supply and Mashwene, RM - Spouse to 295248 -
Delivery of 100kWh Meters the director Limpopo - Health
{Re-advert) {8/3/472)
Tshete le Barwa General Tsiane, TM - Spouse to the 488 600 -
Trading Supply and delivery of |director Dept. of Science and
|two ride on mowers (8/3/465) |Technology

Tshete le Barwa General Tsiane, TM - Spouse to the 98 000 -
Trading Supply, delivery, and |director Dept. of Science and

installation of one guard Technology

house (Re-advert)

Munsacft -Financial M, Rerani Spouse to director 8638737 B 053912
\Tanagement and Internal Dept of Chief Justice

Control system

Musanda Travel Director's Spouse - Ledwaba, 486 096 614 121
Agency_x0002_Travel MP - Department of Education

Management services for 36

months

CONLOG Vending Virvasha Moodley, spouse to 577 677 8631233

Management System for a the direclorDept. of Health
eriod of 36 months
Limpopo Floor Care Trading & |Spouse to director Matlala - 22272
Projects- Refreshrment - water |Hospital,
and energy drinks for IMSSA
Games
Limpopo Floor Care Trading & |Spouse to director Matlala - 17 000
Projects- Supply of a Digital  |Hospital,
Phola Camera

105




Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality

(Registration number LIM 471)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023
53. Regulation 46 digclosure {continued)
Ken and Son Business Spouse to director Matlzla - 246 482
Enterprise- Supply and Hospital,
Delivery of Road Marking
Paint
Ken and Son Business Spouse to director Matlala - 29 150
Enterprise- Catering Hospital,
Mphodics Supplies- Catering {Maria Aphane - business - 25 760
associate - Ephraim Mogale
Municipality
Sekankoe Engineering Director's Spouse - Khalaki, - 1391845

HighMast Lights at
Matseding_x0002_High Mast
Lights at Matseding

ME- Dept, of Labour
Mpumalanga

- children to the director
Secio-Economic Development

Electrateq Supply and delivery [Both, M - Spouse to the 18 931 -
of electrical malerials director SAPD
Kwaila Holdings Supply and  [Langa, RZ - spouse to the 86 307 -
delivery of water tankers; director Gauteng Dept of
Instaliation of tiles; Supply of [Health
building materials
Matiukanobha Trading Hire of |Balayi, MV - spouse to the 25000 -
tables, tent, toilets and supply |director Sekhukhune District
of bottled water Municipality
National Service Master Matemane, MM - spouse o 37 580 -
Catering services and supply [the director Dept of Health
of cateridges
CBARO Handel Supply of Bronkhorst, JE - spouse fo the 40 369 -
materials director Laerskoal Tygerpoort
Puleng Development Catering |Khumalo, PM - spouse to the 28 800 -
services director SANDF
SALAfish Trading Supply of  [Mashung, NG - spouse o the 4 000 -
boftled water; tents, mobile director Dept of Kokstad
toilets
SEB IT Consultancy Vetting of |Sebei, TME - spouse to the 44200 -
candidates; Branded director Elias Motsoaledi Local
municipal ¢locking books; Municipality
Catering services
Teknoplanet Supply of Tlale, SJ - spouse to the 15600 -
Cartridges director North West Education
Sekhukhune Times Motseo, GN Limpopo 88 862 -
Publication of adverts in Education
newspaper
Gijima Holdings Competency |Zilwa, L.C - child to the director 7 200 -
Assessment of director Dept of Health
Elsctrateq Supply and delivery |Mphela, KP and Tshabalala, P 18 930 -
of electrical materials - children to the director

Laerskool Marble Hall
Daph Phuli Sponges Mphela, KP and Tshabalala, P 28 500 -

and WillowRidge High Schoel
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54. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 10 400 156 10 400 156
- in second to third year inclusive 9533 476 19933 632
19933632 30333788
less: future finance charges (2331198) (5111918)
Present value of minimum lease payments 17 602434 25221 870
Non-current Portion 8 952 691 17 602 435
Current Portion 8649 743 7619 435

17 602434 25221 870

It is municipality policy to lease certain motor vehicles and equipment under finance leases. Interest rates are linked to prime at
the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.
The municipality's obligations under finance leases were secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets..

Market risk

The carrying amounts of finance lease liabilities are denominated in the following currencies:

For details of sensitivity of exposures to market risk related to finance lease ligbilities, as well as liquidity risk refer to note .

The fair value of finance lease liabilities approximates their carrying amounts.

55. Accounting by principal and agents

The municipality is a party to a principal-agent arrangement(s).

Details of the arrangments are as follows;

Entity as agent

The municipality is the Agent in the Principal-Agent arrangement with the Provincial Department of Transport, and collects
licencing fees on behalf of the Provincial Department of Transport. The municipality can retain a portion of the fees collected
and the net amount is due to the Provincial Department. The amount retained is recorded as Income from Agency Services in
the Statement of Financial Performance as agency fees. The amounts due to the Provincial Department at year end is

included in the balances reporied as Payables from Exchange Transactions in the Statement of Financial Position.

Revenue recognised

The aggregate amount of revenue that the Municipality recognised as compensation for the transactions carried out on behalf
of the principal is R 5 594 755 for 2024 year and 6 687 860 for 2023 year.

Liabilities recognised:

Liabilities incurred on behalf of the principal(s) that have been recognised by the entily are R38 039 at as 30 June 2024 and R
67 202 for 30 June 2023,

Entity as principal

Municipality is the Principal in arrangements with service providers who sell prepaid electricity on their behalf, Prepaid vendors
earn commission on the value of each transaction. Commission paid to agent during the year was R511 205 for 2024 year
and R 748 484 for 2023 year
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Report of the auditor-general to the Limpopo Provincial Legislature and
council on Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. | have audited the financial statements of the Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality set out on
pages xx to xx, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024,
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net asset, cash flow statement
and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality as at 30 June 2024 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the
Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act 5 of
2023 (DoRA).

Basis for opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the responsibilities of the
auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

4. | am independent of the municipality in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that
are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

5. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters

6. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Material impairment — Consumer debtors

7. As disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, the gross consumer debtors amounted to
R203 059 109, as a result of irrecoverable consumer debtors a material allowance for
impairment of R114 597 902 was made.




Other matter

8. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Unaudited disclosure notes

9. Interms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the particulars of non-compliance with the MFMA
should be disclosed in the financial statements. This disclosure requirements did not form part
of the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, | do not express an opinion on it.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

10. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and
the DoRA; and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

11. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
municipality's ability to continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the municipality or to cease operations or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements

12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

13. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in
the annexure to this auditor's report. This description, which is located at page XX, forms part
of our auditor's report,

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, | must audit and report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance against predetermined objectives for the selected key performance area
presentedin the annual performance report. The accounting officer is responsible for the
preparation of the annual performance report.




15. | selected the following key performance area presented in the annual performance report for

16.

the year ended 30 June 2024 for auditing. | selected key performance area that measure the
municipality’s performance on its primary mandated functions and that is of significant national,
community or public interest.

Key performance area (KPA) Page Purpose
numbers
KPA 2: Basic service delivery and XX To improve social and community well-
infrastructure development being through provision of accelerated
basic service delivery

| evaluated the reported performance information for the selected key performance area
against the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as
defined in the general notice. When an annual performance report is prepared using these
criteria, it provides useful and reliable information and insights to users on the municipality’s
planning and delivery on its mandate and objectives.

17. | performed procedures to test whether:

the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the
municipality's mandate and the achievement of its planned objectives

all the indicators relevant for measuring the municipality’s performance against its primary
mandated and prioritised functions and planned objectives are included

the indicators are well defined to ensure that they are easy to understand and can be
applied consistently, as well as verifiable so that | can confirm the methods and processes
to be used for measuring achievements

the targets can be linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific,
time bound and measurable to ensure that it is easy to understand what should be
delivered and by when, the required level of performance as well as how performance will
be evaluated

the indicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as
those committed to in the approved initial or revised planning documents

the reported performance information is presented in the annual performance report in the
prescribed manner.

there is adequate supporting evidence for the achievements reported and for the
measures taken to improve performance

18. | performed the procedures for the purpose of reporting material findings only; and not to

express an assurance opinion or conclusion.

19. The material findings on the reported performance information for the selected key

performance area are as follows:



Basic service delivery and infrastructure development

Various indicators

20. The reported achievements in the annual performance report were inconsistent with the
commitments made in the approved planning documents. These discrepancies highlight
misalignment between approved plans and operations, while the incorrect reporting
undermines transparency and accountability.

21. In addition, adequate processes had not been established to consistently measure and reliably
report on various indicators. Consequently, the municipality would have found it difficult to
determine the correct achievements to be reported against the planned indicators.

22. Furthermore, | could not determine if the reported achievements were correct, as adequate
supporting documents was not provided for auditing. Consequently, the reported achievements
might be more or less than reported and were not reliable for determining if the targets had

been achieved.

per quarter

Indicator Target Reported Detail

achievement
Number of villages with 3 villages 3 villages The reported achievement was
access to a minimum level inconsistent with the planned
of basic waste collection 156 annually 156 annually indicator, as the indicator

referred to quarterly
measurement and reported
achievements to annual

Number of households in
Marble Hall with access to
a minimum level of basic
waste collection per
quarter (once a week)

+- 915 h/h per
week

47 580 annually

+- 915 h/h per week

47 580 annually

The reported achievement was
inconsistent with the planned
indicator as the indicator
referred to quarter (once a
week) whilst reported
achievement was measured
annually.

Number of refuse
containers placed in
villages for access to
refuse collection per
quarter (once a week
removal)

5 villages per
week

260 annually

5 villages per week

260 annually

The reported achievement was
inconsistent with planned
indicator, as indicator referred
to number of refuse containers
and quarter (once a week)
measurements whilst reported
achievement was measured for
number of villages and annually

Various indicators

23. A comparison of the actual performance for the year against the prior year performance was
included in the annual performance report, however, the prior year performance was captured
as zero kilometres despite reporting on 2km of road earthworks constructed, in the prior year.

e KM of roads to be constructed by June 2024 - Rathoke Internal Street




e KM of roads to be constructed by June 2024 - Morarela Access Road (Multi - Year)

Other matters

24. | draw attention to the matters below.
Achievement of planned targets

25. The annual performance report includes information on reported achievements against planned
targets and provides measures taken to improve performance. This information should be
considered in the context of the material findings on the reported performance information.

26. The table that follows provide information on the achievement of planned targets and list the
key service delivery indicators that were not achieved as reported in the annual performance
report. The measures taken to improve performance are included in the annual performance
report on pages xx to xx.

Basic service delivery and infrastructure development

Targets achieved: 85%

Budget spent 84%

Key service delivery indicator not achieved Planned target Reported achievement
Number of transformers tested by June 2024 52 10

Number of alarms systems installed, and 11 0

number of installations

Number of revised mast quotation paid by June 4 0
2024

Number of mechanical roads sweeper 1 0
purchased by June 2024

Number of compactor truck purchased by June 1 0
2024

Number of cemeteries fenced by June 2024 1 0

Material misstatements

27. | identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing.
These material misstatements were in the reported performance information for basic service
delivery and infrastructure development. Management did not correct the misstatements, and |
reported material findings in this regard



Report on compliance with legislation

28. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | must audit and
report on compliance with applicable legislation relating to financial matters, financial
management and other related matters. The accounting officer is responsible for the
municipality’s compliance with legislation.

29. | performed procedures to test compliance with selected requirements in key legislation in
accordance with the findings engagement methodology of the Auditor-General of South Africa
(AGSA). This engagement is not an assurance engagement. Accordingly, 1 do not express an
assurance opinion or conclusion.

30. Through an established AGSA process, | selected requirements in key legislation for
compliance testing that are relevant to the financial and performance management of the
municipality, clear to allow consistent measurement and evaluation, while also sufficiently
detailed and readily available to report in an understandable manner. The selected legislative
requirements are included in the annexure to this auditor's report.

31. The material findings on compliance with the selected legislative requirements, presented per
compliance theme, are as follows:

Annual financial statements

32. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in
accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA.

33. Material misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial
statements were subsequently corrected resulting in the financial statements receiving an
unqualified audit opinion.

Expenditure management

34. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R23 129 632
as disclosed in note 44 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 62(1)(d) of
the MFMA. The majority of the irregular expenditure was caused by non-compliance supply
chain management regulations.

Procurement and contract management

35. The performance of contractors or providers was not monitored on a monthly basis, as required
by section 116(2)(b) of the MFMA.

Human resource management

36. Appropriate systems and procedures to monitor, measure and evaluate performance of staff
were not developed and adopted, as required by section 67(1)(d) of the Municipal System Act
32 of 2000.




Strategic planning and performance management

37. The performance management system and related controls were inadequate as it did not
indicate how the performance monitoring, review and reporting processes should be managed,
as required by municipal planning and performance management regulation 7(1).

Other information in the annual report

38. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information included in the annual report
which includes the audit committee’s report. The other information referred to does not include
the financial statements, the auditor's report and those selected key performance area
presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in this
auditor's report.

39. My opinion on the financial statements, the report on the audit of the annual performance
report and the report on compliance with legislation do not cover the other information included
in the annual report and | do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion
on it.

40. My responsibility is to read this other information and, in doing so, consider whether it is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected key performance area
presented in the annual performance report or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

41. | did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor's report. When | do
receive and read this information, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, |
am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the
other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to retract
this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended repert as appropriate. However, if it is corrected
this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

42, | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual
performance report and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not
to express any form of assurance on it.

43. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that
resulted in the material findings on the annual performance report and compliance with
legislation included in this report.

44, Senior management did not adequately oversee the operations of the municipality, as the
financial statements and annual performance report contained material misstatements not
detected by the municipality's own system of internal control.

45. Management did not adequately review the annual performance report and monitor compliance
with applicable legislation resulting in material non-compliances.




Material irregularities

46. In accordance with the PAA and the Material Irregularity Regulations, | have a responsibility to
report on the status of material irregularities as previously reported in the auditor’s report.

Status of previously reported material irregularities

Overpayment of suppliers on Mamphokgo Sports Complex

47. In terms of section 65(2)(a) of the MFMA, the accounting officer must take all reasonable steps
to ensure that the municipality has and maintains an effective system of expenditure control,
including procedures for the approval, authorisation, withdrawal and payment of funds.

48. The municipality appointed a service provider after an open tender process to construct the
Mamphokgo Sports Complex. The commencement date was 7 September 2017 with an
anticipated completion date of 14 December 2018, at a contract amount of R17 093 783. The
monthly reports reported various delays and challenges by the contractor to meet deadlines.
There was a variation to the contract to the value of R6 773 224. The new contract value
amounted to R23 867 008, and the new completion date was set for 26 May 2019. However,
the delays on site continued and the contract with the service provider was cancelled on 17
June 2020.

49. Another service provider was appointed on 28 October 2020 with approved extensions of time
until 28 May 2021 for contract value amounting to R1 477 707, the project was still incomplete
as of 30 June 2021.

50. The municipality paid the full cost as per the bill of quantity, for the installation of the high mast
lighting whereas the work was not completed and also paid the full cost for combi courts
where incorrect furniture was installed. Furthermore, the municipality made an overpayment
due to items not verified on site and payments made in excess of work done.

51, This constitutes non-compliance with section 65(2) (a) of the MFMA and resulted in an
estimated material financial loss amounting to R2 790 030 due to approved payments made to
the service providers for incomplete work, payment made in excess of work done and
payment for work which could not be verified on site.

52. The accounting officer was notified of the material irregularity on 5 October 2022. The
following action was taken to address the material irregularity:

o The director; infrastructure projects was placed on pre-cautionary suspension with full pay
on 26 July 2022.

e The municipality appointed an independent external investigator on 4 August 2022 to
conduct investigations into allegations of misconduct against the director: infrastructure
projects. The investigation was concluded on 9 September 2022 and revealed serious
allegations of improper conduct against the director: infrastructure projects.
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54.

55.

56.

e The municipal council took a resolution that due to the serious nature of misconduct
allegedly committed by the director: infrastructure projects, disciplinary proceedings must
be instituted against the director. A legal firm was appointed on 4 August 2022 to conduct
the disciplinary process which was concluded on 25 November 2022.

e Subsequent to the disciplinary process undertaken by the municipality, the director
rendered his resignation to the accounting officer on 31 January 2023.

e A compliance committee was appointed on 28 of August 2022 with approved terms of
reference to ensure compliance with laws, regulations and policies of the municipality.

e Management conducted verification and confirmation of quantities to ensure correctness
of claims from the service providers to prevent similar incidents.

e The performance management unit has undertaken a refresher course on general
conditions of contracts on 22-23 June 2023.

The municipality referred the matter to the Financial Misconduct Board (FMB) on 27 July 2022
for further investigation in respect of the recoverability process for the financial loss and the
investigation was completed on 11 October 2023. The council adopted and approved the
investigation report of the FMB on 30 August 2024, with recommendations to the accounting
officer to implement corrective action, recovery and training.

The accounting officer shall institute disciplinary proceedings within three months from the
date from on which the council has adopted the report from the FMB. The accounting officer
instructed the human resource unit to commence with disciplinary proceedings from 30
November 2024, in line with the provisions stipulated in the South African Local Government:
Disciplinary Procedure: Collective Agreement.

Council approved a budget of R9 million for the 2024-25 financial year to finalise some of the
outstanding work on the project.

| will follow up on the implementation of the planned actions during my next audit.

Overpayment of suppliers (Mooihoek / Mashemong Street)

57.

58.

59.

In terms of section 685(2)(a) of the MFMA, the accounting officer must take all reasonable steps
to ensure that the municipality has and maintains an effective system of expenditure control,
including procedures for the approval, authorisation, withdrawal, and payment of funds.

Service providers were appointed by the municipality on 21 August 2019 and 13 December
2016 respectively for the construction of Mashemong / Moocihoek internal street for 3.85km
with a contracted amount of R22 488 640. The planned completion date of 17 December 2020
was revised to 10 March 2021 however, practical completion was reached on 28 June 2021.

As a result of various project delays, challenges by the contractor to meet deadlines, lack of
monitoring over the work of consultants and poor project management, the municipality
incurred fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R3 672 703. The accounting officer
terminated the contract with the contractor on 20 December 2021 as per recommendation
letter submitted by the consultant dated 29 October 2022.



80. The non-compliance with section 65(2} (a) of the MFMA resuited in a material financial loss
amounting to R3 672 703. There were significant internal control deficiencies on the payments
to service providers and their professional fees, payment for work not verifiable on site,
payment for material not in accordance with the agreed specification, poor project
management and lack of monitoring for the projects by the municipality and consultants. As a
result, the municipality incurred a financiat loss.

61.

82.

The accounting officer was notified of the material irregularity on 15 December 2022. The
following action was taken to address the material irregularity:

The director: infrastruclure projects was placed on pre-cautionary suspension with full pay
on 26 July 2022.

The municipality appointed an independent external investigator on 4 August 2022 to
conduct investigations into allegations of misconduct against the director: infrastructure
projects. The investigation was concluded on 9 September 2022 and revealed serious
gllegations of improper conduct against the director: infrastructure projects.

The municipal council took a resolution that, due to the serious nature of misconduct
allegedly committed by the director: infrastructure projects, disciplinary proceedings must
be instituted against the director. A legal firm was appointed on 4 August 2022 to conduct
the disciplinary process and were concluded on the 25 November 2022.

Subsequent to the disciplinary process undertaken by the municipality, the director has
rendered his resignation to the accounting officer on 31 January 2023.

The project has since been completed on 28 June 2021 and is in use by the community.

A compliance committee was appointed on 28 of August 2022 with approved terms of
reference to ensure compliance with laws, regulations and policies of the municipality.

A legal firm was appointed on 4 August 2022 from the panel of attorneys and is in the
process of recovering funds from the service providers and combined summons would be
issued in due course to the service providers.

Management conducted verification and confirmation of quantities to ensure correctness
of claims from the service providers to prevent similar incidents as guided by the
conditions stipulated in Municipal Infrastructure Grant and the MFMA.

The performance management unit has undertaken a refresher course on General
Conditions of Contracts on 22-23 June 2023.

The municipality has referred the matter to the FMB on 27 July 2022 for further investigation in
respect of recoverability process for the financial loss and the investigation was completed on
11 October 2023. The council adopted and approved the investigation report of the FMB on
30 August 2024, with recommendations to the accounting officer to implement corrective
action, recovery and training.

10




63.

64.

65.

The accounting officer shall institute disciplinary proceedings within three months from the
date from on which the council has adopted the report from the FMB. The accounting officer
has instructed the human resource unit to commence with disciplinary proceedings from the
30 November 2024 in line with provisions stipulated in the South African Local Government:
Disciplinary Procedure: Collective Agreement.

The case has been registered at Regional Court of Limpopo against the service providers on
7 August 2024 with case no. LP/BRF/R6229/2024.

| will follow up on the implementation of the planned actions during my next audit.

Other reports

66.

67.

68.

In addition to the investigations relating to material irregularities, | draw attention to the
following engagements conducted by the Public Protector. These reports did not form part of
my opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the reported performance information
or compliance with legislation.

The Public Protector performed an investigation into allegations of maladministration in the
municipality relating to the appointment within the internal audit unit and submitted a report to
the municipality. Council adopted the report subject to judicial review, which was still in
progress at the date of the audit report.

The Public Protector is currently performing an investigation into allegations of
maladministration in the municipality relating to an appointment within the finance department.
The investigation is still on-going at the date of the audit report.
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Annexure to the auditor’s report

The annexure includes the following:

¢ The auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

e The selected legislative requirements for compliance testing

Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

Professional judgement and professional scepticism

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures
performed on reported performance information for selected key performance area and on the
municipality's compliance with selected requirements in key legislation.

Financial statements

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s
report, | also:

e dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipality’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern. If |
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements.
My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a municipality to cease operating
as a going concern.

¢ evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12



Communication with those charged with governance.

| communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

13



Compliance with legislation — selected legislative requirements.

The selected lagislative requirements are as follows:

Legisiation

Sectlons or regulations

Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of
2003

Section 1 - Paragraph (a), {b) & (d) of the definition;
irregular expenditure,

Sectlon 1 - Definition: service delivery and budget
implementation pian,

Secticns 11{1), 13(2), 14{1), 14{2)(a), 14(2)}{b), 15,
24(2)(c)(iv), 29(1),

Sections 29(2)(b), 32(2), 32(2){a), 32(2)(a)i),
32(2)(a)(i), 32(2)(b),

Sections 32(6)(z), 32(7), 53(1)c)(il}, 54(1)(c),
62(1)(d}, 62(1)(N)()),

Sections 62(1){f)(ii), 62(1)(f)(iii), 83(1)(a), 63(2)(a),
63(2)(c), 64(2){b),

Sections 64(2)(c}, 64(2)(e), 84(2)(D), 64(2)(9),
65(2)(a), 65(2)(b), 65(2)(e),

Sections 72(1}@){ii), 112(1)(j), 116(2)(b},
118(2)(¢c)(i), 117, 122(1),

Sections 122(2), 126(1)(a), 126(1)(b), 127(2),
127(5)(a)(D), 127(5)(a)(i),

Sections 129(1), 129(3), 133{1)(a), 133{1)(c)(i),
133{1)(c)(in}, 170,

Sections 171(4)(g), 171(4)(b)

MFMA: Municipal Budget and Reporting
Regulations, 2009

Regulations 71(1), 74(2), 72

MFMA; Municipal Investment Regulations,
2005

Regulations 3(1)(a), 3(3), 8, 7, 12(2), 12(3)

MFMA: Municipal Regulations on Financial
Misconduct Procedures and Criminal
Proceedings, 2014

Regulations 5(4}, 6(8)(a), 6(8)(b}, 10(1)

MFMA: Municipal Supply Chain Management
Regulations, 2017

Regulations 8, 12{1)(c), 12(3), 13(b}, 13(c), 13(c)(i),
16(a), 17(1)a},

Regulations 17(1){(b), 17(1){c}, 19(a), 21(b),
22(1)(b)(1), 22(2), 27(2)(a},

Regulations 27(2){e), 28(1){a)(i), 28(1)(a)(ii),
29(1)(a), 29(1)(k),

Regulations 29(5)(a)(il), 29(5)(b)(il}, 32, 36(1),
36(1)(a), 38(1)(c),

Regulations 38{1)(d)(ii), 38(1)(e), 38(1){g)(1),
38(1)(9)(i), 38(1)(g)(iti), 43,

Regulations 44, 46{2)(e), 46(2)(f)

Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000

Sections 25(1)}, 26(a), 26(c), 26(h), 26(i), 29(1)(b) (i),
29(3)(b), 34(a), 34(b),

Sections 38(a), 41(1)(a}, 41(1)(b), 41{1)(c)ii), 42,
43(2), 56(a), 57(2)(a),

Sections 57(48), 57(6)(a), 66(1)(a), 66(1}{b),
67(1)(d}, 74(1), 93J(1), 96(b)
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Legislafion

Bections or regulations

MSA: Municipal Planning and performance
Management Regulations, 2001

Regulations 2(1)(e), 2(3)(a), 3(3), 3(4)(b), 3(6)a),
7(1), 8, 9(1)(a), 10(a),
Regulations 12(1), 15(1)(a)(1), 15(1)(a)(i)

MSA: Municipal Performance Regulations for
Municipal Managers and Managers directly
Accountable to Municipal Managers, 2006

Regulations 2(3)(a), 4(4)(b), 8(1), 8(2), 8(3)

MSA: Regulations on Appointment and
Conditions of Employment of Senior
Managers, 2014

Regulations 17(2), 36(1)(a)

MSA: Disciplinary Regulations for Senior
Nanagers, 2011

Regulations 5(2), 5(3), 5(6), 8(4)

Annual Division of Revenue Act

Section 11(6)(b), 12(5), 16(1): 16(3)

Construction industry Development Board Act
38 of 2000

Section 18(1)

Construction Industry Development Board
Regulations

Regulations 17, 25(7A)

Municipal Properly Rates Act § of 2004

Section 3(1)

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework
Act 5 of 2000

Sections 2(1)(a), 2(1)(1)

Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2017

Regulations 4(1), 4(2), 5(1), 5(3), 5(6), 5(7), 6(1),
6(2), 8(3), €(6), 6(8),

Regulations 7(1), 7(2), 7(3), 7(8), 7(8), 8(2), 8(5)
9(1), 10(1), 10(2),

Regulations 11(1), 11(2)

Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2022

Regulations 4(1), 4(2), 4(3), 4(4), 5(1), 5(2), 5(3),
5(4)

Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities
Act 12 of 2004

Section 34(1)
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INTRODUCTION

1. The purpose of this management report is to communicate the outcomes of the audit for the financicl
year ended 31 August 2024, as well os the insights and significant matters that require the attention of
the accounling officer. Tha report should be read with the engagement letter, which sets out our
responsibilities as well as the standards and processes we apply in performing our audlits.

2. The auditor's report is finalised only after the management report has been communicated. All
matters included in this report that relate to ihe auditor's report remain in draft form until ihe final
auditor's report has been signed.

3. We communicated our audit finclings and recommenclations for improvement o management and
obtained their responsas throughout the audit. This report is a comprehensive summary of wihat we
shared with management. In annexure D, we provide a summary of detailed findings communicated
to management,

4. The management report is structured cs follows:

e Insection 1 we share Ihe overall audit outcomes and the status of material iregularities. We clso
summarise the material irregularities in annexure F,

o Insection 2 we provide the most significant matters from the audit and their impact, which we
defail further in the annexures. Where appropriate, we also include the following:

o Significani deficiencies in internal conirol that caused the findings we report. Significant
deficiencies occur when internal controls do not exist; are not appropriately designed or
implemented; or are not operating as intended to prevent - or to prompily detect and correct
- material misstatements, non-compliance or non-performance. In annexure C we expand on
the state of internal control,

o Keyrecommendations and the responses received frorn management on implementing the
recommendations.

s Insection 3 we include observations on the overall internal control environment and the role of the
accountability ecosystem. Key recommendations and responses from management are also
included.

o Insection 4 we provide our view of the root causes of deficiencies in the overall internal control
environment and provide recommendations for the accounting officer to adcdlress the root causes.

o We end the reporl with a conclusion.
5. Wae frust Ihe insights and recommendations in this report will be of value in your pursuil towards

building and leading a municipdlity that is accountable and transparent, has institutional integrity,
and performs at a level that has a positive impact on the lives of South Africans.




SECTION 1: AUDIT OUTCOMES AND MATERIAL
IRREGULARITIES

OVERALL AUDIT OUTCOMES

6. The overall audit oulcome of the municipality is unqualified audit opinion with findings. Thisis the same
as the previous year's audit outcome.

Avudit results per oulcome area

Ouicome area JMovemeni 2023-24| 2022-23 ‘ 2022-21

Financial statements

Annual performance report

s KPA 2: Basic Service Delivery and Infrastruciure
Developmenl

Compliance with legislation

= Annual financial statements, performance
report and annual reports

e Procurement and contract management @

»  Expenditure management

o  Utilisation of condilional grants

s Consequence management

o Sirategic planning and performance
management

e Revenue management

¢ Asset management o

s Human resource management

\

]
Ungualified / Mo material findings . Qualified %P’ Adverse ‘ Disclaimed toledal findings . Mol auditec

i) Improvemenl ® Regression Unchanged

7. The overall outcome of the audit has remained stagnant from the previous financial year, because of
lack adequate monitoring of the action plan to address material non-compliance with laws and
regulations as well as inadequate review and proper assessments of experls' reports. The overall
quality of the submitied financial statements was not up to standard as the financial stalements




contained material misstatements that were not detecled by the municipality's systems of internal
control. The material misstatements were subsequenily corrected.

8. We commend monagement for improvement in the assets management as there were no malerial
non-complionce and material misstatements for the year under review. due fo the material non-
compliance with deviation requirements and lack of supporling evidence 1o support the monitoring of
the performance contract monthly. In previous financial years there were improvement as there were
no material non-compliance in the audit report.

9. We provide further insight into the audit outcomes. the rool causes of weaknesses and our
recommendalions in the rest of this report.

10. Annexure E lisis matters that will affect future financial statements, annual performance reports and
compliance with legislation.

MATERIAL IRREGULARITIES

1. Since the implementalion of the material iregularity process, we identified three material irregularities
al the municipality.

Status of material iregularities

I

Year of Resolved Appropriate Following up AG3A [urther Notification Assessing
notilicalion aclions actions taken actions response not response
yet due
2021 | | | - - - -
2022 2 . 2 2 - - -

12. We received written submissions from the accounting officer on three of the material iregularities
identified. We considered the representalions made and the substantiating documents provided and
concluded that appropriate actions are being taken to address two material iregularities which we
will follow up in the 2024-25 financial year.

13. Should there be any undue delays in the implementation of the actions that the accounting officer
committed fo in his submissions, we will reconsicler our determination that appropriate actions are
being token.

14. Annexure F lists the material iregularities that will be included in the auditor's report.




SECTION 2: SIGNIFICANT MATTERS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Audit results

15. The financial statements were submitted to us for auditing on 31 August 2024,

16. We identified material misstaternents in the financial statements submitted for auditing. The material
misstatements constitute non-compliance with the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003
(MFMA). The non-compliance will be reported as a material finding in the auditor's report.

Material misstatements corrected

Accounling Prior-year

standard / ) misstatements
Description

legislation ey o
! 2022-23 | 2021-22

Contingent assets

Section 122 of Undlerstatement R3 922980 | Current and prior years expendliture
MFMA (a) investigaled by MPAC and financial
expendilure which were approved fo be

BRAR | recoverable are not recorded and
paragraph 17 & 5 < : ]
19 accounied for in the annual financial
stalements as required by GRAP and
UIFW Framework appliable WIWF Framework. |
2|
Seament reporting

MFMA 62(1) and | Understatlement | R40 433051 | Segment reporling amounls included on note
122 52 do nol agree with the amounts s per the
face of the AFS

Uncorrected Correc r&drprior-yecr misslatement

17. The material misstatements that were corrected formed the basis for the unmodified opinion on the
financial statements. The material non-compliance will be reported in the auditor's report,

18. The findings identified in the current year are mainly as a result of the material non-compliance with
the financial reporting framework and the MFMA. The repeat finclings are the result management that
does not address the root causes of these findings and action plan not being monitored monthly basis
as well as significant internal control deficiencies not being attended to.

19. Impact: The lack of adequate review of the annual financial statements and annual performance
report have negative impact towards transparency and credibility to the users in their economic
decision making in areas where they contain material errors or omission as well as material non-
compliance with laws and regulation.




20. The were errors and omissions in the testing of the revenue (service charges) cue fo incorrect billing
being charged o the customers and subsequently, we still ideniified errors which resulied in
immaterial uncorrected misstatements which are reported in the management repori,

21, Municipolity did not adequately implement their mechanisms which are stipulated in their aclion plan

for prior year uncorrected misstatemeant relating to retentions for service providers as the similar
misstatement were identified in the current financial year.

Internal control and recommendations

22. We identified significant interal control deficiencies in financial recordkeeping and the financial
statement preparation and related business processes, which caused the misstatements or could
cause misstatements in future.

Significant internal control deficiencies - financial records and financial statements

Prior years reported

Deficiency . b

2022-23 ‘ 2021-22

Finance management did not implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to N v
ensure thal complete, relevan! and accurale information is accessible and available to
support financial reporting as significant delays in submission of requested information
were experienced due to alack of proper record management systems.

Supply chain managemen! and accounting officer did nol ensure review and monitor

: ] ; N None None
the complionce with MFMA & SCM regulations ta the municipality for The year under
review.
Finance management did nol perform an adequalte review for the municipality o N \
comply wilh laws and regulations as well as GRAP requirements.
Finance Managemenl did not perform adequate review and assessed the experls’ None Mone

reporls to delermine the etfect on the values in the annual financial statements 1o
eliminate the risk of the malerial omissions and errors.

23. We made recommendations to improve the financial records and the financial statements
preparation process to the accounting officer. Some of these recommendalions were also made in
prior years. A summary of the key recommendations and the responses received follows.

Key recommendations and responses - financial records and financial statements

Year originally Status of
recommended implementalion

Recommendation and mandagement response

Recommendation: Finunce managemen! team should perform o proper
review of the commilment regisler and ensure ¢l the underlying
documents thal are required to prepare Ihe register (i.e. contract/ SLA's,
expenditure history finvoice registers, PMU reconcilialions/ reporls) are
properly kep! and reconciled fo ensure the information is easily 2022-23
accessible on monlhly basis.

In process - ehind
schedule

Response: Managemeni accepled the recommendalion, ond it was
indicaled Ihal they will be requesling for adjushments.

Recommendation: The ciccounting officer and assets managemen! leam
dlid nol ensure that adequale ond sullicieni controls Ihal support business 2023-24 2022-21
processes are in place lo ensure sound and credible financial and
performance reporling and compliance with applicable laws and




Year originally Status of

Recommendation and management response

recommended implementation

regulations as well as ensuring that assels register its reconciled and
updated on monthly basis and signed off by the senior official.

Responses: Management agreed wilh the audil finding

Recommendation: Accounting officer and supply chain management
unil shouldl develop measures lo ensure thal the municipality comply with

competitive bid requirements including the cleviation process. 2023-24 Nol started

Response: Management agreed lo the audil finding.

Recommendation: Finance management did not perform adequate
review for the municipality to comply with laws and regulalions anc GARP
requirements 1o ensure thal expenditures which are approved s
recoverable by the MPAC & FMB are presented and disclosed 2020-21 I process
appropriately fo miligate Ihe risk of any material misstatements (Curren! &
Non-current assets / Contingent assets) in the annual financial stalements.

Response: Management agreed to the audit finding

24. Despite an action plan being developed to prepare regular, accurate and complete financial reports
that are supported and evidenced by reliable information on an annual basis, material misstatements
continue to be identified during the audit which were subsequently corrected during the audit
prbcess. There is a lack of timeous & monthly monitoring and adherence to the action plan by the
appropriate level of management as not all recommendations macle, were implemented.

Information to be included in auditor's report

25. We may communicate matters relating to the audit, the auditor's responsibilities and the auditor's
report in the audilor's report that are important for users of the financial statements to know about.
The following matters will be included as ‘other matters' in the auditor's report:

Unaudited disclosure notes
In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the municipdlity is required to disclose particulars of non-

compliance with the MFMA in the financial statements, This disclosure requirement did not form part of
the audit of the financial statements and accordingly, | do not express an opinion on it

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Going concern

26. Our audit included an evaluation of the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements and whether any materic
uncertainties exist about the municipality's ability to continue as a going concern.

27. We did not identify any events or conditions that cast significant doubt on the municipality 's ability to
confinue as a going concern.




Budget management :

28. We tested compliance with the legislative requirements for budgel management and performed tests |
to identify budgel overspending or budgets not spent for their intended purpose. We did not iclentify
findings to highlight in this area of financial management.

29. We also tesied compliance with the legisiative requirements for the preparation and approval of the
budgetl for the next (new) financial year. We did not identify findings on these budget processes.

Financial assessment and compliance

30. Our audit included a high-level assessment of the financial position and key financial ratios of the
municipality based on its financial results to assess ifs going concern (as detailed earlier), and to
highlight those issuas thal may require corrective action to mainiain financial stability. The financicl
ratios used for assessment inclucle those that the National Treasury also apply when assessing whether
a municipality is in financial distress. The assessment is intended to complement, rather than substitute,
the municipality’s own financial assessment.

31. The detailed assessment is included in annexure A. We used the amounts and information in the
financial statements to perform the assessment.

32. We concluded based on the assessment that the financial health of the municipality is good, which is
Ihe same as the previous year.

33. Next, we summarise the key matters identified through the assessment that require attention to
maintcin the good financial health.

Financial assessment - key malters

Revenue management

As per the financial assessment, the municipalily has a high deblor-collection period of 104.4 days which is more than
30 days as required by the debtor's management policy. This is also evidencead by the facl that the municipality's
impairment provision as a percentage of accounts receivables is 56%.

34, We did not identify material non-compliance with legislation and other requirements applicable to
the municipality on financial management, however there were findings which would be reported in
the management report

o There is no adequate and sufficient audit evidence that in instances were debt collectors are
unsuccessful in collecting the debt, the debts were handed over to attorneys for legal collection
which confributed to the lower recovery rates,

* Inadequate revenue managemenlt strategy resulting in low recoverability of amount owed by
debiors during the previous and current financial years contrary to the MFMA and credit control
and debt collection palicy

« In some instances, we identified Ihal the municipality was nol charging the service charged to
customers at correct and approved tariff rates.

Grant management

35. The municipality received granis totalling R48 015 000 to fund its programmes and projects in the
current year, We audited compliance with the Division of Revenue Act 5 of 2023 (DoRA} and the use
of the Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG).

| 10



36, We did not identify findings to highlight in this area of financial management. The findings on material
non-compliance with legislation will be reporied in the auditor's report.

37. The municipdlity fully spent the conditional MIG grant of R39 9746 960, which resulted in completion of
the infrastruciure projects for the year under review. Almost 100% of the capital expenditure budget
was spent and projects are in use by the community although some of them are still in progress at
year end os they are multi-years projects.

38. One of the objectives of the local government equitable share grant is to enable municipalities to
provide basic services fo poor households. This indicates the grant is in place to:

°  Supplement municipal budgets so that an efficient municipality will be able to progressively
achieve the provision of free basic services to its poor households in line with national policy norms
and standards.

39. The grant is intended to assist with, inter alia, the operational costs (including maintenance costs) of
basic services for poor households

40. Annually the National Treasury determines the equitable share grant allocation based on certain
indicators and provides the municipality with the allocation letter which will Include the number of
households and estimated number of indigent households, to enable the municipality o adequately
budget. The municipality has spent Equitable Share amounting fo R 803 069 for the year under review
for Indigent Subsidy Cost (Free basic electricity)

Internal control and recommendations

41. We did not identify significant internal control deficiencies in the financial management processes.
Where we iclentified possible improvements, we reported these to mancagement,

Information to be included in auditor's report

42. We can include an ‘emphasis of matter' paragraph in the auditor's report to draw the attention of
users of the financial slatements to important disclosures in the financial statements. The following
matter that relates to the financial performance of the will be emphasised:

Material impairment - Consumer debtors
43. As disclosed in note 6 fo the financial statements, the gross consumer debtors amounted to R203 059

109, as a result of irecoverable consumer debtors a material allowance for impairment of
R114 597 202 was made,

Overall performance planning and management

44. We tesled whether the municipality's performance planning and management processes, strategic
plan, integrated development plan (IDP) and service delivery and budget implementation plan
(SDBIP)complied with the key requirements from legislation.

45, We identified findings. The findings on material non-compliance with legislation will be reported in the
auditor's report.




Findings on performance planning and management

Prior years reported
Material non- 4 B

Findin : -
Rding compliance
2022-23 2022-21

The performance managament systems implemented by the municipalily was Yes v \
nol adequate during he period uncler review and in which case it did nol

comply with Municipal planning and performance management regulation 7

(1)

46. The root cause of material findings on usefulness and reliability of the indicalors: Number of villages
with access to a minimum level of basic waste collection by June 2024, Number of households in
Marble Hall with access to a minimum level of basic waste collection by June 2024 (once a week)
and Number of Refuse containers placed in villages for access to waste collection per quarter(Once
a week removal) for KPA 2: Basic service delivery and infrastructure development was significant
conlrol deficiency in the performance management systems and reloted conlrols.

47. The root cause of malerial finding on reliability of the indicators:

o There is lack of adequate and sufficient review by the supervisors and management on the
means of verification or portfolio of evidence, lack of capacity within the community service/
performance management team and training in respect of the correlation of the data or
reporis from the end-users to the quarierly performance reports. Lack of consequence
management over significant errors or omissions which are recurring from the previous financial
years,

° Inadequate review processes and oversight controls to ensure that planned key indicators are
consistent fo the planned targets and verify them against the “Smart Principles" and technical
indicators description being aligned to the process of collection, processing and reporting of
the data or portfolio of evidence.

48. Impact: The material non-compliance casts doubt on ihe credibility of the reporied information by the
municipdlily. The reported performance information does not allow an appropriate transparent
process to provide the necessary confidence to the users regarding the achievements of the
municipality's set objectives.

Audit of annual performance report

49. The SDBIP and Annual Performance Report were submitted to us for auditing on 31 August 2024.

50. As detailed in the engagement lefter, we undertook a limited assurance engagement on specific Key
Performance Area selected for auditing. We will report only the material findings in the auditor's report
and net the audit opinion as included in section 1.

51. We selected the following Key Performance Area for auditing:
52. KPA 2: Basic service delivery and infrastructure development

53. Basic Service delivery is the provision of susiainable infegrated infrastructure, These essential services
encompass a range of basic needs that are crucial for the well-being and quality of life of residents. In
terms of its legislative or political mandate, the municipality is responsible for the provision of basic
service delivery, which relate o refuse, road infrastruclure and provision of free basic eleciricity for
indigents households. (Water service is with Sekhukhune district municipality).

54. We evaluated the reported performance information for the selected key performance area against
the criteria developed from Ihe performance management and reporting framework, When an




annual performance report is prepared using these criteria, it provides useful ancl reliable information
and insights fo users of the report on the municipality's planning and delivery on its mandate and
objectives,

55. We performed procecdlures to test whether:

S6. the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the
municipadlity's mandate and the achievement of its planned objectives

57. all the indicators relevant for measuring the municipality's performance against its primary mandated
and prioritised functions and planned objectives are included

58. the indicators are well defined to ensure that they are easy fo understand and can be applied
consistently and are verificble, so that we can confirm the methods and processes to be used for
measuring achievements

59. the targets can be linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific, time bound
and measurable to ensure that it is ecsy to understand what should be delivered and by when, the
required level of performance, as well as how performance will be evaluated

0. the indicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as what were
committed fo in the approved initial or revised planning documents

61. the reported performance information is presented in the annual performance report in the
prescribed manner and is comparable and understandable.

62. there is adequate supporling evidence for the achievements reported and for the measures taken to
improve performance.

63. We did not conduct a proactive review of the SDBIP.

Audit results — KPA: Basic service delivery and infrastructure
development

64. We did not identify findings on the completeness of the indicators used for planning and reporting on
performance.

65. We did nof identify material findings on the overall presentation of performance information in the
annual perfermance report.

66. We identified material misstatements in the reported performance information in the annual
performance report submitted for auditing. Some of these misstatements are repeat from previous
year/s.

Moaterial misstatemenfs nof corrected

Prior-year

i misstatements
Description

2022-23

2021-22

Number of villages with access to a minimum level of baslc waste callection per quarter

Reported performance indicalor nol consislent wilh ils relaled targels and achievements in Ihe
APR

The reporled performance indicators (with ils related performance largets) nol well defined in
Ihe approved SDBIP,
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Prior-year
missiatements

2022-23 2021-22

Number of households in Marble Hall with access fo a minimum level of basic level waste collection per quarter.

Description

Reporied performance indicator nol consislent with its relaled targels and achievements in the
APR

The reported performance indicators (with ifs relaied performance largets) not well defined in
the approved SDBRIP,

Supporting documenltation or portiolio of evidence [o supporl the reporled oulput as per lhe
APR is nol accurate and complele

Number of refuse containers placed in villages for access to a minimum level of basic waste collection per quarter

Reported performance indicalor nol consistent with ils related targets and achievements in the
APR

The reported performance indicalors (with ifs related performance targels) not well deflined in
Ihe approved SDBIP.

KM of road to be conshiucted - Morarela Access road

A comparison of the aclual performance for the year against Ihe prior year performance was
included in the APR, however, the prior year performance was caplured as zero kilometres
despile reporting on 2km of road earthworks constructed, in the prior year

KM of road to be constructed by June 2024 — Rathoke Internal Street

A comparison of the actual performance lor the year against the prior year performance was
inclucled in the APR, however, Ihe prior year performance was caplured as zero kilomelres
clespile reporiing on 2km of rocicl earrthworks constructed, in the prior year

Indicalor nol oudited/included in
annual performance report

Uncorrected Cornected Mo prior-ygor
misstatement

67. The maflerial misstalemenls that were not corecled will be reported in Ihe auditor's reporl. These misstatemenls
formed! the basis for the modified opinion

68. The reported achievements in the annual performance report were inconsisient with the commitments made in
the approved planning documents.

69. There were no listings lo supporl the actual achievemen! which were reported in the annual performance report.

/0. In addilion, adequale processes were nol eslablished to consistently measure and reliability report on various
indicators, Furthermore, adequale supporling documenls was not provided for auditing including the lisling hence
their variances identified.

71, A comparison ol the aclual performance for the year against Ihe prior year performance was included in the
annual performance reporl, however, Ihe prior year performance was caplured as zero kilomelres despile
reporling on 2km of road earthworks constructed, in the prior year

72, This KPA has been modified in the prior year, Measures need lo be pul in place to ensure that there is appropriate
review of Key performance indicalors in the SDBIP and APR before submission for audil. Furthermore, appropriate
measures o ensure that reported performance achievemenls are supported by accurate registers.
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"3, Impact: These discrepancies highlight misclignmeni belweean approved plans and operations, while the incorract
reporfing undermines iransparency anc accountability. Consequently, the municipality would have found it
difficull to delermine the corecl achievements fo be reportec against Ihe planned indicators. The lack of listing to
supporl the actual achievement in the annual performance report could results in lack of transparency and
reliability for the users as the aclual achievement could be incorrect.

ormation to be included in auditor's report

74. We may communicate matters about the audit, the auditor's responsibilities and the auditor's report
in the auditor's report that are important for users of the annual performance report to know about.
We will include information on the corrections to the malterial misstatements in the submitted annual
performance report in the ‘other malters’ section in the auditor's report,

nal control and recommendations

75. We identified significant internal control deficiencies, which caused the weaknesses in the
performance planning, management and reporting processes as reported.

i tomiificant internal conirol deficiencies - performance planning, management and reporting

Prior years reported

Deficiency —— T
2022-23 ‘ 2021-22

|7+ anagement did nol ensure thal key pertormance indicalors are consistent with related v v
“* ~zrgels and achievements.

¢

iy anagement did nol ensure that the reporled performance indicators with ils relateci
4.7 rgets and achievements are specilic to whal the municipalilty aims to achieve,

<nagement did not ensure that the reparted key performance indicolors are v v
=rifiable/measurable, ie. supported by valid audil documeniation,

1 znagement did nol prepare accurale and complete performance reports thal are
15 . pported and evidenced Py reliable informalion in the arnual performance report

76. We made recommendations fo improve the performance planning, management and reporting
process to the accounting officer, Some of these recommendations were also made in prior years. A
summary of the key recommendations anc the responses received follows.

Ke: wom=commendations and responses ~ performance planning, management and reporting

Year originally Status of

Recommendation and management response : ;
recommended implementation

i =commendation:

Management should ensure the following:

©  Information reported in Ihe annual performance reporl is
accurale and consistent with Ihe annual performance plan.

il 1 ) 2023-24 Not starled
i s Information reporied in the annual performance report is

1 specilic and clearly express the level of performance that the
municipality is aiming to achieve and aligned fo lhe SMART
principles as oullined in the Framework for Managing Progreim
Performance Informalion.
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Year originally Status of

Recommendation and management response ; :
recommended implementalion

= Adequate review processes and oversight controls need to be
effectively implemented in preparing the annual performance
report as well as mid-year assessments prior to submission to
council for approval and adoption.

Response:

«  Management will develop o proper system lo review key
performance indicalors with ifs related reported largets to
ensure thatl they are consisten! and accurate.,

+  Management will develop o system of reviewing all key
performance indicalors with iis related reported targets and
achievements lo ensure Ihal they are specific to whal level of
performance the municipdlily is aiming o achieve.

Recommendation;
Management shoulcl ensure the following:

o Informaltion reported in the annual performance reporl is
accurate and consistent with the annual performance plan.

+ Informalion reporled in The annual performance reporl is
specific and clearly express the level of performance thal ihe
mwnicipality is aiming 1o achieve and dligned o Ihe SMART
principles as outlinedl in the Framewaork for Managing Program
Performance Information.

*« Adequate review processes and oversight confrols need to be
effectively implemented in preparing the annual performance
report as well as mid-year assessments prior fo submission to
council for approval and adoption.

202324 Nol started

Response:

«  Managemeni will develop a proper system of reviewing key
performonce indicatars wilh ifs relaled reported targels to
ensure that they are consislent and accurate.

+  Management will develop a system of reviewing all key
performance indicators willh its related reported targets and
achievements to ensure that 1hey are specific 1o what level of
performance Ihe municipality is aiming lo achieve.

77. The above recommendation will be followed up in the 2024-25 audil cycle as they could not e fully implementecl
in the 2023-24 tinancial year.

PLANNED TARGETS NOT ACHIEVED

78. As disclosed in the annual performance report, not all the planned targets were achieved for the Key
Performance Areas we selected for auditing.

79. We will draw the attention of oversight to the non-achievement of key indicators by including the
table that follows in the 'other matters' section in the auditor's report, with reference to the pagesin

the annual performance report where the reasons for the non-achievement are included.

Targets for key indicalors not achieved

Targels achieved: 85 %
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Budget spent 84%

Key indicators not achieved Planned target Reported

achievement
Number of fransformers tesled by June 2024 52 10
Number of alarms systems installecl, and number of installations 11 0
Number of revised mast quotation paid by June 2024 4 0
Number of mechanical roads sweeper purchased by June 2024 1 0
MNurnber of compacior luck purchased by June 2024 | 0
80. There is a concern on the Eskom clelays lo provide the municipalily with new/revised quolalion 1o ensure high

81.

82.

83.

84,

masls inslalled in the cuirent and previous years are energised and this alfect service clelivery of Ihe communily of
the municipalily.

The municipalily should escalale Ihe maller furlher lo ensure all completed high mas! lights are energised, so Ihal
the communily can enjoy the benefits.

Measures should be implemenled lo ensure that planned fargels are skrictly monitored on a quarterly basis lo
adldress any service delivery backlog.

During an aversight visil to the land [ill site | that the fill sile is nol being compacted daily as per permit
requirements. This would have negalive impact the capacily of the landiill siles, possible claims or fines from the
compliance authority and loss of Ihe licence in foreseecble fulure,

During our visit 1o the land(ill sile, we noted Ihal the pickers are gathering lhe wasle collecled inside Ihe landifill site
and not taking it out of the landiill site on lime.

OTHER INFORMATION IN ANNUAL REPORT

85.

86.

87,

We did not audit the information in the annual report except for the financicil statements and Ihe Key
performance Area in the annual performance report selected for auditing.

However, The auditing standards require us to read the unaudited information and consider whelher it
is materially inconsistent wilh the information we auclited or the knowledge we obtained during the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor's report. When | do receive and
read this information, if | conclude that there is o material misstatement therein, | am required 1o
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information
be correcled. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to refracl this audlitor's report and
re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if i is corrected this will not be necessary.

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS

88.

89.

We selected key infrastructure projecis for assessmenl over their project life cycle. We tested whelher
the projects are planned, implemented, managed and commissionec! efficiently, effectively ancd
economically

Our main key focus areas were lo assess the role of the municipdlily in respect of provision for Ihe
infrastructure facilities for the year under review, The municipdlily approved the procurement plan for
the 2023-24 financial yecr which is included in the strategic documents including the IDP and $BDIP
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20.

21,

2.

which were adopled by council to serve the needs of the community through construction of roads
and community infrastructure projecls.

The municipality received the MIG which was used mainly for the infrastructure as per the conditions
of the DoRA Framework and entire R 39 million received from the Nalional Treasury was used for its
intended purpose.

Section 152 of the Conslitution sets oul the following as key objeclives for the municipality fo provide
democralic and accountable govemment for local commurnities; to ensure the provision of services
lo communilies in o sustainable manner; fo promotle socicl and economic development; 1o promote
a safe and healthy environment: and to encourage the involvement of communities and community
organisations in the matters of local government.

During Ihe audit we identified findings relating to ihe projects which were completed or significantly
delayed serving the needs of the community for below projects,

Background of the projects

Leewfontein sports complex

93.

The municipality appointed Highpoint Trading 310 CC as a contractor afier an open tender process to
construct the Leewfoniein Spart Complex. The commencement date was 10 November 2020 with an
anlicipaied complelion date of 10 May 2021, at a contract amount of

R5 998 371.

Prior years reported

Finding BT e i S WU SN RO e
2021-22

Service delivery objeclives nol been mel or realisec! by Ihe communily since vV X
Ihe project inceplion lo dale. The project has nol been used by Ihe
communily and municipality for inlended purpose for a significan! period of
Ihe linancial year {almost 7 monlhs).

(impairmenls as per GRAP 26) hence not being used for inlended purpose
whilsl Ihe municipality has spenl more 1han R12 milion on the projec! 1o dale

Some of the audil findings raised during the 2021-22 financial year were nol v X
adequalely ond sullicienlly addressed by the municipalily as per Ihe site visit

report,

Assels has been subjected lo delerioralion and physical damage or obsolesce v X

Some ol the ablulion laciliies are subjecled physical damage as they are no v X
longer working propeily,

Irigalion / waler system is nol working properly on 1he soccer grounds and he \ X
grass il's in bad stale on the date of the visils.

Inadequale implemenlalion of consequence management for all role players \ X
responsible for verification and cerlilicalion of Ihe work done belore payments
were made lo Ihe service providers hence Ihere is no evicdlence ol Ihe recovery
of lundls lost Tor the poor work by Ihe service providers
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Mamphokgo sports complex

?4. The municipality appointed AL Mphago Civil Construction JV Kgantsa Developers Projects (AL
Mphago") as a contractor after an open tender process to construct the Mamphokgo sports
complex. The commencement date was 7 September 2017 with an anticipated completion date of

|4 December 2018, at a contract amount of R17 093 783,

25. The monthly reporis reported various delays and problems by the confractor to meel deadlines. There
was a variation to the contract to the value of Ré 773 224. The new contract value amounted to
R23 867 008, and the new completion date was set for 26 May 2019. However, the delays on site
continued and the cantract with AL Mphago was cancelled on 17 June 2020.

96. The contract with AL Mphakgo/Kgantsha JV was terminatec on 17 June 2020 and NGHR Building
Construction was appointed on 28 October 2020 with approved extensions of lime until 28 May 2021
for a confract value amounting to R1 477 707, the project was still incomplete cs of 30 June 2021.

Finding

Prior years reporled

2022-23 2021-22

Service delivery objeclives not been mel or realised since the project inceplion
lo dale. The projec! has not been used by Ihe community or the municipality
for ifs intended purpose

\I

Some of Ihe malerial iregularities which were reported lo managemenl! are
not yel fully addressed to date hence the project remains incomplete

e The municipalily paid R1 800 000 which was the folal cosl as per lhe
bill of cuantity, for the installalion of high masl lighling whereas he
works were not completed.

*  The municipality also paid R400 000 in full for combi courls where
incorrect furnilure was inslallecl. The rotating poles/hoops were nol
installed.

s The municipality made and overpaymenl! of R590 030 due o ilems
nol verified on site, paymen! made in excess of work done and
payment made in excess of work done (Laying of kikuyu grciss).

Assets were subjecled lo delerioralion and physical damage or obsolesce
(impairments as per GRAP 26). The roof for stands / sealing areas has clso been
damaged. The main gate has also been subjecled lo physical damage asis
no longer working properly.

Sporls {soccer and rugby) ground remain incomplele lo dale andl irrigailion /
waler system are nol working or done on Ihe sporls grouncls, Combi courts
(grouncls) ancl tennis grounds remains incomplele lo date. Laying of kikuyi grass
nol being completed,

There was no planned performance incicator & fargets for the year 2023/24 in
the approved SBDIB for Ihe implemeniation of Ihe aclivities finalise the project

Parks Development Landscaping

97. The municipality appointed Slindokuhle Properties - Landscaping Materials to provide materials for the
development of the municipality's parks (Parks Development Landscaping at Extension 2 & 6 for the
value of R | 229 756. The commencement dale was 4 February 2024 and completion date of & April

2024 for the delivery of the materials by the service proviclers.

P
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Findings on key service delivery observaltions

Prior years reported
Finding e

2021-22

Sewvice delivery objeclives was nol mel or realised by the communily since the * %
project inceplion lo dale. The project has not been used by the communily
and municipality for intended purpose

There is not sufficient and aclequalte evidence of the approved documentecl X X
plan for Ihe implemenltation of the project hence the municipality spend funcls
and ulilised resources on the projecl i.e. There is also no documenied
limeframe for the projecl,

The projects remain incomplete to date since it has started during April 2024 X X
wilh no acdlequale and sulficient justifications. There was also no workmanship
on lhe projecls on lhe dale of Ihe visits 1o ensure that Ihe projects gel
compleled.

High mast lights

28. The municipality appointed a service provider for the construction of high mast lights within various
communilies as per the approved SDBIP for the 2023-24 financial year. The capital expenditure
infrastruclure amounted to aimosl Ré million which were completed for the year under review.

99. There was no material findings identified on the high mast lights however the municipality did not
achieve the planned largels regarding the high mast connection in some of the planned villages to
due lo the delay for conneclion service by Eskom. The municipality escalated matter to the Ministerial
Oversight Committee, GoGHSTA as well as through special intervention with Eskom.

100.During the physical verification of assets, we observed instances where the high mast lighls were
construcied since 2021-22 financial year however there were no energised or electified which has
negative impact on the safely of the community. The high mast lights projects completed form the
year uncler review include Moganyaka High Mast, High Mast Lighls Leewfontein RDP, Malebitsa High
masl.

10

Impact: The service delivery objeclives have not been met hence the project remains incomplele to
dale and project cannot be used for its infended purpose. This could also halt the economic activilies
and job creations wilhin the communily. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure including the financial loss
will be incurred by the municipality in respect of the additional cost to finalise the projects due to
incomplete work and poor performance by the service providers.

102.The malerial iregulaiities were identified and reporting 1o Ihe accounting officer and management
on the 5 October 2022 for the audit which took place [2020-21) financiol year,

Recommendations

103.We made recommendations lo improve the delivery processes to the senior management and
accounting officer. Some of Ihese recommendalions were also macle in prior yecrs

—F
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Key recommendations and responses - key service delivery observalions

Year originally Stalus of

Recommendalion and management response

recommended Implementation

Recommendation: The stralegic plans and implementation of Ihe IDP /
SBDIB should be monitored regularly fo ensure that planned service
delivery objectives enshrined in the sirategic documents of Ihe
municipalify are achieved and realized by the communily and projects 2023-24 In process
are completed on lime and being used for intended! purposes.

Response: Management ackinowledge Ihe findings

Recommendation: The accounting officer should investigale / follow up
reasons for poor project and conlract management, specifically on
moniforing and conlrol of cos! that could resull in the municipality
incuning unnecessaiy cosls. This will enable the municipalily o identily
rool causes and implement coreclive aclions. Furlhermore., aclion 2021-22 In process
should be taken agains! those found lo have not cicted in the besl
interest of the municipality.

Response: Management acknowledge the findings

Recommendation: Consequence managemenl should be implemented
for the role players and recovery of the financial loss incurred because of
the poor work on the projecl. 2021-22 In process

Response: Managemen! acknowledge the findings

104.5ome of the recommendations are still in progress and Financial Misconducl Board has performed
investigation into the Mamphokgo Sports Complex. Consequence management should be
implemented for the role players and recovery of the financial loss incured because of the poor work
on fhe project,

DELIVERY OF KEY SERVICES |

105.The audit included an assessment on the delivery of free basic service electricily which included detail
on focus areas in scope.

106.We identified significant findings on the delivery of the service
Services to indigent households

107.The management of municipal indligents is key to appropriate service delivery and financial
management within local government. Services lo indigent houszholds is encompassec within the
Constitution of South Africa, as such it is important to ensure that funds budgeted for indigent
households reach the intendled beneficiaries through appropriate service delivery. Mismanagement
of indigents can financially cripple municipalities and service delivery, while proper management of
indigents will assist municipalities with financial health.
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Findings on services to indigent households

Number of Prior years reported
3 R-Valuve of oLy P
instances

. ideniified
identiiied instances idenltifie

Finding (2023-24)

(2023-24)

Indigenl cuslomers approved ancd received Ihe v v
subsiclies were nol in line with Ihe indigen! pelicy anc
municipal by-laws resulting in a financial loss and cid nol
cualily for the rebate.314 - Deceasec!

o« 0]-0OltiD
« 04 - Agec above 100 333 R396 802
o 03 - Employer in governmenl

« 03 - inlerested supply payment spouse
o 06 -invalich ID

s 3-Interes! in supplier payments

Inspecled the LGES summary clalo and formula ancl nfa n/a vV X
conlirmed thal the number of indigen! householcls
included by the Nalional Treasury for Ihe equilable
share allocation is 22 544, Furlher confirmed through
inspection ol the municipality's 2024 reviewed Incligent
register thal the municipalily registered 454 houscholds
as incligent househaoldls.

Incligenis inclucled in the calculation by Nalional
Treasury = 29 544

Indigents as par the municipal Regisler= 454

Diflerence= 29 090

No budge! included for seivice clelivery far indigent nfa nfa v X
householcls from equilable share allocaled to Ihe
municipality for basic services

The municipalily did nol take suflicient inificlives lo nfa nfa N X
Inform the public eifectively aboul the process for
indigent applicalions and Ihe crileria lor qualilicalion

Upon enquiry from managemenl aboul 1he internal nl/a nfa v X
conlrols for incligenl support, management indicoled
Ihal they dic nol have a dedicaled ollicial working on
ihe indigen! supporl in the 2023-24 linancial year.

108.Impact: This would result in possible financial loss and material non-compliance with the ly and MFMA
during the year under review.

¢ Mismanagement of indigents financially cripple municipalities and service clelivery, ancl proper
management of indigents will assist municipalities with financial heallh.

»  Money budgeted for indigents cdoes not reach the intended number of households.

109.In the previous three consecutive financial years, similar audit fincdings were raised and not being
appropriately addressecl, however the municipalily procured the Gensize data collection system for
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free basic electricity to its customers within a local authority areq, in accordance wilh the decision
made by the relevant local authority regarding the method of implementing the policy.

I'11.The audit finding will be assessed for a possible material iregularity in the next audit cycle,
Recommendations

112.We made recommendations to improve the delivery processes to the accounting officer and senior
management, Some of these recommendations were also made in prior years,

Key recommendalions and responses - services fo indigent households

Year originally Status of

Recommendation and management response
recommended Implementation

Recommendation:

Managemenl should ensure Iheil there are adequate conlrols over
approval and validalion Processes for applicalions.

Management should (urther perform regular verifications on the existing
incligents to coniirm that fheir incligent status hasn'| changed.

Management should revisil the enlire incligen| Population to ensure thert
allindigenl customers in Ihe register qualily for Ihe subsidy. The financial
loss incurred should be quanlified by managemenl and provided for
review.

Finance departmen should ensure that the annual budget inclucles o
clear allocalion for the indigent suppor| program lo supporl the
applicants who qualify for the indigent subsicly within ihe jurisciiction of Ihe
municipality.

2022-21 In process

Strengthen infernal confrols should be implemented by:

Establishing clear guidelines and procedures for managing indigen|
applications.

Regularty reviewing anc updaling the incligenl register

Response: Managemen agrees to Ihe finding, managemen! could not
have starled the invesligalions wilhoul the procuring the system and
verilying everyone who wes on Ihe previous year's list. J

113.Prior years recommendations were not implemented due to similar audiit finding being raised in the
current year however management procured the new system fo assist wilh detection and prevention
of the non-qualifying beneficiaries.

Human setlements

114.The form and location of land developments, human settlement projects and informal setlement
upgrades do not respond effectively lo government's statements of spatial intent, Human Settlement
patterns remain inequitable and dysfunctional across the couniry, with densely and informal
settlements continuing. Through insights shared with key role players in the ecosystem, we aim to
influence our stakeholders to take progressive action to advance affordable ancl sustainable human
setflements in the country. The work performed in Ihe current year is gedred to obiain information fo
be able o understand the underlying processes at municipalities thal are currently in place,
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115. CoGHSTA is the implementing agent for the housing projects in the local municipalily’s jurisdiction,
hence the municipdlity is not yel accrediled for the provision of housing projects,

116.The municipality does not have a human settlemen unit, and municipalily identifies housing needs
Ihrough councillors who work together with their warc commitiee members to identify and

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

118.We audited compliance with legislation on human resource management and assassed the
processes in place lo ensure adequate and sufficiently skilled resources are in place,
audilor's repot,
Findings on human resource management

Prior years reported
Material non- / B

Eaing compliance e FIEE
b 2022-23 J 2021-22

The municipalily does nol have performance evaluations for staff members as
required by Ihe MSA anci performance managemenl policy,

A formal micl-year ane final review was nol performed in the current year lo
assess the relevance of Ihe abjectives and the indivicual's performance
against he objeclives,

The incliviclual dlicl not sign a performance agreement for he curreni year
which should inclucle key perfarmance arecs ancl KPls.

Employees hired in 1ha current year did nol meet the requirements as per the No No Yes
MSA, slalf regulations el recruitimenl policy

We were unable to oblain sufficien| appropriale audil evidence thal the No No No
appointed accounting officer mel Ihe minimum compelency levelsin lhe unil
slandards prescribed for compelency areas as required by section 83/107 ol
the MFMA, seclion 54A(2) of Ihe MSA, regulations 2,3, and 18 of the municipal
regulalions on minimum competency levels and requlalion 8(1){b) of Ihe
regulalion on appoinimen| and conditions of employmenl! of senior mancgjers.

We were unable 1o oblain sufficient appropriale oudil evidence thal the Mo No No
appoinled chiel financial officer mel the minimum competlency levels in the
unil stanclarcls prescribed for compelency areas as requirec by seclion 83/107
ol the MFMA, seclion 56(1)(b) of the MSA, regulations 4, 5 and 18 of the
municipal regulalions on minimum compelency levels and regulation §( 1{b) of
the requlation on appointment and conclitions ol employment ol senio;
managers,

We were unable 1o oblain sullicien! appropriate audlil evidence that Ihe No No No

finance oflicial(s) al midclle management mel lhe minimum competlency
levels in Ihe compelency levels in Ihe unil standards prescribed for

\jompeiency creas wilhin Ihe sel timefames cis required by section 83/107 of
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Prior years reported

Material non-

Finding compliance |
P 2022-23 | 2021-22

the MFMA and regulations 9,15 and 18 of llhe Municipal Regulalions on
Minimum Compelency Levels,

120.  The overall vacancy in the municipality is at 23% which is nol significantly above the norm, however lhe
vacancy in the budget and treasury, municipal manager and corporate service requires improvement
to ensure that the municipality improves its performance cs well as achievemeni of the planned service
delivery targets. The municipality is commended for the filling of vacancies al the level of the Section
56 and 57 managers for the year under review especially in the infrastructure unit,

121, In line with local government regulations on appointment and condition of employment of senior
manager dated 17 January 2024, the municipdlity submilted the report on appointment of directors or
senior managers to the MEC CoGHSTA and feedback was provided by the MEC and follow ups will be
made fo assess if the pro-active actions regarding the feedback received from CoGHSTA, were
implemented.

122.No supporting evidence could be provided to confirm or verify some of the competencies of the
directors and supply chain management unit. This relates to the below minimum competency levels
required by MSA, MFMA and regulation.
« financial and performance reporting
s Legislation, policy and implementation
o Supply chain management
o Operational financial management
» Governance, ethics and values in financial management
o Risk and change management
o Project management
s Legislation, policy and implementation
o Supply chain managemenl
123.The staff skills audit must be conduclied within 24 months from election of the new council of o
municipality as required regulation 48(3) of the municipal staff regulations. There was no evidence

provided to the auditors that the staff skill audit was performed as required by the regulation,

124 We made recommendalions to improve the human resource management to the human resource
management. Some of these recommendations were also made in prior years.

Key recommendations and responses - municipal services

Year originally Status of

Recommendation and management response
recommended implementation

Recommendation: Management must ensure thal perlormance
evalualions are caried for all staff and nol only section 57 managers 1o . o
comply with Ihe requirements of the MSA and PMS policy. 2 Limited progress
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Year originally Status of

Recommendation and management response ’ ;
recommended implementation

Managemenl needs also to develop a formal succession plan for
iclentified key rales lo faciitale fulure Iransilions and lo ensure business
conlinuily in Ihe event of vacancies arising in key roles,

Response: Management aarees wilh Ihe recommendalions.

Recommendation: Accounling olficer and Human Resource
Managemenl should ensure thal appointmenl processes within the
municipalily are conducled , adequalely and sufficiently reviewed
against Ihe Government Gazetles , Human Resource Policy , Regulations
and Municipal Syslem Acl lo enable human resource capacily to be
suslained wilh slalf members wilh required skills , expertise and credenlials
to improvemenl lhe performance of The municipality as well as service
clelivery objeclives lo the benefils of the communily al large. 2022 Limitedl progress

he accounting officer should ensure appropriate processes and
procedures governed by legislative requirements are implemented and
followed o ensure adequalely skiled employees are appointed for
vacan! posts,

Response: Managemenl disagrees wilh the fincling. (See Annexure D)

Recommendations: The accounling olficer shauldl exercise oversighl over
complionce wilh the Municipal Stafl Regulations and implement

sccordingly 2022 Nol starfed

Responses: Managemenl acknowledge Ihe maller raised to be
addiassed,

Recommendations: The accounling olficer should ensure thal all
Managers appointed meel Ihe minimum compelency requiremenls as
per Ihe MEMA and MSR as well as development of aclion plan lo aclcress
Ihe skill developmen! gaps ta address the maller raised by oversighl
structures. The skill audil should be conducled lo ensure thal employees 2022 Not slarlecl
are well capacilaled lo improve and enhance Ihe service delivery.

Responses: Managemen! acknowledge the malter raised o be
addiessed.

USE OF CONSULTANTS

125.The municipality spent R3 797 086 on consullants in Ihe current year for financial performance
managemenl and reporting processes which has increased by R1 360 182 as compared to the
previous year,

126.0ur audil included an assessmenl of the effective use of consultants and compliance with local
governmen! requirements for the appointmenl and management of consuliants,

127 We did not identify findings on the use of consullanls.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PERFORMANCE REPORTS AND
ANNUAL REPORTS

128.We performed an audit on the compliance of the annual financial stalements and annual repor,
where we audited the legislation requirements for the submission of the annual financial statements
and annual report. ‘

129.We identified malerial findings.

Findings on the annual financial statements, performance reporls and annual reports

Prior years reporied

Material non-

Hinding compliance | __ AT ]
2022-23 2021-22

The financial statemenls submilted for auditing were not preparec in all Yes v \
material respecls in accordance wilh the requirements of section 122(1) of the

MFMA.,

The oversight report adopled by the council on the 2024/03 annual reporf was No X X

nol made public within seven days, as required by section 129(3) of Ihe MFMA.
Subsequently, The annual report was evenlually published,

130.Impact: The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respecis in
accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements identified
by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected which resulted in
the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

131.This is a repeat non-compliance caused by inadequate review of the annual financial statements. The
accounting officer did not prepare regular, accurate and complete financial records that are

supported by reliable information,

132.We made recommendations to improve fo the accounting officer and in senior management. Some
of these recommendations were also macdle in prior years,

Key recommendations and responses

Year originally Stalus of
recommended implementation

Recommendation and management response

Recommendation: Finance management leam should keep full and
proper records supporling the annual financial stalement, cross-casl "
balances and review the annual financial stalements lo ensure (hal they 2020-21

. In progress
are in accordance wilh the prescribecd norms and standcrcls,

Response: Managemeni agrees willh the recommendalion.

Recommendation: Managemenl should implement reconcilialion
procedures lo ensure that the annual financial statements agree lo Ihe
supporling schedules as well as complying with 1he financicl reporling 2072-21

: : In progress
ramework.

Response: Management agrees wilh the recommendation.
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ASSET MANAGEMENT

133.We performed an audit on the compliance of asset management, where we audited the legislation
requirements for the assets management of the municipalify.

134.We did nol identify material non-compliance lo be reported in the audit report however we did
icdlentify findings:

°  Asselsregister does not contain sufficient, accurate as required by the assets management policy
and assets management framework which resull in inability or limitation in determination of the
existence of the assels in Ihe assets register,

* Nodisclosure of long outstanding projects in the annual financial statements which is contrary fo
the GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment, requirements as well as service delivery objectives not
been mel or realised by the communily since the project inception to date in note 12.

o The useful life of Ihe assets was nol assessed by management as required by GRAP requirements
which resull in non-compliance with GRAP requirements and misstatements of assets in the annual
financial statements in Nofe 12 hence there are indicators which are identified by the Landfill Sites
Experts Report.

CO-ORDINATING MINISTRIES AND THEIR IMPACT ON LOCAL
GOVERNMENT.

135.The co-ordinaling minisiries within 1he province should maintain ¢ role of oversight, co-ordination and
guidance to the local government sector and its service delivery activities. The main role-players
within the province are Provincial Treasury (PT); the depariment of co-operative governance and
Iraditional affairs (COGTA); and the Member of executive Council (MEC)for local government.

136.We considered the influence, supporl, capacitalion and interventions of these co-orientating
departments as parl of our audil. We also considered the role of the accounting officer, mayor anc
Ihe council, inclucling the municipal public accounls committee [MPAC), internal audit and the audil
and risk committee to better understand the discharge of their mandate and the effectiveness of their
role.

137.0ur insights are as follows:

Financial Management and Support

138.The mid-year budgel and performance assessments for the municipality were completed and
submitted to Provincial Treasury. Limpopo Provincial Treasury included lhe concerns and
recommendations that will assist the municipality's sustainability and there were implemenied for the
yedr under review,

132.The municipality was not put under Provincial or National intervention and there was no financial
recovery plan as the municipality was financially stable.,

Capacitation and professionalisation

140.There was no representalive of Provincial Treasury during the appointment of staff and there were not
involved in offering the hraining or technical support for the year under review.,

141.The Provincial Treasury was invelved in the audit steering commiliee meeling 1hroughout the audit,

i | 28



Municipal council and oversight mechanisms
Council

142.The municipal council of the municipaility has discharged their role including oversight responsibility for
Ihe adoption of the audit report, approval of strategic documents including IDP, SDBIP, mid-year
assessments and budget as well as the annual performance report. The UIFW reports were reported to
the oversight siructures including the AGSA.

143.The investigations report of MPAC & FMB were adopted with recommendalions to the accounting
officer to implement the recommendations which include corrective actions, recoveries and fraining.

Municipal Accounts Committee (MPAC)

144. Members of the MPAC discharged their responsibility in line wilh their approved framework and the
investigation were performed for fruilless and wasteful expenditure as well as irregular expenditure for
the year under review and their values has been significantly reduced. The concern raised was
regarding the slow implementation of their recommenddations by the municipality.

lrcining offered to councillors "

145.There was no training for code of conduct, environmental, consequence management and
accountability framework, and professionalisation framework which weis offered to the municipall
councillors for the year under review,

Disciplinary Boaidls

146.The municipality has the established fhe Financial Misconduct Board and they discharged their role
and responsibilities in line with their approved terms of reference (TOR). Their investigalion reports were
tabled and adopted by the municipal council.

Consequence management

147.  Accounting officer has developed the mechanism to address the material iregularities which are
reporfed in the management and audil report, The disciplinary process was taken against some of the
officials for the contraventions of and regulations. Some of the disciplinary process shall commence '
affer 30 November 2024 as outlined in the audit report, |

Coalitions

146, A codlifion government exists when two or more pdalitical parties (or independent representatives)
combine their vetes in a council, to elect o government, and to support the decisions it takes, The
municipal council of Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality is not a Coalitions.

Mcyor

147. The office of the Mayor has discharged its role and responsibilities as required by the Acts, laws and
regulations. The report for the appointment of directors were submitted to COGHSTA and feedback
has been received.

148. Mayor ensured that the concluded annual performance agreements for the directors and municipal
manager are linked to the measurable performance objeclives and to the service delivery and
budget implementation plan [SDBIP).
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149.We applaud the Office of the Mayor for ensuring that all the positions of the direclors are filed and
commilments to service delivery 1o the citizens or community.

Provincial oversight, fransparency, institutional integrity, performance
and accountability

150. Provincial oversight and departmentis should be diligently moniloring in accordance with the required
legislation.

151.The municipality was nol subjected to any Provincial or National Intervention for the year under
review,

Performance agreements and appointments

152.Provincial CoGTA's performs reviews of recruitment processes relative to the appointment of seclion
56 and 57 Senior Managers to assess whelher municipdiities complied with the revised Municipal
Systems Acl and regulations on staffing.

153.In line with local government regulalions on appointment and condition of employment of senior
manager clated 17 January 2024, the municipality submitted Ihe report on appointment of directors or l
senior managers fo the MEC CoGHSTA and feedback was provided by the MEC

Positive insights on co-ordinating ministries support

154, The representative of the COGHSTA attended the audit steering committee meeting throughout the
audit cycle of 2023-24. The provicded sufficient support and guidance which had positive impact
fowards the audit cutcomes.

INFORMATION SECURITY MANAGEMENT

155.0ur audit included an assessment of the effecliveness of informalion technology (IT) security conlrols
thal should prevent unauthorised access to key information systems and safeguard the municipality
against business interruplions,

156, We did not identify significant deficiencies in the IT security controls. Where we identified possible
improvements, we reported these to management.

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT |

157.5ection 217(1) of the Constitulion envisages supply chain management systems that are fair,
equitable, transparent, compelitive and cost effeclive to achieve optimal value for public money
spenl and ensure equitable opporiunities for suppliers to participate in government business.
Meticulous contract management and rigorous payment control mechanisms should be in place to
ensure Ihal payments are made only upon the supplier's limely delivery, agreed-upon pricing is
adhered to, and specified qualily standards are complied with.

158.We conlinued fo focus on procurement and contract management processes, recognising thal
public procurement is the area at grealest risk of fraud, financial loss and iregular practices. We
idenlified findings. The findings on material non-compliance with legislation will be reported in the
audilor's reporl.

159.Nexi, we summarise the areas in procurement and conlroct managemen! processes where we
idenlified findings - these are the areas at greatest risk of fraud and financial loss. Delails on the
findings are included in annexure B.
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Findings on procurement and contract management

Findings

2023-24 2022-23 2021-22

Auclit limitalions

Devialions

Conlflict of interest

Non-compliance: competitive biclding process

Non-compliance: quolation process

Contract managemenl

L Material nan-coy npliance willh legislation Finclings No finclings J

161.The accounting officer did nol put adequate controls in place to ensure that the municipality
complies with laws and regulations relating to the deviations,

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Y mandgement and during the audit, The imegular expenditure incurred constitutes non-compliance
with the MFMA and SCM regulations,

163. Reasonable steps were not taken fo preventirregular expenditure amounting 1o R23 129 432 ¢is
disclosed in note 44 fo the annual financial statements, as required by section 62(1)(dl) of the MFMA .

164.The iregular expenditure incurred was no disclosed in the financial statements submitled for audit, The
material non-compliance with supply chain management regulations was identifiec during the audi.
Subsequently, management has included the iregular expenditure in the annual financial stalements
through the process of the adjustments,

CONSEQUENCE MANAGEMENT

165.Legislation stipulates that matters such as incurring unauthorised, iregular, and fruitless and wasteful
expenditure; the possible abuse of the supply chain management system (including fraud and
improper conduct); and allegations of financial misconduct should be investigated, Oisciplincrry steps

166.We did not identify findings. The findings on materigl non-compliance with legislation will be reporied
in the auditor's report.
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167.During prior-year audils, we reported findings on transgressions by officials or other role-players for
management to investigalecd. During the current year's audit, we performed follow-up tests 1o
determine whether management has dealt with these matters. Some of the reported fransgressions
were investigated and resolved.

Prior-year fransgressions

Instances Prior years reported
Instances Instances resolved Bl e
reported investigated through
invesfigation

Prior year finding

2022-23 | 2021-22

Improper conduct in supply chain management process

Fruilless and wasleful expendifure incurred by the
municipality was not investigaled 1o delermine if
any person is lichle for the expenditure, s
requirec by seclion 32(2) (b) of Ihe MFMA,

11 6 0] 17 258

Some ol 1he iregular expendilure incurred by the
municipalily weie nol invesligaled lo delermine if
any person is liable for Ihe expendilure, as
required by seclion 32(2) (D) of Ihe MFMA.

57 22 1 35 24

Supplier submilled false declarcation of interest 0 0] 0 0 5

168.In prior financial years some of the investigations inlo iregular and fruitless expenditure could not be
concluded and are slill in progress.

162.MPAC and Financial Misconduc! Board performed the investigations into fruitless and wasteful
expenditure & irregular expenditure relating to the prior financial years and municipal council
adopted their report which resulted in reduction in the closing balances for the UIFW for 2023-24 as
some of the maters were irecoverable or written off, Council directed the accounting officer to
implement the recommendalion of the MPAC and Financial Misconduct Board which will be followed

up.

1 70.1mpact: This will result in a lack of the consequences, non-recovery of fincincial losses and significant
weaknass in infernal confrols which will have a negalive impact on service delivery.

171. Where we idenlified possible improvements, we then reported o management. We identified
significant internal control deficiencies, which caused the wedknesses in consequence management
as reporled.

Significant internal control deficiencies ~ consequence management

Prior years reported
Internal confirol deficiency

Delays in lhe reporls of 1he Financial Misconducl Boards, implementalion of their
recommendalions and applicalion of consequence management.

172.We made recommendations to improve the consequence management process to the accounting
officer. Some of these recommendalions were dlso made in prior years, A summairy of the key
recormnmendations and the responses received follows,
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Key recommendations and responses - consequence management

Year originally B G HTHG]

Recommendation and management response
recommended Implementation

Recommendation: The municipality should institute measures or
mechanisms fo guide, supporl anc enable implementation of
investigations into iregular expencdliture and fruilless and wasteful
expendilure as well as implementation of Ihe recommendeations of he 2022-23 In progress
MPAC & Financial Misconduct Board.

Response: Mcnagement lake note of the recommendation,

173.In prior financial years, investigations into iregular and fruitless expenditure could nol be concluded.

174.Impact: This will result in lack of the consequences, non-recovery of financial loss which will negatively
impact service delivery.

175.We did not identify significant internal conltrol deficiencies in the consequence management
processes. Where we identified possible improvements, we reported these to management.

Significant internal confrol deficiencies - consequence management

Prior years reported

Deficiency
2022-23 2021-22

Delays in the acdoption and implementalion of the recommencdations i Financial v v
Misconducl board reporls and applicalion of consequence managemenl,

FRAUD RISK

176.0ur auditing standards define fraud as an intentional act by one or more indivicluals who are
employees, management, those charged with govemance or third parties, and that involves the use
of deceplion to obtain an unjust or illegal advantage.

177.We are required to evaluale whether the informalion obtained during our audit indicates whether
there any fraud risk factors present at the municipality and consider its impact on the audit. Fraud risk
factors are events or conditions thal indicate an incentive or pressure to commil fraud or that provide
an opportunity to commit fraud (e.g. inadequate conlrols to prevent or detecl fraud),

178.We did not identity fraud risk factors.
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SECTION 3: CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

OVERALL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

179.The significant internal conlrol deficiencies as reported in section 2 were caused by weaknesses in the
overdll control environment, for which the accounting officer and senior management are
responsible,

180.The following are the main weaknesses that need urgent altention to improve the overall conlrol
environment:

Significant internal conlrol deficiencies - overall confrol environment

Prior years reported

Deficiency

Leadership: J y

The leadership clid not establish and communicote policies and procedures to enable and
supporl the underslanding and execution of inlernal control objectives, processes and
responsibilities

The leadlership did nol monitor the implemenlation of aclion plans to address internal conlral v v
deliciencies
The leadership did nol provide effective leadership basec on a culiure of honesty, ethical X X

business praclices and good governance, protecling and enhancing the interests of 1he enlily.

The leadership did nol exercise oversight responsibilily regarding financial and performance \ \
reporling and compliance as well as related internal conlrols as there are similar errars which
we iclenlified in Ihe current linancial year on the areas of the annual performance report and
assels management

The leadership dic nol implemenl elfeclive HR managemen! o ensure thal adequale and v v
sulficienlly skillec resources are in place and thal perlormance is monilored.

Financial management and performance: N v

The accounting officer anc managemenl clid nol implemenl! proper record keeping in a limely
manner lo ensure Ihal complete, relevan! and accurate information is aicceassible ancl
cvailable 1o supporl linancial anc performance reporling.

The accounting officer and managemenl clid not prepare regular, accurale and complete \ v
linancial and performance reporls Ihal are supporled and evidenced by reliable informalion.

[he accounting ollicer and managemeni did not implemen! adequale review and monitor v \
compliance wilh applicable legislalion as lhere were similar malerial nen-complionce idenlilied
in the curen! year.

The accounling efficer and management Implement controls aver claily ancl monthly N v
processing and reconciling ol lremsaclions

rnance X X

The audit committee did not ensure that it promotes accountability and service delivery
through evaluating and monitoring responses to risks and providing oversight over the
eftectiveness of the inlernal control environment, including financial and performance reporting
and compliance with laws and regulations.
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181.In annexure C we provide a more delailed view of the overall state of internal contral.

ACCOUNTABILITY ECOSYSTEM

182.The accountability ecosystem is the collection of role-players that have a part to play in enabling and
institutionalising ¢ culture of performance, transparency, accountability, and integrily at the
Municipdlity. These role-players include the officials, senior management and accounting officer,
supported by the internal audit until and the audit commitiee.

183.We observed strengths and weaknesses in the contributions to the ecosystem by leadership,
management and the governance struclures of the municipality. We share our observations with the
intention 1o contribute to slrengthening the overall control environment, performance and
accountability.

Accounﬁng(ﬁﬁcerqndsenknrnunqgenwwﬁ

184.The accounting officer did not monitor compliance with the relevant legislation as misstatements were .
identified during the audit,

185.The accounting officer did not ensure that steps were taken to ensure that deficiencies in interncil
control on performance informalion iclentified by cuditors were addressed. The municipality
developed a plan to address internal and external audit findings, but the accounting officer dic not
monitor adherence fo the plan in a fimely manner.

186.The financial slatements submitted for audil confained material misstatements that were nof
detected by the municipality's system of intemnal controls. The financial statements and annual
performance report contained numerous misstatements that required corrections.

187.The adjusted financial statemenls submitted for audit still conlained material misstatements that were
not detected by the municipality's syslem of internal controls. The finance team did not perform the
adequate review on the work of expert to determine the impact towards value of the landfill sites in _
the annual financial statements. Some of the errors or omissions were identified upon the review of the !
expert's report used by the municipality on investment properties and employee benefils.

Audit committee

188. The audil commiltee promotes accouniability and service delivery through evaluating and
monitoring responses to risks anc overseeing the effectiveness of the internal control environment,
including performance and financial reporting and compliance with legislation, The audit committee
discharged their roles in line with audit commitiee charfer in respect of the review of the action plan,
conducting their quarterly meeting, reports of ihe internal audi functions, oversight visit to the projects
and review of the reports from risk committee

189. Municipality's internal audit submitted thelr quarterly audit reports on the municipality's progress on
the recommendations made lo the council to the performance audit commitiee and the municipal
manager,

190.The audit committee met the municipal council for the year under review.

191.The internal control deficiency has been raised on the review and comment on the annual reporl of a
municipality within six months afier the end of the financial year as per the PSACF.,
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Internal audit unit

192.The infernal auditors completed the planned scope of their work during the financial year. The internal
audit reports properly outlined the control deficiencies identified and made appropriate
recommendation for corrective actions required although these recommendalions were nol always
aclequalely implemented by the management.
193.The audiling standards allow us to use the work of internal audil units for external audil purposes and
for direct assistance. We have used internal audil work for risk identification. The following internal
auclit reports were used:
o  Budgel and expenditure review,
o Supply chain management,
s SDBIP review,

o  Project management.

194.External quality assurance review/assessment was nol performed on the internal audit function as
required by I'A standard 1312.

RECOMMENDATIONS AND RESPONSES

195.We macde recommenclations to improve the overall control environment to the accounting officer
and senior management, Some of these recommendations received follows were also made in prior
years. A summary of the key recommendations and the responses

Key recommendalions and responses - confrol environment

Year originally Status of
recommended implementation

Recommendation and management response

Recommendalion: Management should establish and communicale
policies and procedures to enable and supporl the undersianding and
execution of infemal conlrol objectives and responsibililies 2020-21 In progress

Response: Management lake nole ol lhe recommendation.

Recommendation: Managemenl should develop ancl monitor the

implemenialion of action plans lo address the intemal control ,
deliciencies 2020-21 Limiled progress

Response: Managemenl! lake nole of the recommendalion.

Recommendation: Managemenl should exercise oversighl responsibility

regarcling financial and performance reporling and compliance as well
E) =

as related inlernal conlrols. 202021 In progress

Response: Managemeanl fake nole ol the recommendcailion,

Recommendation: Managemenl should implement proper recordl
keeping in a limely manner lo ensure That complele, relevanl and
accurale information is accessible and available 1o supporl linancial anc 2020-21

performance reporling. =
Limiled progress
Response: Managemen! lake note ol the recaommencdation.

Recommendation: Management should prepare regular, accurale and
complete financial and perlormance reporls thal are supported and 2020-21 Limited progress
evidenced by reliable information.
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¥ iginal tus
Recommendation and management response Yeororginally siglus of

recommended implementation

Response: Management Iake nole of Ihe recommendation.

Recommendation: Management should perform a proper review of Ihe
annual financial slatements, develop a standard lemplaie as well as
procedures lo initiate, process, approve and reporl relaling to Ihe annual 20202

. ; Limited progress
linancial stalements lo eliminale risk of material misstatement.

Response: Management lake nole of 1he recommendation,

Recommendation: The accounting officer shouldl implement effeclive

and efficient conlrols over monitaring complicnce with applicable laws
and regulations 2020-21 Limiled progress

Response: Managemenl lake nofe of Ihe recommendalion,

Recommendation: The qudit comimitiee should ensure that if promoles
accountability and service delivery through evaluating and moniloring
responses to risks and providing oversighl over the effecliveness ol the

infernal conlrol environment, including linancial and performance 2023-24 In progress
reporling and compliance with laws and regulations

Response: Managemenl lake nole of the recommendalion

Recommendation: Managemen! Implemenl conlrols over daily and

monthly processing and reconciling of fransactions 2023-24 Limiled progress

Response: Managemenl fake note of the recommendation

Recommendation: The leadership should provide effeclive leadership
based on a cullure of honesly, ethical business practices and good
govemance, protecling and enhancing Ihe inlerests of the enlily. 2023-24 In progress

Response: Managemenl lake nole of the recommendation

196.Control deficiencies were identified, anc recommendations were proposed to management to
implement appropriate corrective measures. This provides assurance with respect to the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of internal conirals over financial and performance
reporling and compliance with laws and regulations. However, management did not fully implement
the recommendations proposed by the internal auditors to address the current and recurring findings
thal were raised.
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SECTION 4: OVERALL RECOMMENDATIONS

197 We provided recommendations to senior management to rectify the wecaknesses identified in
financial management, performance management, compliance with legislation and service delivery,
We commend management for implementing more thon 80% recommendations.

198.50me of the recommendations were nol implemented as there is still similar misstatement which were
idenlified in the previous financial year although there were subsequently corected and adjusted to
the annual financial statements, E.g. Segmenl Reporting. Iregular expenditure [Deviations),
Commitments, Herewiih are some of the reasons identifiec

o  Action plan was not monitored monthly.

o Lack of implementation consequence management for non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

o Lack of adequale review, moniloring of the daily fransactions and year end reporting
process.

o Lack of review and verificalion of the supporting schedules/ records used in financial and
performance reporting.

199.0ur recommendation for the accounling officer is to focus on addressing the underlying rool causes
of Ihese weaknesses, which stem from deficiencies in the overall control environment and failures in
the accountability ecosystem.

200.In our view Ihe main rool causes thal need attention are as follows:
o Indicators and fargels are nol determined using the SMART principles of performance informalion.
e Lack of monthly monitoring of adherence to the developed aclion plan as well as review of Ihe
implementation of measures which are stipulated in the actions to identify any correctlive actions
which requires early intervention by the oversight struclures or accounting officer.
¢ Lack of monitoring of compliance with legislalion and regulations.
201.Acldressing these root causes requires a focused and systematic approach. The municipality should
ensure that the audit action plan is priorilised and not left too late so thal matiers are promptly
addressed.
202.The following are our main recommendalions 1o address the idenfified root causes. The preliminary
recommendations will be further discussed and agreed after Ihe audit cycle. We have shared some

of these before and ask for urgenl aclion to ensure their implementation,

Overall recommendations

Year originally

Recommendation Status of implementation

recommended
The accounling officer should provice oversighl responsibilily regarcling
linancial and performance reporling anc complicnce as well as related
j g o : ¥ ; 2021-22 In process
internal contrals to ensure thal the annual linancial statements and
annual performeance reporl are free from misstalements
2 Managemenl should aclively monilar compliance wilh legislalion and

'J. 4 ! 9 2021-22 In process

requlalions
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Year originally

Recommendation Status of implementation

recommended

The slrategic plans and implemeniation of the IDP / SBDIB should be In process
Mmonitored regularly to ensure thal planned service celivery objeclives
enshiined in Ihe slralegic documents of the municipalily are achieved 2023-24
and reclized by the community andl projects are completec on fime
and being used for intended purposes,

4, Accounling officer lo implement Ihe consequence managemenl lo In process
enhance compliance wilh laws and regulations as well as recovery of 2022-23
the financial losses as recommencied by the MPAC & FMB.

6. Indicators and largels should be delermined applying lhe SMART In process

ST i - -24
principles of performance information ikt

203.Management should ensure that the action plan developed is timeously monitored to ensure its
implementation as this will help achieve improvement in the audil outcomes. Compliance together
with other internal controls should be monitored as well to ensure misstatements in future financial
staterents are detected and corrected prior to submission for external audit.
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CONCLUSION

204.1t is vitally important for the accounting officer 1o ensure that the key recommendations in this report
are implemented as this will contiibute fo improving a cullure of accountability, transparency and
integiity in the municipalily. The resultant impact of this is Ihe improvement of the livelihoods of the

citizens.

Yours sincerely

Senior Manager: Limpopo

Enquities: Ngoako Makgalo
Phone: 015 283 2300
Emaiil: ngoakom@cgsa,co.za
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ANNEXURE A: FINANCIAL ASSESSMENT

We included a summary of the financial assessment we did as part of the audit in the section on financial
performance. This annexure includes the defailed ratios and information used for the assessment.

| Current year

Expenditure management

Previous year

Revenue managemen

1.1 Creditor-payment period 37.7 Days 42.2 Days
1.2 o  Deficit was realised for the year (total
: No No
expenditure exceeded total revenue)
*  Amount of surplus / deficit for the year 40 466 454 71 666 122

Assel maintenance and renewal

2.1 Debl-collection period after impairment 104.3 Days 116.1 Days
o Amount of debtor's impairment provision R42755171
R40 594 294
o Amount of accounts receivable R73 476 562
2.3 Deb?—lmpmrmejnl provision as a percentage of R72511 096 RA2 755 171
accounts receivable
+  Amount of debt-impairment provision
56% R73 476 562
e Amount of accounts receivable before impairment
2.3 Percentage distribution losses - electricity 4.12% 58.2%
*  Amount of units generated / purchasec R32 755894
31016364
o Amount of units sold to consumers R31 425 831
30 442971
2.4 Percentage distribution losses — water N/A N/A
o Amount of units generated / purchased N/A N/A
e  Amount of units sold o consumers N/A N/A

expenditure

a.l Percentage spending on repairs and maintenance 2.2% 1.7%
e Amount of expendilure on repairs ancl R19 192048
maintenance R14 948 707
o Carrying value of property, plant and equipment R876 397 101
; tal ital i ' flot
32 Total capital expenditure as perceniage of fotal 6% R97 443 178
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Current year

Previous year

Asset and liability management

o Amouni of capital expenditure R51 331 401
R346 847 847
= Amouni of operating and capital expenditure R440 996 977
; Asset habilitali i
33 ss‘ renewal / rehabili a ion expen.dnure as o N/A 80.8%
percentage of folal capital expenditure
A I of assef r habilitati
0 moun | of assel renewal / rehabilitation N/A R63 785956
expendilure
3.4 Assel renewal / rehabilitation expenditure as a
b i - N/A 132.5%
percentage of total depreciation and impairment
e Amount of deprecialion and impairment R62 410 051 R59 406 979

4.1 Total debt / borrowings vs tolal revenue for the year 132.9% 142,7%
°  Amount of debt / borrowings
*  Amount of revenue for the year R148 453 971
R137 861 486
R96 587 320
R111 700985
4.2 Current liabilities as a percentage of next year's
13.6% 14%
budgeted resources
*  Amount of current liabilities R75803 053 RA41 189 308
" ; , ;
¢ Total budgeted income for the pexl year ex‘cludmg R534 211 000 RA93 147 000
employee costs and remuneration of councillors
4.3 Net currenl liability posilion was reclised (tolal current
o No No
liabilities exceeded total currenl ossets)
o Amount of net current assel / liability position R489 086 615 R348 988 120
4.4 Net non-current liability position was realised (total non-
o e No No
current liabiliies exceeded lolal non-current assets)
° Am.o.um of net non-currenl asset / liability R877 331 110 R901 809 219
paosilion
4.5 Net liability position was realised (lotal liabilities
No No
exceeded tolal assets)
o Amounl of net asset / licbility position Rl 366417 725 R1 270797 339
4.6 LIqL:iIC| assels as a percentage of total current liabililies 59999 540%
{acid test percentage)
o Amount of liquid assels R36 694 142 36 704 040
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Current year Previous year

Current ratio 6.44% 6.1
e Amount of current assets R489 086 615 R441 189 308
4.8 Total debt to total assets ratio 0.10 0.10
o Amount of debts R141 156 601 R137 861 486
*  Amount of assets R1 441 914 028 R1 408 658 825
Cash management
4.9 Year-end bank balance was in overdraft No Mo
o Amouni of yegr-end bank balance- cash R359 462 684 R318 629 848
and cash equivalents
4.10 | Cash plus investiments less applications R410 940 582 R293 672 387
o Cash and cash equivalents R359 462 684 R318 629 848
o Amount of total invesiments R74 377 561 RO
¢ Less: amount of cash applications/ commitments R22 899 663 R24 957 461
4.11 | Cash coverage : 14.7 months 16.1 monihs
o Amount of monthly expenditure
R22 281 357 R19 801 322

" These amounts have been adjusted for uncorrected misstatements that resulted in the unmadified audit
opinion.

The municipdlity incurred electricity losses amounting R2 259 465 (2023: R 629 158) as compaired to the
prior financial year which has increased from 1.88% to 4.12% in the current year. However, distibution
losses were below the norm of 7-10% as sel by National Treasury in terms of Circular 71. The distribution loss

was recorded 4.12% for the financial year. The municipality did not incur any waiter losses for the yecr
under review.
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ANNEXURE B: PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT
MANAGEMENT

1. We included a summary of our findings and their impact in the section on procurement and contract
management. This annexure provides the detailed finclings.

Devidtions

2. Supply chain management legislation and policy prescribe the processes thal apply for procuring
specific goods and services as well as their Ihreshold values, including competiive bidding, oblaining
quotations or parlicipating in transversal contracts. It also defines the requirements for devialing from
Ihe prescribed processes. We identified devialions where the stipulaled requirements for such
deviations were not complied with.

3. It should be noled that when a contract expires, a new procurement process must be followecd! to
appoint a new service provider. Renewal of existing contracts is effeclively a deviation. Hence it must
be justificble thal il is impractical to procure a new confract or there are exceptional benefits/
discounts for renewing the existing contract.

Findings on deviations from prescribed procuremenl processes

Value and date of : Material non-
Finding
award compliance

Contract/quotation

Maboltwane Securily Value: R1 899 542 Conlracl extension for Mabolwane Secuiily Services
Services is nol infine lo the SCM Policy, SCM Reqgulations

Date: | December :
| :
2023 36(1) (1) & MFMA

I. Impact: The municipality did not comply with the supply chain management regulalions which
resulled in iregular expenditure.

2. Similar non-compliance was identified in the current year,
Competitive bidding and quotation processes
3. Supply chain management legislation and policy prescribe the manner in which bidding and

quotation processes should be performed to enable fair, compelitive and equitable procurement. We
idenlified non-compliance with the requirements for the competitive biclding process.

Findings on compelitive bidding process

Prior years reported
Malerial :

Finding Instances non-
compliance 2022-23

Conlraci exlension for Mabolwane Securily Services is R 1 B99 562 | No v N/A
nol inline 1o the SCM Policy, SCM Requlalions & MFMA

'
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Contract management

4. Supply chain management legislation and policy prescribe the manner in which contracts should be
managed o ensure that payments are only made for goaods and services that have been received
and that have been delivered at the right qudlity. We idenlified non-compliance with these
requirements.

Findings on coniract management

Prior years reported
Malerial y P

Finding Instances non-
compliance 2022-23

There was no evidence Ihal the performance of the R31 120 443 13 Yes NfA N/A
conlractar/ provider is monilored on a monihly beisis

5. Impact: The accounting officer and supply chain management did not implement effeclive and
efficient transparent systems of financial, risk management and internal control 1o ensure that
contractual agreements are monitored on monthly basis and sufficient / adequate evidence of Ihe
review is filed and signed off by Ihe senior official to eliminate the risk of poor performance or

Conflict of interest - MFMA

6. We assessed the interests of official's councillors and other persons in service of the state in the
suppliers to the municipality. The supply chain management regulations prohibit awards to suppliers
where there could be conflict of interest. We did not identify such interests,

Internal control and recommendations

7. We identified significant interal control deficiencies, which caused the weaknesses in the
procurement and contract management processes as reported.

Significant internal control deficiencies - procurement and conlfract management

Prior years reported

Deficiency —
2022-23 ' 2022-21

The accounling officer and supply chain managemenl did not ensure That 1here is v v
adequale review and moniloring of compliance wilh Ihe SCM ancl MFMA regulalions.

Accounting Olfficer and supply chain management clid nol that ensure conlraclual v \
agreements are monilorec on monlhly basis, planned appropriately and procuremenls
for goods and service il implemented in line with SCM Folicy, SCM Regulations and SCM
policy of the municipalily

8. We made recommencdiations to improve the jprocurement and contract management process to the
senior management, Some of these recommendations were also made in prior years. A summary of
the key recommendations and the responses received follows.
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Key recommendoations and responses — procurement and confract management

Recommendation and management response

Recommendation: The accounling officer should ensure thal there are
adequale controls in place lo ensure thal there is o sound process in place
to ensure thal all bid specificalions are dralted in an unbiased manner 1o
allow all polential providers to ofler their goods andl services.

Response: No response

Year originally

recommended

2022-23

Stalus of
implementation

Nol startec!

Recommendation: The accounting officer and supply chain management
did nolimplement proper record keeping in a limely manner lo ensure 1hal
complele, relevant and accurate informalion is accessible and available
to suppar! financial and performance reporling lo enable proper and
complete conlract regisler for the year under review,

Response: Management does nol agree with the fincling

2023-24

Nol starlec

Recommendation: The accounting officer should ensure that the policies
and procedures are reviewed periodically o on annual basis and
approvec by The Municipal Council 1o enable |he municipality to achieve
ancl enhance Ihe service delivery objeclives as outlined in Ihe IDP & SBDIP
as well as compliance wilh various laws andl regulations applicable to it

Response: Managemenl disagrees wilh Ihe Audlil fincling all policies
implemenied were approved by council

2023-24

Mol starlec

7. Management responses not yel implemented as compared to the improvement in the previous financial
year, 2022-23 where there were no materiail non-compliances in the audit reporl.
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ANNEXURE C: ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

1. This annexure provides our assessment of the main internal controls in the areas of leadership, financial
and performance management and governance thal should enable credible financial statements and
performance reports and compliance with legislation.

2. The assessments are rated as follows:

The required preventalive or delective conlrols were in place.

Progress was macde in implementing preventative or cleleclive conlrols, 15Ul improvemnent is slill requirec], or
, aclions laken were not sustainable.

Internal conlrols were not in place, were nol properly designed, were nal implemented or were nol aperaling
efleclively. Infervention is required 1o clesign and/or implemen! appropriate conlrols.

3. Movement from the previous year is shown as follows:

;\A'} Improvement ® Regression b Unchanged

Internal confrol assessment

Financial Performance |Compliance with
statements reporting legislation

Current |Previous| Current |Previous| Current |Previous

Leadership "

Provide efleclive leadership based on a cullure of honesly,
ethical business practices and good govercance, and protect
and enhance Ihe interests of the enlily

Exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial anc
performance repoiling and complicnce as well us relaled
infernal controls

Implement effective human resource management lo ensure
thatl adequate and sulliciently skilled resources are in place and
that performance is monitored

Establish and communicale policies and proceciures to enable
and supporl the undersianding and execution of inlernal control
objeclives, processes and responsibililies

Develop and monitor the implementation ol aclion plans to | il
address inlernal conlrol deficiencies : ' il
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Financial Performance |[Compliance with
statements reporting legislation

Current |Previous| Current |Previous| Cumrent |Previous

Establish and implement an informalion lechnology governance
framework that supports and enables Ihe business, delivers value
ancl improves perlormance

Financial and performance management

Implement proper record keeping in a limely manner (o ensure
Ihat complete, relevan! and accurate information is accessible
and available 1o supporl financial and performance reporting

Implement conlrols over daily and monlhly processing and
reconciling of fransaclions

Prepare regular, accurate and complele financial and
performance reports Ihal are supporied and evidenced by
reliable informalion

Review and monitor compliance wilh applicable legislation

Desian and implemen! lormal conlrols over informalion .
lechnology systems lo ensure the reliability of the syslems andl the : A : f
availahility, accuracy and prolection of infermalion relaling to
user access management, programme change conlrol and .
service conlinuily | 1

Governance

Implemenl appropriale risk managemeni oclivities lo ensure thal
reqular risk assessments, including the consideralion of
inlormation lechnology risks and fraud prevention, are
conducled and thal arisk slrategy lo address the risks is
developed and monilored

Ensure Ihal There is an adequalely resourced and funclioning
inlernal audit unil thal idenlities inlernal conlrol deficiencies and
racommencds correclive aclion ellectively

Ensure thal The audil commillee promoles accountahility anc
setvice delivery Through evalualing and moniloring respanses lo
risks ancl overseeing the ellecliveness of Ihe inlernal conlrol
environmenl, inclucling linancial and performance reporling cnd
compliance with legislalion
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2023/2024 AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit and Performance Commitiee has been established as an independent Committee,
in terms of Section 166 of the MFMA Act No. 56 of 2003. The Committee has adopted formal
terms of reference, which its Audit Committee Charter, that is regularly updated and approved
by Council.

We are pleased to present the Annual Audit Commitiee Report of the Municipality for the
financial year ended 30 June 2024.

Audit Commitiee members and attendance of meetings

The Audit Committee consists of five (5) members including the chairperson of the committee,
however the term of office for one member of the committee has elapsed on 31 October 2023
and the committee remained with {4) members. Below is the skill and experience of members
that enhance the audit committee representation and its performance to offer objective and
guality advice.

Financial management

Legal

Admin and Governance (i.e., Internal Audit, Risk Management, IT, Human Resources).
Performance Management

The following represent the list of members of the committee and number of meetings
attended:

Name of member Number of meetings
- ' attended :

Mr. LM. Malapela - Chairpersan 12

Mr. VK. Chuene — Member 04

Mr. MA. Mmapheto — Member 12

Adv. GT. Moeeng — Member i2

Mr. LM. Mokwena - Member 12

Mandatoty roles of the Audit Committee

Section 166 of the MFMA (Act No. 56 of 2003} clearly states that each municipality and
municipal entity must have an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is an independent
advisory bady that advises council, political office bearers, accounting officer, and staff of the
municipality on the following:

+ Internal financial control and internal audits.




Risk management.

Accounting policies.

The adequacy, reliability, and accuracy of financial reporting and information.

Performance management.

Effective governance.

Compliance with the MFMA, the annual Divisicn of Revenue Act (DoRA) and any other

applicable legislation.

Performance evaluation.

» Any other issues referred to by the municipality.

o Review annual financial statements to provide authoritative and credible view of the
financial position, on overall compliance with MFMA, DORA and other applicable
legislations.

» Respond to Council on any matter raised by the Auditor-General {AGSA); and

» Carry out such investigations into financial affairs of the municipality as may be

prescribed from time to time.

Effectiveness of Internal Audit

The Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality (EPMLM) has an Internal Audit reporting functionally
to the Audit Committee and administratively to the Accounting Cfficer. The Chief Audit
Executive has unrestricted access to the Audit Committee to ensure independence of the
function.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that Internal Audit Function is operating satisfactorily to
meet its mandate and has considered the risk pertinent to the municipality in their audit plans.
The committee also believes that Internal Audit has effectively carried out its mandate and
responsibility in accordance with the section 165 of the MFMA and approved Internal Audit
Charter. The Internal audit is operating in terms of the internal audit activities which are
planned on the Three- Year Rolling Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2023-2026 and Operational
Plan 2023/2024 which were approved in July 2023, then also reviewed in April 2024 by the
Audit Committee and Internal Audit Charter to affirm its role, responsibilities, and authority.
Internal Audit reports regularly to the Audit Committee in its quarterly and special meetings.

The Audit Committee implores the management of the municipality to implement all Internal

Audit recommendations in order to improve the overall control environment and to mitigate the
risks in the institution.

Effectiveness of internal controls

Internal control is a process for assuring the achievements of an organisation’s objectives in
operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws
and regulations. The Audit Committee has considered the work performed by Internal Audit
on a quarterly basis and has reviewed the findings by the Auditor-General South Africa on the
internal controls for the year ended 30 June 2024. The Audit Committee noted that there has
been improvement in internal controls in the areas of financial statements, performance
reporting and compliance with legislation. The Audit Committee confirms it has no reason to
believe there were any material breakdowns in the design and operating effectiveness of
internal financial controls in the period that have not been addressed or are not being
addressed by Management




Effectiveness of Risk Management

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the establishment of an effective system of Risk
Management within the municipality that is aligned to the principles of good corporate
governance as supported by the MFMA Act No 56 of 2003, Enterprise Risk Management, the
National Treasury Risk Management Framework and King IV. Risk Management Committee
have assisted the Municipal Manager to execute his risk responsibilities during the year under
review.

The Risk Management Committee is headed by External Chairperson who meet with
Management and the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The Municipality has approved risk
management enabling documents (risk management policy, risk management strategy, risk
management action plan) and frameworks to discharge enterprise risk management
effectively.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the risk management processes were adequately
designed however not effectively and efficiently implemented in some instances.

The Committee urge the municipality to increase its efforts in ensuring the practice of risk
management are embedded in the operational processes of the organisation to ensure that
risks impacting the achievement of the municipality's objectives are fimely identified and
mitigated.

Effectiveness of Performance Management System (PMS)

The municipality reviewed quarterly performance management reports submitted by
Management to the Audit Committee for review. The Accounting Officer is kept responsible to
ensure that Senior Managers take the PMS very sotemn and that reports were submitted when
they fell due. Internal Audit audited the reported quarterly performance information, and all the
system weaknesses reported were brought to the attention of the Municipal Manager and the
Audit committee.

Review of the Annual Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has in consultation with management reviewed the following:

Audit engagement letter and audit strategy.

Audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the Annual report.

Changes in accounting policies and practices.

The Annual Performance reports.

Significant adjustments resulting from the audit processes:

Auditor General South Africa's management letter and management responses
thereto.

Appreclation

The Audit Committee further expresses its sincere appreciation to the Office of the Honourable
Mayor, the Speaker, the Chief Whip, Municipal Manager, Management and all officials for their
unwavering support and interest in the activities of the Committee during the year under
review. The advice and support of other stakeholders such as the Internal Audit Function, Risk
Management Function, Auditor General South Africa, Provincial and National Treasury and
the Provincial Departments, and South African Local Government Association, is also




acknowledged in pursuing the interest of effective Corporate Governance and clean audit
outcomes within the municipality.

We extend our gratitude to the Internal Audit Function for their efforts during the year. The
Audit Commitiee remains confident of the matters raised in this report receiving due
consideration and intervention by the Council. We are committed 1o fully execute our oversight
function and in strengthening Corporate Governance.

Chairperson of Audit and Performance Committee
Ephraim Mogale Local Municipality




